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NOTE: The matter is called to be 

heard at 2:00 p.m., on July 27, 1984, and 

begins as follows, viz: 
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THE BAILIFF: Case No. PUC840023, 

AT&T Communications of Virginia, petition to 

set rates and charges pursuant to Virginia 

Code Section 56-481.1. 

Commissioner Shannon, presiding. 

Robert M. Gillespie., counsel for 

the Commission. 

Counsel for AT&T Communications, 

W. McCarey ·and M. J. Morrissey, Glenn A. 

Stover. 

Anthony ~ambardella, Division of 

Conswaer· counsel, present. 

And GTE attorneys are D. A. Dupont 

and James E. Magee. 

For MCI, Protestant, we have 

ti. Marmon and H. W. Moore • 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: l1ay I have 

the appea~ance slips? 

THE BAILIFF: Yes, sir. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Gillespie. 

~~. GILLESPIE: Your Honor, the 

Staff doesn't have a proposal on this petition 

as we had this morning because AT&T already 

has a certificate of convenience and necessity, 

and I do not believe Mr. Jones needs to take 

the stand to address the reasonableness of 

the tariff because the Commission appx·oved 

those tariffs last December. So the Staff's 

position in this case.is neutral. 

I don't know if the Bailiff received 

any appearance forms from public witnesses. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let nte ask.· 

Are there any public witnesses that are here 

that want to testify·. 

THE BAILIFF: I asked earlier, sir. 

No one. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let t:he record 

show there is no response. 

MR. GILLESPIE: I believe we can 

just proceed with Mr. Morrissey's and 

Ms. McCarey's presentation of the case. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

We'll have opening statements here, and I'll 
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ask you to each identify yourself and who 

you appear for before you make your statement. 

Who appears for AT&T? 

MR. MORRISSEY: Judge Shannon, I'm 

Michael J. Morrissey representing AT&T 

Communications of Virginia. With me today 

is Ms. Wilma McCarey, a member of the Virginia 

Bar. Also, I would like note the appearance 

of Mr. Glenn A. Stover, who is a member of 

the Bar of the District of Columbia, ·who is 

not present today. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

MR. MORRISSEY: As a preliminary 

matter, I do have the certificate of service 

on the other inter local·exchange companies 

as required by the Commission's Order. We 

received return receipt certificates from 

all of the companies with exception of four 

who stated they had, in fact, mailed those 

return receipts, and we notified them by 

~hone, and they reaffirmed that they had, 

in fact, rec·eived notice. 

In addition, I have the proof of 

publications in the Virginia publications, 
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as also stated in the Commission's Order and 

in our notice, and I would have both of these 

marked collectively as AT&T Exhibit No. 1. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, we'll 

call them Exhibit A. 

MR. MORRISSEY: All right. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Applicant's 

Exhibit A. You can pass those up to the 

Bailiff. 

MR. MORRISSEY: Let me state briefly 

our purpose in being here is the purpose that 

many of the other interexchange carriers were 

here this morning, the exception that as 

Mr. Gillespie pointed out that we already .have 

a certificate of convenience to operate in the 

Commonwealth. We are now at this juncture 

requesting, as several other interexchange 

carriers are, to be treated under the flexible 

regulations allowed by the legislation passed 

by the Virginia Legislature effective on 

July 1. 

In support of our proposal, we intend 

to present the.te$timony of three witnesses; 

Dr. Frank Alessio, who is an economist; next 
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Mr. Douglas Wilcox, who will testify as to 

the market conditions in Virginia, and Mr. John 

Schell, who will address certain of the ques­

tions on access that have arisen and bee·n 

posed by certain other parties and protestants 

to this case. 

With the Commission's permission, 

we have prefiled the testimony of the three 

individuals. We do know that the Commission 

has had a heavy hearing schedule today, and 

what we would propose to do is to present 

these three witnesses,·present their prefiled 

testimony, have the witnesses give a short 

summary of their testimony and have them 

subject to cross examination. We do this 

to facilitate the hearing this afternoon. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Have the 

prepared statements of the three witnesses 

been distributed? I know the Commission got 

it yesterday afternoon. I think we've been 

reading it this morning and at the lunch 

break, but I wonder if the other counsel have 

had an opportunity to read it. 

MR. MORRISSEY: They were served 
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on all counsel for all parties 'last evening. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you, 

Mr. Morrissey. 

Who appears for the Protestants? 

MR. MOORE: Your Honor, I have a 

motion first~ and if it's necessary, Mr. Marmon 

will make the opening statements for MCI. 

I would renew my motion to continue 

this case. In addition to the reasons we 

stated on July 20, 1984, before this Commission, 

the testimony Mr. Morrissey refers to was, 

indeed, served on us. It was served on us 

at about 6 o'clock last night, and I'm not 

questioning the timing of that on his part. 

I think they did the best they could. The 

point is the best they could:wctsn•·t .. cjood· 

enough to give this Commission, to gi"re all 

~he parties an opportunity to review this 

testimony. Much of it was similar to what 

has been filed in other states, but there 

were statistics in it, there were a n1mber 

of statistics. We have not had an opportunity 

to review that as the Commission knows. We've 

all had hearing here this morning, and we were 
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served last night with over a hundred pages 

of testimony and exhibits. They were filled · 

with numbers that, frankly, I don't think any 

of the people had seen before. 

In addition to that, last Monday, 

we received answers to AT&T's-~ our· interroga­

tories to AT&T. On many of those interroga­

tories, especially, 2, 4, 5, 10, 11, 18, and 

22, the Petitioner here said the information 

was proprietary; would not provide it to us; 

offeredtDprovide it to the Commission or the 

Commission Staff. I think the Commission 

Staff needs to look at those data that needs 

to be faced by this Commission that can't be 

done now. The data isn't available. 

Finally, on a motion that we made 

last week requesting the Commission to issue 

an ·order requesting a report from each of the 

operating companies has not been acted on. 

I know when we made our motion on the 20th, 

or argued our motion on the 20th, the 

Commission said that the parties should 

respond today.' That decision was made prior 

to the Commission's deciding not to continue 
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this case. In light of that, of course, the 

Commission has not acted on our motion. The 

data we requested there is critical for this 

case. It involves equal access with these 

other 20 companies across the Commonwealth. 

We don•t just deal with C&P; we deal with 21 

local exchange companies. 

We believe the Commission needs 

those data; and if this case is not continued 

and those data looked at and given all the 

parties an opportunity to review the informa­

tion we have and respond meaningfully to it, 

this Commission cannot have an ad~quat:e record, 

and we will not have due process. 

COMMISSION SHANNON: Would you care 

to respond, Mr. Morrissey? 

MR. MORRISSEY: Yes, Judge Shannon. 

I will not ~emake~my.arquments (rom · 

last week, but I would point out that counsel 

for MCI has neglected to point out that they 

have asked for the same type of relief that 

we are asking; have not prefiled testimony; 

had a lot of. testimony, and operated under the 

same due process requirements that we are 
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operating in this case. Much of the testimony, 

specifically, that of John Schell, is in 

response to questions which counsel for MCI 

said must be answered. We have answered 

those questions. We did not believe those 

questions needed to be answered. We didn't 

think they were relevant, but we did· answer 

them at the convenience of the Commission. 

I think there is a full-- there will 

be a full and complete record, and it certainly 

is as full, if not fuller, than the record 

developed by all the ·other interexchange 

carriers this morning. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Any other-­

anybody else care to comment, pro or con? 

It's the unanimous opinion of the 

Commission that your·-·:renewal of your motion 

·to continue is denied, Mr. Moore. I take it 

you'd like to.note.exeeption. 

MR. MOORE: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

Who is the next counsel? 

MR. MARMON: I'm William Marmon 

for MCI of Virginia. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Go ahead. 

~.R. MARMON: MCI believes that it 

is premature to totally deregulate the rates 

of AT&T of Virginia at this time. The reason 

is simple. AT&T of Virginia retains significant 

power in the State. They would make it impos­

sible for it to render services on a competitive 

basis, and the basis for this market power is 

a continuation of a large humber of monopoly 

customers who have no other choice than AT&T 

for their interLATA long distance services, 

and because AT&T·provides monopoly services 

that are not provided and are unable to be 

provided by any other carrier in the State at 

this time. 

MCI will establish this as best it 

can under the circumstanes, and we'll hear 

today by cross examination of the witnesses 

and by the presentation of Dr. Nina Cornell, 

President of Cornell, Pelcovits & Brenner 

Economists, Incorporated, whom you met this 

morning. 

Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you. 
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Do you want to go last, Mr. Gambardella? 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: That's fine, 

Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

Next. 

15 

MS. DUPONT: Deborah A. Dupont 

appearing on behalf of GTE Sprint 

Communications Corporation. James E. Magee 

of the law firm of Isham, Lincoln & Beale 

will also be representing GTE Sprint in this 

proceeding. 

Like MCI, it is the position of 

GTE Sprint· that it is inappropriate to 

deregulate AT&T's rates at this time. We 

take the position that AT&T is not providing 

its services on a competitiv~ basis currently 

and that relaxed rate regulation under the 

recently promulgated legislation would, 

therefore, be inappropriate. 

GTE Sprint intends to tender two 

witnesses in this proceeding in addition to 

cross examination of AT&T's witnesses. We 

will present Ronald D. Havens, ..an erigineer with 

GTE Sprint Communications Corporation, who 
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will address technical issues that shoUld 

be considered in determining whether AT&T 

is providing its service on a competitive 

basis. 

In addition, we will present 

Ma-ry .p. · ·Brackbill, an economist 

16 

on the regulatory staff of GTE Sprint 

Communications Corporation, who will explain 

why AT&T is not providing its service on a 

competitive basis and why the current form 

of regulation should be continued at this time. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you, 

Ms. Dupont. 

Mr. Gambardella. 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Thank you, Your 

Honor. 

I'm Anthony Gambardella, Senior 

Assistant Attorney General, appearing again 

on behalf of the Division of Consumer Counsel 

in this case. 

This morning the Commission heard 

from several companies, each of which will 

enter or would like to enter the interexchange 

business intrastate in Virginia. Each of them 
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stated, as best I recall it, that they will 

begin service in certain areas·of the State 

and expand and hopefully encompass the entire 

area of the State at some point in the future. 

Some were uncertain how long it would take. 

In the meantime, there will be areas of the 

Commonwealth and customers in the Commonwealth 

which will be served that they will not be 

able to serve. 

AT&T, on the other hand, will serve 

all of the customers in Virginia. It is able 

to do so by virtue of the fact that it is the 

successor to a line of corporations that held 

a legal monopoly in its service in this State 

for many, many years. Unlike all of its 

competitors which will start serving parts 

of Virginia and expand, AT&T serves everywhere 

now and w~ll continue to do so. 

This situation requires special 

protection of those customers who will have 

no alternative, albeit perhaps. temporarily. 

There remains a~ opportunity for AT&T to 

cross-subsidize competitive activities with 

noncompetitive ones; and accordingly, we would 
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request the Commission to condition any 

approval of any relaxation ·of: AT&T's·requla­

tions with a condition which would require 

that they charge uniform rates throughout the 

State on a service plus service basis. In 

other words, every customer in the State 

would get the same rate. 

Now, they mentioned some things 

about deaveraging and talking the jargon of 

the industry in a couple of places in the 

testimony, and I've had a very limited time 

to review that. That was served on us at 

6 o·'·clock as well, 6 o •·clock last evening. 

We want to find out what those 

statements mean. We don't mean to disparage 

them, but we would like to know the commitment 

we're getting is the commitment we think is 

necessary; and, in fact, we think it ought 

to be imposed by the Commission as a condition 

of any approval here on the understanding that 

any change in that condition, any deaveraging, 

if that's the industry term for it, would be 

undertaken only after Commission approval. 

In addition, this application raises 
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the same antitrust issue that we raised in 

this morning's case. Both State and Federal 

antitrust laws exempt conduct which would 

otherwise be an antitrust violation where 

that conduct is compelled by a State regulatory 

·commission. So the Commission should care­

fully consider the impact of its decision 

here. If you intend to authorize specific 

activities, which you believe is anti­

competitive, you should be specific about 

what that conduct is, and that you are com­

pelling the Company to engage in it. 

In general, we view this case as 

the Commission approving its status for this 

·eonq:,anyr ·· that is, a competitive status, 

and we're going to assume that they're going 

to be competitive from now on. 

Accordingly, it's the Attorney 

General's position that any uncompetitive 

activities practiced by AT&T in the future 

are fully subject· to antitrust· laws and that 

the Commission has not exempted them by virtue 

of a general order in this case permitting 

them some sort of relaxed regulation. In 
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fact, the intent of that order would be 

exactly the opposite, to increase competition. 

For example, you will approve an 

initial tariff ff~ that':s correct. · Probab:l;y 

you've already approved a tariff for this 

Company. We would take the position that 

every term and every condition in that tariff 

is not considered automatically exempt from 

. the antitrust laws. or automatically competitive 

by virtue of your order in this case. If you 

wish to compel a particular section of that 

tariff, it ought to be called out. 

The Attorney ·General takes the 

position, then, that any anticompetitive 

activities is exempt under the antitrust 

laws only to the extent that you specifically 

called it out in the order and specifically 

required the Company to engage in it, that 

is, compelled them, not just permitted them 

to do it. 

In light of the very limited 

preparation time we have been permitted in 

this case, the Division will have no witnesses 

today. However, we will cross examine the 
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Company to the best of our ability given 

our tight schedule. 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you, 

Mr. Gambardella. 

Now, Mr. Gillespie, do you have 

anything further? 

MR. GILLESPIE: No, Your Honor. 

I believe I should mention that we reserve 

the right to cross examine the witnesses 

presented by the Petitioner. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

Mr. Morrissey, you may proceed. 

MR. MORRISSEY: Thank you, Judge 

Shannon. 

At this time, we'd like to call 

Dr. Frank Alessio to the stand. 

While Dr. Alessio is approaching 

the stand, I ask the Judges if you do have 

copies of the prefiled testimony. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes. 
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2 FRANK J. ALESSIO, called as a witne~s 

3 by and on be~alf of the Petitioner, being first duly 

4 sworn, testified as follows, viz: 

5 

6 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: How do we 

7 want to do this? Do we want to copy this 

8 32 pages or 33 pages of testimony into the 

• 9 record, or do we want to identify this as 

10 an exhibit? It's in the record either way. 

11 It's just a matter of putting it in the 

12 transcript. Probably a little less expensive 

13 to just identify it as an exhibit. 

14 Any questions of counsel on it? 

15 If not, I'll go ahead and say that 

16 this will be received as Exhibit FJA-1. 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

A. IDENTIFICATION AND QUALIFICATIONS 

Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS. 

A. My name is Frank J. Alessio. My business address is 13140 

Coit Road, Suite 318, Dallas, Texas • 

. Q. PLEASE BRIE~LY.OUTLINE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND AND 
RELATED EXPERIENCE. 

A. I am an economist. I received a Bachelor's Degree in 

Liberal Arts from Southern Oregon College •. I have a 

Master's Degree in Economics from the University of Oregon. 

My Doctorate is in Economics and from the University of 

Oregon also. For one year, I was an Instructor of Economics 

at the University of Oregon. I was an Associate Professor 

of Economics at the University of Arizona. I am currently 

an Adjunct Professor at the University of Texas at Dallas. 

I also lecture on the economics of business decisions in the 

MBA program at Southern Methodist University and lecture in 

the Public Utilities Program at Stanford University. I am 

currently the President of Criterion Incorporated, a firm 

specializing in economic, demographic and statistical 

.analysis. My work at Criterion is my primary occupation. 
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I have written more than forty-five economics articles, 

papers and books. Much of my work, research and teaching 

has been in the field of government regulation of business 

activity, with a concentration in public utility problems. 

My teaching duties include a graduate-level seminar on the 

economics of public utility regulation and a graduate-level 

course in microeconomic analysis (sometimes called the 

theory of price). 

I served for more than one year in the Federal Energy 

Administration where I was responsible for short-run and 

long-run energy forecasts and for the statistical analysis 

underlying the PEA's regulatory proceedings. Also, I worked 

for the Electric Power Research Institute for more than one 

year where I was responsible for systems analysis; for the 

integration of supply and demand forecasts and for the 

analysis of the impact of regulation on the performance of 

the electric utility industry .• 

During the last seven years, my work has concentrated 

on the issues of price, cost and market analysis in 

telecommunications and electric power. The work has been 

performed for utility companies and research institutes as 

well as regulatory commissions. 

I have participated in proceedings before regulatory 

commissions in other states as well as before the Federal 

Power Commission, Federal Energy Administration and the 

Congress of the United States. 
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B. PURPOSE OF TESTIMONY 

Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY? 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to discuss certain issues as 

they relate to the changing environment in 

telecommunications. These issues are: the forces shaping 

the changing environment in telecommunications markets; the 

importance of allowing open entry into intrastate interLATA 

markets and allowing all competitors an equal opportunity to 

compete; conditions that justify reduced regulation and 

increased reliance on competitive forces in interLATA 

markets; the benefits of competition and reduced regulation 

to consumers1 and some principles for managing and· 

regulating the changing environment, including a discussion 

of the appropriate criteria for measuring dominance in a 

market, and alternative mechanisms for dealing with the 

economic policy issues faced by the Commission. I believe 

the actions of the Virginia Legislature and the State 

Corporation Commission to reduce the regulatory constraints 

on competitive interexchange carriers and to treat all such 

carriers, including AT&T, equally recognize the realities of 

the telecommunications environment. The Legislature and the 

Commission should be commended for their farsighted and 

correct actions. 

840 
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II. CHANGING ENVIRONMENT IN TELECOMMUNICATIONS MARKETS 

Q. WHAT FORCES ARE SHAPING TELECOMMUNICATIONS MARKETS TODAY? 

A. Currently, interLATA and local area service markets are 

being shaped by three interrelated forces: changing market 

conditions, changing regulatory conditions and a changing 

institutional structure. 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE CHANGING MARKET CONDITIONS. 

A. In recent years interLATA and local area service markets 

have be~n characterized by rapid technological change, 

increasing competitive pressures and expanding customer 

desires that have created new market opportunities for both 

existing firms and for new firms. These new market 

opportunities, coupled with new regulatory rules at both the 

federal and state levels, opened entry to previously closed 

markets. This entry included firms from different · 

industries, some regulated and some unregulated - for 

example, common carriers and resellers in interLATA markete, 

and coaxial cable companies in some local area service 

markets. As a result, most telecommunications markets are 

now contestable, increasingly rivalrous and workably 

competitive. 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE CHANGING ~EGULATORY CONDITIONS AND HOW 
THEY RELATE TO THE CHANGING MARKET CONDITIONS. 

A. The changes in market conditions described in my previous 

answer have been supported by changes in regulation itself 

at both the federal and state levels. 
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The changes in federal regulation supporting the 

changes in market conditions include, for example: (1) the 

FCC's decision in Computer Inquiry II, which ordered the 

deregulation of enhanced services and new terminal 

equipment; (2) decisions which have accelerated the 

depreciation schedules for plant and equipment; (3) 

decisions which relaxed restrictions on resale and sharing; 

and, (4) the decision in FCC Docket 78-72, which suggested 

that artificially large contributions from competitive 

services could not be sustained over the longer term. 

The changes in state regulation which have supported 

the changes in market conditions include, for example: (1) 

allowing relatively open entry into interLATA markets by 

both common carriers and resellers in most states; (2) 

approval of flexible pricing tariffs in many states; and, 

(3) the deregulation of terminal equipment and inside wire 

in some states prior to the FCC action. 

It is important to recognize that, although it has 

lagged behind market conditions at times, the regulatory 

process now tends to foster competition and, in this sense, 

market forces tend to drive changes in the regulatory 

process over time. Moreover, it now seems unlikely that the 

growth of competitive market forces, driven by technology 

and expanding customer needs, could be stopped by regulatory 

prohibitions over the longer term. 
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Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE CHANGES IN INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURES IN 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS. 

A. In addition to changing market and regulatory conditions, 

there have been changes in the structure of the industry. 

For example, interexchange and local distribution markets 

have been separated from one another, and new local area 

boundaries (LATA's) have been constructed. These changes 

were designed to accommodate the expansion of interexchange 

competition beyond interstate markets into intrastate, 

interLATA markets as well. Intrastate, interLATA toll 

competition now exists and intraLATA competition is now 

developfng, as was apparently contemplated in the 

Modification of Final Judgement (MFJ). As a result of these 

institutional changes, competitive entry is now· transcending 

all regulatory and jurisdictional boundaries and the 

appropriate economic conditions for less stringent 

regulation of intrastate interLATA markets now exist, with 

many intraLATA service markets to foilow. 

A. WHAT ARE THE IMPLICATIONS OF THESE CHANGING CONDITIONS FOR 
COMMON CARRIERS AND REGULATORS IN VIRGINIA? 

A. As competition in most intrastate telecommunications markets 

intensifies, no telecommunications company -- not even a 

franchised monopoly -- can behave as if it were insulated 

from competitive market forces. Similarly, the Commission 

can no longer regulate any telecommunications common 

carrier, particularly one whose major business is 

interexchange service, as if it were insulated from 

competition. 



III. COMPETITIVE MARKET FORCES SHOULD BE RELIED UPON 
TO REGULATE MARKET ACTIVITY WHENEVER POSSIBLE 

A. COMPETITIVE ENTRY INTO INTERLATA MARKETS REALISTICALLY 
CANNOT BE STOPPED OVER THE LONGER TERM BY REGULATORY 
PROHIBI~IONS 

Q. IN YOUR OPINION, IS IT PRACTICAL FOR THE COMMISSION TO 
PROHIBIT COMPETITION IN INTERLATA MARKETS? 

A. No, and I believe the actions of the Virginia Legislature 

and the Commission recognize the impracticality of 

prohibiting such competition. There are two principal 

reasons why it is not practical for the Commission to 

attempt to prohibit competition in interLATA markets. 

First, ror the reasons described later, when the market is 

competitive, the costs associated with traditional 

regulation can be avoided and benefits to consumers 

associated with competition can be created, ·if market forces 

by themselves are allowed to regulate market activity. 

Second, the Commission should not attempt to prohibit 

competition because it would not be successful in doing so 

over the longer term. 

Q. WHY WOULD AN ATTEMPT TO PROHIBIT COMPETITION IN INTERLATA 
MARKETS BE UNSUCCESSFUL? 

A. Competitive market boundaries do not necessarily conform to 

regulatory boundaries or boundaries defined for judicial 

convenience (e.g., the LATA boundaries). Market boundaries 

are influenced by available substitutes, and competitive 
. 

markets are defined as much by buyers going outside of an 
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area to obtain a product or service as by sellers enter1ng 

to serve a market. That is, buyers as well as sellers have 

incentives to find ways to thwart regulatory prohibitions on 

competitive entry and they are usually successfulo 

Competitive market activity is the driving force in. 

telecommunications today. It is unlikely that the spreading 

of competitive entry into all segments of the intrastate 

toll market can be stopped by regulatory prohibitions over 

the longer term. While a failure to recognize these trends 

by establishing rigid entry rules in the interLATA market 

may slow the spread of competition in the short term, it 

will only introduce unnecessary inefficiencies into the 

market as competition inevitably develops over the longer 

term. 

Thus, an attempt to prohibit competition by regulatory 

rules would require an ever-expanding sphere of regulatory 

intervention over all potential subs~itu.tes as technology 

continues to create new opportunities for entry into 

interLATA markets and, as a result, ultimately would be 

unsuccessful. Competition rather than regulation should be 

relied upon in all interLATA markets. 

B. COMPETITIVE CONDITIONS WARRANT A RELAXATION OF 
TRADITIONAL REGULATION OF· INTERLATA MARKETS 

Q. WHAT ARE THE GENERAL RESULTS OF COMPETITIVE MARKET 
BEHAVIOR? 

A. Generally, competitive market. behavior causes the products 

and services demanded by consumers to be produced at the 

lowest possible cost (i.e., by the most efficient 
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producers). In addition, competitive market behavior tends 

to drive price toward that cost. Finally, competitive 

market behavior fosters technological progress because an 

innovator who produces an improved product or service, or 

lowers production costs, will be rewarded with greater 

profitability. 

Q. WHAT ARE THE GENERAL ECONOMIC OBJECTIVES OF TRADITIONAL 
PUBLIC UTILITY REGULATION? 

A. The general economic objective of traditional public utility 

regulation is to produce approximately the same market 

behavior in the regulated industry that would be produced if 

effective competition were possible in the industry. To 

achieve this general economic objective, the principal goals 

of public utility regulation are the following: to prevent 

monopoly profits and unreasonable price discrimination, to 

assure adequate earnings for the regulated firm1 and to 

assure that adequate service is prov~ded to all customers 

requesting it. This type of regulation usually takes the 

form of facilities certification, pricing regulation and 

rate base/rate of return regulation. 

Q. GIVEN THESE GENERAL OBJECTIVES, UNDER WHAT SPECIFIC 
CIRCUMSTANCES IS TRADITIONAL REGULATION A BENEFICIAL 
SURROGATE FOR COMPETITION? 

A. Traditional regulation (e.g., facilities certification, 

pricing regulation, rate base/rate of return regulation) can 

be useful as a surrogate.for competition where conditions of 

supply and demand are such that market forces alone cannot 
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be relied upon to constrain the pricing activities of the 

firm and stimulate the firm to supply adequate quantities to 

the market. Such conditions might be present, for·example, 

where the p~oduction technology is characterized by 

significant economies of scale or scope, or where there are 

significant natural barriers to the entry of new 

technologies and firms into the market. These conditions 

are usually referred to as a natural monopoly. 

Under natural monopoly conditions, regulation may be 

required in order to achieve efficient amounts of production 

by the firm and maintain prices lower than the monopoly 

price level (i.e., to produce adequate service at reasonable 

rates). In addition, regulation may be desired to achieve 

certain social policy objectives (e.g., the subsidization of 

certain classes of customers) that might not be achieved by 

market forces alone. Therefore, traditional regulation 

should serve as a surrogate for competition only in the 

presence of a natural monopoly or when regulation is the 

least costly means of achieving certain social policy 

objectives that might not be achieved by the market alone. 

Q. IN THE PREVIOUS ANSWER, NATURAL MONOPOLY WAS MENTIONED. 
WHAT IS THE DEFINITION OF NATURAL MONOPOLY AND BOW DOES IT 
RELATE TO INTERLATA MARKETS TODAY? 

. A. A complete definition of natural monopoly should contain two 

elements. One is a static element that describes the 

conditions that create a natural monopoly at a point in 

time. The other is a dynamic element that describes the 
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conditions that perpetuate a natural monopoly over time. It 

is important to include both elements because a policy 

framework for dealing with competition in telecommunications 

markets can be viable only if it goes beyond static 

conditions to recognize and respond to the dynamics of the 

industry as well. The static definition of a natural 

monopoly is a firm with technology such that any division of 

its total output into separate production will result in 

higher total costs of production (i.e., its costs are 

sub-additive). In other words, if two or more firms 

produce~ in combination the same total output as the 

monopoly and their combined total costs of producing that 

output were higher, then the cost structure of the monopoly 

would be sub-additive and the monopoly would be •natural." 

If their combined total costs were lower, then the cost 

structure of the monopoly would not be sub-additive and the 

monopoly would-not be •natural.• Sub-additive costs can be 

the result of economies of scale (where per unit costs 

decline as the output of the firm increases) or economies of 

scope due to complementarities in production (where two or 

more products or services can be produced at lower cost 

together than if they were produced separately, e.g., due to 

joint use of an input). 

The dynamic definition is that a natural monopoly is a 

market to which no competitors are "naturally" attracted and 

in which competitors would be unable to remain viable even 

if the existing firm is .pricing at or above its incremental 
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costs. This means that even if a firm satisfied the static 

conditions specified above (i.e., sub-additive costs due to 

economies of scale or scope), it is not a natural monopoly 

if it cannot be sustained in the presence of the entry of 

competitors and new technologies into the market. 

There are several points to note about this definition. 

First, it recognizes that a natural monopoly can be created 

in theory by a broader set of conditions than that described 

in the static definition. It includes economies of scope as 

well as economies or scale. Second, it recognizes the 

economies of scale or scope are not always sufficient to 

create or sustain a natural monopoly over time as 

technological change opens the way for competitive entry. 

Third, it recognizes that a definition of natural monopoly 

for policy purposes must also take account of the dynamics 

of industry structure and not focus on the statics alone. 

Even though there are economies·of scale and scope in 

telecommunications, the price-to-cost ratios and pattern of 

subsidies that developed historically, coupled with 

technological changes, have removed elements of natural 

monopoly in the provision of telecommunications services. 

Dynamic market forces, along with the regulatory responses 

to them, have opened entry and caused competitive pressures 

to increase. In recent years, toll markets have been 

characterized by rapid technological change, increasing 

competitive pressures and expanding customer desires that 

have created new market opportunities for both existing 
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firms and for new firms. These new market opportunities, 

coupled with new regulatory rules at both the federal and 

state level~, effectively opened entry to previously closed 

markets. 

The question is not whether a natural monopoly existed 

in the past, or would exist today if history had been 

different, or even whether a natural monopoly might develop 

under different circumstances at some time in the future. 

The question is whether a natural monopoly in toll markets 

exists today. The most reasonable answer is that there is 

no clea·E natural monopoly in toll markets that appears 

sustainable under current conditions. It would be 

inappropriate to base regulatory policy decisions on the 

presumption that any toll market is a natural monopoly. 

Q. ARE THERE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH CONTINUING TO APPLY 
TRADITIONAL PUBLIC UTILITY REGULATION UNDER CURRENT 
CONDITIONS IN INTERLATA MARKETS? 

A. Yes. The following are some of the likely costs associated 

with continuing traditional regulation of interLATA markets. 

First, price levels and structures may not reflect those 

that would be obtained under competitive conditions (i.e., 

regulation may create its own price distortions by relying 

on historical costs or arbitrary cost allocations) and 

typically cannot change in a t~mely way in response to 

market dynamics (e.g., changing demand or supply conditions, 

changing technology, etc.)• Se~ond, the price rigidities 

associated with traditional regulation create uncertainties 
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these circumstances, traditional regulation should be 

relaxed and eventually eliminated so that competitive forces 

can regulate market activities and the costs associated with 

traditional regulation can be avoided. 

Q. DO TODAY'S COMPETITIVE CONDITIONS WARRANT THE RELAXATION OF 
TRADITIONAL REGULATION OF INTERLATA MARKETS REFLECTED IN THE 
COMMISSION'S RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR INTEREXCHANGE 
CARRIERS? 

A. Yes. There is no clear natural monopoly that is sustainable 

under current conditions in interLATA markets. Moreover, 

since competition is sufficiently vigorous and regulation 
. . 

sufficiently costly in interLATA markets, there are less 

costly ways of achieving current social policy objectives. 

Consequently, today•s competitive conditions warrant a 

relaxation of traditional regulation of interLATA markets. 

IV. MEASURES OF DOMINANCE IN A MARKET 

A. DEFINITION OF DOMINANCE 

Q. EVEN IF NATURAL MONOPOLY CONDITIONS DO NOT EXIST, OTHER 
PARTIES, PARTICULARLY COMPETITORS OF AT&T, HAVE EXPRESSED 
CONCERN ABOUT THE BEHAVIOR OF A DOMINANT FIRM IN THE 
INTERLATA MARKET SUCH THAT TRADITIONAL REGULATION IS STILL 
REQUIRED FOR SUCH A FIRM. PLEASE DEFINE DOMINANCE IN A 
MARKET. 

A. A dominant-firm industry is defined as an industry comprised 

of one large firm and a number of smaller firms wherein the 

dominant firm sets the ~arket price as if it were a 

monopolist and allows the smaller firms to sell all they can 
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which may discourage investment in new and riskier 

technologies. Third, the introduction of new products and 

services is likely to be at a slower pace than would be the 

case in an unregulated market. Fourth, technological 

innovations are likely to be driven solely by engineering 

standards rather than customer needs, and cost-saving 

production methods may be adopted at a slower pace than 

would be the case in an unregulated market. Fifth, the 

regulatory process tends to foster regulatory gamesmanship 

rather than active competition by focusing attention on 

satisfyi~g the regulator rather than the market. Finally, 

there are direct costs imposed on society by the regulatory 

process itself (e.g., the costs of funding the regulatory 

agency, additional costs incurred by the regulated firm, 

costs of avoiding regulation, etc.) which are pass.ed on to 

the public in the form of higher prices and taxes. 

Given these costs, traditional regulation is not a 

cost-effective surrogate for market competition when that 

competition is sufficient to push a market toward efficient 

prices and production (i.e., providing adequate service at 

reasonable rates) and when there are less costly means of 

achieving most social policy objectives currently attempted 

through regulation. Therefore, as a previously regulated 

market becomes competitive, traditional regulation is no 

longer beneficial as a surrogate for the market. Under 
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at that price. In th~ real world, virtually all firms have 

some control over price (i.e., their ability to command a 

price above.marginal cost), yet they are not necessarily 

dominant firms. In order to maintain complete control of 

the market price, the dominant firm must also be able to 

control entry into the industry, control the pace of 

technological innovation, and control the development of 

quality standards and potential substitute products and 

services. Thus, although the interLATA market consists of 

firms of varying size, there is no clearly dominant firm, by 

the economic definition, given the existing degree of 

contestability and rivalrous activity as discussed later in 

my testimony. 

Q. GIVEN YOUR PREVIOUS ANSWER, IS THERE A REASON TO MAINTAIN A 
DOMINANT/NON-DOMINANT DISTINCTION IN THE INTERLATA MARKET? 

A. No. There is no sound ~conomic reason to discriminat~e among 

firms in the market based on a dominant/non-dominant 

classification or establish differential regulatory rules 

based on such an artificial classification. 

B. MARKET STRUCTURE MEASURES ALONE ARE 
INAPPROPRIATE FOR MEASURING DOMINANCE 
IN A MARKET OR FOR DECIDING WHEN 
COMPETITIVE FORCES ALONE ARE SUFFICIENT 
TO REGULATE THE INTERLATA MARKET 

Q. CAN MARKET STRUCTURE MEASURE (E.G., MARKET SHARE PERCENTAGES 
AND CONCENTRATION RATIOS) ALONE BE USED TO MEASURE DOMINANCE 
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IN A MARKET OR FOR DECIDING WHEN COMPETITIVE FORCES ARE ABLE 
TO REGULATE THE MARKET IN PLACE OF TRADITIONAL REGULATION? 

A. ~ No. Measures of market power based solely on market share 

data or concentration ratios are not appropriate for 

measuring dominance in a market or for reviewing the ability 

of competitive forces to regulate the market. There are 

both conceptual and practical difficulties with using such 

measures to assess the degree of competition in a market. 

Q. WHAT ARE THE CONCEPTUAL AND PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES WITH 
USING MARKET STRUCTURE MEASURES ALONE TO DETERMINE WHEN A 
MARKET IS COMPETITIVE? 

.A. The conceptual difficulties arfse because such measures 

presume that the concentration of an industry's output 

(i.e., share of the market) is negatively correlated with 

competitive behavior and performance, i.e., they are based 

on the assumption that the larger the share of the market 

that is supplied by one or a few firms, the less competitive 

behavior there will be and, thus, the less competitive the 

results. However, there is no uniform, consistent 

theoretical or conceptual link between the structure of an 

industry and either the intensity of rivalry among firms in 

the industry or the presence of monopoly results (profits) 

in the industry. In addition, current empirical evidence 

does not find a consistently strong positive correlation 

between concentration and monopoly results. 

In addition to the conceptual difficulties with 

structural measure of competition, there are practical 

difficulties with applying them accurately. These practical 
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difficulties include the following: (1) Demand elasticities 

and elasticities of supply, which are used in some 

structural measure, are difficult to-determine. (2) The 

appropriate product market is frequently ambiguous and is 

difficult to define because of the growth of substitutes. 

(3) The appropriate geographic market is difficult to 

define. (4) The appropriate time period is frequently 

ambiguous. (5) The market share or concentration ratio 

thresholds that would suggest a degree of market power such 

that competitive behavior is hindered are difficult to 

determine. 

As a result, the Commission should not judge the extent 

of competition, or assess the position of any firm in the 

market, on the basis of market share percentages or 

concentration ratios alone. 

Q. IF MARKET SHARE MEASURES AND CONCENTRATION RATIOS ALONE 
SHOULD NOT BE USED, WHAT ARE THE APPROPRIATE CRITERIA FOR 
ASSESSING THE DEGREE OF COMPETITION IN A MARKET? 

A. Measures of dominance based solely on market share data or 

other strictly structural measures of competition should be 

replaced by measures based on contestability and rivalrous 

activity when determining whether a market is competitive 

and when reviewing the ability of competitive forces to 

regulate the market. 
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Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE CONCEPT OF CONTESTABILITY. 

A. The concept of market contestability recognizes that a 

proliferati9n of firms simply is unnecessary to achieve the 

advantages of competition or to minimize market power. In a 

contestable market, firms are forced to behave competitively 

because of the threat of entry or the existence of 

competitive alternatives. Concentration ratios or market 

share data alone are not reliable indicators of market 

contestability. 

A market is contestable if there exists opportunity for 

open entry and exit, the entry can occur with capital that 

is mobile or fungible (regardless of the magnitude of the 

capital required to enter initially), and a small price 

increase by an incumbent firm would stimulate competitive 

entry or cause customers to switch to alternatives offered 

in other markets. Markets experiencing rapid technological 

change become increasingly contestable as technological 

changes facilitate competitive entry or the development of 

competitive alternatives. 

Q. CAN YOU PROVIDE AN EXAMPLE OF A MARKET THAT WAS THOUGHT TO 
BE A MONOPOLY BUT WAS, IN FACT, CONTESTABLE? 

A. Yes, the postal ~ervice provides an excellent example of a 

market that was thought to be a closed monopoly but which 

was, in fact, contestable. For most of its history, the 

u.s. Postal Service operated as a closed monopoly, and entry 

into parts of the mail delivery· market was prohibited by 
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law. However, recent years have shown that the market was 

contestable due to the ease of entry into the business of 

mail delivery. We have also seen that market demand 

conditions allowed successful entry and viable competition 

in several segments of the market. For example, competitors 

provide high-priced, high quality s~rvice to one segment-of 

the market in the forms of air courier service and 

electronic mail service, and low-priced, relatively lower 

quality service to another segment of the market in the form 

of surface transport companies. Furthermore, other firms 

(e.g., KCI, Western Union and Federal Express) have entered 

the market with electronic mail services. Thus, while the 

postal service delivers the largest percentage of the mail 

(i.e., has the largest market share), it is clear that 

rivalrous activity exists in the market. 

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE CONCEPT OF RIVALROUS ACTIVITY. 

A. The concept of rivalrous activity focuses on practical 

measures of competition and recognizes the dynamic nature of 

competition. Measures of rivalrous activity judge 

competition on the basis of actual market behavior and 

performance. 

The following are some empirical measures of rivalrous 

activity in toll service markets: market coverage 

characteristics to dete~mine whether there are an increasing 

number of competing companies and whether some are growing 

in size and capacity, and are increasing the number of areas 
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served; financial characteristics of the competing companies 

to determine whether competing companies are growing in size 

and financi~l strength and whether the opinion of the 

financial market is that they are financially viable 

companies with continuing market potential; entry 

characteristics to determine the relative ease of entry into 

the market and the ubiquitous nature of competition; 

efficiency characteristics to demonstrate the relative 
I 

efficiencies of competing companies to indicate whether some 

of the competing companies are viable competitors; price 

characteristics to demonstrate whether there exists price 

competition among t·he competing companies in the market; 

and, advertising characteristics to indicate whether 

competing companies are actively seeking customers by 

advertising and whether such advertising is increasing over 

time. It is important to note that these points are not a 

checklist that must be satisfied to determine the degree of 

competition in the market at a given time; instead, they 

represent the varied and diverse dynamic conditions that 

typify competitive markets. 

An examination of these characteristics which are 

detailed in the statistics presented in the testimony of Mr. 

Wilcox indicates that interLATA markets are not only 

contestable, but they display significant rivalrous activity 

and are workably competitive. In addition, the scope and 

intensity of this competition has been increasing over time. 
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Q. PLEASE GIVE EXAMPLES OF THE EMPIRICAL INFORMATION WHICH 
LEADS TO THE CONCLUSION THAT ECONOMICALLY SIGNIFICANT 
RIVALROUS ACTIVITY EXISTS IN THE TOLL SERVICE MARKETS. 

A. There has b~en rapid and extensive entry into the toll 

service markets in the past few years. MCI, on a national 

basis, has grown from 280,000 customers in 1981 to 1.7 

million customers as of May, 1984. GTE-Sprint has grown 

from 200,000 customers in 1981 to 1.3 million customers as 

of May, 1984, and the OCCs are currently acquiring over 3000 

new customers per day. 

In addition to the numbers of customers, the types of 

customer~ selecting the OCCs indicate that consumers are 

willing to switch vendors in response to price-quality 

differentials. During 1983 in those areas served by at 

least one carrier other than AT&T, approximately half of all 

business customers who spend at leasb $50 per month on long 

distance calls and 19% of residential customers who spend 

$25 or more on interstate calls per month were served by a 

carrier other than AT&T. This statistic is particularly 

significant when one considers that approximately 90% of all 

business calls and 50% of all residential calls are made by 

customers in these categories. 

The financial characteristics of the OCCs make it clear 

that they are strong and viable competitors. MCI's 

revenues, for example, increased by 236% percent over the 

last two years, .from $506.4 million for the year ending 
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March 31, 1982, to $1.7 billion for the year ending March 

31, 1984. The OCCs' combined· 1984 construction budgets are 

over three times larger than AT&T Communications' 1984 

budget for additions to new capacity. MCI has announced 

that it will spend approximately $1 billion nationally on 

expansion in 1984 and double that amount in 1985. Sprint 

has announced that it will double its national network in 

1984 with a $1 billion investment and that it will increase 

its capacity in Virginia by 3 million route channel miles by 

the end of 1984. 

V. BENEFITS OF REDUCED REGULATION TO CONSUMERS 

Q. WILL A RELAXATION OF TRADITIONAL REGULATION, APPLIED TO ALL 
CARRIERS EQUALLY, BENEFIT CUSTOMERS OF INTERLATA SERVICES 
SPECIFICALLY AND CONSUMERS IN GENERAL? 

A. Yes, such actions will. produce several types of benefits 

both for customers of interLATA services specifically and 

for consumers in general. First, competitive parity among 

carriers coupled with reduced regulation should lead to a 

decline in the real price, on average, to the majority or 

interLATA customers. Under natural competitive 

circumstances, this real price effect might be felt first in 

the more concentrated market areas, spreading eventually to 

other areas as competition proceeds. In this case, however, 

AT&T Communications has committed itself to maintain 

statewide rate uniformity by service. Accordingly, the 

general competitive pressures which lead to price reductions 
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should result in price benefits for all Virginia users of 

telecommunications services. These price benefits will 

accrue not only to large customers but to small customers 

and to a significant percentage of the poor and elderly as 

well. 

Second, competitive parity coupled with reduced 

regulation should lead to the development of products and 

services which are more precisely geared to satisfy 

expanding customer needs because it will stimulate the 

provision of products and services with qualities and 

attributes which are market or demand-side oriented rather 

than solely.engineering or supply-side oriented. In 

contrast, in strictly regulated industries or companies, 

design criteria are -driven-more by engineering standards and 

production technologies than by customer demand. In 

addition, competitive parity coupled with relaxed regulation 

stimulates a more timely response by .producers to customers' 

needs and desires. This involves a more rapid provision of 

desired products and services as well as a more rapid demise 

of products and services which are not desired by customers. 

Third, there would be improved quality of some products 

and services in the market. In some segments of the market, 

competitive parity coupled with relaxed regulation should 

allow customers to experience an increase in the quality of 

service without an increase in price. In effect, customers 

receive an increase in value per dollar spent. This is the 

typical result of non-price competition that characterizes 
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most competitive markets. Improved quality comes in several 

forms, such as, improved physical attributes of products or 

improved technological features of services, improved 

customer service, and improved information to customers 

about the options available from vendors and attributes of 

their products. Information is improved because competition 

and relaxed regulation create an incentive among firms to 

disseminate information about their products which enables 

all customers to make better choices in relation to their 

needs. 

Foqrth, competition and relaxed regulation will produce 

a greater diversity in the provision of products and 

services. For example, a greater number of options will be 

available for existing services, new services will be 

provided more quickly and in greater numbers, and more 

options of price-quality choices will be available to 

customers, allowing each to better maximize value per dollar 

spent. 

Finally, competition and relaxed regulation would have 

ripple effects throughout the economy creating new jobs and 

stimulating economic growth. There are strong linkages 

between the.telecommunications industry and other important 

industries in the economy in two directions: there are 

"downstream" linkages to those industries which use 

telecommunications services as an_important input and 

•upstream• linkages to those industries which are principal 

suppliers to the telecommunications industry. As regulatory 
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reform causes prices for telecommunications services to 

decrease and output to increase, "downstream" industries 

will experience decreased costs whic~ will, at least in 

part, be reflected in lower prices for their products, and 

"upstream" industries will find the demand for their supply 

to the telecommunications industry increasing. Both effects 

will stimulate growth throughout the economy as expansion in 

the directly linked industries causes expansion in other 

indus·tr ies with which they have important trading 

relationships. 

VI. PRINCIPLES FOR MANAGING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
REDUCED REGULATION IN INTERLATA MARKETS 

Q. CAN YOU PROVIDE THE COMMISSION WITH SOME GUIDELINES FOR 
MANAGING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF INCREASED RELIANCE ON 
COMPETITION IN INTERLATA MARKETS WITHIN THE CONTEXT OF THE 
COMMISSION'S RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR INTEREXCHANGE 
CARRIERS? 

A. Yes. Although some regulatory oversight may be required ·as 

a precaution, regulation of interLATA markets should be 

reduced significantly to provide the greatest flexibility 

for competitive forces to operate. I believe that the 

Commission's order of June 29, 1984, provides for a proper 

combination of regulatory oversight and competitive 

flexibility at this time. I would like to discuss several 

guidelines for reduced regulation of interLATA markets which 

are applicable in Virginia. 

First, the Commission's order correctly adopts a policy 

of open entry for all interLATA markets to ensure a clear 

opening for competitive firms, new technologies and new 
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services. InterLATA toll markets should be opened and 

regulation should be relaxed immediately, with a maximum 

reliance on marketplace forces to control prices and service 

quality. 

As previously indicated, although the Commission should 

maintain regulatory oversight and not become involved with 

the day-to-day approval of the earnings, price levels and 

rate structures of interexchange carriers as it is with the 

more traditional public utilities subject to its 

jurisdiction. The Commission should focus on oversight and 

monitor~ng responsibilities to assure itself t~at, if there 

are residual pockets of market power in Virginia, they are 

not being exploited by any carrier. The following are 

examples of specific oversight activities that could be used 

by the Commission when monitoring a policy of open entry and 

competitive parity: (1) Conduct certification and 

withdrawal proceedings so that the Commission is fully aware 

of all entry and exit from the Virginia market7 (2) Ensure 

that notice of changes in rates or service offerings to 

customers, while streamlined, is also adequate; (3) Monitor 

the type of local access arrangements made available to 

interexchange carriers and ensure that all carriers are 

paying the appropriate charges for that access; (4) Maintain 

a data base of the market in Virginia including the earnings 

of the industry as a whole and the particular prices and 

services available to customers in Virginia. These 

monitoring activities will guard against residual pockets of 

market power being exploited to the detriment of Virginia 

consumers. . 864 
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In addition, the Commission should retain the authority 

to reimpose traditional regulatory requirements in the event 

that the co~petitive marketplace does not function properly 

or if carriers to abuse the regulatory flexibility granted 

by the Commission. The threat of this reimposition of 

increased regulatory review by itself will cause 

interexchange carriers to act responsibly. The Commission's 

order and public statements make this policy clear. 

Second, the Commission should make sure that the 

regulatory process is not used by carriers to distort or 

limit the competitive process. The traditional regulatory 

burden of proof should be reversed so that the prices, rate 

structures and rate of return of the interexchange carriers 

are presumed to be lawful and reasonable. The burden of 

proving otherwise should be on the party opposed to them. 

Objections or challenges by a carrier to the prices charged 

by another competitive interexchange· carrier should be 

specific, and the challenging party should be required to 

prove both the existence of market power and the exercise of 

that power. Although price levels can continue to be 

subject to protest and review by the Commission, they should 

not be suspended during an investigation of their 

reasonableness.· In this way, the Commission can rely once 

again on competitive market forces to the maximum extent, 

and yet retain authority, to guard against any potential 

abuses. 
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Third, Commission should permit competitive parity 

among firms in the market so that all firms have an equal 

opportunity.to compete and consumers can experience the full 

benefits of competition with open entry. The Commission 

need not be overly concerned with a firm's current size or 

position in the market as long as entry of new firms is 

possible, since actual entry is likely to occur if a firm 

attempts to use its current size or position to earn 

persistently higher than normal profits. Artificial 

distinctions between firms competing in the same market 

(e.g., artificial distinctions between "dominant" and 

•non-dominant• firms) should not be created or perpetuated. 

In addition, handicapping some firm(s) would not promote 

efficient entry of firms, new technologies and new services, 

nor would it promote the efficient operation of existing 

firms in the market. For example, maintaining the relative 

price inflexibility of traditional regulation would prevent 

the regulated carriers from responding to changes in market 

conditions in a timely manner, perpetuating a 

regulatory-induced price umbrella under which all firms 

cou~d keep their prices higher than they would be otherwise. 

As another example, uneven regulation can distort 

investment decisions by encouraging the unregulated firm to 

deploy higher cost technologies into market areas protected 

by artificial price umbrellas, and by discouraging regulated 

firms from deploying new and riskier technology into newly 

emerging segments of the information market because of rate 
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of return restrictions and pricing inflexibility. Both 

examples show how a short term policy of uneven regulatory 

treatment between firms in the market can create longer term 

economic inefficiencies. 

Fourth, substitute relationships in the market cannot 

be ignored by the Commission. Network services are easily 

substitutable one for the other, i.e., they are easily 

interchangeable across broad market segments. This 

relatively high degree of market substitutability permits 

relatively low-cost, low-risk entry and exit (i.eG, 

hit-and~run competition), allowing competitors to expand 

their own service offerings or open new geographic areas by 

interchanging their facilities with common carrier 

facilities through resale and sharing. The high degree of 

substitutability also blurs the distinction between 

customers and competitors, with large customers having the 

opportunity to become competitors (by installing private · 

systems) and with competitors becoming customers at times 

(by r~selling services). Thus, any regulatory rules imposed 

by the Commission should not be based on· rigid definitions 

or categorizations of which services are competitive or on 

artificial market boundaries. If rigid definitions or 

boundaries are chosen, those regulatory rules would have to 

be continuously expanded to include all potential 

substitutes (even those not provided by carriers). 

Fifth and finally, ·the Commission should recognize that 

competition in interLATA markets poses no threat to 

universal service. Alternative means for dealing with the 
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social policy issue of maintaining reasonable prices for 

network access to local customers are available. 

Legislators should be encouraged to consider financing a 

sharply focused, targeted subsidy to residence network 

access out of general tax revenues. In addition, the 

Commission should encourage the local operating company to 

introduce new services and new uses for the local network 

which would improve the utilization of local facilities, 

increase local exchange revenues and help support access 

prices without general rate increases. Moreover, certain 

rate st~uctures should be permitted by the Commission to 

allow for more efficient coverage of the local operating 

company's revenue requirement. For example: local measured 

service, including a properly administered lifeline service, 

and other forms of usage-sensitive pricing should be 

encouraged and should soon become the primary local exchange 

service offering; services such as directory assistance, 

local coin telephone service and some private line services 

(those which are currently priced below their incremental 

costs) should be repriced to at least cover their costs. 

Finally, any subsidy to network access should not be a 

broad-based subsidy, e.g., to all local customers, but 

should be a sharply focused subsidy to a carefully targeted 

group of customers. 
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VII. SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS 

Q. PLEASE BRIEFLY SUMMARIZE THE PRINCIPAL CONCLUSIONS OF THIS 
TESTIMONY •. 

A. The principal conclusions of this testimony are the 

following: First, competitive market forces alone should be 

relied upon to regulate market activity whenever possible. 

Since there are costs associated with regulation, 

traditional public utility regulation should only be used 

as a surrogate for competition where market forces cannot be 

relied upon. Second, even though there are economies of 

scale and scope in telecommunications, there is no clear 

natural monopoly that appears sustainable under current 

conditions. Thus, it would be incorrect to base regulatory 

policy decisions on the presumption that interLATA markets 

are natural monopolies. Third, the Commission should not 

attempt to prohibit competition to preserve the benefits of 

traditional regulation because such a policy cannot be 

successful over the longer term. Fourth, market structure 

measures alone (i.e., market shares and concentration 

ratios) are inappropriate for determining when a market is 

competitive and for deciding when competitive forces alone 

are able to regulate the market. Such measures should be 

replaced by measures based on contestability and rivalrous 

activity. It is clear that the interLATA market displays 

significant rivalrous activity and is workably competitive, 

and there is no clearly dominant firm in the marketo Thus, 

traditional regulation is not required in interLATA markets. 
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Fifth, reduced regulation would produce significant benefits 

for customers of interLATA services and consumers in 

general. Sixth and finally, the Commission should consider 
. . 

the following guidelines in implementing reduced regulation. 

The Commission should adopt a policy of open entry; permit 

competitive parity among firms in the market; recognize 

substitute relationships in the market so that the terms and 

conditions of regulation are not based on rigid definitions 

or categorizations of what services are competitive or on 

artificial market boundaries; continue regulatory oversight 

rather than detailed regulatory review and pursue 

alternative means for dealing with the social policy issue 

of maintaining reasonable prices for network access to local 

customers. 

I believe that the Commission's order of June 29, 1984, 

and its rules and regulations for interexchange carriers if 

applied to all carriers, including AT&T Communications, 

recognize the realities of the present telecommunications 

market, are in accord with sound economic principles, and 

will bring the benefits of competition to Virginia 

customers. 

Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY? 

A. Yes, it does. 
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• ' BY MR. MORRISSEY: 17 

18 Q Dr. Alessio, would you, please, 

19 identify yourself and your business address for the 

20 record? 

21 A My name is Frank J. Alessio, A-1-e-

22 s-s-i-o. My business address is 13140 Coit Road, Dallas, • I 

23 Texas. 

24 Q P.revious ly filed with the Commission 

25 and distributed to all parties of record last evening was 

B71 



Alessio - Direct 23 

2 

3 

4 

5 

a 33-page document, which Judge Shannon has just marked 

for identification as FGA-l(sic). Was this document 

prepared by you or under your supervision? 

6 

A 

Q 

Yes, it was. 

And do you have any corrections to 

7 this document? 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

No, I don't. 

Do you adopt FGA(sic) No. 1 as your 

10 direct testimony in this proceeding? 

11 A I think it was marked FJA, though. 

12 Q I'm sorry. FJA. Do you adopt this? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A I do. 

MR. MORRISSEY: At this time, 

Judge Shannon, I would like to move FJA 

Exhibit No. 1 into evidence. 

COMMISSIONER S~ON: It will be 

18 received subject· to _questions on cross 

19 examination. 

20 BY MR. MORRISSEY: 

21 Q Dr. Alessio, would you, please, give 

22 a brief sununary of your testimony. 

23 A I will. My summary is as follows: 

24 The economic condition 6£ the interexchange telecommunica-

25 tion market in Virginia indicates that there are 
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contestable, increasingly rivalry, and workably com­

petitive. Although some regulatory oversight may be 

required with caution, regulation of interLATA markets 

should be reduced significantly, provide the greatest 

flexibility for competitive forces to operate. 

I believe that the Commission's Order 

of June 29th provides for a proper combination of 

regulatory oversight and competitive flexibility at this 

time. There is no economic reason to expect. that: stream-, 

lined regulation will cause rural routes to be abandoned 

or rural services to be priced exorbitantly high. 

The Commission's Order correctly 

adopts the policy of open entry for all interLATA markets, 

to assure a clear opening for competitive firms, new 

technology and services. Regulation should be relaxed 

if maximum..·r~l.ian5=e ·on :: marketplace forces to control 

prices and service quality. 

The Commission should maintain 

regul~tory oversight. but.not necessarily become involved 

with the day-to-day approval of earnings, price levels, 

and rate structures of the interexchange carriers as it 

is with the more traditional public utilities subject 

to this jurisdiction.·. These monitoring activities will 

guard against procedural.·. pockets of market power being 
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exploited to the detriment of Virginia customers. 

In addition, the Commission should 

retain the authority to reimpose traditional regulation-­

excuse me-- traditional regulatory requirements in the 

event that the competitive marketplace does not function 

properly or its carriers abuse the regulatory flexib~lity 

·granted. by the Commission. 

The threat of this reimposition of 

increased regulatory review by i ts·elf will cause any 

interexchange carriers to act responsibly. The Commission's 

Order and public ~tatements make this policy clear. 

·The Commission·should permit 

competitive parity amongst firms in the market so that 

all firms have an equal opportunity to compete and 

consumers can experience the full benefits of competition 

with open entry. 

The Commission need not be overly 

concerned with a firm's current.size or position in the 

market as long as entry of new firms is possible s1nce .. 

actual entries likely to occur if the firm intends to use 

its current size or position to earn persistently· higher 

than normal profit. 

Artificial distinctions between firms 

competing in the same market; for example, distinctions 
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drawn as to dominant and nondominant firms for regulatory 

purposes should not be created or perpetuated~ 

In addition, the handicapping of 

some firms -would not promote efficient entry, new tech­

nology or new services, nor would it promote the efficient 

operation of existing firms in the market. 

I believe the Commission's Order of 

June 29th and its rules and regulations for interexchange 

carriers if applied to all carriers, including AT&T 

Communications, recognize that the realities of the 

present-communications market are in accord with sound 

economic p~in~iples and will bring the benefits of 

competition to Virginia customers. 

That also concludes my summary 

statement. 

MR. MORRISSEY: Dr. Alessio is 

available for cross examination. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Gillespie. 

21 CROSS EXAMINATION 

22 BY MR. GILLESPIE: 

23 Q Dr. Alessio, one item. You mention 

24 that the Commission ~as t~e alternative of reimposing 

25 regulation if competition should fail.· Do you have any 
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2 criteria by which the Conuniss.ion ·could .recognize· if 

3 . competition has failed? 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

: Q 

A 

I do, Mr. Gillespie. 

Please elaborate. 

I would be happy to. I think the 

appropriate criteria is not one of a mechanical formula. 

.I do think there is one that the Commission has to apply 

with its own judgment and experience in Virginia regulation, 

and I would propose thattWo issues or two considerations 

be used in that. 

The first is to maintain an open 

channel for potential complaint~ from customers and to 

be able to have the Commission Staff review those 

complaints, judge their merits, bring them to the attention 

of the Commission. 

Second is to maintain an avenue of 

open complaint for all of the interexchange carriers. 

However,· there, I think, Mr. Gillespie, the rules and 

regulations have to be a little bit tighter. I think 

the Commission needs to protect against other carriers 

using the regulatory arena for co~petitive~ ·gamesmanship· 

and to use the·regulatory arena to limit what other 

competitors might do in the market. 

Therefore, I think that the burden of 
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proof should be on the complaining carrier. That burden 

of proof should go toward a demonstration of an exercise 

of possession and exercise of market power. 

In the meantime, while a complaint 

is underway, I do believe that the prices that have been 

put into market should take in place. 

So I think the focus should be one 

of monitoring customer complaints with the Staff having 

the ability to look at those complaints, judge their 

veracity, bring them to the Commission for action •. The 

second should be an avenue of complaint for carriers, but 

there it should be solely one of whether a market power 

exists, and more important than that, whether that market 

powers ~that existstakes an exercise for the abuse of the 

customers. 

Q Well, if w~ were to-- if the Commission 

18 were to look at and see that somebody is exercising market 

19 power, how could we determine that exercisinq that market 

20 power in a manner that shows that there is no competitive 

21 activity and no true competition? 

22 A I think that the way we can determine 

23 if they're exercising that market power is in terms of, 

24 for example' pricing. actions·~. '. ·Where· it. could be ·very. simila 

25 in the way to which an antitrust issue of market power 
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might be looked at. We might be interested-- we would 

be interested in knowing whether the firm has consistentLy 

raised their real price of telecommunications pe~:sistentl:y · :· 

and increasingly above its true economic costs and have 

used those to the dis~dvantage of particular customers, 

that is to say, it's done it in places where there is not 

at least one other competitor that's available. 

I don't know if I made that very 

clear, Mr. Gillespie. 

Q Well, to go about the monitoring of 

12 price, to make sure that it's not significantly ~ove 

13 cost, what kind of data or :reports-~ might the Commission 

14 ·need? 

15 A I think that an important role for the 

16 Commission, and particularly the Commission Staff, as they 

17 move into the new competitive environment, the interexchange 

18 one, teleommunications is one of monitoring the market.· 

19 I think that's going to be a very critical role. 

20 Along those lines, .I do think·· the 

21 Commission Staff needs to begin to establish a data base 

22 that monitors things like .the growth of the capacity of 

23 carriers, that begins to look at the cost of providing 

24 service from the carriers. .I think a lot of it is things 

25 that probably the Commission is already doing. All I'm 
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2 suggesting is that that same information base be used 

3 in a slightly different way, be used in a streamlined 

4 regulatory manner rather than rate case type proceeding. 

5 So I do think a lot of what is needed is probably already 

6 in place in Virginia. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

MR. GILLESPIE: Thank you, 

Dr. Alessio. No further questions. 

BY MR. GAMBARDELLA: 

Q 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Gambardella. 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Yes, Your Honor. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

Dr. Alessio, what you were talking 

15 about before was a firm abusing its market power, and 

16 then the Commission would take some action. I$ that ~he 

17 gist of it? 

18 A That's correct. 

19 Q And what would that action be? 

~ A Well, that action can be-- can follow 

21 a number of forms. First, it could be a reimposition of 

22 traditional regulatory review. 

23 Q I'm just asking this. That's, in 

24 fact, what the rules provide for in Virginia, is it not? 

25 A It's my understanding. 
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2 Q Right. 

3 A That's correct. And, of course, that 

4 is a very hard step; and if the evidence in the case 

5 warranted it, it would be an appropriate step. 

6 In addition to that, the remedy might 

1 be reduction in rates and a refund to existing customers. 

8 Those kinds of things, refunds have happened in the public 

9 utility area before. It's a very well known procedure. 

10 Q In effect, wha·t you would be saying 

11 is place more restrictions on that one competitor which 

12 has abused its market power, is that correct? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A In a way,. that's what I'm saying, but 

what I'm saying is something. more important than· ·that. first., 

At first, I'm saying give them the opportunity to demon­

strate that the market is competitive and that streamlined 

regulation and flexibility in the market will not be abused 

because the Commission does have the ultimate constraint of 

reimposing all of the conditions of traditional regulationo 

Q I assume you're familiar with a man 

named Alfred E. Kahn? 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

He has an article in the latest issue 

of Public Utilities Fortnightly. Have you read that? 

A No, I haven't~ 
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2 Q In that article, after discussing 

3 mahy of the things you discussed~ in testimony of this 

4 case, and I quote, "It does not mean that I regard 

5 asymmetrical, residual regulation and competitive handi-

6 capping as wholly unnecessary. There does remain, in 

7 pr±nciple, the danger of cross-subsidization of competitive 

8 offerings by elevated charges to c;:aptive eustomers." 

9 Do you agree with that? 

10 A The potential of cross-subsidization 

11 of product line exists in every market. The potential 

12 for it exists in every market. It doesn't matter whether 

13 it's a regulated public utility or an unregulated public 

14 utility. 

15 Q I'm not talking abOut.product 

16 line necessarily. I'm talking about elevated charges to 

17 captive customers cross-subsidizing competitive customers. 

18 A Again, my answer would be the same. 

19 I don't disagree with your statement. The only point I'm 

20 trying to make is that that's a generalized condition in 

21 the market against what most of the antitrust laws are 

22 ~esigned to protect. There is no reason to presume that 

23 would happen in s·treamlined regulation • 

24 

25 

Q . Is there a reason to presume that if 

one fir.m has the ability to serve all customers,· then .the 
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2 others don't? 

3 

4 

A 

Q 

I'm sorry, I didn't hear. 

Is there a reason to presume that if 

5 one competitor has the opportunity and capacity to serve 

6 all of those customers, then other companies do not have 

1 that oppo~tunity? 

8 A No, I don't think that is a reason to 

9 do it. And if you don't allow the ubiquitous companies 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to respond to competition in the market, that wh~t, in 

fact, what you will get is precisely, I think, the kind 

of rate distortion that people will be trying to avoid 

to the extent that you don't let that company compete. 

If you do, you create a price umbrella under which the 

other firms will come in; and as a result of that, all 

prices everywhere are higher than they should be. 

And in addition to that, the only 

place that the discount would then be offered would be 

only in those places where the other carriers have enteredo 

It seems to me to be a superio~ piece of streamlined 

regulation to allow the rather relatively Ubiquitous 

companies to respond and respond everywhere. 

Q So that the customer who has only one 

option in a rural situation should be subject, in the 

public interest, to the possibility that the ubiquitous 
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2 company would charge them a much greater rate, perhaps 

3 much greater than cost, in attempt to cross-subsidize 

4 another customer who is in a competitive market until 

5 somebody can find that out and remedy the situation. 

6 Is that fair? 

7 A That's not quite correct. I mean, 

8 you're pres~ng a bad result, which need not occur. 

9 There is no economic reason to believe that rates under 

10 cost circumstances would be deaveraged in·the way that 

11 you describe, that they would be deaveraged. 

12 In addition to that, there is no 

13 reason to presume that you could set up a strawman problem 

14 and continue to impose very rigid set of handicaps in a 

15 market that is increasingly rivalrous and workably 

16 competitive to stop a problem that probably is not going 

17 to occu~ when it comes to the cost in not allowing the 

18 benefits of competition spread to those various customers th t 

19 Y~~:-wanted .~o protec~., That • s the other side of the coin. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Did you make a study of Viz·ginia 

revenues to cost market? 

A 

Q 

No, I.have not. 

So you don't know whether the market 

in Virginia will·be rivalrous or not? 

A Oh, the market in Virginia will be 
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· 2 rivalrous. There are other carriers currently in the 

3 market; facilities based carriers; there are resellers 

4 in the market; there are a number of firms who were in 

5 the room here this morning and are in the room today that 

6 have· applied for certification. It is a contestable, 

1 rivalrous market. 

8 Q It i~ a contestable market, is that 

9 your statemen~? 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Not a contested market; it's a 

12 contestable market? 

13 A It is a contestab!"e and contested 

14 market. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Suppose the business objective of--

let's not say AT&T-- let's say MCI came into the market 

pattern and suppose the bu'siness objective of MCI was to 

use that what power it had to gain a sum of money, and 

it knew that it could do it; it knew that it would raise 

its prices, and it .c:::ould~ gain a sum of money in that way 

because-- this is the critical assumption-- that it would 

take some time for AT&T to respond to those higher prices 

and be able to compete again. Is that a potential business 

judgment of these people? 

A I suppose it's a potential business 
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2 judgment of people, but it doesn't seem like a very 

3 prudent one. It's one that will maximize their com-

4 petitive losses, not minimize their competitive losses. 

5 It's one that•s·:not very customer .f~iendly. I would advance 

6 the hypothesis that if we go into the new environment, 

7 one of the things that all interexchange· carriers want 

a to oe is customer friendly. I see no reason to believe 

9 that any of the companies want to abuse its customer base 

10 in that fashion, particularly, the market potential of 

11 streamlined regulation could be lost when such an abuse 

12 would cause the Commission to reimpose traditional 

13 regulation. That potential penalty is so great and the 

14 cost so high that I don't believe anything will happen. 

15 Q But you made no study of what will 

16 happen in Virginia? 

A That's correct. 17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: That's all I have, 

Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Marmon. 

22 CROSS EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. MARMON: 

24 Q Good afternoon, Dr. Alessio. I'm 

25 William Marmon of MCI. 
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2 A You say it's Marmon? 

3 Q Mar.mon. It is your testimony, is it 

4 not, Dr. Alessio, that this Commission should regulate 

5 totally the rates of AT&T in Virginia, today or now? 

6 A This-- my proposal ln this testimony 

7 is not derequlation. My proposal in this testimony is 

8 streamlined regulation. I do think that our priority of 

9 first instance, when-- after a certification proceeding 

10 and the first set of rates are established, then at that 

11 point I think rates should no longer be deregulated. 

12 Q I'm so sorry, I'm misunderstanding you. 

13 Are you-- is it your testimony that as a petition of AT&T 

14 to have its rates deregulated? We're not talking about 

15 the other cautions that you've mentioned, but its rates, 

16 deregulate totally without qualification, that the petition 

17 should be granted? 

18 A If I understand your question, my 

19 answer is yes.. I • m only objecting-- and I don't mean to 

20 be picking nits. I'm only objecting to the use of the 

21 word "deregulation." 

22 Q I'm talking about deregulation of 

23 rates. 

24 A Yes. Although this does say that the 

25 rates of priority will not come under the review of the 
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2 Commission, there is the Commission's ability to reimpose 

3 review of those rates. Therefore, there is still regulatory 

4 oversight. 

5 

6 

7 

Q 

A 

Q 

But not of the rates? 

Potentially, yes, of the rates. 

The abiLity to reimpose regulation 

8 of the rates is the only regulation, I take it? 

9 A And the ability to use the threat of 

10 reimposition as a stick to keep people aligned is always 

11 there. This is not deregulation in the sense of turning 

12 the companies loose and saying, "We will never see you 

13 again; we are not going to watch your activities." 

14 Indeed, the proposal is and the 

15 Commission's statement is that the activities will be 

16 monitored. That is not deregulation to me. That is 

17 regulatory oversight; that's some regulatory forebearance, 

18 but it still is regulatory monitoring and regulatory 

19 review. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q If the petition of AT&T is granted, 

AT&T of Virginia will have the opportunity to deaverage 

its rates, will it not? 

A 

Q 

A 

In some legal sense? 

No, in some pricing sense. 

I'm sorry, Mr. Marmon. Did you say 
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2 that they would have--

3 Q They'd have the option, business 

4 option to deaverage their rates; charge more for one 

5 locality for the same distance as it would for the same 

6 distance in another area. · That would be an option. 

7 A As I understand it, that they would 

a have that option--

9 Q All right. 

10 A --but so would you; so would anybody. 

11 That doesn't necessarily mean that--

12 Q You've answered my question. 

13 Would you giv~ us a brief definition of what deaveraging 

14 of rates is in your understanding. I tried, but I didn~t 

. 15 manage. 

16 A I'm sorry," I didn't hear. 

17 Q I ~ay I tried just in the last 

18 question, but I would like to hear you, your definition 

19 of deaveraging of rates. 

20 
A Well, deaveraging of rates can take 

21 
place potentially in a number of different ways just:· 

22 
as .. the deaveraging of any price structure can take place 

23 
in a number of different ways. It could be, for example, 

24 
geographic deaveraging. That's the one that I think is 

• 

25 
least likely in the current environment and in the near 

888 



Alessio - Cross 40 

2 term. -

3 It could be deaveraging of a form 

4 that says that there will be a properly developed discount 

5 schedule for high volwne users, and that's a foJ:m of 

6 deaveraging, but it's not geographic deaveraging because 

7 that same schedule of discounts is available to all users 

8 regardless of where they are. 

9 There could be special peak and 

10 off-peak prices. That's a form of-- that's a form of 

11 deaveraging the rate structure. That puts one level of 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

~1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

pricing, you're on the peak; another level of price when 

you're off peak. 

The time-of-day discount are another 

form of deaveraging. 

So, actually, there are a multitude 

of.ways in which a product of service can be deaveraged. 

Most of those, however, in most markets are applied 

uniformly to the entire customer base that fit within that 

category. 

Q Thank you. Now, if AT&T chose to 

exercise the nuSiness: opt;icn that would be available to 

them if the petition is granted, would it be able to 

raise rates in areas where it has monopoly customers 

and lower them and rates where it faces competition? 
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2 I'd like a yes or no answer if you can do it that way. 

3 A Hypothetically, yes, but--

4 

5 

6 

Q 

A 

Q 

Okay, thank you. 

--but the premise of your question-­

If you need to explain it, you can, 

7 but I would like to-- you to just answer-- try to answer 

8 the specific question as much as you can. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A I will try. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: He can qualify 

his answer. We're searching for truth here, 

Mr. Marmon. 

MR. MARMON: Yes, sir, I know, and · 

if he wants· to .. quali£y--

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I'm reminded 

one time when Senator Howell was in here, 

he asked the witness to answer yes or no·,· .. 

and the witness sai.d, "Yes or no ... so·we. 

really don't want that, but we let the 

witness qualify his yes if he wants. 

THE WITtmss: Unfortunately, Judge, 

I wasn't that clever. I didn't think of that. 

A . (Continuing) All of that, of course, 

24 is theoretically possible, but what's of concern here is 

25 the reality of what's likely to happen. 
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2 Q Is this a qualification, or is this 

3 something else? I want a qualification. 

4 A This is a qualification of i:he yes. 

5 I don't believe it would be a price increase. I think 

6 more than likely--

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MARMON: Excuse me: I'm sorry. 

If Judge Shannon wants to hear this, I'd be 

delighted, but--

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: We'll let 

him share. I know that you've got a point: 

you want to make it: you'd like to have it in 

the record yes so tnat you could argue on 

brief and on appeal what this witness says. 

I think the expert is entitled to explain 

his yes answer. 

MR. MARMON: I think he is , too, 

Your Honor. I would like to-- the purpose 

of cross examination, or one of them is to 

try to bring out the implications of what 

the opposing side·· is trying to do I and I 

think it can be best done if I could get the 

answer to the question without a long speech. 

And if he wants to give that speech on 

redirect, that would be fine. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, I 

agree that you all should keep your answers 

as short as possible; but at the same time, 

we're not going to prevent him from qualifying 

his answer. 

MR. MARMON: All right. 

THE WITNESS: Could we start again? 

9 I mean, would that be offensive·.,.· You~: Honor, 

10 just start this whole line and maybe got it 

11 back on track? 

12 BY MR. MARMON: 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

Q 

I'm asking a hypothetical question. 

I understand. 

If the petition of AT-&T is granted 

and it exercises its option and it may not m the real 

world of deaveraging its rates., ~·.-ould that not mean that 

one option that it has would be to charge higher rates 

to those customers for whom it was the only carrier and 

lower rates to customers in areas where they face 

competition? 

A Hypothetically and theoretically, 

that is possible. However, I don't think it will happen 

that way. 

Q That's not the question. 
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But I would like to qualify what you 

3 mean by-- what I mean by higher rates in response to your 

4 question. My expectation would be this:· That-if .tha.t·'kind 

5 of geographic deaveraging took place, that it would take 

6 place not in the form of the real price of telephone 

7 service going up in one place and down in the other, if 

8 that were to happen, it would be more likely that it would 

9 go down in one place by more than it would go down in the 

10 other place. · My expectation is that the competitive 

11 inroads in telecommunications are going to push the real 

12 prices down all over. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Are you 

saying true competition really pushes 

everything down towards cost? 

THE WITNESS: Towards cost, that's 

correct. And in some areas it may just go 

towards cost faster than in other areas. 

That's the point I'm trying to make. 

I didn't mean to be argumentative, 

but Mr. Moran's(sic) question implied to me 

that he was trying to state it such that the 

prices would be jacked up in a monopoly area 

and pusned way down in some other area, and 

I don't think that's going to happen. 
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2 BY MR. MARMON: 

3 

4 

5 

Q 

A 

Q 

It's Marmon. 

Marmon. 

And what I'm trying to do here is 

45 

6 explore the ramifications of the possibility of deaveraging, 

1 the theoretical possibility. I'm not interested at this 

8 point in your opinion as to what might happen. I would 

9 like to explore you in your expertise as an economist the 

10 ramifications, extreme though they may be, and unrealistic 

11 even, if that is your opinion, but I would like to see what 

12 tpey are, what the theoretical possibilities of deaveraging 

13 are, and I would--

14 That's fine with me, Mr. Marmon, as 

. 15 long as you don't later conciude that those were, in fact, 

16 my opinions. 

17 Q Now, is .one of the possible results 

18 of deaveraging that AT&T could set it prices below cost in 

19 areas where it has competition? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Again, hypothetically, that could 

happen in a regulated or unregulated market, but the 

nature-- the notion of pricing below cost to make it up 

somewhere else, that's an imprudent business decision, 

and it's not one that is perpetuated for a long period 

of time. 
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2 Q Would it be a competitive tool, if 

3 AT&T wanted to drive its competitors out of business in 
~ 

4 Virginia, would deaveraging, the ability to deaverage its 

5 rates be helpful? 

8 A It would be helpful for them to meet 

7 that competition; and if those competitors are not truly 

a viable economic competitors, then a reduction in rates 

9 might cost some of them to exit the market, that's true. 

10 Of course, in competition, there's always winners and:losers. 

11 Q Here is another question about 

12 possibility of deaveraging. Is it possi~le that the 

13 deaveraging could result in cross ·subsidy of re:v.el'lues from 

14 areas of monopo~y customers to. areas of competition? 

15 A Theoretically, it's possible, but once 

16 again, with open entry, the indications of not only in 

theory but in market practices, that that can't be 

18 perpetuated because what that does is $p:eads ; ·the .entries 

19 to the area of the service that is generating the subsidy. 

20 Theoretically~ that can all happen, Mr. Marmon, but you're 

21 looking at a very narrow piece of the hypothetical possi-

22 
bility. 

23 
Q Al-l right. Now, you testified, I 

24 
think in response t9 Mr~ .Gambardella, that there are 

25 different ways to deaverage, not-- one was geographic 
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2 deaveraqinq, and you mentioned several others, discount; 

3 peak.r off-peak pricing. 

4 Now, if AT&T of Virginia had a policy 

5 against deaveraginq, would that policy necessarily· include 

6 all for.ms of deaveraqinq that you mentioned? 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

I don't believe so. 

Why not? 

Well, because AT&T Communications of 

10 Virginia, as well every other telephone company that I can 

11 think of in the United States has already deaveraqed rates 

12 in one form or another. They have peak and off-peak prices: 

13 they have WATS services, which is essentially a discount 

14 against message toll service; they have private line 

15 services, on and on, and the deaveraqinq has already·occurred 

16 Q Well, what would it mean--

17 A But how could I say that it would not, 

18 would never? 

19 Q What would it mean to you, Dr. Alessio, 

~ if Mr.Wilcox told you that AT&T had a policy aqainst 

21 deaveraqinq? 

22 A What that means to me is that the 

~ Company has a policy at this time to not deaverage on the 

24 basis of geographic bo.undaries, to not say that I'm qoinq--

~ I!m not qoinq-- the policy, I think says this: That the 
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2 Company will not at.the present time separate out rural 

3 customers from urban customers and charge them different 

4 prices simply because one is a rural customer and one is 

5 an urban customer. 

8 Q But, nevertheless, it could if the 

1 result of deaveraging by these other being for.m discounts 

a and other pricing mechanisms would have the same effect 

9 as deaveraginq. 

10 A No, in fact, the point is just the 

11 opposite. The other forms ·of deaveraginq are insensitive 

12 with respect to geography, and in fact, it makes the same 

13 discount schedule available everywhere across the service 

14 territory. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q BUlk discount is insensitive to 

geography? 

A If you're a high volume customer, it 

doesn't matter whether you're in the north end or the south 

end of the State, whether you're in an urban area or rural 

area. If you're a high volume customer, you get high 

volume discount. 

Q Are there any characteristically high 

volume customers in rural areas? 

A Frequently, there are. Frequently, 

there are biq manufacturing facilities1 even government 
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2 installations that tend to.locate in rural areas. And 

3 most rural areas have hospitals. They tend to be high 

4 volume communications users. And many rural areas have 

5 universities. ·They tend to be high volume telecommuni-

8 cations users. There are quite a number of them. 

7 Q Now, I would like to explore with you 

8 a little, Dr. Alessio, the bases for your concl~sions that 

9: this Commission should, in fact, deregulate the rates of 

10 AT&T. In coming to this conclusion, did you take into 

11 consideration the number of companies providing service in 

12 Virginia? 

13 A Yes;. 

14 Q Did you take into consideration the 

15 geographical availability of service from other companies 

16 in Virginia? 

17 A .My answer is yes, if I understand what 

18 you mean by the "availability of service from other 

19 companies • n 

20 Q Do I need to repeat the question? 

21 A Other common carriers? 

22 Q Other companies i·s the question. 

23 CO~SSIONER SHANNON: By "other 
.. 

24 companies,"what do you mean? 

25 MR. MARMON: I mean other telephone 

\ 898 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

8 

7 

8 

9 

Alessio - Cross so 

companies, other companies that provide-­

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Independent 

companies and OCCs and interexchanqe-­

everythinq? 

MR. MARMON: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Okay. 

My answer is yes. 

And did you take into consideration 

10 the quality of service available from other companies in 

11 Virginia? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q And did you take into·consideration 

14 the market power that AT&T holds in the intrastate long 

15 distance market in Virginia? 

18 

17 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And did you take any other .factors 

18 into consideration? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A That's a pretty good list. I did, 

and I think.it's.what you might call a relatively subjective 

factor~-· I have noted, or at least by what I have noted, 

it's my opinion that the nature of competition in tele­

communications not only has the qeoqraphic and quality 

kinds of parameters that you talked about, but it also 

seems to be currently one of the most intensive rivalries 
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2 that seems to be.deve~oping in u. s. market. And the 

3 point I•m trying. to make is there a1most seems to be a 

4 personality about it. I mean, it seems to be one of the 

5 few high flying industries that we have right now,· and 

a there seems to be this ··renewed. spir~t of competitive. 

7 rivalry. 

8 I quess what I want to say is that 

9 it's my opinion that most of the companies that have 

10 applied for certification here and most of the companies 

11 providing service across the entire United States are 

12 intensively rivalrous in their attitudes toward one another. 

13 And so I think there is·this attitudinal·feelinq that is 

14 also in the market. They intend to be tough competitiors. 

15 Q Now, I'd like to go through the. list 

16 again and have you tell me how it:is or what-- how you 

17 consider it, how you dealt with these various factors. 

18 The first element I aske~ you about 

19 was your number of companies providing service., number of 

20 other companies, other than AT&T. What-- how· did you 

21 factor this consideration into your judqment? 

22 A Well, that•s.fairly simple to do. The 

23 way that you do it is that you notice that they're there. 

24 There are four othei common carriers that are currently in 

25 the State. I understand most.of that traffic, but not all 
/ 
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2 of it, .is to be interstate, although I did notice that 

3 in one of the statements made by Mr. Moore that MCI is 

4 carrying some intrastate traffic currently. 

5 So they're in the State: they've qot 

8 presence in the State: they're ready to expand in the State. 

7 In addition to that, there are 18 or 20-- I've forgotten 

8 the precise number of-- resellers currently in·the 

9 State. There are.digital·ter.mination systems currently 

10 in the State, and there is a long list of private systems 

11 that exist in the State of Virginia, all of those indi·--~-

12 ·cate thepresence of competition. All of those indicate 

13 that there are firms that have dedicated plant and equipment 

14 to providinq service in the State of Virginia. And I 

15 don't think they're here to play games; I think they're 

18 here to compete. 

17 Q Thank you. Now, ·the. second;.element .in 

18 the lis·t is the geographic availability of services from 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

other companies. And what were your thoughts with respect 

to that element? 

A Well, I noticed that the service that 

was available from the other common carriers and the 

resellers were spread across, if I have my numbers 

correctly, approximately 48 or SO cities throughout the 

25 State of Virginia. That's· a fairly ... reasonable geographic 
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spread; and in addition to that, I noticed that there 

were some of those cities where maybe perhaps ·there was 

only one alternative vendor to AT&T, but in others there 

were as many as nine or 10 or 11 for different kinds of 

services. 

Q Do you know who the largest of the 

8 competitors of AT&T in Virginia is? 

9 

10 

11 largest? 

A 

Q 

No, I don't, no. 

Do~you suspect that MCI is one of the 

12 A Well, I would imaqine they're one of 

13 the biq kids:;~~ definitely·• 

14 Q oo·you know how many cities in Virginia 

16 MCI serves on an interstate basis? 

16 A I believe it's eight or nine; and if 

17 I'm incorrect, I'm sure you're qoinq to tell me, but I 

18 think that's the-- I think that's the number. 

. 19 Q Do you know how many cities Sprint 

~ serves on an interstate basis in Virginia? 

21 A My recollection is that it's four or 

22 five. 

~ Q Now, do you know what percentage of 

24 the population is in.an area that is servable by MCI on 

25 an interstate basis? 
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2 A No, I don't. I don't recall that 

3 number. I remember seeinq a number like that; I don't 

4 recall that. I could find that out for you if you'd likeo 

5 
Q Do you know the percentage of population 

a in the State of Virginia that has access to any alternative 

7 carrier? 

8 A Again, I'm sorry, I don't remember. 

9 I looked at those numbers. I'm impressed by what can 

10 happen not only in this State but other states. There 

11 has been some competitive activity. 

12 Q Well, do you remember seeinq the 

13 numbers? 

14 A I don't remember a Virginia number, 

15 but I can-- I'll tell you--

18 Q Well, that's the number we're lookinq 

17 for. 

18 A I know it's the.number you're lookinq for, 

19 but--

~ Q I'm not askinq you about national 

21 numbers· riqht now. I'm qoinq to come to that. 

22 A All right. 

23 ceMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Didn • t your 

24 client say this morninq that within a year he'd 

25 have points of presence in all LATAs and would 
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offer service everywhere in the State? Am 

I remembering Mr. Cox correct? 

Didn't he say within a year? 

MR. MARMON: I think he said we 

would have a point of presence. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Would he not 

be able to serve anyone in the State? 

MR. MARMON: And would be able to 

serve, yes •. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: .I'll go back 

and look at the record. 

MR. MARMON: But you can't serve 

everyone on the basis of havinq a point of 

presence in each LATA. You have to have equal 

access. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Go ahead. 

I'm sorry, I didn't mean to interrupt you. 

I'll look it up for myself. 

BY MR. MARMON: 

Q But, Dr. Alessio, in considering the 

22 · -areas· , · in which competitors of AT&T do, in fact, serve, 

23 in considering that _.elem~nt, you did learn, did you not, 

24 that there are some areas where AT&T will have no competition 

25 A Well, it would be my expectation that 
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2 there would be some areas where at least for some period 

3 of time there might not be an alternative vendoro I 

4 wouldn't want to make the statement that forever would 

5 be the time-- would be the case; excuse me. Communications 

8 technology is .chan~g very rapidly. 

7 Q Right. 

8 A Not only for interexchange facility, 

9 but for outside plant and new facilities as well. We're 

10 qoing to see some enormous chanqes very quickly in the way 

11 the sprea4 of· competition goes into sparsely populated areas. 

12 Q The third element on the list of elements 

13 that you considered was the quality of competitiono And 

14 with respect to the quality of competition, did you acquaint 

15 yourself with the schedule for implementation of equal access 

18 in Virginia? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Not the ~recise schedule for each and 

every office, but the overall time frame, as I remember, 

it was a 1986 time frame. 

Q 1986 time frame for what? 

A. For a fairly larqe percentage of equal 

access in the State of Virginia-- I think the number was 

90 percent-- provided by C&P Company. 

Q Do you know how much implementation 

to equal access there will be for 1985? 
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Q 

57 

I don't recall that, no. 

Do you know how much implementation 

of equal access has occurred to date? 

A Yes-- I have forgotten. It is· a~ail-

able in one exchange, I think; maybe it's more than one 

exchange. But I want to be careful in your not misunder• 

standing my statements. Equal access is not a pre-condition 

to equal competition. 

Q 

A 

Q 

I haven't asked that question yet. 

No, but you're suggesting it. 

I'm asking-- I'm trying to flush out 

13 the elements that you consider on the ... issue of competition. 

14 A I know, Mr. Marmon. That's why I'm 

15 trying to respond. I'm trying to tell you that--

16 Q And I'm asking you about equal access 

17 implementation now. Are you aware that MFJ is exempt from 

18 conversion, switching their electromechanical switches that 

19 have less than-- serve less than 10,000 customers? 

20 MR. MORRISSEY: Judge Shannon, at 

21 this point, I'm going to object. I was going 

22 to object earlier to the question on equal 

~ access, but I did want to have Dr. Alessio 

24 address that if it was in any way relevant to 

25 his testimony. We have proffered the testimony 
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of Mr. Schell who can address all these issues 

with Mr. Marmon, and I don't think it's appropriate 

this line of questions be continued, unless, of 

course, Mr. Marmon would let Dr. Alessio explain 

equal access implementations are for what 

Mr. Marmon calls the quality of competition. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Do you want to 

respond to that, Mr. Marmon? 

MR. MARMON: I am trying to derive 

the bases. for the····expert' s opinion, and he stated 

the quality of competition, one of the bases, 

and it happens to be also to be one of the 

statutory bases. I· think that questions about 

equal access and abOut other aspects that affect 

the quality with which competitors are able to 

compete with AT&T is highly relevant. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I think you 

have to let him answer that from an economic 

standpoint; Mr. Schell, the other witness., from 

a: technical standpoint. I realize itas sometimes 

difficult to distinguish between economics and 

technical aspects of it. If you're asking the 

question strictly from an economic standpoint, 

yes, you can go ahead and ask it. 
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BY MR. MARMON: 

Q In makinq your economic judq.ment 

59 

about the quality of the competitive forces or competitive 

elements, did you investiqate the number of custom$rs in 

Virginia served by independent telephone companies? 

A Yes. And once aqain, I can't repeat 

what that number is to you. But the point is it's not a 

numerical calculation. For there to be effective compe­

tition, there does not have to be equality of access. 

And, in fact, the aces have proved that·over the past ten 

years that what you allege to be inequality of access is 

not a barrier to entry.· Y~n1-.have qrown very rapidly and 

become a·very larqe company. 

In addition to that, there is no 

axiom in economics that says every competitor in the market 

must provide preci~ythe same service at precisely the 

same pr~tunder precisely the same conditions and deliver 

it precisely the same way. That is ~ot .the case. It never 

has been. 

Q Wa$ your answer to my question about 

whether you consider independents, yes, you considered them, 

but you don't know how many there are? 

A I do not recall the number of them. 

Q Now, in lookinq at your economic 
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2 judgment about the quality of competition ·in Virginia, 

3 did -you become aware that in Virginia customers who 

4 do not presubscribe to any common carrier, any inter-

s exchanqe carrier, will be given to AT&T on a default basis? 

6 

7 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

Does that have an economic impact 

8 on the competitive forces in the State? 

9 A I don't really believe that it·does 

10 because what I think you're after is the high volume 

11 customer, and more than anything ~lse, I really don't 

12 think you care much about any of the low volume customers, 

13 and perhaps you do, but in and of itself, simply a customer 

14 makes no choice and, therefore, is assigned to a particular 

15 carrier seems to me doesn't change the nature of the 

16 intensity of the competitive environment. Now, perhaps 

17 that's somethinq that this Commission should talk to 

18 ·c&P, but I don't know that that necessarily is advantageous 

19 to AT&T Communications or disadvantaqeous to MCI. 

2o Q You don't know that havinq the default 

21 traffic go to AT&T is disadvantaqeous to MCI? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A That's riqht, in terms of your ability 

to be successful in the Virqinia market. 

Q And you think that all default 

customers will be low volume-customers? 

~ 909 



1 

2 

Alessio - Cross 

A 

61 

Oh, possibly not, but I think they 

3 largely will be. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Do you know what the percentage of 

customers that were default customers in Charleston, 

West Virginia, was? 

A No, I don't. I do remember reading, 

though, how much you have grown in West Virginia. There 

was an interesting article in The Wall Street Journal about 

it last week. 

Q Dr. Alessio, do you consider the 

inferior quality of the interconnection currently provided 

·to the occs, do you consider that as an economic impact 

with respect to equality of competition? 

A Well, if you mean by "equality of 

competition" the ability of the vendors to compete with 

one another, well, yeah, I think--

Q I don't mean that; I mean the quality 

of the services provided by the competing firms. 

A I don't know that-- I don't know that 

there, again, is that much difference. I mean, I understand 

what you're asking me, but, again, I want to make the point 

that for a market to. be competitive, not every vendor has 

to provide exactly.the same service under exactly the same 

circumstances under.p~ecisely the same conditions, and 
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2 deliver it exactly the same way. The notion of y·our 

3 customers dialinq more numbers than an AT&T customer has--

4 doesn't seem to have stopp.ed you from qrowinq and qrowinq 

5 very rapidly in the market. I'm not sure that that is in 

6 any sense a tr~e barrier to competitive activity. It's 

7 clearly··not a barrier to entry, and that's what's at issue 

8 for streamlined regulation. 

9 

10 

Q 

A 

11 conclusion. 

12 Q 

13 question. 

14 A 

Dr. Alessio, I want you to qualify-­

Well, ;.did consideJ:! it .. : That·~s my 

But you're not rea~ly answerinq my 

Mr. Marmon, I really am tryinq. You 

15 asked me if I considered them, and my answer is yes, and 

16 I'm trying to explain to you how I considered them. 

17 Q Well, you know, I think we've heard 

18 the basic message that it doesn't make any difference, 

19 but I'd like you to.try to answer the question. 

~ Is it your testimony that the inter-

21 connections, or the difference ln an :interconnection between 

~ an CCC and AT&T doesn't make any difference? 

~ A It may have made you more profitable 

24 than AT&T. There may be that difference, but it's not 

25 clear to me that it's not a barrier to entry in those 
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markets. You're in the market. 

0 Isn't there a difference to the quality 

of service that the aces are able to provide? 

A It may be perceived in some customer's 

mind as a lower ·quality service, Mr. Marmon, but, you 

know, that is exactly the point of competition. Customers 

could have available to them services of differential 

qualities, of differential rates, alternative options so 

that they can make these choices. If your quality was such· 

a hindrance in the market as your question is suggesting, 

you wouldn't have grown to be a three billion dollar companyc 

·Q I'm·not suggesting anything. I'm asking 

you whether the··differenc:e- in,·· interconnection affects the 

quality of the service. And what's your answer to that? 

A My answer is that by some definition 

of quality that may be true. In terms of affecting the 

quality of competition, I think it's not true. 

Q Do these differences in the inter-

connection of the aces and AT&T cost the OCCs money? 

A I don It know. Do· you. mean·, is~ there 

an opportunity.lost? I mean, currently, you get it at a 

discount. 

Q Dr. ~lessio, do you know what answer 

supervision and the automatic number identification is? 
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2 A Oh, I used to. That identif-ies the 

3 callinq number in the central office. 

4 Q And are you aware that the aces don't 

5 have automatic number-identification? 

8 A I am aware qenerally that the aces 

1 do not access the network in the same way that AT&T accesses 

8 the network. 

9 Q Are you aware the aces have or do not 

10 have automatic number identification? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MORRISSEY: At this point, 

Judqe Shannon, I would like to object. Aqain, 

this issue is in detail in Mr. Schell's 

testimony and would probably expedite the 

hearing if those questions were directed to 

the subject matter expert. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Marmon. 

MR. MARMON: I think that I'm still 

trying to ascertain what Dr. Alessio considered 

in his judq.ment with respect to the quality 

of the service that the competitors are able 

to offer, and I think it's relevant whether he 

considered or kno~s what the difference between 

the interconn.ection provided the occ and the 

interconnection provided AT&T. 
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2 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, did you 

3 consider that, Dr. Alessio? 

4 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, I did, Judge, 

5 and that's what I've been trying to explain 

6 to him. 

7 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You've been 

8 saying that, I felt,for the past ten minutes. 

9 And I'm not being facetious. I understand 

10 what he's sayinq, and he's not speaking from 

11 a technical standpoint: he's speaking from an 

12 economic standpoint, and I'm not sure that you 

13 were not gettinq into the technical aspect a 

14 little bit. 

15 MR. MARMON: I'd like to ask him 

16 about the economic implications. 

17 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Try and 

18 rephrase it if you can. I want you to have 

19 your day in Court, I really do, absolutely. 

20 But any time-- you know, it's been our 

21 experience here-- and we've sat together on 

22 the Commission for about 13 years, and we've 

23 heard a lot of experts, and it's been our 
.. 

24 experience you don't get very far cross 

25 examining experts. You don't shake him; you 
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2 don't change his mind. The best way to, I 

3 quess, counter an expert is put your own 

4 experts on. 

5 Go ahead, whatever you've got. 

8 so this is not unusual to us. 

7 BY MR. MARMON: 

8 Q Well, are you aware, Dr. Alessio, 

9 that the OCCs have to spend a lot of money that AT&T 

10 .doesn't because they don't qet automatic number identifi-

11 cation? 

12 A I am aware that the aces claim that. 

13 I mean, I don't know factually that, indeed, it does cost 

14 them more money. I am also aware that they qet access at 

15 a discount because of that. How that balances, I don't 

16 know. What I do know is that equality of access is· not a 

17 prerequisite for there to be intensive competitive activity 

18 in the market. 

19 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, let me 

20 ask this question. You.raised this in my mind 

21 and, I think,. the Commission's. If you had 

22 your choice as a customer of payinq a premium 

23 for service by equal access or if I could dial 

24 a few more digits and ~ave myself 35 percent 
.. . 

25 on the rate, don't you think that's an 

91.5 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

8 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Alessio Cross 67 

economic choice? 

THE WITNESS: I do; I think it's a 

valid economic choice, and that's my point. 

My point is that that's part of what happens 

in the competitive-- in a competitive market. 

What • s beinq posited.: to me is someone that 

says all services have to be identical, and 

the customer can have no choice to pick a 

lower cost option before there can be some 

kind of quality of competition·. Let me point 

out here my point of understanding. 

COM!USSIONER SHANNON: Maybe I'm 

willing to take a less-- an inferior service 

in order to save on my telephone bill. 

THE WITNESS: That's exactly right. 

But what that means, though, is that the 

serVice that is of the inferior quality 

competes very successfully with the service 

that's of superior quality. Tha·t's what that 

says. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I guess my 

point is if AT&T-- well, AT&T wouldn't be 

involved, .b~t any of these other common carriers 

that were· heard this morning, if they had 
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absolut~ equal access throughout the 

Commonwealth of Virginia, I think you'd 

still find that they have some customers 

that would like to have the inferior service 

because of the cost factor. 

THE WITNESS: That's possible, Judge. 

I don't know the answer except to know that 

as a general condition there will always be 

some customers who will like the lower quality, 

significantly more discounted service. That's 

true with telephones--

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: All motorists 

have equal access to the highways, but some 

prefer to qo around in Fords rather than 

Cadillacs because it costs less. 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. And 

18 some prefer to take the byways rather than the 

19 . freewars. Some prefer the two-lane country 

~ roads to super hiqhways. That's the nature 

21 of substitution and competition in the market. 

22 BY MR. MARMON: 

23 Q However, I would suggest that nobody 

24 wants to go down a dead end or reach a stop sign, and 

25 that's what happens when a OCC tries to sell telephone 
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service to a rotary dial customer, is that not right, 

Dr. Alessio? 

A I don't believe so, Mr. Marmon. 

69 

You certainly are qrowing very rapidly, and it's also my 

understanding-; -and . I· admit .. I:'·m not. the: technical. expert, 

but there are interconnecting facilities available to you 

that you could choose that would allow a rotary dial 

customer to access to market. 

In addition, that the cost of acquiring 

equipment· for the customer is not all tha~ great to convert 

from a rotary dial to a Touch-Tone or to get a signalling 

pad to put on the telephone. Again, there are these 

alternatives available to the customer if they choose it. 

That's the point. The point is freedom of choice. 

Q Is it easier for AT&T or an occ to 

sell telephone service to a rotary dial customer? 

A I presume it's easier for AT&T, although 

I can't really say. I don't know the OCCs very well,.but 

I know AT&T fairly well. My opinion is nothing is easy 

for them. 

Q I'd like to ask you a little bit about 

your comments about market dominance,.. contestabili:ty ~· and 

rivalrous acti-vities. 

. ·coMMISSIONER SHANNON: Before you ask 
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that question, how much more do you have 

for this witness, Mr. Marmon? 

MR. MARMON: I would say another 

half an hour. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All riqht, 

let's take a short recess. 

(Recess.) 

70 

THE BAILIFF: The Commission resumes 

its session. Be seated, please. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Marmon, 

please continue. 

·MR. MARMON: Yes, sir. 

Q Dr. Alessio·, would you aqree that a 

15 definition, not the only definition, of market power is 

18 the ability to raise and maintain pri.ce above competitive 

17 level without drivinq away so many customers so as to 

18 make increase unprofitable? 

19 A No, I wouldn't aqree with that. That's 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

true on any firm's demand curve wherein they're in the 

innerel~stic seqment of that curve, regardless of the power 

that the firm has. There is a condition. For there to be 

market power, you have to be able to control price on entry. 

Q ~ow, do you aqree that some qovernment 

regulation is justified in the case of a market if 
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2 there is a firm with market power? 

3 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Are you 

4 talking about regulation or antitrust, or 

5 what? ·· · 

MR. MARMON: I'm talking about 

requlation. 

71 

8 

7 

8 A I do not believe that market power 

9 per se is a reason for regulation. 

10 Q Okay. 

11 A Every firm in the market has some 

12 degree of market power. 

13 Q I'm not talking about a firm that is 

14 by your definition that is able to control price. 

15 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Would IBM have 

18 more active market power than, say, Apple? 

17 THE WITNESS: In my opinion, IBM 

18 has more power in some segments of the market 

19 than Apple. However, it does not make IBM 

20 a monopol_is~, nor does it mean that somebody 

21 should regulate the computer industry. 

22 ·BY.: MR. MARMON : 

23 Q So your opinion with respect to AT&T's 

24 petition, then, is unrelated to whether it has market power 

25 or not? 
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My opinion is that it does not have. 

3 Q No, I say your opinion with respect to 

4 whether the petition to deregulate should be grartted or not, 

5 it should not depend on whether or not AT&T has market 

a power·in Virginia? 

7 A That's right. What it depends on, 

8 in my opinion, is whether it • s a natu-ral monopoly, and 

9 a natura·l. monopoly that :.infuses the public interest, 

10 which is the traditional economic r.eason for public utility 

11 requlation to occur.·.in the first instance. 

12 Q The only justification is for public 

13 utility regulation is if an·. industry is-· a natural.:· 

14 monopoly? 

16 

18 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A For traditional public utility 

regulation, generally speaking, there are two reasons. 

One is naturally monopolistic tendencies in production 

technoloqy such that it's important from the view of 

society to concentrate the production in a sinqle fir.m 

rather than duplicate through a multipaicity of firms, 

but yet set up some sort of rules so being that the firm 

does not abuse its unique sigular position in the market. 

Arld second is if there ~ere some overriding and over­

whelming social- policy objective, it would not be 

produced by the market in and of itself such that regulation 
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2 is the only cost way of· solving the policy problem. 

3 Those are the two general conditions 

4 under which regulation can still occur of a public utility 

5 variety, at least in economic theory. 

6 Q Let me just be sure I understand your 

7 testimony. So that market power in and of itself is not 

8 a reason for government regulation? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

What about dominance? Is that a 

11 reason for government regulation? 

12 A No. Once again, dominance in a market 

13 is not by itself a reason for there to be government 

14 regulation. If that were true, surely, historically, 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

over time, there would have been more industries and more 

firms that would have been regulated than--pUblic utilit.i:es. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I know in 

your direct testimony you defined dominance, 

but just, again, for my edification, would 

you tell me what you.mean by "market dominance?" 

THE WITNESS: Market dominance is 

one that is characterized by a firm that 

meets several characteristics. It's large 

relative to all other firms in the market to 

such a degree that it has absolute control 
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2 over the price. It can price as if it's a 

3 

4 
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monopolist, and to be able to maintain that 

dominance in the market, it has control not 

only of: its· price,· but it has control over 

entry of substitutes, it has control over 

the development of substitutes, and it can 

significantly control the development of 

technoloqical trends that might erode its 

position. 

In addition to that, there is one 

more classic ·characteristic in economics of 

a dominant firm, and that is the dominant 

firm acts passively in the market and un­

intensively rivalrous in the market. A 

dominant firm generally tends to sit back 

and just let all the small firms. do what 

they want to do without retaliating or 

without responding. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But the 

dominant firm sets the price? 

THE WITNESS.: The dominant fi.rm 

sets and controls the price. But to de, that, 

it's got to be able to control entry, the 

development of substitutes, and the development 
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of technology, because any of those are inroads 

to competitive threats that erode away its 

dominance in the market. Big firms like 

.xerox and National Cash Register who once were· 

very larqe firms in their market whose powers 

eroded because of the development of substitute 

and new technoloqy. The railroads were affected 

that way by truckinq, and on and on. You can 

qo through the litany of a multitude of industries 

in the United States, and you·see that happe~inq. 

And, therefore, it's also important 

ta·note that dominance is a fleetinq character­

istic. It's limited in time and limited in 

scope. 

BY MR. MARMON: 

Q Dr. Alessio, you say that one of the 

elememsof contestability is whether an increase can acc~e 

capital tl)at·.is hiqbly mobile· or fungible, is that correct? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, that is one of the characteris~icso 

What is capital that is highly fungible? 

Capital that is fungible is c~pital 

that has reclaimable. value, capital that is not sunk in 

the sense of there is no way to regain some of the·-money 

that has been spent, reuse it some other way, sell it to 
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2 somebody else. 

3 Q Is a microwave tower an example of 

4 fungible capital? 

6 A To a large extent, a microwave tower 

8 is a piece of fungible capital. It's a piece of fungible 

7 capital in the sense that it can be used to provide a 

8 number of alternative kinds of telecommunications .services 

9 so that if a firm is not successful in one line of tele-

10 communications services, it can use that same capital to 

11 provide another. It's als~· fungible in the sense that in 

12 the worst:·ease, if that particular firm were to qo into 

13 bankruptcy, it can be sold to another firm who may wish to 

14 enter that business. I'm not sugqestinq that it's 

16 absolutely fungible, Mr~ Marmon, but I'm tryinq to suggest 

16 that it's not absolutely sunk, that it's not irretrievable 

17 capital. I don't mean to imply that microwave towers have 

18 wheels on them to use them all around. That 0 s not what 

19 I'm suggesting, but I am suggesting that it is nat sunk in 

20 a classic economic case·of sunk. 

21 

22 

Q 

A 

What would be·a classic case of sunk? 

A nuclear power plant would be a good 

~ classic case of sunk. 

24 (Laughter. > 

26 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You and I 
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2 were on the same brain wave. When you were 

3 saying it, I was thinking it. (Laughter) I 

4 was going to suggest it if you didn't. 

5 ··BY MR. MARMON: 

6 Q Do you know how lonq it takes to build 

7 a microwave line after a decision has been made to do so? 

8 A No, I don•t. Depends on how quickly 

9 you work; I don•t know. 

10 Q One of the other elements of contest-

11 ability, if I understand your testimony, is that the 

12 market'can be vulnerable to hit and run injury, is that 

13 right? 

14 A Not exactly. That's reasonably close, 

16 though. Actually, the single most important ~haracteristic 

16 of a·contestable market is .open entry, the ability for 

'. 17 \ someone to come in and profit from any potential abuses 

18 that existing companies might have, but it doesn't 

19 necessarily always have to be the hit and run variety. 

20 For example, if there is one grocery store in a small town, 

21 you could maybe view that as if it were a special monopoly 

22 because there is no other store nearby the way, but, 

23 nevertheless, if the grocery sales are a contestable market 

24 because of that single store were to likely to consistently 

25 price its bread very high and its meat very high, someone 
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2 else would enter. 

3 That threat of potential entry makes 

4 the market contestable tends to make the grocer act. as 

5 if he's a competitor even thouqh there may not be another 

8 store nearby. That's the condition of open entry; doesn't 

7 necessarily imply hit and run. 

8 Q Do you aqree or disagree with the 

9 statement I'm qoinq to read? "The crucial feature of a 

10 contestable market is its vulnerability to hit and run 

12 A Depends on what you mean by hit and 

13 run. 

14 Q Do you aqree or disaqree? 

15 A I said I aqr~e, but I wanted you to 

18 understand that a hit and run.doesn't necessarily mean 

17 that this has to be a Bangladesh baza~r·· where.-· you just·. :~ 

18 unfold a tent and then can fold up a tent and leave. I'm 

19 havinq trouble with the phrase nhit and run.• 

20 I would characterize hit and run . 

21 competition as beinq the kind of competition, for example, 

22 in telecommunications that can take place by a firm 

23 enterinq first through resale and qettinq a feel. for the 

24 market, qettinq a clear definition of the market before 
.. 

25 it deploys any technoloqy. That's a very contestable 
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market. That is hit and run competition. 

Q 

A 

That's hit, not necessarily run? 

You can leave if the resale doesn't 

work out for if you haven't conuni tted your facili t·ies; 

you've· committed somebody else's. 

Q What about a company that has 

facilities? Are they able to hit and run in telecommuni­

cations? 

A Well, they may. They may exit · some 

markets if that's what you mean, Mr. Marmon. 

Does MCI exhibit characteristics of a 

hit and run entrant? 

A I don't know all of MCI's circumstances. 

I don't know that they've run very much, and that's why I 

think the nature of this competition is intensively 

rivalrous. MCI seems to be a company that hits and then 

to stay, and that's the whole point of this. It is 

contestable; it is competitive; it is rivalrous. 

Q Do you have any examples in the tele-

communications industry where companies have hit and run? 

A I .think there have ~een resellers who 

have exited the market, haven't there been? That would 

be an example of hit and run competition. 

·Q Do you know any names? 

·928 



1 

2 

Alessio - Cross 

A 

80 

Not offhand. I don't think they'd 

3 be difficult to find. 

4 Q Have you ever heard of the company 

5 Da-Tran(phonetic)? 

8 A Oh, I have, yes. They were founded 

7 by two people who come from the Dallas-Fort Worth area. 

8 Q Could you tell us about their experience 

9 in the communications project? 

10 A They weren't very successful. They 

11 went out of business. 

12 

13 

Q 

A 

Is that a hit and run entry? 

They certainly hit and run, yeah. 

14 And apparently it cost them some money. But once, aqain, 

15 that's the point. The point is that in a competitive 

18 environment some companies win and some companies lose, 

17 and not everybody is a winner. 

18 And in addition to that, some of that 

19 capital was probably reclaimed. Some of it was probably--

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I believe Da-Tran was bought out by another company, and 

you're probably going to correct me about this-- it maybe 

was University Computer Company, what they call UCC, and 

maybe now somebody else. I may not have that riqht, but 

I do recall that they were· purchased by somebody. 

But you have to remember that not all 
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2 this has to take place instantaneously in time. My 

3 favorite example of that is Braniff Airlines. I see them 

4 all the time when I go to the Dallas Airport. They clearly 

5 went out of business; they clearly had a lot of capital; ·. 

6 they clearly had a lot of fixed costs in their airplanes. 

7 When I look at those airplanes, that's pretty clear to~ me 

8 that that's funqible capital. You can move them around, 

9 and yo~ can sell them to other carriers, and they did that, 

10 and now they're flying again. 

11 0 Isn't it true, Dr. Alessio, that a 

12 microwave. tower is like an airplane in that respect? 

13 A No,· I've already said it's not on:· wheels-,.· 

14 but I'm trying to make the point that the world is not--

16 is not putty and then clay. I mean it's not all malleable 

16 at one instant in time and then becomes hard and can.• t be 

17 chan9ed:. The point is--

18 Q Where would you say between a nuclear 

19 plant and an airliner·· that a microwave tower· ·would be? 

~ · A When there is no potential for reuse, 

21 when there is no potential for reasonable salvage, when 

22 there is no other company it can be sold to. In addition 

23 to that, companies enter the market--

24 0 .Dr. Alessio-- excuse me-- you didn't 

25 answer my question. If a nuclear power plant is zero and 
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2 an aircraft, airliner, is 10 with respect to fungible 

3 capital, where is a microwave tower? 

4 A Mr. Marmon, I can't put them on a zero 

5 to 10, where you could probably have some microwave towers 

8 that are a 10. If you've qot a microwave tower between 

7 New York and Boston or a microwave tower between Chicaqo 

8 and Los Anqeles, that miqht be a 10: but if you'.ve got .. a 

9 microwave tower in Point Barrow, Alaska, that miqht be 

10 close to a one: I don't know. It's goinq to depend. 

11 And that' s exactly the point. The 

12 point is you can't claim it simply because you've d~ployed 

13 capital that it sunk and that it's rigid and that you need 

14 special protection in the market. 

15 Q Weren't you making that assumption when 

t8 you put your air-- or the Braniff airplanes? 

17 A No, I'm saying that Braniff is an 

18 empirical example of high fixed costs that turn out not 

19 to be sunk. 

20 Q 

21 every case? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

sold? 

A 

Q 

A 

It depends on the circumstances in 

'l'hat~s correct. 

Maybe even a nuclear plant could be 

That would be real hard for me to 
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believe, but maybe so. 

83 

Q Dr. Alessio, you talk about in your 

testimony residual pockets of market power in Virginia 

on Page 27. You indicate there may be such residual 

pockets of market power in Virginia. 

A I don't say that there will be. I say 

that. 

Q I understand. That is in your testimony, 

is it not? 

A There is a section in my testimony 

about how to deal with-- to protect against residual 

pockets in monopoly power being abused.inthe market power. 

Page 27, ·at the bottom of the ~age, Mr. Marmon, is that 

the sentence you're looking for? 

Q 

middle of the paqe. 

A 

Q 

No, I'm looking at the sentence in the 

Middle of the paqe. 

"The Commission should focus on 

oversight and monitoring responsibilities to assure itself 

that, if there are residual pockets of market power in 

Virginia, they are not being exploited by any carrier." 

A Yes, I said that, but that's not what 

you're asking me. You said that I said there are residual 

pockets. I didn't say that there are. 
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Q 

there miqht be. 

84 

I asked you if you indicated that 

1 

2 

3 

4 

6 

A I didn't even say that. I said if 

there are some, there are mechanisms--

8 Q 

7 residual pockets? 

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

A 

Well, do you think there miqht be 

There might be, yes. 

And where might they be? 

They might be in, I suppose, in a 

11 very extreme route in some unusual place in the State. 

12 I mean, that's possible, and I can't rule that out, and 

13 I'm not tryinq to be flip about it, but what I'm tryinq 

14 to indicate is that I think that's the tail1 that's not 

15 the doq, and we don't want to have the wronq thinq wagging. 

16 Q Have you got "residual" up there in 

17 the front of that phrase? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q Would they be areas where AT&T is the 

20 · only provider of telephone service in the State? 

21 A They may be. 

22 Q Would they be-- would all areas where 

~ AT&T is the only pr~vider,. would all of those areas be 

24 residual pockets? 

26 A 'Of ·Course.·not. ··But. significant . 
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·2 pieces of those may be contestable even if AT&T is the 

3 only carrier there. We just went through the grocery 

4 store example. ·"It's the potential for open entry. It's 

6 the potential for someone coming in that frequently causes 

a a fir.m who is in the market to act like a competitor. 

7 

8 

Q 

A 

All right. 

You see it in dry cleaners, for exampleo 

9 Dry cleaners act that way even though they may be the only 

10 dry cleaner in the neighborhood. They still send out 

11 coupons and still provide discounts and still act as if 

12 they're in a competitive market. 

13 Q In·Mr. Wilcox' prefiled testimony, 

14 Dr. Alessio, he states that AT&T has been forced to serve 

16 some areas of the country at below cost. Do you:: remember 

16 that? 

17 

18 

19. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

testimony. 

I don't recall. 

Do you accept that? 

I will accept that. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Who said that? 

MR. MARMON: It's in Mr. Wilcox' 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Does he mean 

by regulatory action, like, Louisiana 

make him have a five-cent telephone? 

would 
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2 MR. MARMON: I think he's-referring 

3 to areas where the rates, universal rates 

4 do not recover costs in a particular area 

5 because of a special high cost of providing 

a the service in a particular area, up on a 

7 mountain top, something like that. 

8 Q Now, if that's true, which we're 

9 assuming that it is for the moment, that requires AT&T 

10 to make up the difference someplace else, does it not? 

11 A Not necessarily, or they can do what 

12 they have more traditionally done, no~ hit their objective 

13 rate of return. 

14 

16 

16 

17 

18 

Q If AT&T is going to make any rate of 

return at all, it has to make up the money that it loses 

on that-- those portions of routes that it serves at below 

cost, does it not? 

A This means that it has to have revenues 

19 coming from someplace that's high enough above cost to 

~ 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

offset these losses. It doesn't necessarily mean they'd 

have to raise any pre-existing prices; it just means 

they'd have to have sufficient contribution somewhere 

else to offset this. 

Q NQw, in your testimony this morninq, 

Dr. Alessio, you have· suggested that the proper course 
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2 for this Commission is to totally deregulate the rates 

3 of AT&T now with a continuation of oversight to protect 

4 against the abuse of residual pockets of market power. 

5 Now, is it--

8 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

A 

Is that a question, Mr. Marmon? 

No, it's not. The question is coming. 

I just wanted to remind you that you 

9 and I have a disagreement about the use of the word 

10 "deregulate .. in your statement. 

11 Q Well, I'm talking about the deregulation 

12 of rates. 

13 A Yes, I understand; we've been through 

14 this discussion. And I don't mean to be defensive; I just 

15 don't want you to testify for me. 

16 Q Well, how would you characterize your 

17 rec~nunendation? 

18 A X do not regard this as deregulation. 

19 I•ve told you that. I regard this as streamlined regulation, 

~ and I do understand that under the rules that have been 

21 proposed by the Commission that the rates do not have to 

22 be passed on per se, but there is a complaint avenue that's 

23 available, and there is the potential of the reimposition 

24 of regulatory review. That, to me, is not deregulated. 

25 Deregulated, to me, is turning them loose and saying, 
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nwe no longer have authority over you." I do not under­

stand the rules of the Commission to have said that they 

hav~ abdicated their authority over any carrier that they 

certify. 

CO~SSIONER SHANNON: That's because 

we have them by the leash of possible reregulation. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, that's exactly 

right. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: And what you're 

saying is that they are not truly competitive 

as long as that leash is being held by the 

Commission?_ 

THE WITNESS: They're not truly 

deregulated, yes, as long as you have that 

leash. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, we can 

18 say they'r~ truly competitive. 

19 THE WITNESS: Oh, I think they will 

~ be, and I think they are. 

21 BY MR. MARMON : 

22 . Q .: Dr. Alessio, is it true that in 

~ testimony in other states you have stated with respect 

24 to this same questi~n, it's a transition period for total 

25 deregulation, that there should be something less than 
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2 you're suggesting today with respect to rates, the 

3 Commission's power over rates? 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

Inside the LATA~:yes; 

Only in intraLA'l'A competition?· 

89 

a A That's my recollection. I have also 

7 proposed at times that as intermediate steps that the 

8 Commission undertake flexible pricing tariffs where you 

9 set a maximum and a minimum. 

10 Q Did you make that suggestion in your 

11 testimony in the Maryland proceeding last year? 

12 A Yes, I did. And I don't mean to cause 

13 any confusion, Mr. Marmon. I don't think I suggested a 

14 timinq~on· the flexible tariffs.· I suggested a time to 

16 phase in mostlyfor intraLATA competition. 

16 Q Well, why don't we just-- can I just 

17 hand you this, a copy of your testimony, and if you could 

18 just read the part that is marked in red. It goes on to 

19 the next page. 

20 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You-all did 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

outloud. 

a lot of work since 6 o'clock last nightto go 

to Maryland. 

Q (Continuing). I'd like you· to· read it 

A The whole paragraph? 
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Q 

A 

The whole paragraph. 

"Finally"--

90 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Now, what 

are you reading from? Is this the testimony 

you qave in Maryland--

THE WITNESS: Yes, this is-·· 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: --in some 

proceeding, or was it a related proceeding, 

or what? 

THE WiTNESS: No, it was not. This 

was testimony by me, on behalf of AT&T 

Communications of·Ma~land, in what was 

identified as Maryland Case No. 7719. I 

believe it was a competitive· certification case. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: What was 

·the case.about? 

case. 

THE WITNESS: Competitive certification. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Oh. 

THE WITNESS: Competitive certification 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: And they had 

that last year? 

THE WITNESS: September-- my testimony 

is dated September 14th, 1983. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I think that's 

the case involving where they filed rates to 

have, as you say, maximum-minimum levels, and 

I think we rejected those in Virginia. I may 

be speaking out of turn because we said the 

tariff has to be specific in this state until 

you are deregulated or released from requlationo 

But go ahead. 

MR. MARMON: Let me just clarify 

this. I think this was-- I stand corrected-­

subject to correction by Mr. Morrissey. I 

think this was in testimony in MCI's certi­

fication proceeding in Maryland. The issue 

was streamlined regulation for OCCs·. and a 

continuation of conventional regulation for 

AT&T. 

MR. MORRISSEY: I will set 

the·record straight. What it was was the 

outqr~wth of a show-cause order by the 

Maryland Commission as to why MCI was pro­

viding intrastate service in Maryland without 

asking for.an application first. The issue 

then was· joined to look at what regulatory 

constraints should be provided to.all 
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interexchanqe carriers, and this was the 

context in which Dr. Alessio's testimony 

92 

was presented, recommendation for all inter-

exchange carriers. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I understand. 

MR. MARMON: I reserve the right to 

clear the record on this. I'm told that that 

is not the correct statement. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You know,·.'· 

Mr. Marmon ·and. Mr. Morrissey,. this is the 

problem when you start qoinq to ~ther 

commdssions. We don't pay any attention to 

what they do in Maryland and North Carolina; 

we decide in Virginia ourselves. This is a 

problem when you go to something like that; 

it confuses the record a little bit, ·and I 

don't think it makes any difference unless 

you've got an inconsistent statement. 

MR. MARMON: That's what we have. 

It's an issue that I'd like to get into the 

record here is that a prior statement by 

Dr. Alessio.on this very subject, and that 

is the transit.ion regulatory oversight that 

a cbmmission should apply to AT&T. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

let him read it, and then you can make your 

point, and he can qualify it,. and you make 

your point. 

THE WITNESS : Judge 1 I 'd be happy 

7 to read this because I think it's right on 

8 the point with respect to this case. 

9 A (Continuing) "Finally"-- oh, by the 

10 way, this is on Paqe 16-- that's 16 and 17 of that testimonyo 

11 ~Finally, a different form of regulatory oversight·:·should 

12 be imposed on carriers by the Commission during the 

13 transition to increased competition in intrastate toll 

14 markets. Price bounds, i.e., price regulation within a 

15 ranqe of floor and ceiling rates, should be substituted 

16 for rate of return and rate base regulation for toll 

17 services. The price ceiling or upper ••• bound could be 

18 based on market conditions, while the price floor or lower 

19 ••• bound would be at incremental cost. Price flexibility 

~ would be permitted within the upper and lower bounds. With 

21 price bounds, carriers would be allowed the necessary 

~ flexibility in the market to respond to competitive 

23 pressures and, at the same time, the Commission would 

24 retain.sufficient oversight to prevent any abusive practiceso 

25 The upper and lower ••• bounds could then be indexed to 
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balance changes in costs and productivity over time until 

the Commission decides that market conditions are such 

that competitive ••• forces alone are sufficient to requlate 

the market." 

You have a very different set of 

circumstancesthan what-- I proposed the price bound as 

a substitute for the traditional form of specific price 

regulation; and if a Commission found that competition 

is not sufficient to provide the kind of streamlined 

regulation that is proposed by this Commission, there 

is a significant difference. 

Q Dr. Alessio, you have conceded, I 

believe, that there is a possibility that deregulation 

will not work, and that it would-- deregulation 

of rates would have to be reimposed. In fact, the threat 

of that reimposition is one of the things that you think 

should act as regulation of rates. 

Now, let me ask you, what would be 

more desirable from a public policy standpoint, a phased 

deregulation of regulatory control over rates through a 

period-of steps, one after the other after it has been 

seen that this policy was not going to fail or a total 

deregulation of. ra-tes of the control over rates, and 

then a reimposition of regulation2 
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Mr. Marmon, you and I, I think, have 

3 a significant difference in definition. 

4 Q Can you answa: that question? 

5 A Yes. I think this is a step. I 

6 think this is a phase-in. I do not think that this--

7 I mean, I do not believe--

8 

.9 

Q 

A 

You won't answer the question? 

--that this total deregulation. This 

10 is a phase-in. This is a very reasonable step. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

idea. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, Mr. Marmon, 

he's made··.it clear, at least as far as I'm 

concerned, he·doesn't consider what's proposed 

here before the Commission to be total derequla­

·tion. Now, you may not aqree with it·, and 

maybe somebody else doesn't aqree with it, 

but that's--

MR. MARMON: Whatever it is. 

A (Continuinq) What it is is a great 

Q What~ver it is, it's less than a 

more phased Commission withdrawal from direct control 

over the rates of AT&T, is it not? 

A 

Q 

. Oh, of course. 

All right. 

944 



1 

2 

Alessio - Cross 

A 
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I mean, by definition, they could 

3 take something that's somethinq less streamlined. Also, 

4 by definition, they could.pick something that's more 

5 streamlined. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MABMON: Just one moment, please o 

I have no further questions. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you, 

Mr. Marmon. 

It's now 4 o'clock, and the Commission 

has rearranged their schedule so we can resume 

this hearing at 10 o'clock Monday morning. 

I just wondered, can everybody be 

back here Monday. 

You can temporarily stand down,if 

you'd like, Dr. Alessio. 

MS. DUPONT: Your Honor, I believe 

that our two witnesses will both be needed 

to testify elsewhere on Mo.nday, and I .apologize 

to the Commission, but we had expected that 

they would appear today. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Where are 

they testifying Monday? 

MS. DUPONT: One will be-- actually, 

they will be enroute, one to Kentucky and 
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one to Nevada. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, we've 

got to finish this case up by the lst of 

August, and so we've got Monday and Tuesday • 

. COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Is there 

any cross examination of their witnesses? 

Is it a possibility their testimony could be 

prefiled or stipulated? 

MR. MORRISSEY: I would anticipate 

that we would have very little·cross examination 

of the witnesses who have been identified to 

us, and z assume those will be the witnesses. 

If I might also indicate, that if 

the Sprint attorney is going to, how much cross 

examination they wouid have for Dr. Alessio. 

If it would be relatively short, it would 

certainly be easier for Dr. Alessio to finish 

today if that could possibly be done in a short 

time, and then come back, if need be, but it 

would be--

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: How much 

cross examination~ Ms. Dupont, do you have? 

MS. DUPONT: I believe my cross 

examination would be quite brief. 
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2 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let 1 s see. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

I believe you're the last one, aren't you? 

That's right. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: What i"s 

"quite brief?" That varies from lawyer to 

lawyer. (Laughter). 

MS • DUPONT: I would doubt more 

than 15 minutes, Commissioner Bradshaw. 

COMMJ:SSIONER SHANNON: All: right. 

Well, let's qo ahead, then, and finish with 

Dr. Alessio since he comes from Dallas, and 

it's pretty lonq just to come back for 15 

minutes. 

The Commission deviates from its 

rules by going over, but we will be glad to 

do that in this caseo 

MR. MORRISSEY: Thank you very much, 

Judge Shannon. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Judge. 

~ CROSS EXAMINATION 

23 BY MS. DUPONT: 

24 Q Good afternoon, Dr. Alessio. As I 

~ said, I just have a few·questions for you. You testified 
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2 at some length about the possibility of geographic 

3 deaveraging as I recall, and you seem to think it's 

4 quite important that in this case AT&T has committed 

5 itself to maintain statewide uniformity by service, 

6 is that correct? 

7 A I don't know how important it is. 

8 I know they have committed to that. 

9 Q I see. And you felt this was relevant 

10 to the question of whether rate increases or decreases 

11 would occur in perhaps in one market··first and then spread 

12 to other markets? 

13 A In one piece of geography as compared 

14 to another, is that what you mean? 

15 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

~-

Yes. 

Yes. 

And I believe you stated on cross 

18 examination that you would doubt whether a carrier such 

19 as AT&T would deaverage geographically because it would 

20 not be customer friendly. Did you use that ter.m? 

21 A I did use-- along with some others, 

22 I did use that ter.m, yes. 

23 Q Do you agree that it's a valid concern 

24 of the regulatory aqency to assure qeogr~ph~c rate 

26 deaveraging will not occur? 
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I wouldn't say it that way. I think 

3 it is a valid concern of the regulatory agency to under-

4 stand that geographic deaveraging to the extent it occurs, 

5 it o~curs for a good reason. 

8 Q And do you think that geographic 

7 deaveraging is a good idea, something that is pro-

s competitive? 

9 A To the extent that it-- to the extent 

10 that it mirrors true economic costs, then I think yes. 

11 Q So 'you would hope that eventually 

12 this Commission would allow geographic deav.eraging, correct? 

13 · A I would hope that eventually this 

14 · Commission would allow all the companies to respond to 

15 not to serve customer needs, but also to the cost of 

18 providing service, but yet I don't want you to conclude 

17 that rural. areas are always higher cost areaso They're 

18 not necessarily always higher cost areas. Fo~ inter~ 

19 exchange service there may be higher cost areas on the 

~ loop side for outside plant, but that's not necessarily 

21 the case. 

~ Q Well, from an economy point of view, 

23 is it good public policy to allow rate deaveraginq on a 

24 geographic basis? 

~ A Well, I think in some instances, yes, 
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2 because I do think from a public policy view, it's a good 

3 idea eventually to get cost cause, a rate phenomenon, 

4 lined up unless there is some overriding source of policy 

5 that indicates that that shouldn't happen, but I think 

6 that's always a consideration. 

7 Q Now, why do you suppose that AT&T has 

8 agreed not to deaverage its rates on a geographic basis 

9 at this time? 

10 A Oh, I think that's an easy one to 

11 answer. I don't think there is a current market siqnal 

12 that tells them that that's the thing to do. I don't see 

13 why that makes economic sense in the market currently. 

14 Q Because it's not customer friendly? 

15 A Because it's not customer friendly. 

18 And the only cost variations that you're going to see are 
I 

\ 
17 pretty much due to the assignment of nontraffic sensitive 

18 costs under the access charges. 

19 I'm not convinced that there is a true 

20 economic underlying cost difference other than the allo-

21 cation of nontraffic sensitive costs, and, presumably, 

~ 
hopefully, some policy will be worked out to have these 

~ 
published what that policy is. Hopefully, that will come. 

24 Q Dr. Alessio, do you have any idea how 

25 
long AT&T intends.to remain customer friendly in the 

950 



1 Alessio - Cross 102 

2 Commonwealth of Virginia? 

3 A Oh, I have no idea. I'll bet 

4 Mr. Wilcox can.tell you that. 

5 Q Well, certainly, Dr. Alessio, you're 

a aware that this issue has come up in other states and has 

7 been raised by AT&T, correct? 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

That's true. 

And that should the Virginia State 

10 Corporation Commission determine to allow AT&T streamlined 

11 rate regulation, it would be the first·· such decision in 

12 the United States, is that correct? 

13 

14 

A 

Q 

Yes, to my knowledge. 

So if the Commission should decide this 

16 issue·4 incorrectly;. it could perhaps set off a stream of 

16 events that would be very disadvantageous to the ratepayers 

17 of the country? 

18 A I suppose to the ratepayers. In 

19 practice, that seems hardly probabl~. The Commission 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

has enough authority to reimpose things 

quickly. 

relatively 

In addition to that, it trul.y is a 

qood idea. The time has come. 

Q Dr. Alessio, how did you envision that 

25 a commission would.reimpose rate regulation on a carrier 
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2 that has dispensed with it? 

3 A On a carrier that has dispensed with 

4 it? 

.5 Q A carrier that no longer keeps' its 

8 books in a manner that allowsit to be subject to rate 

7 requlation, no longer depreciates its facilities as a 

8 regulated company. 

9 
i 

A Well, let me point out to you that 
; 

10 one of the things that I recommend and have talked with 

11 Mr.. Gillespie about is that an important role of the 

12 Commission and its Staff is this monitoring process, 

13 and in my testimony I talk about the ability to monitor 

14 data and make-sure.· even:·though they may not be calling 

15 for the reporting of that data all of the time, it's very 

18 important that the Commission keep in place that does it 

17 appear to be the appropriate base for it if it wants to 

18 have that regulatory review. 

19 I think those are things the companies 

20 are going to do· anywa.y. Most of the companies are going 

21 to keep up data. 

22 Q Do you think it would be a simple 

23 matter to reconstitute depreciation reserves and accounting 

24 procedures that would allow for rate regulation once 

25 it's been dispensed with? 
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Well, I'm somewhat befuddled by the 

question. The concept of depreciation is not qoinq to 

disappear because of a streamlined regulation. The 

concept of depreciation and the reserves and net book , 

value, I mean, all of those are relatively standard 

accounting principles. I don't see where all of these 

disappear. 

Q So you would recommend that AT&T be 

required to continue to keep its books in the manner of 

a regulated company and to continue to employ depreciation 

practices of a regulated company in order to allow the 

Commission to reimpose rate regulations if it turns 

out that·this streamlined treatment is a mistake? 

A No; heavens, no. The Company should 

be required to keep a solid set of economic books and a 

solid set of books that satisfy generally accepted 

accounting principles, and I would hope that in the 

interexchanqe market that the Commission begins to 

requlate on the company's t~ue cost of providinq service, 

if it ever has to rerequlate, not on necessarily contrived 

conventions. 

Q 

A 

So your answer is no? 

My.answer is no. 
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2 Q Dr. Alessio, you spoke earlier of the 

3 test of suitability of services. 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

Uh-huh. 

And I believe you stated that you 

a didn't regard unequal access or inferior access as a 

1 barrier to entry, is that correct? 

That's correct. 8 

9 

A 

Q Am I correct that the reason that you 

10 see for- this is because of the premium access charge and 

11 the corresponding discount one might call.·it- for,: .- ·_ 

12 inferior access? 

13 A No. No, that's not my reason. That's 

14 an interesting counterbalance in weights that someone might 

15 put in the equation, but my reason is that this alleged 

1& unequal access has not stopped the occs from growing very 

17 rapidly in the interexchange market. It does not appear 

18 to have a force in the market. The companies have grown 

1g to become very large carriers in spite of what they allege 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to be, unequal access. That's the point that's important 

to me. 

Q Then why do you suppose these companies 

have been able to grow at all? 

A Because I think there is a demand in 

the market for different kinds of pricing options. I think 
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2 there is a demand in the market for discounted toll 

3 services. I think they're providing a service that 

4 customers want. And. I think they should be able to 

6 continue·· to provide that service. I just also think 

8 that other companies should be able to compete with them. 

7 Q Do you think that telephone subscribers 

8 would pay the same price for a service where they needed 

9 to dial 23 to 25 digits versus 10 or 11? 

10 A Probably not. But they may be willing 

11 to pay a sligh~ly lower price to dial those extra digits 

12 to get that service. 

13 Q So you regard the concept of a premium 

14 access charge as a good one and one that•·s suitable to 

16 be maintained? 

18 A It has nothing to do with the premium. 

17 It has to do with the price that's charged to the customer 

18 and the customer • s perception of the quality that they 

19 receive in the context of the quality that they wanted 

20 supplied. It has nothing to do with premium access charges. 

21 Q And presumably the prices charged to 

~ the customer reflects the prices the carriers pay for 

~ access, correct? 

24 

25 

A If I understand the question, yes. 

MS. DUPONT: Thank you. Those are 
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2 all the questions I have. 

3 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you. 

4 Do you have ~ny redirect? 

5 MR. MORRISSEY: No redirect 1 Judqe 

8 Shannon. 

7 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, thank 

8 you, Dr. Alessio. You may stand down. 

9 THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor. 

10 

11 * * * * * * * * * * 
12 WITNESS STOOD ASIDE. 

13 

14 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Ms. Dupont, 

15 do you have any word on your witnesses for 

16 next week? 

17 MR. MAGEE: ~cuse me, Judge Shannon. 

18 We're trying to see where we stand. 

19 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All riqht. 

20 MR. MAGEE: Bear with us for just 

21 one second, please. 

22 COMMISSIONER S~NNON: Mr. Morrissey--
• 

23 let's see-- you have two more witnesses, I 

24 believe. 

25 MR. MORRISSEY: Yes, sir. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: We can hear 

from them Monday morning. 

MR. MORRISSEY: Yes, they would 

be available. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Okay. And 

how many witnesses do you have, Mr. Moore, 

Mr. Marmon? You have one witness? 

MR. MOORE: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: And 

Mr. Gambardella doesn't have any. 

Does the Staff? 

MR.· GILLESPIE: No. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON:· So we're 

talking two, three-- I guess GTE has-- Spr~nt 

has one. 

MR. MOORE: I think they have two. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Two. 

MS. DUPONT: Pardon us. We were 

just confir.minq our witness' schedules, and 

I believe, Judge Shannon, earlier·you mentiened 

the-possibility of submitting prefiled 

testimony ~n behalf of our witnesses, and 

it almost appears that that's the only way 

we might be able to work things out in light 
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of their commitments elsewhere. 

Would that be acceptable? 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes, if you 

will prefile it and serve it on everybody, 

including the Commission, let everybody have 

a chance to-- if somebody should say 11 We want 

to call them down here to cross examine them," 

we'd have to do that. 

So when would you qet it filed? 

.MS. DUPONT: Would Auqust 1st be 

sufficient? 

COMMISSIONER SHAm;ON: Would that . 

be aqreeable to everybody? 

All riqht, if you can have it filed 

on or before Auqust the 1st, it would be 

subject to any objections that would be made 

of course. 

All riqht. Well, we thank you, 

Ms. Dupont and Mr. Maqee. 

So we have your two witnesses from 

AT&T. We have one from-- so it's three 

witnesses we'll have Monday, so we ouqht to 

be able to finish with this part of the case 

Monday. 
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We will stand in recess then 

until 10:00 a.m. Monday morning. 

NOTE: The hearing was adjourn·ed 

110 

at 4:15p.m., July 27, 1984, to be reconvened 

at 10:00 a.m., July 30, 1984. 
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NOTE: ~he matter is called to be 

heard at 10:00 o'cLock a.m., July 30, 1984, 

having been continued from July 27, !984, and 

continues as foLlows, viz: 

T~ BAILIFF: The Commission resumes 

its session. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, I 

believe now we're ready to hear the next 

witness for AT&T Communications of Virginia. 

Mro Morrissey. 

MRo MORRISSEY: Thank you, Judge 

Shannon. Ms. McCarey will put on Mr. ScheLl. 

slips. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: ALl right. 

Mr. Leap, let me have the appearance 

JOHN D. SCHELL, a· witness called by 

and on beha!f of the Peti.tiorier, having been first duly 

sworn, testifies as foLlows, viz: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. McCAREY: 

Q .Please state your name and business 
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2 • 3 

address for the record • 

A My name is John D. Schell, s-c-h-e-1-1. 

4 My business address is 3033 Chain Bridge Road, Room A258, 

'5 Oakton, Virginia, 22185. 

6 Q Mr. Schell, you have in front of you 

7 a document entitled the Testimony of John D. Schell, 

8 consisting of 21·pages and an Attachment A with nine 

9 pages: is that your testimony in this case? 

10 A 

11 0 And that was .Prefiled last Thursday? 

12 A Yes. 

13 COMM!SSIONER SHANNON: Let's 1dentify 

·-
14 Mr. Schell's 21 pages of narrative testimony 

15 and his Attachment A, consisting of nine pages, 

16 as Exhibit JDS, I believe the next number is 
0 

= • 17 
~ 

2. 
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Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, PRESENT POSITION AND BUSINESS 
ADDRESS. 

A. My name is John D. Schell, Jr. I am presently District 

Engineer in.the Eastern Region of AT&T Communications, 30~3 

Chain Bridge Rd., Room A258, Oakton, Virginia 22185 •. 

Q. WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND? 

A. I graduated from St. Louis University with a Bachelor of 

Science degree in Electrical Engineering in 1965. 

Q. WHAT IS YOUR WORK EXPERIENCE IN THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
INDUSTRY? 

A. I joined AT&T Long Lines in 1965 as a Senior Engineer in the 

Engineering Department in Kansas City, Missouri. In that 

assignment I was responsible for power plant engineering in 

Long Lines offices in the mountain and Pacific coast states. 

Since then, I have held various line and staff positions in 

the engineering and operations departments of Long Lines. 

From February, 1979 until April, 1984 I was District 

Engineer - Transmission for the Eastern Region of AT&T 

Communications. My district provided technical expertise 

and guidance for transmission design and maintenance 

engineering for radio, cable and fiber optic transmission 

systems, including associated multiplex equipment, for 

switching systems, and for Special Services. The Eastern 

Region includes Virginia, Maryland, West Virginia, the 

District of Columbia, Ney.Jersey, Delaware and Pennsylvania. 
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Since July 1983 I have been responsible for presenting 

testimony on the subject of interconnection arrangements for 

interexchange carriers and have presented extensive 

testimony on this subject in several cases in all 

jurisdictions of the Eastern Region with the exception of 

the District of Columbia and Delaware. In April, 1984, I 

assumed my present position as District Engineer - Staff, 

Regulatory and Financial Analysis. My District provides 

staff and technical regulatory support for the Eastern 

Region Engineering Organization. 

Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY? 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to describe and compare the 

carrier interconnection arrangements available to other 

common carriers (OCCs) and AT&T Communications of Virginia. 

Q. WHAT INTERCONNECTION ARRANGEMENTS ARE PRESENTLY AVAILABLE TO 
OCCS IN VIRGINIA? 

A. There are now three types of arrangements through which the 

OCCs can interconnect with C&P's local exchange network in 

order to provide switched message services. These 

arrangements are offered under C&P's Access Service Tariff 

as Feature Group A, Feature Group B Direct~ and Feature 

Group B Tandem. 

Q. IN TESTIMONY BEFORE THE MARY~AND PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION, 
AN MCI WITNESS TESTIFIED THAT "THE QUALITY OF THE 
CONNECTIONS PROVIDED BY THE LOCAL TELEPHONE COMPANIES ••• IS 
BEYOND MCI'S .CONTROL." IS THIS TRUE? 
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A. No. As can be inferred from the availability of three 

different forms of interconnection, MCI and the other common 

carriers can purchase higher-quality interconnections than 

the Feature Group A arrangement they generally use. 

Q. WHAT FORMS OF INTERCONNECTION DO THE OCCS NOW USE IN 
VIRGINIA? 

A. It is my understanding that the OCCs generally use the 

Feature Group A interconnection arrangement. At least one 

occ, Satellite Business Systems (SBS), uses the Feature 

Group B Tandem arrangement. 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE TECHNICAL ASPECTS OF FEATURE GROUP A 
INTERCONNECTION. 

·A. Feature Group A, originally. offered as ENFIA A, can best be 

understood by reference to a diagram and by examining how a 

typical call is placed and completed. Feature Group A, as 

shown on Attachment A, page 1, provides the aces with 

interconnection to C&P's local network through a line-side 

connectionll at a local serving central office. An OCC 

customer served by office A who wishes to make an 

interexchange call dials the 7-digit telephone number of the 

occ, which in this example is served by office B. The call 

is routed over C&P's switching and transmission 

II A line-side termination is characterized by signaling 
interactions with the switching ·system which are typical of 
those used with end-user ~ustomers rather than those used with 
other switching systems in the network. 
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facilities through offices A and B and is completed to the 

OCC terminal. The OCC terminal recognizes the incoming call 

and "answers" the call by presenting an off-hook signal to 

the local serving office (B). At this point the call has 

been completed by the originating C&P exchange. 

The OCC then presents a second dial tone to the calling 

party, which signifies that the occ•s terminal is prepared 

to receive the additional information required to process 

the call. This information typically takes the form of a 5-

to 7-digit personal identification number ("PIN") and -the 7-

or 10-digit telephone number of the called party. All 

digits dialed after the occ provides the second dial tone 

must use some form of tone-type signaling, because the local 

portion of the network cannot transmit rotary dial pulses 

after the call set-up bas been completed. Although any 

tone-type signaling that uses frequencies within the 

voice-band can be employed, the occs presently use the 

TOUCH-TONE signal format. Thus, to make an intercity call 

over an OCC network, an OCC patron uses a TOUCH-TONE 

telephone (or equivalent) or a rotary-dial telephone 

equipped with an inexpensive auxiliary tone generator 

(Touch-Tone pad), which is generally available in Virginia. 
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After the OCC terminal verifies the validity of the calling 

patron's PIN, the call is routed over the OCC's intercity 

network to an OCC terminal connected to the ~ocal network 

that serves the area of the called party. With a Feature 

Group A terminating arrangement, this connection is again a 

line termination at the local serving office (C). To 

complete its patron's call, the terminating OCC term1nal 

presents an off-hook signal to the serving office (C). 

After receiving dial tone from the serving office (C), the 

occ terminal "dials" the 7-digit local telephone number of 

the called line and the call is routed over the local 

network to the serving office (D) of the called party. 

When the called party answers, a signal called "answer 

supervision" is transmitted back to the serving office (C) 

of the OCC terminal. The answer supervision signal goes 

only to the serving office, since this is the point at which 

the local exchange network performs its billing functions. 

Because the OCC terminal is "downstream" of the serving 

office (see Attachment A, p. 1), it does not receive the 

answer supervision signal with a Feature Group A 

interconnection. 

When the customers hang up, the offices serving the 

originating and terminating occ terminals (B, C) and the 

calling and called parties (A, D) transmit disconnect 
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supervision signals and the connections are released. A 

disconnect signal is then transmitted by offices B and C to 

the OCC's terminals. 

Q. YOU PREVIOUSLY STATED THAT TWO OTHER INTERCONNECTION 
ARRANGEMENTS -- FEATURE GROUP B DIRECT AND FEATURE GROUP B 
TANDEM -- ARE AVAILABLE TO THE OCCS IN VIRGINIA. HOW DO 
THESE INTERCONNECTIONS OPERATE AND HOW LONG HAVE THEY BEEN 
AVAILABLE? 

A. The Feature Group B arrangements (originally offered as 

ENFIA B and C in February 1982) are shown on Attachment A, 

page 2. Feature Group B provides the OCCs with 

trunk-side2/interconnection. Feature Group B Direct 

provides a direct connection from the OCC's terminal 

location to a trunk termination at an end office the occ 

21 

chooses to serve, thereby providing an interconnection with 

all station lines which terminate directly at the serving 

office. Feature Group B Direct access can be provided at 

serving offices with No. 1 ESS or No. lA ESS switching 

equipmentll or other appropriately equipped stored program 

control switching systems. Approximately 69 percent of all 

C&P of Virginia customer· lines are currently served by such 

offices. 

Trunks are circuits between switching machines and utilize 
intermachine signaling formats, as opposed to the signaling 
interactions used on line terminations. 

ll 
No.1 ESS and No. lA ESS are two of the electronic (stored 

program control) switching systems produced by Western Electric 
and widely deployed within local exchange networks to perform 
end office and tandem functions. 
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With Feature Group B Direct, the OCC can order an option at 

no charge,· which permits OCC patrons· to make calls using 

rotary-dial telephones. A second option, available at no 

charge and known as Automatic Number Identification (AN·I) , 

eliminates the need for a PIN and reduces by seven the 

number of digits the OCC patron must dial. Thus, Feature 

Group B Direct interconnects with the local network in an 

arrangement very similar to that which is afforded AT&T 

Communications under Feature Group c. 

The Feature Group B Tandem arrangement provides access to a 

tandem switch which, in turn, provides access to all serving 

offices within the LATA.!! Thus an OCC need only obtain 

access at the tandem offices to be connected to All customer 

lines within the LATA. 

When an OCC elects to use Feature Gro.up B, its subscribers 

complete their intercity calls in the following manner. The 

occ•s customer dials a 7-digit uniform nationwide access 

code of the form, "950-[0/l]XXXn (950 is an office code 

dedicated for occ access; the nxxx" portion of the 

Most LATAs have been divided into sectors, each of which has 
a tandem for access. Therefore, an OCC would require a · 
connection to each tandem in order to reach all customer lines 
in the LATA. 
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"[0/l]XXX" identifies the specific carrier). Thus, an OCC 

patron can reach his OCC's terminal by dialing the same 

access code in any city where the OCC is interconnected 

through a Feature Group B arrangement. 

Upon completion of the 950-[0/l]XXX access code, the call is 

·routed from the customer's end office to the OCC terminal 

location, either directly if Direct is used, or via a tandem 

switch if Tandem is employed. As with Feature Group A, the 

occ, upon recognizing an incoming call, presents a second 

dial tone to the calling party, indicating to that party 

that the PIN (not required for Feature Group B Direct) and 

called party's number can be transmitted •. 

After the customer finishes dialing, the call is routed over 

the OCC's intercity network to an OCC term1nal connected to 

the local network that serves the called party. To complete 

its patron's call with a Feature Group B terminating 

arrangement, the OCC seizes the trunk connected to the end 

office or tandem office and transmits the called party's 

number. Multi-frequency (MF) trunk address signaling and 

trunk signaling protocols are used. When the called party 

answers, an answer supervision signal passes from the called 

party's serving office through the local network to the occ. 
When the conversation is complet_ed, the Feature Group B 

access arrangement transmits disconnect supervision to the 

occ. 
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,- Because Feature Group B Direct uses a direct connection from 

the serving office to the OCC's terminal, it allows the occ 

to provide transmission quality equal to that of AT&T 

Communications' service. Feature Group B Tandem provides 

transmission quality close to that of AT&T Communications 

and will provide the same quality through C&P of Virginia's 

·equal access tandems and associated equal access 

transmission plan. C&P of Virginia will have 13 equal 

access tandems -- eleven available in 1985, and two more 

available in 1986. 

Q. IN ITS MEMORANDUM FILED ON JULY 18, MCI STATES: "THE 
INTERCONNECTION PROVIDED TO AT&T PROVIDES IT WITH AUTOMATIC 
NUMBER IDENTIFICATION AND ANSWER SUPERVISION NEITHER OF 
WHICH IS AVAILABLE TO THE OCCS." (MEMORANDUM, P. 15) 
PLEASE COMMENT. 

A. This is simply incorrect. Both Automatic Number 

Identification (ANI) and answer supervision have been 

available to OCCs since 1982. If MCI and other OCCs do not 

receive ANI and answer supervision, it is because they have 

chosen to use Feature Group A access as opposed to other 

options available to them. 

ANI is available through Feature Group B Direct to 69% of 

the customer lines served by C&P of Virginia. Answer 

supervision is available through Feature Group B Direct and 

Feature Group B Tandem arrangements for 100% of C&P customer 
.. · . 

lines. At least one occ, SBS, is using Feature Group B 
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Tandem and receives answer supervision on all calls. Both 

ANI and answer supervision have been available since 1982 

under the prior ENFIA tariffs. 

Q. MCI ALSO CLAIMS THAT IT "MUST CONNECT TO THE LINE-SIDE OF 
THE LOCAL EXCHANGE SWITCH. • (MEMORANDUM, P. 15) IS THIS 
CORRECT? 

A. No. MCI has alternatives to line-side connection. 

Trunk-side connections have been available to MCI and other 

occs since early 1982 via the ENFIA B and C arrangements, 

and such connections are currently available to them under 

Feature Group B at the same tariff rates as Feature Group A. 

Q. MCI ALSO ASSERTS: "FINALLY THE OCCS ARE EFFECTIVELY EXCLUDED 
FROM SERVING CUSTOMERS WHO HAVE ROTARY DIAL TELEPHONE 
INSTRUMENTS.• (MEMORANDUM, P. 16) IS THIS CORRECT? 

A. Again, this is simply incorrect. Had MCI ordered ENFIA B or 

Feature Group B Direct, it would have had, and would today 

have, access directly to rotary dial.telephones. 

Q. MCI CLAIMS TO REQUIRE ECHO SUPPRESSORS TO 8 MITIGATE SOME OF 
THE NEGATIVE CONSEQUENCES OF THEIR INFERIOR CONN~CTIONS.• 
ARE ECHO SUPPRESSORS REQUIRED FOR VIRGINIA INTRASTATE 
SERVICE? 

A. No. Due to the relatively short ·distances involved in 

Virginia intrastate toll calls (maximum of about 425 
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facility'route miles), echo is not a significant concern.S/ 

C&P did not use echQ suppressors on intrastate circuits and 

neither does AT&T Communications of Virginia. If, in fact, 

an OCC experiences echo problems on Virginia intrastate· 

calls, it is not due to the facilities provided by C&P of 

Virginia, but is due, in all probability, to how the OCCs 

have engineered their networks. The locations of the OCC 

switches and their network arrangements for routing calls 

could add substantial mileage on intrastate calls, thereby 

creating echo problems. 

Q. HOW DO FEATURE GROUPS A AND B COMPARE IN PRICE? 

A. There is no difference in the prices for Feature Group A and 

Feature Group B. They cost the same to the occ.il 

Q. IS USE OF FEATURE GROUP B A LOGICAL TRANSITION STEP TO THE 
FEATURE GROUP D EQUAL ACCESS ARRANGEMENT FOR THOSE OCCS 
CURRENTLY USING FEATURE GROUP A? 

The rules typically used by the occs "[s]pecify that echo 
suppressors are to be applied to all circuits that exceed 667 
miles." USTS and SPC, Joint Information Submission, Section 
3.5, FCC CC Docket No. 78-72, Phase I. 

il 
As is shown on Attachment A, page 3, even prior to the 

access tariff Feature Groups, the difference in price between 
ENFIA A 90nnections and the better quality ENFIA B and C 
connections was small. As shown on the Attachment, ENFIA B with 
Automatic Number Identification, access to rotary telephones and 
transmission quality equivalent to AT&T Communications service 
cost only between $.0026 and $.0042 per minute more than.the 
ENFIA A interconnection arrangement. 
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A. Yes it is. The major change for an OCC in moving from 

Feature Group A to Feature Group D is the ~hange from line­

side interconnection arrangements under Feature Group A to 

trunk-side interconnecting arrangements under Feature Group 

D. 

·Since Feature Group B is also a trunk-side interconnecting 

arrangement, the OCCs can begin the transition to equal 

access by conveiting to Feature Group B access. This can be 

done for originating traffic, term1nating traffic or both. 

By planning the conversion process with C&P, the occs can 

implement Feature Group B in designated Feature Group D 

offices, either end offices or designated equal access 
-

tandems. Under C&P's intrastate access tarif:t Section 

6G7.6, carriers will not incur any up-front charges to 

switch from Feature Group B to D when D becomes available in 

an end office. 

Q. CAN YOU DESCRIBE THE FEATURE GROUP C ACCESS ARRANGEMENT THAT 
WILL BE USED BY AT&T COMMUNICATIONS UNTIL EQUAL ACCESS IS 
AVAILABLE? 

A. Yes. AT&T Communications of Virginia will generally retain 

the interconnection a~rangements it has with C&P of Virginia 

today and will be charged for these arrangements under the 

access tariff as Feature Group c. These arrangements, in 
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most cases, provide a direct connection from an AT&T 

Communications switch to a trunk term1na·tion in an end 

office. The remaining end offices are accessed through a 

tandem switch at Onancock. 

Under Feature Group c, customers will continue to use AT&T 

Communications as they do today, using 7 or 10 digits (along 

with a "1+", where required), to complete their interLATA 

calls. 

Q. IN YOUR VIEW, WHAT IS THE BEST ACCESS ARRANGEMENT AVAILABLE 
TODAY TO THE OCCs IN VIRGINIA? 

A. The best access arrangement available to the occs is Feature 

Group B, which provides a mix of direct trunks to C&P end 

offices and tandem trunks to C&P access tandem offices. It 

is best to discuss originating access (access from a calling 

customer to the OCC) and terminating access (access from the 

OCC to a called customer) separately. 

To obtain the best access in the originating direction at 

any No. 1 ESS, No. lA ESS or other appropriately equipped 

electronic switching offices which the OCC desires to serve, 

an OCC would order Feature Group B Direct with the 

non-chargeable Automatic Number Identification (ANI) and 

rotary-dial options. Through the ANI and rotary-dial 

options, an OCC could serve all customers connected to such 

976 
-13-



v 

offices (approximately 69% of C&P of Virginia's customer 

lines), regardless of the type of station equipment they 

have and without the need for dialing a PIN. Because the 

trunks would be direct, the transmission quality would be 

fully equal to that afforded AT&T Communications. The only 

difference between such access and that provided AT&T 

·communications would be the need to dial seven additional 

digits to reach the OCC. 

For customers not served by such offices, the OCC would 

order the Feature Group B Tandem arrangements. This would 

enable all other customers to reach the OCC. Those with 

TOUCH-TONE-type stations would need no additional equipment, 

but would need to use a PIN. Those with rotary-dial 

telephones would need an inexpensive auxiliary tone pad llor 

conversion to Touch-Tone equipment.ll The transmission 

quality, although improved over that·typically provided with 

Feature Group A, would generally not be as good as that of a 

direct connection, until the tandem switches and associated 

facilities are upgraded with equal access. 

As indicated in Attachment A, page s, this auxiliary pad is 
offered by GTE-Sprint as a "[s]imple and inexpensive conversion 
device [which] will adapt [a customer's rotary phone] in 
seconds.• 

TOUCH-TONE service is currently available to 100% of C&P of 
Virginia customers. Almost 60% of these customers currently use 
TOUCH-TONE Service. 

-14-



In the terminating direction, the occ would order either 

Feature Group B Direct or Tandem. With Feature Group B 

Direct, the.terminating access (from the OCC to the called 

party) is equal to that of AT&T Communications' Feature 

Group C. With Feature Group B Tandem, the only departure 

from equal access would be the slightly reduced transmission 

quality, again only until the transmission performance of 

the access network is upgraded to the equal access standard. 

All Feature Group B arrangements are trunk-side, not 

line-side, connections.. This provides the occ trunk-type 

signaling, including MF addressing, trunk testing 

capabilities, and answer and disconnect supervision. Since 

Feature B is available at the same tariff rates as Feature 

Group A, a change to Feature Group B would be a logical 

transition step toward Feature Group D equal access for 

those OCCs currently using Feature Group A. 

Q. EARLIER YOU STATED THAT ANY QUALITY OR TECHNICAL LIMITATlONS 
WHICH THE OCCS EXPERIENCE WITH THEIR INTERCONNECTION 
ARRANGEMENTS ARE THE RESULT OF THEIR CHOOSING NOT TO 
PURCHASE THE BETTER AVAILABLE INTERCONNECTIONS. UNDER C&P'S 
ACCESS SERVICE TARIFF, ARE THE OCCs CONSTRAINED TO USE AN 
INTERCONNECTION ARRANGEMENT WITH THOSE LIMITATIONS? 

A. No. As with prior ENFIA arrangements, the OCCs need not 

experience the technical drawbacks of which they have 

complained if they are willing to purchase the ·superior 

interconnections afforded by Feature Group B. Only if they 

persist in choosing Feature Group A arrangements will they 

have to deal with those technical limitations. 
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The features of the access arrangements available to 

interexchange carriers prior to the availability of equal 

access, including those available to AT&T Communications 

under Feature Group c, are shown on Attachment A, page ·4. 

As that Attachment shows, Feature Group B offers 

considerably more features and better quality than is 

·available with Feature Group A, and at the same taritt 

rates. 

·The key difference that remains between Feature Group B and 

Feature Group C is the necessity, under Feature Group B, to 

dial extra digits to reach the OCC. The willingness of 

customers to dial extra digits when placing calls is 

demonstrated by the enormous growth of the OCCs over the 

past few years and by the success of AT&T's credit card 

calling, which requires customers to dial 14 extra digits. 

Moreover, according to MCI advertising, its business 

customers can use their existing phones and need not dial 

extra digits. MCI offers "Advantage Service," which it 

describes as follows: 

Now Advantage Service makes MCI as easy to use as 
Bell. Now you can get MCI savings without giving 
up anything. With new MCI Advantage Service, you 
dial every number exactly as you would with Bell. 
You simply dial the area code and the local 
number. We think that's important enough to bear 
repeating. You dial every number exactly as you 
would with Bell. You use the same phones you'ri! 
already using. Either push-button or rotary. And 
there are absolutely no extra numbers to dial.• 
{See Attachment A, p. 9) 

MCI states further in its-1984 Annual Report that: 

Advantage offers maximum savings and convenience 
to small business customers. This 'miracle in a 
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small box' -- in this case a microprocessor 
inspired by MCI, built to our specif1cations and 
installed at a customer's location -­
automatically dials the customer's access number 
and au~horization code and can be used by rotary 
dial phones to access MCI. Ad van tag e. customers 
increased nearly five-fold last year from 13,000 
to 70,000. (See 1984 Annual Report, MCI · 
Communications Corporation, pp. 12-13). 

Q. .CAN YOU DESCRIBE THE FEATURE GROUP D EQUAL ACCESS 
ARRANGEMENTS THAT C&P IS IMPLEMENTING IN RESPONS~ TO THE 
MFJ? 

A. Yes, I can. Under the MFJ, C&P of Virginia is required to 

provide exchange access equal in type and quality to that 

provided AT&T Communications. C&P of Virginia will dep~oy 

additional capabilities in its end offices and Access Tandem 

switching systems to ensure its ability to provide equal 

exchange access services to all interexchange carriers. The 

major features that will be made possible through these 

additional capabilities include the following: (1) 

customers will be able to select fro~ among interexchange 

carriers and complete calls over their networks using a 

5-digit access code of the form "lOXXX" plus the 7- or 

10-digit number of the called party, from both rotary-dial 

and TOUCH-TONE telephones; (2) ANI will be avaifable to 

interexchange carriers on all calls; (3) customers w1ll be 

able to request that C&P of Virginia automatically route 

their calls to a particular interexchange carrier without 

having to use an access code ("pre-subscription•); (4) call 

detail information necessary for interexchange carriers 

either to bill their own customers or to use C&P of 

Virginia's billing services will be provided; and (5) answer 
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supervision will be provided. A more complete list of the 

features associated with equal access Feature Group D is 

shown on Attachment A, page 7. 

These equal a~cess features will be available on all major 

electronic switching systems, including the Western Electric 

No. 1 ESS, No. lA ESS, No. lA Bi-Lo ESS and No. 5 ESS. Full 

equal access capabiliti~s will also be available on two 

smaller electronic switching systems -- the Western Electric 

No. 2B ESS and the Northern Telecom DMS-10. C&P of 

Virginia, as outlined in the Bell Atlantic Telephone 

Companies' Equal Access Compliance Plan filed witb Jttdge 

Greene on June 22, 1984, will begin to offer equal access in 

September, 1984, in the Norfolk area and will offer equal 

access to 64.1 percent of its customer lines by September 1, 

19851 to 90.6. percent by September 1, 1986; and to 94.7 

percent by September 1, 1988. 

Access tandem switching systems will provide points within 

each LATA for concentrating and distributing the traffic of 

interexchange carriers, including AT&T Communications, when 

direct connections to each end office in the LATA from each 

interexchange carrier's Point of Presence (POP) would not be 

justified economically. Thus, by means of a single trunk 

group from an interexchang·e carrier • s POP to the access 

tandem switching system, the interexchange carrier will 

obtain equal access to many C&P of Virginia end offices. 
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Where necessary, ~&P will upgrade switching systems used as 

access tandems and will upgrade transmission facilities used 

to connect both end offices to access tandems and access 

tandems to interexchange carrier POPs. This will ensur~ · 

that the principal transmission parameters of loss, noise, 

and echo return loss and also the probability of blocking 

will be equal for all interexchange carriers, whether access 

is provided using a direct connection, a connection via an 

access tandem, or a combination of the two. 

C&P of Virgi~ia's equal access tandem plans were also 

included in Bell Atlantic's June 22, 1984 filing with Judge 

Greene and are as follows: 

~ BQUAL ACCESS ~AHD~H A~AlLAaL~ fQB SBB1llC~ 
Culpeper Culpeper 40 '85 

II Fredricksburg 10 '85 
n Leesburg 30 •as 
II Winchester 20 '85 

Lynchburg Lynchburg 20 '85 
II Danville 20 •as 

Norfolk Norfolk 30 '84 .. Onancock 30 '86 

Richmond Richmond 20 '86 

Roanoke Roanoke 10 '85 
n Norton 20 '85 

Staunton 30 '85 

Washington Southwest D.C. 30 '85 

Q. BASED ON YOUR ANALYSIS, IS THERE ANY TECHNICAL BASIS FOR 
GIVING THE OCCS REGULATORY ADVANTAGES AS THEY SUGGEST? 
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A. Definitely not. OCCs such as MCI and GTE-Sprint, while 

complaining to regulators about "unequal access," claim 

publicly that their services provide transmission quality 

equal to that of AT&T. MCI goes so far as to provide a TV 

demonstration comparing a call over its network and that of 

AT&T and then stating: 

•can you tell the difference between AT&T 
and MCI? •••• Neither can I." (See Attach­
ment A, p. 8). 

Virtually all of the claimed differences in transmission 

quality and other technical parameters between the 

interconnection arrangements used by AT&T Communic~tions of 

Virginia and those used.by the aces arise from the occs• 

choice of ENFIA A, the historically least costly form of 

interconnection, rather than the superior ENFIA B or C 

connections. Under current access tariffs, Fea~ure Group B 

costs the same as the Feature Group A interconnection which 

the OCCs now generally use. Moreover, OCCs who switch now 

to Feature Group B will have in place the same kind of 

connection which they would use to take advantage of Feature. 

Group D equal access, as C&P makes it available over the 

next two years. 

In addition to ~he better quality access C&P offers to OCCs 

today, C&P will begin to convert to Feature Group D Equal 

Access in less than two months and it will have completed 

that conversion for over 90% of its customer lines in just a 

little over two years. 
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There is simply no technical basis for conferring artificial 

competitive advantages on the occs. This is without even 

considering the substantial competitive advantage the OCCs 

do have in the form of the large discounts they receive in 

the charges they pay for access when compared with the 

premium charges paid by AT&T Communications. 

Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY? 

Ao Yes. 
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ENFIA 

A 

B 

B 

c 

c 

ATrAatMENT TO TESTIMONY OF JOHN D. SCHELL, JR. 

EXHIBIT I 

COMPARISON aF RATES 
ENFIA 'S, A, B AND C 

LOCAL SWITCHING AND TRUNKING1 

OPTION(S) 2 

two-wire, two-way 

two-wire, two-way 

two-wire, one-way 
terminating arrangement 

- MONTHLY RATE 

$45.24* 

$43.24** 

$37.74111 

two-wire, two-way and ANI $68 .3211 
and rotary-dial arrangements 

two-wire, one-way $85.5611 
terminating arrangement 

two-wire, two-way $91.06** 

A.L.LA\,nru:.n.L A 

Page 3 

ADDITIONAL COST/~NUTE 
OVER ENFIA A 

$.0026 to $.0042 

$.0045 to $.0074 

$.0051 to $.0084 

* There is no difference in rate per month for options. 
** Four~wire arrangement would add $9.15, or $.0010 to .0017 per minute. 
I Four-wiTe arrangement would add $10.95, or $.0012 to .0020 per minute. 

I# ?our-wire arrangement would add $14.65, or $.0016 to .0027 per minute. 

1 The ta~~f rates f~r the central office connecting (COCF) facility and the 
Use of Jointly Used Subscrioer Plant rate elements are independent of the 
type of ENPIA access. The COCP is provided under private line tariffs; 
and the monthly rate for the Use of 3ointly Used Subscriber Plant is 
$180.53. The variable rate element by ENFIA type is Local Switching and 
Trunking. . 

2 This is a partial listing of options available. 
3 The monthly rates in the ENFIA tariffs were based on the weighted average 

OCC billed minutes of use per ENFIA per month, as reported by the OCCs. 
On June 10, 1983 the average minutes of use basis was changed to 5,435 

·minutes of use per line. In its 'Memorandum Opinion and Order in CC 
Docket No. 78-72, Phase I, released ?eoruary 15, 1984, the FCC found that 
9000 minutes of use per line reaso.naoly approximated the current average 
usage per line. Bence, the range shown here is based on 5,435 and 9,000 
minutes of· use per ENFIA l:l:ne, per month. 

Source: Bell System Operating Companies Tariffs FCC Nos. 8 and 9. 
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ATTACHMENT TO TESTIMONY OF JOHN D. SCHELL1 JR, 

1'\1 11'\\,MMt.NI 1'\ 

Page 4 

TERMINATION TYPE 
# OF DIGITS REQUIRED 
UNIFORM ACCESS CODE 
SINGLE DIAL TONE 
ANSWER SUPERVISION 
MF Sl ~ALING 
ANI 
ROTARY DIAL 

ROUTINE TRANSMISSION 
TESTING 

TR-ANSf•OSSION QUALITY 
EQUIVALENT TO AT&T 

INTRA-LATA ACCESS 

TABLE 2 
NtiSS SERVI(I 

INTERCONNECTION ARRANGEMENTS 
COMPARISON OF FEATURES 

DII£CT 

LINE TRUNK 
22 17 ' NO YES 
NO NO 
NO YES 
NO YES 
NO OPTIONAL 
NO OPTIONAL 

NO OPTIONAL 

NO YES 

YES YES 

•• st£ DIFFEJ£NCE PCSSIBI.E IRATI\£ TO AT&T. 

I 17 IF ANI OPTION IS SELECTED: OTHERWISE 22. 

988 

BiB &.t... 
IANIEM <AT&D 

TRUNK TRUNK 
22 10 

YES N/A 
NO YES 

YES . YES 
YES YES 

NO OPTIONAL 
NO YES 

OPTIONAL YES 

•• 

YES NO 



10 I~)IIMUNY U~ ~UMN U. )~MtLL, J~. 

SPRINT~ 

Mr. John D. Schell 
1417 Rosewd Bl Dr. R1 
Vienna, Virginia 22180 -

Dear Mr. Schell: 

"' ,,, ............ " 
Page 5 

Do you pay Dore than S25 for lonq-distance calls each month? 
If so, it•s time to listen to some straight fac~s about 
saviDg up to SOl -- or more -- on these calls. 

IMAGINE: CALL MOST ANYTIME YOU WAN'l' ••• 
. AND STILL SAVE MONEY! 

Now there•s no reason to put up with high rates -- or feel 
forced to wait to call at night or on weekends for lower 
rates. With SPRINT, you can save as much as 20, 30, even up 
to SOl on weekdays, weekends and ~ol~days. And you can call 
any hour, except between 9-11 AM weekdays. (For actual rate 
comparisons, see the enclosed brochureo) 

NOW YOU CAN SAVE ON ALL YOUR OUT OF 
STATE CALLS ANYWHERE IN THE U.S. I 

For a SS sutscription fee, you ~an now call any state in the 
entire country and save money with SPRINT. It1 s the first 
major discount long-distance eervice to offer such comprehen­
sive coverage. You can save up to 501 calling thousands of 
SPRINT network cities, including those listed in the enclosed 
brocbure. 

And NOW, you can use SPRINT to make interstate calls anywhere 
else in the u.s. and save up to 351 -- that includes Puerto 
Rico and the u.s. Virgin Islands. 

SPRINT SERVICE IS EASY '1'0 GET 
• • .AND EASY TO USE. 

No installation is required, ·and there is no set-up charge. 
All you need ·is an ordina;y·push•button phone.· In fact, even 
if your phone ·has a rota;y·dial, our simple and inexpensive 
conversion device will adapt it in seconds! 

(over, please •• e) 

500 Airport Blvd .• Burlingame, C81ifomia 94010 
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ATTACHMENT TO TESTIMONY OF JOHN D. SCHELL, JR. 

SPRINT IS A NAME YCU CAN ~RUST. 

ATTACHMENT A 
Page 6 

For years, we•ve been helping people realize big savings by 
using SPRINT in conjunction with their existing phone 
services. In f·act, well over a half million ~eople are 
saving money with SPRINT. Now you can enjoy these savings. 
too. 

HOW DOES SPRIN~ WORR? 

It's simple. Just punch in your local "access number"• 
followed by the personal "authorization code" that•s yours 
alone. Then punch in the number you wish to reach. It's 
that easyl 

THE SOONER YOU CALL, 
THE SOONER YOU S~A~T SAVING. 

Why put up with the phone com~any•s hiqh long-distance rates? 
SPRINT and your phone can save you up to 501. Order your · 
SPRINT long-distance service right away. Call TOLL-FREE 
(800) 521-49,9: in Michigan call ·(313) 645-6020. Our long­
distance specialists will check to make sure you can call 
anywhere across the country with SPRINT frcm your neighbor­
hood ••• and they'll tell you how much you can save where 
and when you call most often. 

Now that you•ve heard the straight talk about SPRINT, isn't 
it time to go straight to your phone? 

Sincerely, 

p(~~t2/.?-
Richard L. Fay 
Manager, Residential Services 

RLF/cd 

P.S. SPRINT can save you money wben you•re away from home, 
too. ~hen you call, ask us about SPRINT Travelcode;• 

u 8183 
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ATTACHMENT TO TESTIMONY·OF JOHN D, SCHELL1 JR. Page 7 

TERMINATION TYPE 
I OF DIGITS REQUIRED 
UNIFORM ACCESS CODE. 
SINGLE DIAL TONE 
ANSWER SUPERVISION 
MF SI~ALING 

TABLE 3 
ACCESS SERVICE 

INTERCONNECTION ARRANGEMENTS 
COMPARISON OF FEATURES 

ru FG B 
DIRECT TANDEM 

LINE TRUNK TRUNK 
22 17# 22 
NO YES YES 
NO NO NO 
NO YES YES 
NO YES YES 

FG D FG C 
<EQUAL ACCESS> <AT&T> 

DIRECT TANDEM 

TRUNK TRUNK TRUNK 
15. 15. 10 

YES YES N/A 
YES YES YES 
YES YES YES 
YES YES YES 

ANI NO OPTIONAL NO OPTIONAL OPTIONAL OPTIONAL 
ROTARY DIAL NO OPTIONAL NO YES YES YES 

ROUTINE TRANSMISSION 
TESTING NO OPTIONAL OPTIONAL YES YES YES 

TRANSMISSION QUALITY 
EQUIVALENT TO AT&T NO YES •• YES YES 

INTRA-LATA ACCESS YES YES YES YES YES NO 

• 10 DIGITS IF SELECTED BY SUBSCRIBER AS CARRIER OF CHOICE 
.CPRESUBSCRIPTION>. 

•• D'E DIFFEf£NCE PmSIBLE IIDTM: TO AT&T. 

I 17 IF ANI OPTION IS SELECTED: OTHERWISE 22. 
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ATTACHMENT TO. TESTIMONY OF JOHN D. SCHELL, JR. 

MCI 

AIIA~t1MtNI A 
Page 8 

·Radio TV Reports 
41 East42nd Street New York N.Y. 10017 

(212) 599-SSOO 

PRODUCT a 

PROGRAM I $25,000 PYRAMID 2/2/84 
WCBS·TV (NEWVORK) 

84-02112 
30 SEC. 
I O:lOAM 

1. MAN: I've just placed 
two long diStance calls. 

4. MAN: Can you tell 
tile difference between 
AT.Tand MCil 

7. And start saving up to 
30, 40, even so-.. 

2. One on AT&T, the 
other on MCI. Listen. 

5. Neither can I. 

I. To any other phone, In any 
other state, from coast to 
coast. 

S92 .. ,. ............. ~··· ~~· .............. _ ... ~· ----.---

3. WOMAN'S VOICE: Ught 
cold. Highs in the low to 
mid 20's. Precipitation 
probability decreasing to 
20%, 

That being the case, why 
don't you call MCI! 

9. That's what I'd do-
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18 BY MS. McCAREY: (Continuing} 

19 Q Was that prepared by you or under 
-~ 

20 your direction? 

21 A Yes, it was. 

22 Q And if I were to ask you those same 

23 questions today,. would your answers be the same? 

24 A Yes, they would. 

• 25 Q Do you have any correct1ons to that 
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1 Schell - Direct 118 

2 testimony? 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

A No, I do not" 

MS. McCAREY: I would ask then that 

this be_accepted into evidence in this case. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: It will be 

accepted, subject to cross-examination. 

8 BY MS. McCAREY: (Continu~ngJ 

9 Q Mr. Schell, do you have a summary of 

10 your testimony? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, I do. 

Would you please give that now. 

All right. In my testimony, I describe 

and compare the interconnection arrangements available 

to the other common carriers and AT&T Communicat1ons 

for interconnection of their facilities with the local 

exchange network of the C&P and independent telephone 

companies. 

Under the Access Service Tariffs, 

occs may choose either a line-side interconnection 

arrangement, Feature Group A, or a superior trunk-side 

interconnection arrangement, Feature Group B. With 

Feature Group B, an OCC may choose either a direct 

connection from its .terminal location to an end office 

or a connection to a tandem office, which is, in turn, 
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1 Schell - Direct 119 

2 connected to many end offices. The Feature Group B 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Direct and Tandem arrangements offer improved transmission 

quality and more features than Feature Group A and at the 

same tariff rates. 

Feature Group B provides multi- . 

frequency address signaling and trunk signaling protocols 

including answer and disconnect supervision. In addition, 

Feature Group B Direct provides access to rotary-dial 

telephones and Automatic Number Identification ana 

transmission quality equal to that provided to AT&T 

Conununications. 

Some OCCs have stated that there are 

trunk group inefficiencies associated with using Feature 

Group B Direct arrangement, as compared to, for example, 

Feature Group A. In other wo~ds, with the Feature Group 

B Direct arrangement, that· they.. would: be. unab·le ·to .. utilize 

the local network in a single se·r.vin:q office as funriels 

or concentrators to improve their trunk group efficiency. 

Thus they claim it would take more trunks to serve each 

end office directly, and this would require additional 

switching investments on their part, as compared to the 

Feature Group A or Feature Group B Tandem access 

arrangement. 

AT&T Communications' direct trunk 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Schell - Direct 120 

access under Feature Group C uses the same type of 

individual trunking to the end offices as ~he aces 

would need to use Feature Group B Direct. s~mply 

stated, if an ace wishes to offer services that match 

AT&T's in quality, they must be willing to make the 

necessary investments in their plant. 

Finally, in my testimony, I describe 

the equal access arrangements that are being implemented 

by C&P of Virginia. In just a little over two years, 

C&P will offer equal access to over 90 percent of its 

customer l~nes. 

In summary, occs could nave chosen 

Feature Group B interconnection arrangement at any time 

since they became available as ENFIA B and C in · 

February of 1982. At least one OCC, SBS, did choose 

to use the ENFIA C or Feature Group B Tandem arrangement. 

Hence, most OCCs made a bus1ness decision to continue 

to use the Feature Group A interconnection arrangement, 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

after the Feature Group B arrangements became available, 

and should not now be granted regulatory advant~ges 

based on this business decision. 

That concludes my summary. 

MS. McCAREY: Mr. Schell is available 

for cross-exam1nation. 
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14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

"\_ 25 

Schell - Cross 

Honor. 

BY MR. GAMBARDELLA: 

121 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. G1llespie? 

MR. GILLESPIE: No questions, Your 

CO~~ISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Gamoardel~a? 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Yes, sir. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

Q . Mr. Schel~, do you th1nk that every 

t~e there is a technological change in the industry 

that it ought to be adopted? 

A 

Q 

No. 

In other words, the competitors in the 

market ought to be able to adopt whatever technology 

they think is in their best interest; is that right? 

A I think that all competitors in the 

telecommunications market ought to be able to choose 

the equipment and the arrangements that they want to use 

to serve their customers. I think that, you know, in 

my comments on the Feature Group A form of interconnection 

that the OCCs use, I did not intend to be critical of 

that. That was a business decision they made. I simply 

pointed out that there were alternative business decisions 

they could have made, had they so chosen. 
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Schell - Cross 122 

Q And those alternative bus1ness 

decisions, by and large, would have required additional 

investments I· believe you said; is that correct? 

A Yes, they would nave required additional 

trunk terminations on their switching systems if they had 

chosen to obtain quality that was equal to AT&T Communica­

tions. 

Q And that would likely have requ1red 

them to increase their rates, assuming the competitive 

market would allow them to do so; is that right? 

A Not necessarily, no. The SBS currently 

uses the Feature Group B Tandem arrangement, or the 

ENFIA C arrangement. I have not compared SBS's rates 

to, for example, Sprint or MCI, but, you know, it's not-­

the amount of investment that. the OCCs currently make 

to use- the Feature Group A form of interconnection w1th 

its line-side signaling arrangements could potentially 

cost them more than the trunk-side connections that are 

available under Feature Group B. 

Let me explain what I'm trying to 

say. The occs have tes·tified 'before the .FCC in 

Docket .78-72 that the1.r switching systems come standard 

with trunk-type signal~ng. arrangements, and that they 

then must mod1fy these trunk-type signaling arrangements 
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Schell - Cross 123 

to a line-side configuration to use Feature Group A. 

And they spend money to do that. Now, if they were to have 

4 stayed· with ·the. trunk-side form of interconnection, 

5 and used ENFIA B or c, they wou.Ldn .. ~.t· have .had to make those 

6 modifications. They would have used more trunk terminations 

7 on their switchl but on balance, 1t is possible that there 

8 would not have been a difference in investment. 

9 Q Did you compare SBS's rates to 

10 AT&T Communications' rates? 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

No, I don't have them with me. 

You naven't compa~ed them to the 

13 other aces? 

14 

16 

A 

Q 

No. 

So you don't know whether they're 

16 higher or lower or in between.? 

17 A No, I don't. And I would also point 

18 out that SBS is a satellite-based carrier as opposed 

19 to a terrestrial-based carrier, and tneir satellite-

20 based arrangement may wel.L have a significant ·difference 

21 
in how they, you know; and what their costs are, as 

22 
opposed to a terrestrial system. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: That's all I have, 

Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Moore? 
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·Schell - Cross 124 

2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. MOORE: 

4 Q Mr. ScheLl, I believe you said in your 

5 summary that the purpose of your testimony is to compare 

6 the interconnections now ava1lable, and I guess to be 

7 available, also, to the aces with that··available from 

a AT&T; is that right? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

Yes, I did. 

And you.are .AT&T's expert.in this 

11 area, aren't you? 

12 A I am the Eastern Region of AT&T 

13 Communications' expert. 

14 Q Okay. And I believe you said that the 

15 testimony and the exhibits here were prepared by you or 

16 under your supervision and di+ection; is that right? 

17 A Yes, I did. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q And when you put a list of features or 

give us percentages, whose idea is it to put that in; 

yours? 

A That has been a standard part ot my 

testimony for almost a year. It has been filed in Virginia, 

Maryland, New Jersey, .and Pennsylvan1a. 

Q But w~en, when John Schell puts a list 

in here, it's because ~ohn Schell thinks 1t's important? 
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125 

Oh, absolutely, yes, sir. 

Right. And you didn't get those 

ideas from somebody else; they are· John Schell's? 

A 

Q 

It's my testimony, yes. 

Right. And it's your opinion that the 

features you discuss and the percentages and the avail­

ability that you refer to in there are· there because 

you and AT&~ think they're important for this Commission? 

A Because I think they're ~mportant, 

yes. 

Q All right, sir. ~ow, you indicate 

in your testimony that MCI and the other OCCs have control 

over the quality of the interconnections, and I think 

you just, in your summary, reviewed how they might now 

choose Feature Group B, eithe~ Direct or Tandem, and 

you were very careful, I think, in your testimony, I 

think, to say these additional offerings came about 

in 1982; is that right? 

A· 

Q 

February of L98~. 

And before that time, as a practical 

matter, the OCCs had to take what amounted to Feature 

Group A? 

A That is -- welL, the occs, specifically 

MCI, originally asked for a plain form of interconn~ction 
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similar to an FX arra~g·ement, and they asked for those 

directly of AT&T, and those were the arra~gements that were 

originally provided as the or~ginal ENFIA A tariff. 

Subsequent to that time, carriers, including MCI, came back 

and said we would like a better form of interconnection. We 

would like trunk-side connections. And most trunk-side 

connections later became available in 1982 as ENFIA B and c. 

Q Is it your testimony that MCI and the 

others had other options before 1982? 

A It is my testimony that before 1982, 

MCI had available to it the interconnection arrangement 

it had originally requested, and had fought through the 

courts and the FCC to use. 

Q All right. If they had tried to 

negotiate for a speci~l inter~onnection like AT&T of 

Virginia has, the Feature Group C -- is that the right 

word for it? 

A Om-hum. 

Q They would have been negotiating with 

the company that in effect they were trying to compete 

with; right?._ .Prior to 1982. 

A They would have been -- they would have 

been discussing their requirements under the auspices of 

the FCC with AT&T •.. 
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~~ght. Okay. And is it your testimony 

3 that neither MCI nor any other company prior to 1982, 

4 indicated a desire for trunk-side connections? 

5 A Oh, no, r•m saying that prior to 1982, 

6 actually-about the time that the ENFIA A tariff became 

7 available in 1979, the BSOC No. 8, Bell System Operating 

8 Companies FCC No. 8 became available. Shortly after 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

that became available in 1979, Sprint, MCI, SBS, et 

al, began to ask for improved forms of interconnection. 

And there were meetings that were held under the auspices 

of the FCC which became known as the ENFIA 2 meetings, 

in.which all possible combinations of things that could be 

offered by the existing network were discussed, together 

with what the aces desired in the form of interconnection. 

And the end result of those discussions were the ENFIA 

B and C tariffs, actually Bell System Operating Companies 

FCC Tariff No. 9, which became effective in·February of 

1982. So there was about two years, or a year of 

discussion in there that predated that. 

Q Well, from '79 to ,.82, a couple of 

years, to get through the discussions? 

A 

Q 

Um-hum. 

Ok-ay~ Now, let's look, if we can, and 

I'd like to review with you the various feature groups, · 
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and I don't want to be tedious, but I would like to go 

through. You pay· for Feature Group A by the circuit? 

If I have one Feature Group A to serve the Richmond area, 

I pay per circuit, is that how I pay for Feature Group A? 

A Under the FCC arrangement that's in 

effect today, you pay for Feature Group A on a !ine 

basis. 

Q On a line bas1s, okay. Is that a 

flat-rate basis? 

A Where it cannot be measured, it's a 

flat rate of 9,000 minutes of use. If it can be measured, 

it's based on measured use. 

Q Okay. Is it essentially a flat rate 

in most places? What about 1n Virginia? 

A C&P does have measurement capability 

in some offices. 

Q 

A 

Some offices·. Do you know how many? 

I believe they would have measurement 

capabilities on any lA, l ESS, or other stored program 

control switches that currently would provide your access. 

Q 

A 

Okay. 

Possibly, I believe, they may have 

also put measuring capabilities-on No. 5 cross-bars also. 

Q po you know that? Have you looked 
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into this, or do you know? 

A I nave looked into it in the past 

not in the specificity of listing each location.where 

Q I'm talking about for Virginia, 

C&P in Virginia,·have.you .looked at ·it to see? 

A I do not have a list of specifically 

where in Virginia they can measure or cannot measure; 

no, I don't have that. 

Q And you can't tell this Commission 

whether it's 50 percent, 20 percent or HO percent, 

where that could be done? 

A 

Q 

Not with certainty, no. 

All right. Tnank you. Well, that's 

what we would like to have if we could. 

Now, in y9ur diagram, I believe you 

point out that with. Feature Group A, the dialer has to have 

tone capacity of some kind; right? 

A 

Q 

That is correct. 

All right. And he's either got to· 

convert his phone or use a tone pad? 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

If he converts nis phone, he's got to 

go buy a new phon~, and he's got to pay a conversion charge, 

and if··it's C&P, that's $10.80; isn't it? 
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6 Q 

130 

For a residence. 

For a residence. Higher for business? 

It's a little higher nor a business, 

Right. And then he's got to pay a 

7 monthly charge of $!.25 for a residence? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

um-hum~ 

And double that for bus~ness? 

Weil, it m1ght be, yeah. 

Okay. 

Let me point out though you've 

13 presumed that the customer is going to 90 out and do 

14 all these things to, in effect, take advantage of 

15 TOUCH-TONE service. 

16 Q I haven't assumed anything: I'm 

17 simply asking you if he wants to deai with MCI, he's 

18 either got to have a tone pad 

19 A Yeah. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q -- or he's got to do one of tnese 

things? 

A Yeah. And.he e1ther has to have. this, 

which 1s a ToUch-Tone pad that's widely available in 

Virgin1a. This was purchased in Virgin1a at a Radio 

Shack ror 25 bucks, and, also, in terms of tne TOUCH-TONE 
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avai~ab1lity, C&P currently provides TOUCH-TONE to 6U 

percent of its base of customers. It has TOUCH-TONE 

avaiLabLe to lOU percent of its customers, and the 

aces -- I'm sorry -- the independent companies have 

TOUCH-TONE available to 99 percent of their customer 

Lines. So, obtaining TOUCH-TUNE service in Virgin1a 

is not difficult. Obtaining a tone generator to use 

in V1rginia is not difficult. 

Q .okay, thank you. And. we're either 

going to have to use that mach1ne you've just la1d out 

here or we are going to have to convert, and it 1s your 

testimony that 99 percent of the other companies, other 

than C&P, can have TOUCH-TONE, and a hundred percent of 

C&P can have TOUCH-TONE? 

A To my know~edge, there are six 

exchanges served by independent compan1es 1n V1rg1nia 

that cannot prov1de TOUCH-TON~. 

Q 

weekend or --

A 

Q 

testimony; was it? 

A 

Friday. 

Did you tind that out over the 

No, sir, betore the weekend. 

I see. That wasn't in your prefiLed 

No, but I nad 1t in my back-up binder 
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2 Q Now, once you convert to TOUCH-TONE 

3 one way or the other, you've got to use 22 numbers, 

4 basically, under Feature Group A? 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

You would use 22 numbers, yes. 

All right. And ~f you're going to 

7 Qeal with AT&~, you don't neea to buy one of those 

8 machines that you've laid out here, or have your phone 

9 converted, or dial 22 numbers; right? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A If MCI would have chosen to use the 

ENFIA B or Feature Group B Direct, they wouldn't have to 

dial all those numbers with MCI either. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Okay. 

But what you said is correct of AT&T. 

All right, thank you. We'll get to 

the .other. Comparing it now ~o Feature Group A, just 

dealing with Feature Group A and AT&T right now --

A All right. 

Q All right. Let's look then at 

Feature Group· B which you raise. I believe you say 

there are two kinds of Feature Group B's: the Feature 

Group B Direct and Feature Group B Tandem? 

A 

Q 

A 

That is correct. 

·Is that rig-ht? 

That is correct. 
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With Feature Group B Direct, I think 

3 you said you get Automatic Number Identification and you 

4 can deal with the rotary-dial customer; right? 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

That is correct. 

Okay. You pay for Feature Group B 

7 the same way you pay for Feature Group A, that is, 

8 essentially, on a flat-rate basis? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

In the Federal Jurisdiction, yes. 

All right, what about here? 

The current tariff that's on file 

here, unless C&P has revised it recently, was the original, 

mirrored the original FCC tariff last fall, and those 

usages were based on busy hour/minutes of capacity 

where it could .be measured. 

Q And if C&P goes to what is the,. what 

is now before the FCC --

flat rate? 

to it.·. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

The flat rate. 

-- the flat rate. Will that be 

Itwould be flat rate if they converted 

All right. 

. Tha.t 's not to say necessarily though 

that they would us-e ·automatically the 9, 000 minutes of use 
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2 that the FCC did. They may choose different minutes-of-

3 use basis. 

4 

5 

6 

·o 
A 

0 

Lower or higher? 

It could be either. 

All right. I believe in your 

1 testimony and in your summary this morning, you said 

8 that there's no cost difference between Feature Group A 

9 and Feature Group B: is that right? 

10 A I said there's no tariff rate difference 

11 between A and B • 

12 Q No tariff rate difference. Okay. 

13 That means if I've got to pay $29.95 for Feature Group 

14 A every month, I've got to pay $29.95 for Feature Group B 

15 Direct every month? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Um-hum. 

Is that right.? 

(Nodding head in the affir.mativeo) 

Now, if I shift from an A to a B, 

is there a conversion charge for the OCC? 

A There is a conversion charge for an 

occ to change from Feature Group A to B or to D. There 

no conversion charge or no non-recurring charge up front 

to change from Feature Group B. ·to D in the same office. 

Q Right. Now, Mr. Schell, if I had an 
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area that had five end offices in an area where an OCC 

originates calls, we could operate with one Feature Group 

A; isn't that right? 

Feature 

I would 

example? 

A 

Q 

Group 

need 

A 

B 

You could choose to do that. 

Right. And if I wanted to go to 

Direct, I believe your testimony is that 

five Feature Group B Directs; right, in my 

You would need one circuit to each 

of the offices, similar to the way AT&T inte~connects. 

Q Okay. So then, in our comparison, 

I'd have to pay for five Feature Group B Directs or 

one Feature Group A? 

A Well, your hypothetical is a little 

impractical. It presumes tha1: somehow··you· were going · · 

to serve the traffi.C or:iqina~ out of five end offices 

with one line, and that you can also serve that traffic 

adequately with one line to each of them individually. 

In all probability, you would have more than one line 

and the traffic -- the cost differences would not be as . 

great as you portray them. 

Q But they would be great? You would 

have more Feature G~oup B Directs than you would Feature 

Group A • s? 
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Not in Virginia. That's the point 

3 I made. earlier •. Virginia's tariff is based on busy 

4 hour/minutes of capacity. from· your Point of Presence 

5 to the office. ·· It. is~ not .bas.ed on· the number ·.of lines. 

a That's true in the Federal Jurisdiction currently;:but 

7 not in·Virginia. 

8 Q All right. So, in Virginia, if·C&P 

9 chooses to track the Federal tariff, then what I.have 

10 said would occur, that is --

11 A If they made that decision, that 

12 would occur, but it's not true today. 

13 Q Right. Okay. And when you said 

14 in your testimony that there's no difference in the 

15 prices for Feature Group A and Feature Group·B, they 

16 
cost the same to the aces, yo.u were really talking about, 

17 you assume the present tariff situation? 

18 

19 

20 

21' 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And you assumed that you were 

basically dealing with a per-circuit basis as opposed 

to comparing the number of circuits that.one might need? 

A Well, I was simply thinking on it 

as having a specified number of busy hour/minutes of 

capacity from a given terminal ·point, and, you know, 

there's no difference there in that arrangement or in the 
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2 features and functions that are available between the 

3 different feature groups. I mean the cost is the same 

4 on that basis. 

5 Q If they went to the Federal system, 

6 that would not be the case? 

7 A If they went to the Federal system, 

8 then you would have a per-line charge, and your costs 

9 might be higher on direct trunking as opposed to using 

10 ENFIA A, Feature Group A. 

11 Q Now, continuing with Feature Group B 

12 Direct, you say that you could hav~ it on 69 percent 

13 of the C&P lines? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

lines? 

A 

Q 

A 

18 approximately. 

math. 

Q 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

Okay. Now, C&P has about two million 

One million nine fifty-five, 

Let's make it two million for the 

Okay, all right. 

.And that would mean that almost 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

36 percent would not be able to be served by Feature 

Group B Direct? 

A · That 36 percent could be served by 
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Feature Group B Tandem. 

Q 

isn't that right? 

A 

Q 

All right. But that's 600,000 lines; 

Seventy percen~ -- yes. 

Okay. Now, let's look at that, if we 

can• With Feature Group B Tandem, I don't have Automatic 

Number Identification; right? 

A Not with the Tandem arrangement. You 

would with Direct. 

Q So, if I'm MCI, my customer has got 

to d~al, then.he's got to dial in the seven-- his PIN, 

his Personal Identification Number, and then the number? 

A Yes, he has to do that, but he'd have 

to do that in any case if he wished to have any billing 

arrangement other than charging it to the phone he's 

calling from, similar to a c~edit card. 

Q Okay. So in the B Direct, he wouldn't 

have to use a Personal Identification Number, and he could 

reach the rotary-dial customers without one of those 

machines? 

A 

Q 

Right. 

But if it's B Tandem, I need one of 

those machines, and .I got to put in the Personal 

Identification Number; right? 
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Correct. 

Okay. Now, let's look at an area 

where an OCC might want to operate, and let's say that 

the·re- are fiv.e end ·offices and· four of them are part 

of your 69 percent, and that that area was better than 

7 average, it had 80 percent. So four of the five offices 

8 could be served by B Direct." The fifth office had to be 

9 served by the B Tandem? 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

Urn-hum. 

F~r MCI to advertise to its customers 

12 and inform its customers, it would have to put out two 

13 messages in the same metropolitan areai would it not? 

14 A It would have to target.its marketing 

15 to some extent. I don't know that it would necessarily 

16 have to put out two messages •. 

17 Q Well, it's Jtind of hard to ·qet··the 

18 people in the West End of Richmond not to read the 

19 News Leader? 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

Urn-hum. 

And so to that extent, they would have 

22 to give two messages if they. wanted to advertise in the 

23 newspaper; wouldn't they?_ 

24 A Perhaps. 

25 Q Perhaps? They would. I mean if you're 
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2 on one side of the street and you're B Direct, and I'm 

3 across the street, and r·•m a B Tandem, they've got to 

4 talk to me about buying one of those machines you've 

5 got there, and they've :got to talk to me about dialing 

6 a PIN. They don't have to talk to you about that; do they? 

7 A Well, you know, I think you're trying 

8 to exaggerate the difference. First of all,. in the, 

9 in the Feature Group B Direct or Tandem, MCI would have 

10 the same ·phone number, 950-(0/l)XXX. That would be the 

11 same for all customers. Some customers would dial ·a 

12 PIN: for· them, that wouldn't change. They always dial 

13 the PIN from their home. They know and understand that. 

14 You know, what you're really talking about is trying to 

16 provide for an evolution in your network from one form 

16 of interconnection to a super.ior form of interconnection. 

17 It's really no differen~ than having Custom Calling 

18 features available today through C&P. Custom Calling 

19 features are available on one side of the street and not 

20 on the other side of the street. You know, the tele-

21 communications network has evolved from operator handling 

22 all calls to dialed local calls to dialed international 

23 calls, and the whole range. It's gone through different 

24 numbering plans. It's ~ntroduced area codes: area codes 

25 have been split. Credit cards have been provided. 
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Telepho~e consumers are pretty sharp, and they have 

adjusted well to these changes in the past. They're 

conditioned to it. And I don't see that there's any 

real disadvantage in trying to market a service that 

is Feature Group B. Because for that particular customer, 

his method of operations stays consistent. He's either 

on this side of the street or he's on that side of the 

street. 

Q Urn-hum. Okay. But we would have to 

get the message to the fellow on each side of the street 

and it would be a little bit of a different mes.sage? 

A Well, I think, in fact, you would, 

when the customer were to call y.ou+·contact sales 

office, you would, in fact, explain the service 

arrangement to him at that time. 

Q I'm talking about 

MS. McCAREY: Judge, we've been going 

o~ with this. line of questioning for some 

time now, and it seems to me that Mr. Moore 

is assuming a fact not in evidence, and that is 

that MCI would do a dual advertising. There's 

no evidence in this case that MCI has or will 

do dual advertising at any point in Virginia, 

or, in fact, elsewhere. 



Schell - Cross 

2 

142 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, I think 

3 we'll go ahead and let Mr. Moore explore this. 

4 I think he has a right to probe into it. 

5 BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

6 Q Mr. Schell, let me ask you if you will 

7 agree that it is less than optimum to be able to have to 

s deliver two kinds of messages? It's less than perfect? 

9 A It's not perfect. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Okay. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, don't you 

have that situation true everywhere, Mr. Schell? 

Some people have ESS, some have available 

cross-bar. switchingo So the services in any 

given area are never identical, even with the 

OCCs or with the local companies? 

THE WITNESS: That's the point, 

Your Honor, that I was making earlier, is that, 

you know, there have been changes introduced 

in the telecommunications network over the 

years: dialing changes, area code changes, 

Custom Calling features. They ·ar~ never­

available ubiquitously at one time. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, what 

you're saying is that in the tele9ommunications 
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6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

industry, technology changes so fast, it's 

impossible just to make a blanket change at 

one time that would cover everybody? 

THE WITNESS: Absolutely. It's 

going to have to be phased in, and the point 

that MCI is making right now in terms of 

·using Feature Group B versus Feature Group 

B Tandem, you know, direct versus tandem 

ar~angement, ·it's analgous to the phase-in 

of equal access, too. You know, they're going 

to have to target equal access customers in their 

advertising, and they're going to have to 

target non-equal access customers in their 

ta:a;g~·t.ing.. . And· .. that's just part of the 

ball game of introd~cing technological 

changes. 

18 BY MR. MOORE: (Continu~ng) 

19 Q Right now, whether you're in Monterrey, 

~ Virginia, in Highland County, or you're in Richmond, 

21 Virginia, if I'm using AT&T, it's like Cliff Robertson 

22 said, all I've got to do. is dial l and the numberi 

23 isn't that right? 

24 A Unless you want to use your credit 

25 card. 
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Well, if I want to dial, I can just 

3 dial direct? 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

Urn-hum. 

And that is not true and cannot be 

a true under Feature Group A or either of the Feature 

7 Group B's for the OCCs? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

Not until equal access is available. 

Right. 

COMMISSIONER~ BRADSHAW: Do you know 

any OCC that wants to go to Monterrey, 

Mr. -Moore? 

MR. MOORE: I think when Feature 

Group D becomes available in Monterrey, I 

think my client will take it. I might add, 

Judge, that I don't.think AT&T really has 

any problem going to Monterrey, because the 

system that AT&T is connected up to into· · 

Highland County I believe is owned by the 

telephone company there. I'm not sure of the 

name, but I think it's --

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Highland Telephone 

Company. 

. MR. MOORE: Highland. That's right. 

Highland Telephone Company. And they own the 

1021. 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

\. 
25 

Schell - Cross 145 

So AT&T facilities to get over to Staunton. 

can serve, serve that without having to worry 

about building towers and that type of thing. 

And, as you know, if you've been to Highland 

County, building towers is not easy over there. 

BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

·o Are all of the end offices set up 

in Roanoke, Virginia to take B Direct? 

A I don't have the specific data by 

LATA. I can tell you 

Q I'm not talking about the LATA. I'm 

talking about Roanoke, Virginia, the -- that metropolitan 

area. 

A 

Q 

A 

I don't know one way or the other. 

What about Arlington County? 

I don't know in the counties specificall • 

May I tell·you what I ·do know? It would save you time. 

I do know they can offer it to 95 of 198 end offices, 

and those 95 offices serve 69 percent of their customer 

lines. 

Q Okay. Okay. So you don't know 

about any specific metropolitan area, whether it would be 

a hundred percent in that area or not? Like Richmond. 

. Is this the back-up book? 
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A Yes, it is. I frankly don't think 

it's with ine, but I'm no, I did not put it in. I 

just don't have it by city.-·_ 

Q Okay. Now, in your testimony and 

again this morning, you were, in essence, I think it's 

.fair to say -- I don't want to mischaracterize your 

testimony·-- giving advice to the aces about how good 

Feature Group B Direct and Feature Group B Tandem, how 

good those thing~ are; were you not? 

A 

Q 

I was stating facts. 

But has any terrestrial-based OCC 

opted ~or Feature Group B Tandem? 

A 

Q 

card calls? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir, your company. 

I see. Where is that? For credit 

Credit card calling. Also -­

What about for regular dialing? 

It's my understanding from testimony 

submitted by GTE-Sprin~'s witness, G. Jay Ne~son, in 

New Je~sey, in a proceeding that I was involved in, 

that Sprint has begun ordering the Feature Group B 

Tandem form o£ interconnection • 

Q Okay. What- about Feature Group B 

Direct? 
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To my knowledge, the OCCs have not 

3 purchased that in Virginia. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Would Feature 

Group B Tandem be superior to Feature Group 

B Direct? 

THE WITNESS: The other way around, 

sir. Feature Group B Direct would be superior. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Superior to 

Tandem? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

12 BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

13 0 Feature Group B Direct is the only 

14 one that will. give you Automatic Number Identification 

15 and serve all the rotary dials; right? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

That's co~rect. 

Okay. And has any OCC -- you say 

18 none in Virginia have chosen it; correct? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Correct, to my knowledge. 

What about elsewhere in the country? 

Well, I can only speak for the states 

that I have studied and have been a witness in, and in those 

states, New Jersey, P~nnsylvania, et cetera, to my 

knowledge, the OCCs have not bought -the ENFIA·B 

or Feature Group B Direct arrangement. 
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2 Q And you're around a lot, and not 

3 in just those statesJ aren't you? Well, you read your 

4 publications and that type of thing1 don't you? 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Have you heard of anybody ordering 

1 a B Direct? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

I don't know. No, I don't think so. 

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Mr. Moore, I 

don't mean ·to interrupt you, but so the 

record will be complete: Mountain· Grove-

Williamsville Telephone Company and Mutual 

Telephone of Highland, Incorporated, are 

the two companies that serve Highland County. 

MR. MOORE: I tho~gh t it was 

Mountain Grove, but I was afraid when you 

said Highland, I just thought -- I was 

going to say Mountain Grove, but --

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Mountain Grove­

Williamsville, for your interest, has merged 

with Deerfield recently, formed even a 

larger company. 

MR. MOORE: All right. 

1025 



j4 

1 Schell - Cross 149 

······. 2 (Laughter) 

3 BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

4 Q Now, !1r. Schell, when these feature 

5 groups became available in February of 1982, isn't it 

s true that C&P could not have installed those in the 

7 immediate future, within the next maybe thre~ or four 

8 months? By ·June of 1982, we could not have been at 

9 Feature Group B Direct or Tandem in Virginia? 

10 A I don't think that's correct, no. 

11 Q. You think we could? 

12 A I think, you know, again, if you posit 

,·-·· 13 a hypo~et~cal and say all of the carriers came in, 
... _ 

14 and all of them wanted overnight to change all their 

15 connections to Feature Group B Direct or Tandem, could 

16 C&P have. done it? And, obviously,· the answer to that 

17 . is. no, that would have involved having a bunch of unused 

18 capacity around that they would be able to use to fill 

.. 

.: 19 this need. But if you say had the aces come in and 

20 
sat down with C"&P in February, and said look, ·I'm 

21 interested in this service offering, and I would like 

22 : ... to do some joint planning with you, and I would like to 

23 use it, then I think C&P could have readily made that 

24 available in either form to you during that year, 

25 
and probably within, you· know, reasonable, a reasonable 
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2 period of time. But, again, you have'to plan it. You 

3 just can't come in and say I want.it. 

4 Q You're not aware of any other 

5 situations where that has been a problem? Would it 

6 surprise you if a witness testified that they tried to 

7 get Feature Group B and that it took a very long time? 

8 A They would have to be specific with 

. 9 where they ordered it. Okay. For example, if they came 

10 

11 

in and said, hypothetically, I tried to get Feature 

Group B in Pennsylvania and it took a long time, I would 

12 not accept that. If they came in and said I tried to get 

- 13. 

1"4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Feature Group B Tandem last -- late last year, and I was 

delayed a month or so, because of the worldwide shortage 

of components · .. ~n making T-carrier -- not the feature 

group arrangements, but facilities, I'd say that wouldn't 

surprise me a month or two, because there was a worldwide 

shortage of chips. So, you know, you're going to have to 

be specific if you want to know if I'd· be surprised. 

Q All right. Now, I take it it's your 

testimony that as far as the TOUCH-TONE aspect is concerned, 

that can be solved for most of the phones by the -- by 

Feature Group B Direct for 69 percent, with Feature 

Group B Direct? 

A Well, yes, you get· access to rotary 
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phones with Feature· Group B Direct• 

Q Okay. Do you know what the 

percentage of rotary phones in Virginia is? 

A 

Q 

A 

have rotary phones. 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir. 

What is that? 

Forty percent of C&P's customers 

Okay. 

I do not know specifically what the 

mixture is on the independent·companies, but I do know 

that the independent companies serve about 20 percent 

of the lines in the State, so, you know -- but I -- and 

I do know it's available. Almost all of the exchanges 

in the independent companies have it available, but I 

simply don't know. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Have what.·available? 

TOUCH-TONE. 

TOUCH-TONE. 

In other words, I only know of six 

exchanges where it's not available in the independents. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, the 

40 percent-<?£ C&P's c.ustomers that have 

TOUCH-TON2, that's by personal choice; isn't 

it? 

1028 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

' 
25 

Schell - Cross 152 

THE ~TNESS: Sixty percent have 

TOUCH-TONE. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Forty percent 

have the rotary. That's by personal choice? 

THE WITNESS: That's my point, Your 

Honor, it's by personal choice, because it's 

available to a hundred percent of thej.r 

customers in Virginia. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: They just 

don't'want to pay the higher rate? 

THE WITNESS: Apparently. 

BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

Q Tell me about ~- do you know where those 

40 percent are concentrated? Are they concentrated in areas 

where Feature Group B Direct would be available, or not? 

A 

two for you? 

Q 

A 

In other words, could I overlay these 

Yes. 

I can't accurately overlay the two. 

I didn't bring the data that way. 

Q And the percentage of those that do 

not have TOUCH-~ONE phones, they have the rotary-dial 

phones, is 40 percent, and the percentage of lines that 

cannot be served by ·B Direct is 31 percentJ right? 
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2 A Yes. 

3 Q Okay. So we could have up to 30 percent, 

4 let's say, depending on the arrangement ·of lines that ·could 

5 not be served by B Direct and are rotary-dial phones? 

6 A I think you will find that --

7 Q You can explain it, but I'd like you to ~ 

8 I posited that, I tried to posit it fairly carefully. 

9 A Okay, well -- let me repeat it back 

10 before I answer so I know what I think I'm answering. 

11 Q All right. 

12 A You said if we take the two 

13 distributions 

14 Q Um-hum. 

16 A -- those that have rotary and those 

16 
that could not be served by Feature Group B Direct, 

17 it is possible that 30 percent of the customers would be 

18 involved? 

' 19 Q We're dealing with C&P now. 

20 
A In C&P. 

21 
Q Right. Thirty percent of those, of 

22 
C&P's customers, would have rotary phones and not have 

. 

23 
Feature Group B Direct/ couldn 't have. 

24 
A No, that's not what I was going to doo 

\.__ 25 
That's why I re-asked the question. 
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2 Q That's my question. That's not 

3 possible? 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

Statistically, it's not possible. 

To find that out, we have to do this 

6 overlay we discussed; wouldn't we? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

That plus using some common sense. 

Okay. We'd have to do both of those? 

Well, what I'm saying is --

Would we have to do both? We'd have 

11 to. do the study? 

12 A If you have --·if you have both 

13 distributions accurately, then you can simply apply it. 

14 Q Okay. 

15 A But without that, I think you can form 

16 an informed judgment on what that distribution might 

17 look like. 

18 Q Tell me what data we'd have to have 

19 to make that informed judgment? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A We would have to know, which I do have, 

the 95 locations, the cities, the switches that C&P offers 

Feature Group· B Direct to. we would have to have the 

TOUCH-TONE us·age, say, by location, by city, and then 

we could make that comparison of those two. 

Q Okay. And have you done that, sir? 

1031. 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
' 

Schell - Cross 

A 

Q 

155 

No, that's what I said earlier. 

Okay, thank you. Now, on Page 12 of 

your testimony, you say that, under C&P's access charges, 

carriers don't incur any up-front charges to switch from 

Feature Group B to D when it becomes available: right? 

A Well, I was ·referring to up-front 

or one-time tariff charges. 

Q Right, tariff charges. But, now, 

for an occ to change from an A to a B to a D would require 

hardware and software changes; would it not? 

A The primary change that an OCC has 

in going from either, going from Feature Group A to 

Feature Group B or D is a change from a line-side 

form of interconnection with line-side signaling, 

ground start, customer interface signaling arrangements 

of that type, to trunk-type signaling arrangements, 

and that cost of that changeover is essentially the 

same whether you move from Feature Group A to B or 

to D. You'll make the same changes to go either place. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Just for the 

uninitiated, non-technical mind: Would you 

explain the difference between line-side 

and trunk-side signaling? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. A line~side 
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interconnection arrangement is typified by 

communications with the switch that normally 

an end-user would have. Like when you use 

your telephone, you pick it up1 it senses 

that; it gives you a dial tone; you dial 

numbers, and it interprets those numbers. 

And that's typically what we're referring to 

in a line-side connection. In the line-side 

connection arrangement that MCI uses, it's 

pretty much the way a PBX would interface 

the network. In other words, they're 

situated a lot like a PBX in terms of 

signaling arrangement. 

Trunk-type signaling arrangements 

between switching systems themselves in the 

network use multi-frequency addressing to 

transmit the digits. You may have heard 

on a call, dit-dit-dit-dit-dit-dit-dit; 

well, that's the numbers being sent forward. 

They use two separate leads for signaling 

answer supervision, di-sco·nnect supervision, 

and things like that. Those are referenced to 

as E&M siqnaling leads. The E lead stands 

for ear; _you hear on that. You transmit 
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2 on the M lead, which is the mouth. So 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

what we're saying is that for a trunk­

side interconnection, those are machines 

talking to each other in machine language. 

Line-side connections are generally 

people talking to machines. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I see. 

BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

Q I would like you. to turn to Page 7 

of your Attachment A, if you will, please, sir. It's the 

one, it's what you call Table 3, Access Service Inte.r­

connection Arrangements, Comparison of Features. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

both Feature Group 

Group c, which is 

A 

Q 

Page 7? 

Page 7, Attachment A. 

Yes, sir. 

And that compares Feature Group A, 

B's, and Feature Group D to Feature 

AT&T's arrangement? 

Yes, sir. 

And the features, if you will, that 

you list on the left-hand side are the features that you 

think are important t·o be considered by this Commission? 

A ·r·think they summarize the features 
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2 that are available in those feature groups, yes • 
. 

3 Q All right. And the only two -- I 

4 guess it's actually three columns that are equal, if you 

5 will, are the equal access with AT&T~ Feature Group A 

6 is not equal to Feat~re Group C; Feature Group B is not 

7 equal to Feature Group c. And the one that comes the 

a closest is Feature Group D; isn't that correct? 

9 A Well, I think if you'll look at the 

10 table very carefully, you'll find that the difference 

11 between Feature Group B Direct and Feature Group C is 

12 in the number ·Of digits that are dialed by the customer 

13 to access MCI's service. And if you look at Feature 

14 Group .o, and you look at the 15 digits that will be 

16 
required there under equal access, as opposed, you know,. 

16 if you're not· .the carrier that '.s predesignated by the 

17 customer to carry his calls, that customer will then 

18 under equal access, dial five extra digits, and that's 

19 not a lot different than the seven extra digits they're 

20 
dialing today under Feature Group B. 

21 Q Now, the customer won't have an 

22 
option to dial 1 under Feature Group B Direct though; 

23 
will he? 

24 
A No, he doesn't have that option. 

25 
Q Right. And what about single dial 
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2 tone? You've got that :"no," and over here on Feature 

3 Group c, you've got it "yes." That•s·a difference; isn't 

4 it? 

5 Single dial tone and the number of 

6 digits required are the same thing. 

7 Q All right. You just listed them 

8 separately? 

9 A Just listed them separately for 

10 clarity. 

11 Q All right. If they were the same thing, 

12 why did you need to list them separately? 

13 A I may not do it in the future. 

14 Q I see. All right. In order for the 

15 number of digits required to be reduced to ten, you have 

16 to. go ·to. Feature Group D; right? 

17 A That's correct. And you have to be 

18 the pre-selected carrier. 

19 Q I understand that. But for it to be 

~ possible, you have to qo:to Feature Group D? 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

Y~s, sir. 

Right. Okay. If equality is of 

23 interconnection .acces·s is the issue, and you want to get 

24 as close as we can on equality~ then Feature Group D 

25 is the answer; is it not? 
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Feature Group D, the basic difference 

3 · between Feature Group D and Feature Group B Direct 

4 arrangement is that Feature Group D provides dialing 

5 equality. And that is what C&P is spending all the:·-

6 money to modify its end offices, is to provide dialing 

7 equality and pre-selection capabilities. That is the 

s difference that I see between Feature Group B Direct 

9 and Feature Group D. 

10 Q Okay. Would you answer my question 

11 please, sir, which was about Feature Group D and 

12 Feature Group ·C, the AT&T part? 

13 

14 

A 

Q 

I'm sorry. Can you--

Yes, I'll try again. If I'm ~ooking at 

15 equality with AT&T, okay? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir •. 

Looking at Feature Group A,. Feature 

18 Group B and Feature Group D, the one that is the most 

19 equal, if you will, is Feature Group D; is it not? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A My answer was that Feature Group B 

Direct and Feature Group D, both.compare about equally 

to Feature Group c. 

Q 

A 

Q 

They •·re the same? 

Except.for the dialing disparity. 

Okay. Does it surprise you that no 
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OCC anywhere in the wh6le country that you know of has 

selected Feature Group B Direct, if it's so equal? 

why. 

A No, sir, it does not, and I'll tell you 

Q 

A 

Okay. 

In· my opinion, the occs initially 

8 were inter.ested most in the least expensive form of 

9 interconnection, so that they could expand their networks. 

10 They could garner a customer base. They were not 

11' initially interested in all the features and the quality ·of 

12 the· AT&T· connection. In my opinion, they were positioned 

13 as a different, you know, as a different --

14 Q Different level of competition, if 

15 you will? 

16 A No, not a.different level of competition 

17 but they were simply quite satisfied with the Feature 

18 Group A for.m of interconnection. Even though they 

19 lobbied hard for improved forms of interconnection, 

20 when they were available, in essence, they didn't buy 

21 them. In my opinion, the thing that has changed for the 

22 OCCs is the FCC ruling i~ ··Docket 78-72, that said we're 

23 concerned about transmission quality in the long-distance 

24 network. And we are going to require al! carriers to pay 

25 for Feature Group D equal access when it's available, 
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whether you use it or not. And in my opinion, that's when 

the OCCs became interested in Feature Group B. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAN: Could an 

OCC have selected Feature Group B Direct 

and compete price-wise with AT&T? 

THE ·WITNESS: Today? 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Today. 

THE WITNESS: Certainly. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Be lower? 

THE WITNESS: Certainly. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Once the pre-

selection ~as made, for examp~e in Norfolk, 

come September 1, 1984, would· you still have 

the disparity in the number of digits that are 

dialed? 

THE WITNESS: tihen -- I'm sorry, sir? 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: When pre­

selection has been made, if an individual 

selects MCI, as I understand it what they 

will do, they will still dial 1 and will get 

the MCI network? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

. COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But will they 

still have to dial more digits than they dial 
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if they're using the AT&T network? 

THE WITNESS: If a customer pre-

selects this traffic carrier as MCI, and 

dials a seven or a ten-d~git number, that 

call automatically goes to MCI. If he now 

wishes to use AT&T's service, he has to dial 

10288 plus the ten-digit number to use 

AT&T. In other words, for any carrier that. 

is not pre-selected, the customers will have 

to use their carrier access code to reach 

them. That's the· ;ive~d;qi~· n~e~. 

COMMISSIONER· SHANNON: But if a 

pre-selection is made, do you dial the exact 

number of digits whether. you use MCI or 

AT&T? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I see. So 

pre-selection is truly equal in all respects? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Okay, thank you. 

22 BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

23 Q If it is truly equal in all respects --

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I mean there are 

no differences in anything that you have to do. 
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(Continuing) In anything that you have 

to do. That is not the case with Feature Group B Direct: 

isn't that correct? 

A Feature Group B Direct requires, 

requires that you dial the number of the OCC, 950(1/0)XXX, 

or whatever. 

0 So you've got to dial at least 17 

numbers: right? 

A There is a seven-digit dialing differenc o 

That's the only difference. 

Q Right. All right, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, each of 

the oacs has its own code number assiqned, .like 

950, or 857, or-- is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. Well, the 950 

form is an exchange access. It's an exchange 

code dedicated to OCC usage. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I see. 

THE WITNESS : And then within the 

950, the last four digits would identify the 

specific carrier.-

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I see. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Let me ask a 

question about this exhibit: before we leave it. 
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I'm interested in the last "no" under Feature 

Group c. If the Legislature in Virginia 

a year from now lifts intraLATA access, 

I mean, lets the calling, would that take 

a great deal of configuration for AT&T to 

comply? It doesn't look like they -- it 

·looks like they have it on every group but 

AT&T. I don't understand that. 

THE 'VliTNESS: That 's correct. Under· 

the Feature Group C form of interconnection, 

C&P of Virginia automatically routes all 

calls within the LATA within its network. 

It takes them and routes them in its network. 

It doesn't present them to AT&T at all. 

And that's the way the end offices are 

programmed to operate. When Feature Group 

D becomes available in an .. office, .Feature Group 

C is no longer available by definition, so 

where equal access is available in 1986, 

AT&T would have the same opportunity as any 

of the aces to carry intraLATA traffic. 

But in all of those offices where it is not 

available·, AT&T would not have that 

opportunity. \ihere it is still connected 
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with Feature Group c, it would not be able 

to carry intraLATA calls, even though it were 

authorized. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Are you 

telling me that the OCCs, when that law 

takes effect, unless it's modified, would 

have an advantage over AT&T? 

THE liiTNESS : In my opinion, yes. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You're going 

to win somewhere, Mr. Moore. 

BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

Q Mr. Schell, were you here Friday 

morning? 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

Did you hear Mr. Brund~ge talk about 

this reimbursing them for their toll, lost toll revenues? 

A 

middle of '86? 

Q 

A 

Q 

did you hear that? 

A 

Q 

During the time between now and the 

Well, we hope -­

Eighteen months from now. 

Well, we hope·.it's .. January .. l,· '86; and 

Yes, sir. 

Your inability to provide intranATA 
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A Well, right now, it's not an advantage 

or a disadvantage. ·It's moot. 

Q Well, it's a disadvantage to MCI 

if they have to reimburse these lost toll revenues; 

isn't it? 

A Well, that's if you choose not to 

block those calls. 

Q I see. All right. Now, Mr. Schell, 

you thought that the shift to Feature Group D was 

important enough to give the Commission a summary schedule 

of when it will be available pn the C&P system; did you 

not? 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir •. 

And I believe you indicated that in 

1985, approximately 64.1 percent would be converted to 

equal access if the present schedule holds? 

A 

Q 

That is correct. 

All right. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: What were those 

figures, Mr.· Moore? 

MR. MOORE: 64.1 percent would be 

converted to equal access by September 1, 1985, 
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of C&P's customers; right? 

BY MR. MOORE: 

Q 

A 

1986. 

Q 

A 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

(Continuing) 

All right. 

And 90.6 percent by September 1st, 

Let's deal with them year by year. 

All right. 

Q There are approximately 2.1 million 

customers by 1985 on the C&P system? 

A 

Q 

I suppose. 

All right. And would you take, subject 

to check, that that means approximately 750,000 customers 

will not have been, or· lines will not have been 

converted to equal access by ~eptember 1, 1985, on the 

C&P system? 

A Thirty-five percent of two million 

would not be converted. 

Q Right. All right. And when we 

·get out to 1986, we're dealing with about ten percent 

of a little over two million, so we've got about 200,000 

would not have been converted by 1986 on the C&P system? 

A 

Q 

correct. 

Is that right? 
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2 A (Nodding head in the affirmative.) 

3 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, wouldn't 

4 some of those customers be out in the mountainous, 

5 less populated areas, where probably nobody wants 

6 to serve, other than those that are already 

7 there? 

8 THE WITNESS: Some of them certainly 

9 are, yes. 

10 BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

11 Q That's really a guess, isn't it, 

12 Mr. Schell? 

13 A No. Well, you know, if you're going 

14 to ask me to name specific cities and locations --

15 Q I was. 

16 A You were.. And it has to do with the 

17 type of switching that historically has been used in 

18 Virginia, and, you know, if you look at·where the 

19 
stepp~rs ·.~nd the No. l cros$·-bars are,- those are ·the ones 

20 
that C&P of Virginia is not going to convert. They're 

21 
the ones that are ultimately going to be served by a 

22 
remote host module off an electronic switch, and those 

23 
do tend to be· more rural· ·than metropolitan. 

24 
Q Okay. All right, when you ge.t out· to 

. . 

' 25 
1988, you'd still have a.hundred thousand C&P lines that 
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would not have been converted; isn't that correct? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Five percent, yes, sir. 

Of two million? 

Yes, sir. 

Be.· a. hundred thousand. All right. 

Now, Mr. Schell, in your test~ony, you finally mentioned 

them this morning, but in your testimony, you didn't discuss 

the other telephone companies in Virginia when you talked 

about the availability of Feature Group B Direct, and the 

. availability of equal access: did you? 

A 9nly -- not in specificity, but the 

independent companies in Virginia are concurring carriers 

to the National Exchange. Carriers Association tariff, 

and that tariff includes Feature Group A-B fornt of 

interconnection. And currently, MCI does use in Virginia 

interconnectiorsin at ieast one independent area. 

Q How many other telephone companies 

are there in Virginia, other than C&P? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Approximately 21. 

Okay. I think your 21 includes them. 

Perhaps. 

Do you know how many lines it ·provides? 

581,·582. 

You are saying between 581 and between 
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2 582? 

3 A No, sir, 581,582, according to the 

4 Virginia Exchange CarriexsAssociation. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: When you say 

21 companies, you mean 21 regulated companies? 

That's not includi~g any OCCs and others 

that are operati~g? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct, sir. 

BY· MR. ·MOORE: (Continuing) 

Q Local excha~ge companies? 

A Yes. 

Q Got to tie it down. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Thank you. Now, you would agree that 

if one wer.e going to consider . equal access, Feature Group 

B Direct, and this type of thing, that we ought to look 

at the availability of equal access, and the availability 

of Feature Group B Direct for those customers served in 

Virginia also; shouldn't we? 

A Absolutely. And I'm prepared to 

discuss that if you'd like to. 

Q . Okay, let's try that. Isn't it true, 

Mr. Schell, that none of the other 20 companies, non-C&P, 

have an obligation under Judge Greene's Order to convert 
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2 to.equal access? 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

the "GTE 

Modified 

/ 

A 

Phone 

Final 

Q 

A 

·o 

What you said is true, but I believe 

Company has an obligation under its own 

Judgment, under its own 

Their agreement to assent to that? 

Right. 

Let me hand you a letter about that, 

9 now that you raised that, and ask you -- let me give this 

10 to the bailiff --

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Mr. Moore, 

how about telling me where we're headed here, 

because I think we'll all stipulate to the 

MFJ adjustment didn't run to those companies. 

And we're just concerned in this hearing --

I think that's beyond the scope. But tell me 

where you're headed. 

MR. MOORE: Where I'm headed, 

Your Honor, is Mr. Schell has provided data 

in his· testimony about equal access and the 

availability of Feature Group B Direct for 

only C&P. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: That's the 

only legal. obligation, as I understand it, 

·under. tl}e MFJ. 
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MR. MOORE: Well, I think the 

important factor is though, if the Commission 

is going to consider, and obviously AT&T 

thinks it's important, about the availability 

of Feature Group D, then it seems to me that 

the Commission needs to know whether Feature 

Group D is on a voluntary or whatever basis 

going to be available to any of these other 

582,000 lines, or whether Feature Group B 

Direct can be made available. He's given you 

the data for C&P. He said that 69 percent 

of those lines could be converted, but that's 

only -- I think it's about 78 percent of the 

lines in the State. If the Commission is going 

to look at this and.consider deregulating 

AT&T for the entire State, it seems to me 

we need to look at the availability of those 

features on these independent companies also. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: All right, 

well, go ahead. I .just wanted to make sure 

we, you and I both, knew what the legal 

obligation was. 

24 BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing). 

25 Q Mr~ Schell, is.this letter in·your 
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2 back-up book? 

3 A Did I have this letter? 

4 Q Yes. 

5 A No, sir. 

6 Q Would you take just a moment-and 

7 review it. 

8 A All right. 

9 MR. MOORE: Your Honor, while he is 

10 reading this, I would like to have this marked 

11 as an exhibit. I do not have a sponsor. It 

12 came from the records of the Commission. 

13 It's a letter addressed to Mr. Wickham. I'd 

14 like to have it placed in the record. I. 

' 
15 

don't think it's -- I can't rely on Mr. Schell. 

16 
It is a Commission record. I'd like to have it, 

17 have it placed. 

18 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, we can 

19 
take official notice of our own records. This, 

~ 
of course, is a letter written by Mr. c. E. Brown, 

21 
Vice-President of Network Engineering. Of course, 

22 
Mr. Brown is not here, and that does cause me 

23 
some concern because 

24 
MR. MOORE: Judge, I'm trying to get 

\ .. 25 
just this kind of information in my request 
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2 to the Commission to require reports from the 

3 various independent telephone companies, and --

4 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, you know 

5 our rule is letters written by third parties 

6 that are not present are passed to the file, 

7 but we don't accept them as evidence. 

8 MR. MOORE: I understand that, 

9 Judge, and ~hat's why I'm asking that it be 

10 placed in the record, and I'd like to have it 

11 marked refused, if I may, and I'll say to the 

12 Commission that this is part of the problem 

13 that we have, and the reason we asked the . . . 

14 
/ Commission to direct the local telephone 

15 
companies to tell us this very kind of 

16 
information. And that Order -- that motion 

17 
has not yet been acted on. 

18 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, of 

19 
course, you're dealing with an independent 

. 
20 

company, GTE, and we're dealing here with 

21 
a question of the aces and AT&T. 

22 
MR. MOORE: Yes, sir, I believe 

23 
here we're just dealing with AT&T, and if 

24 
equal access is the issue, or one of the 

25 
issues,andt~i~.Feature Group B that we've 
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heard described in glowing terms this morning, 

this Feature Group B Direct, then it is 

important for this Commission, I submit, 

to know whether Feature Group D is going to 

be available to these other 582,000 lines, 

because that's part of the Commonwealth, too, 

and whether Feature Group B Direct is available 

in 69 percent or 29 percent or 99 percent. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

you go ahead and ask your questions on this, 

and we will identify this as Exhibit -- I 

believe the next number is No. 4 • 

MR. MOORE: 3, I think. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's right, 

3. This will be Exhibit 3. 4 hasn't been 

presented yet. 

And while I'm thinking about it, 

I don't believe you passed up copies of the 

of Mr. Schell's testimony to the bailiff 

here. 

MR. MORRISSEY: I believe it was 

included in the package I gave him on Friday, 

and also Mr. Wilcox's. 

THE BAILIFF: Okay, thank you. 
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2 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

3 BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

4 Q Mr. Schell, on Page 2 of the letter 

5 to Mr. Wickham, which has been identified as Exhibit 3, 

6 the writer on behalf of General Telephone says, I believe, 

7 "As you are aware, the offices we serve in Virginia are 

s all relatively small, less than 10,000 in size. The 

9 proposed Consent Decree does not address these size 

tO offices on the basis that economics and necessity will 

11 be the driving factors regarding equal access. End of 

12 quote. 

13 Did I quote that correctly? 

14 A Well, your quote is correct. The 

15 problem I'm having with this document is the attachments. 

16 are not on it. 

17 

18 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir. 

For me to properly evaluate this 

19 document and comment, I need to see the four attachments. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q All right, tell me, is General 

Telephone, are their systems going to be converted to 

equal access in Virginia? 

A 

Q 

A 

Is General Telephone? 

Yes. 

· W~ll, it says right here that they have 
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2 a requirement to have two-thirds of their lines converted by 

3 9-1-87, and we have put together a conversion schedule that 

4 was shown in the attachments which isn't here. 

5 

6 

7 

Q 

A 

Q 

What does it say on Page 2, sir? 

What part of Page 2? 

The first paraqraph. "The proposed Conse t 

a Decree does not address these size offices," and they 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A And it says down at the bottom that, 

"All of our efforts described above were to convince the 

Commission that our modernization proqram was not too . 

aqqressive as the Staff has s~ggested." That's the last 

sentence. And it goes on to talk about Attachn1ent 4. And 

all I'm saying is ·I don't know from this document how 

quickly GTE-Sprint proposes to convert -- I mean GTE. 

I'm sorry. 

Q Do you know from any other document 

not only how quickly, but whether they have current plans 

to convert? 

A I do not have specific information on 

General, other than that they have developed and are 

developing plans to do that. And I would be very interested 

in this attachment. 

Q I'm talking about Virginia now, 

Mr. Schell. That's the -- these gentlemen have to decide 
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2 on Virginia. 

3 A No, I'm saying that, first of all, 

4 it's my understanding that Central Telephone of Virginia, 

5 the Continental Telephone, and the General Telephone 

6 of the Southeast we.re all in the process of developing 

7 plans for the provision of equal access. Now, I don't 

8 know in which offices and on which schedule, but it's 

9 encouraging that, in fact, they were looking at doinq thato 

10 know, for example, that Burke's Garden Telephone Company 

11 plans to have it available in their exchange when reque~ted, 

12 ~hat Clifton Forge-Waynesboro Telephone Company in 

13 Covington and Waynesboro, Covington will have it 

14 October of '84; Waynesboro; May of '85. Shenandoah 

15 Telephone Company, when requested by an OCC. United 

16 Mountain Telephone Company, their plans are in '86. 

17 So, you know, I don't --

18 Q Tell me about Burke's Garden. How 

19 many lines in Burke's Garden? 

20 A I suspect -- well, just a moment. 

21 Q A hundred and five: isn't it? 

22 A Just one moment. 

23 You're right: 105. 

24 Q So we'.ve still got a substantial 

26 percentage, and do·you have precise schedules in Virginia 
... 
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2 for those others? Can you give ~s some percentages? 

3 Let's take the 582,000. 

4 

5 

6 

Right. A 

Q All right. What percentage of that 

let me -- detail it by company, if you will will be 

7 available in September, 1985, equal access? 

8 A It's going to take a few minutes 

9 to go through this, but I will be happy to. Just a 

10 moment. 

11 Q Do you have information from all 

12 20 companies? 

13 A First of all, Marlinton will be 

14 available in 1985. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25. 

was. 

wrong 

about 

Q 

A 

Wait a minute? How many lines? 

I'm sorry. Skip that. 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: That's West 

Virginia, Pocohontas County. 

Q 

A 

sheet. 

Q 

A 

18,000 

I was going to ask you where that 

Scratch that. I'm looking at the 

We '.ve · got Burke's .Garden at 105. 

Clifton Forge-Waynesboro, they have 

let's· see, they have 23,500 lines. And 
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2 Covington will be available October, 1984. 

3 Is that Clifton Forge-Covington or Q 

4 is that 

5 A Well, let's see, it says here· 

6 Covington will be available October of '84; Waynesboro 

7 in .May of '85. 

8 0 And the sum of those is what, 23,500? 

9 A Those two are probably 7800. 

10 Q Seventy-eight hundred? 

11 A I suspect. I can't tell !rom this. 

12 Somewhere around seven-8,000. 

13 Q Okay. 

14 A Shenandoah Telephone Company says 

15 that they can provide it when requested by an ace. 

16 Q Do they say who's going to pay for 

17 it then? 

18 A All they say is that they 

19 canprovide it when requested. That's about 13,900 lines. 

20 Q Okay. Did you survey these companies? 

21 A We have a survey, yes. 

22 
Q Okay. All right. Tell me about 

23 A -Now, let's see, we.have already 

24 
talked about C&P of Virginia. By Sep·tember 1st of '84, 

25 
they will have, let's see -- I can get that number. 
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Q 

A 

4 64 percent of its 

5 Q 

182 

Any more by September 1 of 1985? 

By September 1 of 1985, C&P will have 

Non-C&P. I want to combin~ the 

6 C&P and the other 20's -- other 20. 

7 A Those are the ones that I know that 

8 will be available by '85 or now available. 

9 

10 

0 

A 

All right, sir. And --

Let me· go back. I do not yet have 

11 ·details of Central Telephone or Contel, or, as I said, 

12 GTE. 

13 Q So you don't know whether they're 

A4 going to start next week or 1988? 

16 A No, but I could have seen it on these 

16 attachments, but those three companies serve approximately 

17 446,000 of those 581,582 lines. So those are the 

18 three companies. 

Q You don't have any information on 19 

20 

21 

480-some thousand of those 500 ·--

A I do not·have the detailed plans. 

~ I know that they are planning their equal access arrange-

23 ments, but I don't-have by year by end office. 

24 Q So if we go on what we know, what 

25 you've got, and what you testified to here, we've got 
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about, oh, 540,000 that you can't say will be well, you 

can't say one way or the other but will be converted 

4 by September of 1985; right? 

5 A Well, I'm simply saying that at this 

6 point in time, I have not reviewed Centel, Contel's, 

7 or General's plans, and they're the three major ones 

8 that serve the lion's share of those customers. So I 

9 can't draw a conclusion as to what percentage will be 

10 in ·• .85 on those • 

11 

12 

13 

Q 

A 

Q 

You just can't do it? 

I can't do· it. 

Okay. The one t~ing you have 

14 talked about, would you take subject to check,adds up 

15 to about 43,000 lines? 

16 A Well, tha~'s not quite all, but that's 

17 a portion of the difference between the 445 and the 581, 

18 yes. 

Q But the only ones you can talk about 

and have been able to tell this Commission about total 

about 43,000 lines; right? 

A Yes, subject to check. 

Q And you just don't know about the 

others? You know tpere are some plans, but you don't 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
know what they are or when they would be implemented; right. 
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A 

Q 

184 

That's correct. 

All right. Got any idea how long, 

4· how far out those other plans go? 

5 

6 

7 

A 

Q 

A 

You mean of the 

Contel and these others. 

No, as I say, I'd very much like to 

8 have the attachments 1 through 4 of th~s document which 

9 detail those plans. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Don't we also 

need the plans, Mr·• Moore, of the OCCs .. , when they 're 

going out there? I mean, what difference 

does it make if you're not going out there? 

MR. MOORE: Well, the critical 

difference, Judge, if the Commission is 

going to look at t~e possibility of 

competition, then that equal access isn't 

going to be available, that possibility isn't 

going to be there until there's equal access. 

And so I think that it's very important, 

and obviously, AT&T thinks it's important. 

. .They gave you a detailed list here of 

availability dates for equal access. And 

it is important. 

C0~1ISSIONER BRADSHAW: I mean, 
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they gave it to us just for C&P·territory. 

MR. MOORE: That's right •. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You're the 

one that's introduced Burke's Garden. 

MR. MOORE: That is correct, 

because the rest of the State, I mean, is 

just as much entitled to the protection of 

this Commission or competition as are C&P 

customers. And I think the Commdssion needs 

to look at the, at the whole State, at all 

of the lines, not just two million of the 

2~6 million, but all 2.6 million, and I 

think that we have found this morning that 

we really can't do that. We've got to 

sort of here, say, .here's a survey here 

on 43,000 lines, and I'm not questiqning 

whether that's right or wrong. I'm not 

challenging that. Right now I don't have 

any way to do it. But we do only know about 

43,000 of these. 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Mr. Moore, 

in the OCC's certification pJ;:"ocess, would 

it be fair. for ·the Commission then, when 

equal access is available in both C&P and 
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2 non-C&P independent companies' territories 

3 to require all the carriers,· upon request, 

4 to serve those or lose their certifications? 

5 MR. MOORE: To require them to do 

6 what, sir? 

7 CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: When they have 

8 equal access, then, the independent companies, 

9 when that time comes, then would it· be fair 

10 to require an ace to serve, let's say, 

11 Burke's Garden, using that simply as an 

12 example, or lose their certification? 

"13 In other words, if they're willing to then 

14 provide equal access for·us to require--

15 if somebody, a customer in Burke's Garden 

16 says I want to subs.cribe to X ace, to say 

17 you've got to go there or lose your 

18 certificate? 

19 MR. MOORE: Well, I had thought 

20 
the Commission had made the decision in 

21 
promulgating its rules that it was going to 

22 
let the economics of the situation control, 

23 
so that if one customer wanted it in 

24 
Burke's Gar~en, the, you know, there would 

25 
be no obligation to provide it. The critical . 
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point, however, is that if it's available 

there, then at least the customer can ask 

for it and there will be the possibility 

of competition. And right now, we submit, 

there's not the possibility of realistic 

competition without equal access. 

CO~~ISSIONER SHANNON: Are you 

saying the only measure of competition is 

equal access? 

MR. MOORE: I~m saying that's a 

measure, sir. I'm saying that I believe 

the evidence will show, given an opportunity 

to fully present thinqs; · that .the 

only way there can be viable competition 

is where there is ~qual access. I'm not 

saying it's a me~sure of it, but I'm saying 

and then it's not going to be automatic. 

And then it's not going to be sufficient 

to allow the complete deregulation in that 

area of AT&T. But that is where 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, 

Mr. Moore,. we don't have equ~l access 

in Virginia right ~ow, and yet there is a 

large share of the market that is being 
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taken over by the aces. 

MR. MOORE: Well, sir, I would 

respectfully disagree with the description 

of it as large. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, a share 

of the market. 

MR. MOORE: A share of the market, 

okay. 

COMfUSSIONER SHANNON: l"lhether it's 

10 percent or 15 percent or 14 percent. But 

they're taking -- they're making inroads, 

they're getting into the market without any 

semblance of equal access right at the 

present time. 

MR. MOO~: They are getting a 

part of the market, Your Honor, but the 

point is, and the point that I hope will be 

made later on today, is that when you have 

an entity like AT&T with its market power 

and its market dominance, that, sure, 

there are going to be some that can come 

in, but AT&T is the one thatf in. Monterrey, 

in Highland County, or in Gretna, Virginia, 

can raise its. rates, and they're not going 
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to get that competition, especially if there 

is no equal access. And that simply is our 

point. Sure, they can come in and have 

come in. But I think as we presented in 

our-memorandum argument, that MCI, which is 

the largest on the interstate revenue -- it's 

got 2-l/2·percent. I think AT&T was around 

90 percent. So, you know, you can say it's 

a part, but I don't think it's appropriate to, 

or I don't think it's accurate, Judge, to 

say it's a large part. 

COMf\1ISSIONER SHANNON: Well, it's 

your position then, Mr. Moore, that this 

Commission should continue to regulate AT&T 

until such time as there is equal access 

not only on the part of the Bell System, 

former Bell System companies, but all the 

independents and everybody in Virginia? 

MR. MOORE: It is our position, 

Your Honor, that AT&T needs to be regulated 

until there is almost complete equal access. 

There may be, you know, a few·phones, but I 

think we'.re talking in the 90-plus percent. 

Then there is the possibility of realistic 
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2 competition. Then the Commission could begin 
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a phased deregulation -- not a wholesale, 

abrupt deregulation as has been proposed 

by AT&T. That is our position. And we· will 

present a witness that will articulate that 

far better than I can. 

MS. McCAREY: Judge Shann6n, I'd 

just like to make a short comment here, 

since Mr. Moore has made a rather lengthy 

one. I think what we're talking about here 

is something that is, although MCI would seem 

to have us believe not in its control, very 

much in its control. We're talking about 

some small offices down the line;that may 

not have equal access either in independent 

areas or possibly in a C&P area, and if 

you'll look at the second paragraph on 

Page 2 of GTE's letter to Mr. Wickham, 

which Mr. Moore did not point out, he says, 

"Obviously in an office or area, if it's of a 

size which effectively precludes the 

probability of an interexchange carrier 

othe~ than AT&T wanting equal access, then 

the cost of providing the capability becomes 
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an unnecessary burden." What MCI would have 

us do is insist that everyone make equal 

access available without any request. Even 

under the exceptions in the Modification of 

Final Judgment, there is an opportunity for 

aces to request equal access to an end 

office which may not have been scheduled 

for equal access. If they want to serve 

those areas, then that will be considered, 

but it seems inappropriate to insist that 

these small telephone companies, or C&P 

for that matter, convert small offices to 

equal access merely on the hope_that someday 

some OCC will decide to serve that area. 

COMMISSIO.NER SHANNON: Let me ask 

you this: Does the Modified, Ms. McCarey, 

does the Modified Judgment, that does not 

affect or reach to independent companies 

in any way, .does· it? 

MS. McCAREY: No, sir, it does 

not. 

CO~DUSSIONER SHANNON: They weren't 

even parties. to the proceeding. 

MS. McCAREY: They were not. 
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2 MR. MOORE: Judge, I want to take 
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just one moment. I don't think that that's 

the right points that have been raised here 

by AT&T. Really, the right question isn't 

whether we ask for it, or how it's provided, 

or anything else, but, in fact, there can't 

be equal competition without this equal 

access. It doesn't matter whose fault it 

is or why it is or anything else. The 

statute says until there is sufficient 

competition to eliminate the need for 

regulation, the regulation should 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let me ask 

you this, Mr. Moore: Would the OCCs and I 

guess you can't speak for all of them-- we'll 

say, would MCI s~y we will not solicit or 

offer any service in the intrastate service 

in Virginia until such time as equal access 

is provided, and then we can start ·out fresh 

and put everybody on the same basis? 

MR. MOORE: No, sir, I do not think 

that. r would say, and I haven't even looked 

at Mr. Marmon, but I know the answer to 

that is no, because you're not going to 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I said 

intrastate Virginia, because I know they're 

providing interstate: I know they're providing 

intrastate, even though they're not certificated 

to do it. 

MR. MOORE: Some of that is 

incidental, and it is happening. 

(Laughter) 

And I thought maybe I was going 

to get to stand up this time without having 

that said, but --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, you're 

saying the obvious; we all know it. But I 

think this: I think this Commission, we 

want to be absolutely fair. Now, fairness 

is a two-way street. You've got to look at 

what MCI has done and what they're doing, 

what they propose to do. You've got to 

look at AT&T, on the other hand. And that's 

all we're concerned with here. 

MR •. MOORE: tihat I~m saying on that 

specific-point of holding back, holding back 

MCI is A~&T is offering intrastate service 
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2 right now, and they're going to continue to 
. 

3 do it. And it is going to take some considerable 

4 time for MCI and the others to begin to be 

5 able to realistically compete with AT&T. 

6 And that's because they've been doing t~is 

7 for a hundred years, ·Judge. They have been 

8 there for a hundred years. There are, you know, 

9 market preference, brand preference, all of 

10 these things. Your Honor, it's not something 

11 that you can say it's fair to hold MCI back 

12 and then lift them both at the same time 

13 and expect realistic competition. Our position 

14 is that's not going to happen, and it can't 

15 happen. So I would have to say, no, sir, 

16 we would not propos~ that MCI be held back. 

17 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All.right. 

18 Well, let's take a ten-minute recess. 

19 
(Recess) 

20 

21 
THE BAILIFF: The- Commission resumes 

22 its session. 

23 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: How much more 

24 
examin~~ion are you going to have of this 

25 witness, -Mr. Moore? 
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MR. MOORE: I have no further 

questions of this witness. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

Mr. Magee, are you or Ms. Dupont 

MR. MAGEE: Yes, Judge Shannon, 

I have several. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

9 go right ahead. 

10 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

1.1 BY MR. MAGEE: 

12 

13 you again. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Mr. Schell, it's a pleasure to see 

A Good morning, sir. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Your questions 

should be few becau.se he said your company is 

buying the. good stuff~ 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry? 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I said your 

questions should be few because he said your 

company is buying the best equipment. 

MR. MAGEE: That and that Mr. Moore 

took most of the questions. 

· (Laughter) 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Okay. 
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Mr. Schell, I'd like to just briefly, 

3 if I may, during the course of your discussion this 

4 morning with Mr. Moore, you mentioned the ENFIA 2 · 

5 negotiations, and I surmise from that that you are 

6 generally familiar with what transpired at those 

7 negotiations? 

8 A Only in a very broad way, not a 

9 detailed way. In a broad way. 

10 Q But I believe you stated -- and correct 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

me if I'm not characterizing it· fairly, because I'm 

interested in expediting this, too that those · 

discussions involved requests made by aces, MCI and 

Sprint, for forms of interconnection that were better 

than, say, the ENFIA A, or now Feature Group A type of 

connection? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Were you a participant in those 

19 discussions by any chance, Mr. Schell? 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

No, sir. 

So the knowledge that you have is 

22 basi~ally knowledge that was acquired from where? 

23 

24 

25 

A From documents I have read, from 

discussions I've had with people who were knowledgeable 

about those procee~ings. 
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Q And based on the review of those 

documents, and those discussions that you•ve held with 

the people who participated in the proceedings, isn•t 

it true that the aces requested a form of access which 

would have allowed them to have a trunk connection with 

~ Class 4 switch? 

A 

Q 

The OCCs had·frequently asked--. 

I 1 m asking now in the context of the 

ENFIA 2 negotiations. I didn't mean to interrupt you. 

A 

Q 

Yes, that's probably true. 

And that type of connection, is it 

fair to say, is like the Feature Group.C connection 

that AT&T has? 

A I think you're drawing -- the Class 

4 switch is AT&T's switch. 

Q But at the time of the negotiations, 

it ~elonged to the Bell System; did it not? 

A At the time of the negotiations, 

it was a Class 4 switch, yes. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A Bell System 

A toll ·switch. 

A Bell System toll .switch, Class 4? 

Yes. 

Now, under the Plan of Reorganization, 
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many of those Class 4 switches, I think, quoting your 

remarks, have gone to AT&T; is that not true? 

A Um-hum. 

Actually, most of them stayed with the 

Bell Companies. 

Q What is the situation in Virginia, 

sir? 

A We have four switches today; Roanoke, 

Arlington, Richmond, and Norfolk. Prior to divestiture, 

we interfaced, or we had -- prior to divestiture, there 

were 14 Class 4 toll:switches in Virginia. Ten of them 

were retained by the C&P.of Virginia, and four were 

actually assigned to AT&T CommUnications. 

Q To your knowledge, the ten that 

C&P has retained, do they -- ·or will they continue to 

serve a Class 4 toll switch capacity, or have they been 

modified for something else? 

A Some of those will, in fact, be 

upgraded to the equal access switches. 

Q 

A 

Q 

The equal access tandem specifically? 

Yes. 

Okay, do you know how many of the ten 

will be upgraded,.or is that listing in your testimony, 

are those all upgraded switches? 
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No, not all of them are upgraded. 

3 I mean, not all of tbem were Class 4 switches prior to 

4 divestiture. 

5 Q All right. Turning your attention 

e back just a minute to Feature --

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

~ 

21 

~ 

23 

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Just for the 

record, explain what a Class 4 switch is. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. In the switching 

hierarchy that was used prior to divestiture, 

the customers' serving office was referred 

to as an end office or a Class 5 switch. 

The next switch in the heirarchy was referred 

to a toll center. It was where you 

aggregated the traffic from the end offices, 

and, you know, transmitted it across the 

State, or to the West Coast, or whatever. 

Those were referred to as Class 4 or toll 

switches. The next thing up was called a 

primary, an~ a number of Class 4 switches 

homed .. on a pr~ry switch, which was a 

No. 3. And a number of primaries homed on 

a sectional switch, which wo~ld be a Class 2. 

And the top switch was a Class 1 regional 

switching system, of which there is about 
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2 seven in the country. So it was simply a 

3 tree. 

4 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: It's a 

5 hierarchy really, or a tree? 

6 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, exactly. 

7 BY MR. MAGEE: (Continuing) 

8 Q All right, Mr. Schell, AT&T's Feature 

9 Group c access, such as exists in Virginia, is it fair 

10 to characterize it as primarily consisting of direct 

11 connections to Class·· 5 ·offices direct trunks? 

12 A Primarily, yes. 

13 Q Now, I want to go through another 

14 form of chronological discussion with you just briefly. 

15 Your testimony states on Page 6 that in February, 1982, 

16 ENFIA B and c, now denominate~ as Feature Group B Direct 

17 and Feature Group B Tandem, were first tariffed: is that 

18 not correct? 

19 A That is correct. 

20 
Q Do you recall what happened on 

21 
January 8th, 1982, in that same year, approximately one 

22 
month before? 

We~l, let me put it to you this 

24 
way: Was that not the announcement date of the 

25 
Modification of .Final Judgment or the proposed Consent· Deere 
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2 between the U.S. and AT&T? 

3 A Yes, that's correct. 

4 Q And at that time, is it fair to say 

5 that discussions o£ what equal access would be began to 

6 come to the forefront, in front of Judge Greene and 

7 elsewhere? 

8 A You mean for the very first time 

9 ever? 

10 Q No, no, just in the context of that 

11 case. 

12 A Yes, yes. 

13 Q What was going on in the industry 

14 ·in general. 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q Okay. Al~ right. So we have 

17 ENFIA B and C announced approx~mately a month after 

18 the proposed Final Consent Decree between the Uw..S;. and 

19 AT&T·was offered? 

20 A I think though that you're leaving 

21 
the impression that those events were somehow related. 

22 Q Oh, no, no, I don't intend to. 

23 A As I mentioned earlier, in the cross 

24 from Mr. Moore, I b~~ieve, those discussions had taken 

25 place over a couple of years, that tariff was being 
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2 prepared and 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Q Now, when the tariff was filed 

in February, was there a form of access that allowed 

for an OCC to get a connection at the Class 4 o:ffice, Bell 

System Class 4 toll switch? 

A Well, I would put it the other way. 

I don't think it was precluded. 

Q Was it offered is my question, under 

the BSOC-9, Bell System Operating Companies Tariff,· FCC-9? 

A I have the tariff in my briefcase. 

12 I would have to look to answer you specifically. I 

13 don't know for sure. 

14 Q All right, I would appreciate it 

16 if you would do that after we are finished, so we could 

16 put something on the record s~sequently. I don't want 

17 to delay this proceeding right at the moment. I think 

18 that you'll find that the answer is no. 

19 

~ 

21 

~ 

23 

24 

26 

All right. Now, turning your 

attention -again, you have some knowledge, I guess, 

of the circumstances that led to the filing of BSOC-9 

which had ENFIA B and C tariff. 

A 

Q 

(Nodding in the af~ir.mative.) 

~sn't it true that there was a 

dispute as to the manner in which charges were going to be 
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2 calculated unde~ that filing, specifical~y whether the 

3 minutes that were going to be us~d we·re the· holding 

4 time versus conversation minutes? 

6 A That's absolutely correct. 

6 0 When was that resolved approximately·, 

7 to the best of your recollection? 

8 A It was -- it was resolved in probably 

9 by August of 1982, but I feel that it's important that 

10 the Commission understand what the basis for that 

11 disagreement on minutes of use was. 

12 Q I agree. 

13 A The occs, under ENFIA A, reported 

'··4 14 their billed minutes of use, and that was the basis 

16 for developing the tariff rate. tihen the Bell System 

16 Operating Companies FCC Tariff No. 9 was proposed, 
0 • ... 
• 17 • 

and first filed, it was going to be based on holding 
0 ... 

.. 18 
8 

time minutes, which is the entire time the connection .. 
0 

19 is up, not s~ply that portion of it which is billed 

20 to the customer. One of the things that happened 

21 under the E~IA A tariff arrangement is that there 

22 were a number of adjustments and deductions that could 

23 be taken by the occs from gross minutes of use to 

24 arrive at billed minutes of use. For example, the 

25 predecessor corporation, ·the GTE-Sprint SPCC, from its 
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2 gross minutes of use, deducted 25 percent of its usage 

3 as intra-company and testing, and reduced their usage 

4 in getting from gross minutes of use to billed minutes 

5 of use, 25 percent of them were automatically deducted. 

8 Now, what the ENFIA, what the Bell System Operating 

7 Companies ENFIA B and C tariff, BSOC-9 sought to 

8 correct was that adjustment. In other words,. that they 

9 would pay for all of the time that was used without 

10 adjustments. As a matter of fact, the current -- the 

11 current arrangement for AT&T Feature Group c is that 

12 AT&T pays for all minutes of use in the network, 

13 

14 

16 

18 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

including don't answers, busies, everything. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Isn't that 

because AT&T had the technology and these 

other occs could no~ tell if the phone 

call w~nt through or not? They didn't have 

the technology to record that call? Wasn't 

that the basis for that? 

THE WITNESS: Well, they, with the 

Feature Group A form of interconnection, they 

did not receive answer supervision. They had 

to make approximations of when that call 

was answered. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Right. 
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2 THE WITNESS: But in that regard, 

3 SBS never had to make approximations because 

4 , they bought Feature Group B Tandem, ENFIA c, 

5 and they had answer supervision. And they 

6 
never had the billing problems. 

7 
BY MR. MAGEE: (Continuing) 

8 
Q Mr. Schell, may I ask the question: 

9 How was the minutes of use issue resolved, BSOC-9? 

10 
A The minutes of use in BSOC-9 were 

11 
cross-referenced to the minutes of use in BSOC-8. 

12 
Q Which was the ENFIA A tariffJ correct? 

13 
A Correct, which continued to let the 

14 
OCCs deduct a sizeable portion of their holding time in 

15 
arriving at billed minutes of use. 

16 
Q On Pages 7 and 9 of your testimony, 

17 
you have reference to somethi~q that I'd like to discuss 

18 
with you briefly.- Specifically on Paqe 7, the first full 

19 
paragraph, the sentence that follows Footnote 4, "Thus 

an ace need only obtain access at the tandem offices 
20 

to be connected to all customer lines within the LATA." 
21 

And the context of that, sir, I believe, is that Feature 
22 

Group B or ENFIA C TandemJ is that correct? 
23 

A Yes. 
24 

Q Is that true for ENFIA C under 
25 BSOC-9? Is that the ca~e under ENFIA c, as it was 
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2 tariffed? 

3 A As ENFIA c was tariffed, the ~ccs 

4 could have gotten a penetration of 94 percent of the 

5 customer lines, not a hundred percent. The reason for 

6 that is that on the ENFIA C tandems, only those end 

7 offices which were in the toll-free calling area were 

8 included. So that it wouldn't have been a hundred 

9 percent of ENFIA c, but 94 percent. 

10 Q Let me ask you, is this your 

11 understanding of C&P's intent with regard to Feature 

12 Group B Tandem: Will C&P.be provided access to all 

13 end offices within LATAs in the State of Virginia 
r· 

14 through that tandem? 

16 A Through the access service tariff, 

18 you may obtain access to all end offices within the 

17 LATA through the LATA access tandem. Each of the 

18 LATAs has an access tandem today, and C&P's intent, 

19 as they indicated in their filing of June 22nd, with the 

~ Department of Justice, is to transition from those 

21 arrangements where they will not be equal access tandems. 

~ Some of them will, for example: Richmond, Fredericksburg, 

~ Lynchburg, will be equal access tandems. They'll stay 

24 in place. Those that aren't, they will transition those 

25 services to the equal access tandem. 

' 
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2 Q I want you to help me out for a 

3 minute. I'm a little muddled here on something you 

4 said. The Feature Group B Tandems to which you refer 

5 in your comments on Page 7, is this the situation currently 

6 or in the future? 

7 A Today -- well, we're in transition. 

8 Q I'm going to give you all the chance, 

9 John, you want to elaborate. I just want to know if 

10 it is the situation today. 

11 A The sentence that follows the footnote 

12 after 4 says, "Thus an OCC need only obtain access at the 

13 tandem offices to be connected to all customer lines 

14 within the LATA." That is my understanding of the 

15 situation that exists today in Virginia under C&P's 

16 access service tariff. 

17 Q Under Feature Group B Tandem, not the 

18 equal access tandem? 

19 A Under the Feature Group B Tandem, 

20 
which in some cases are the equal access tandems, but 

21 not in all cases. 

22 
COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: And that 

23 
carries the same rate minutes of use as the 

24 
Feature Group A; is that what you said 

25 earlier? 
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THE WITNESS: In the discussion we 

had earlier, if C&P cannot measure, for example, 

in the Feature Group A interconnection, then 

they would use a surrogate minutes of use, 

for example, 9,000 minutes of interstate 

jurisdiction. I believe that they would be, 

they would be able to measure all minutes of 

use in the ENFIA C tandem, so they would not 

use a surrogate on the Feature Group B Tandem. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: But currently 

isn't the tariff the same? 

THE WITNESS: The tariff today is 

based in Virginia on busy hour/minutes of 

capacity. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: All right. 

Okay. 

THE WITNESS: Busy hour/minutes 

of use. 

BY MR. MAGEE: (Continuing) 

Q Mr. Schell, if I could follow up 

on one thing that you mentioned. I believe you indicated 

that certain of these Feature Group B Tandems to which 

you are referri~g.will not be the Feature Group D 

equal access tandem and some will? 
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2 A Yes. 

3 Q All right. In those instances 

4 where the current Feature Group B Tandems are not planned 

5 as the equal access tandem for that particular LATA, 

a there will be line reconfigurations and movement required, 

7 will there not; at the time they cut over? 

8 A That is my understanding of what 

9 C&P proposes to do. 

10 Q All right. Now.--

11 A I might add, Mr. Magee, though, 

12 I don't think that would affect the OCCs. In other 

13 words, you would have a number of lines going to this 

14 tandem, and if I understood correctly what Bell Atlantic 

15 
told Judge Greene, they would transition from that switch 

18 
to the equal access switch, so, in effect, swing your 

17 
lines over to another switch. It doesn't necessarily 

18 impact you. 

19 
COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: If it doesn't 

20 
impact it, why would they want to make that 

21 
investment? 

22 
THE WITNESS: Why would C&P want to 

23 
do it? 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Yes. 
24 

25 
THE WITNESS: So that they have a 
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single network. In other words, the equal 

access tandems are going to be the u~timate 

point at which, when direct trunks to an 

end o~fice are not economical for the carriers, 

they would put them through a tandem and 

aggregate at the tandem a number of end 

offices so that it would provide equal 

access to those end offices via tandei!l, 

as opposed to individual' trunk groups to 

each offices, and clearly would be prudent 

from an engineering perspective to have all 

of your interexchange carrier services in the 

same place, as opposed to sprinkled around 

in different areas, different machines, 

because the trunk g~oup efficiencies·· a-ccrue 

to C&P's benefit. It's to their financial 

advantaqe to do that from the efficiency 

standpoint. 

BY MR. MAGEE: (Continuing) 

Q Mr. Schell, on Page 11 of your 

testimony, you talk about, I believe, the availability 

of ENFIA B and C arrangements, circa 1982, and rnention 

that they are currently available under Feature Group B 

at the same tariff rate as Feature Group A. Back in 
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2 your charts where you compare Feature Groups A, B and 

3 c, on Attachment A, Page 4, there is a Page 3 that 

4 indicates, and it's cited in a footnote to your testimony 

5 that under BSOC-9 there were charges for some of the 

6 things that are now listed as options for which there 

7 is no charge under the access tariff; correct? 

8 A .Yes, ·those differences are displayed 

9 on Page 3 of Attachment A. 

10 Q Okay. Now, in your opening statement 

11 today, you alluded to contentions that have been advanced 

12 by some of the participants in this proceeding before the 

13 FCC, and indeed in front of other state commissions 

14 that you and I have been in before, for example, and 

15 that concerns the traffic inefficiencies that might be 

16 associated with the use of Fe~ture Group B Direct, 
0 . .. 
• 17 • 

for example. 
0 ... 

.. 18 
0 

A urn-hum. 
0 .. 
0 

i 19 • 
Q My question is: As a general matter 

.i • z 
0 20 .. 
c 

of traffic engineering, a larger trunk group is, in fact, 
• 
0 
u 

21 G 

more efficient than a smaller, just as a general 
c 
G z 
Ill .. 

22 
proposition; is that not correct? 

23 A That is correct, yes. 

24 Q And isn't it also true that for 

25 
economic efficiency, either, say, for example, the 

.1.088 
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carrier, an interexchange carrier, regardless of who it is; 

MCI, AT&T Communications of Virginia, Sprint, that there 

has to be a certain volume of traffic coming out of an 

end office before direct connection is economically 

justified, and that might vary from carrier to carrier? 

A Well, there has to be a certain 

volume, but AT&T Communications today has direct 

connections to offices with very few circuits in the 

trunk group, very few. 

Q Sure, of course. You were connected 

in during that period of time when you helped engineer 

the system, were you notl to those end offices, in that 

manner? 

A Yeah, but what I'm saying is that 

it does not take a large numb~r of circuits to justify 

that trunk. It can be justif~ed by a very small number 

of circuits in many cases. 

Q Would you-turn to Page 18 of your 

testimony, please. ~ the bottom, you have a statement 

to the effect that 11Access tandem switching systems will 

provide points within each LA~ for concentrating and 

distributing the traffic of interexchange carriers, includi 

AT&T Communications, when direct connections to each end 

office in the LATk from each interexchange carrier's 
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2 Point of Presence (POP) would not be justified economically.• 

3 And that's basically a statement of this engineering 

4 principle we were talking about in terms of the volumes 

5 of traffic that would justify a direct connection? 

8 A Yes. 

7 Q With Feature Group B Direct, what is 

8 the geographic scope of coverage for the OCC who subscribes 

9 to it hypothetically? Let's say I go over to talk to 

10 Mr. Brundage's client and tell him I want Feature Group 

11 B Direct trunks to a number of end offices that C&P serves 

12 throughout the State. What sort of coverage do I get 

13 with each one of those trunks for toll origination purposes 

. 14 by subscribers? 

15 A You get all of the subscribers that are 

16 on the end office you have chosen to serve. 

17 Q Particularly on 

18 A Particularly on the one --

19 Q The one end office? 

20 
A That is correct. 

21 Q And with the ENFIA A configuration, 

22 
what is the scope of my coverage or access? 

23 
A Well --

24 
Q Is it not the toll-free area? 

25 
A Ge~erally, the toll-free area, yes. 
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2 Q Mr. Schell, would you flip back 

3 please to Page 12 of your testimony. Earlier this 

4 morning, if I understood correctly when you and Mr. Moore 

5 were talking about the changes that might be made, say, 

6 for example, if a carrier had a Feature Group B Direct 

7 connection and then subscribed to Feature Group D as it 

8 became available, and I'm curious, wouldn't there also 

9 have to be a fairly significant software change, say, 

10 'for example, in the case of the OCC who did that because 

11 · of the way ANI is passed? 

12 A Well, I think what you're referring to 

13 is are you referring to going from B to D, once you're 

14 at B? 

15 Q Let me try it a little differently, 

18 John. 

·17 A Okay. 

18 Q With Feature Group B Direct, isn't 

19 ANI, Automatic Number Identification we've been talking 

20 about today, passed after the ten digits are dialed, 

21 the toll digits? 

22 A That's correct, yes. 

23 Q .And if I understand Technical 

24 Reference 61-201, ANI will be passed before the ten 

25 
\..__ 
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2 digits, with Feature Group D; is that correct? 

3 A That's correct, and it has the same 

4 impact on AT&T. 

5 Q So there are going to be software 

a changes nevertheless.that would have to be made to go 

7 from B Direct if it were used by an OCC to Feature 

8 Group D, to accommodate ANI change? 

9 A If you had converted from -- if you 

10 convert from A to B, and then go B to D, you're talking 

11 about a software change to go from B to D, yes. 

12 Q Now, I want to chat briefly with you 

13 about what I'm going to dub the "Schell Plan... I don't 

14 mean that derogatorily. 

15 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Before you 

18 get into the Schell Plan -- I thought you were 

17 going to say shell game. 

18 MR. MAGEE: No, I wouldn't say that. 

19 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: These changes 

20 
that you have to make, your testimony reads 

21 
that it would be no up-front charges to the 

22 
carriers? 

23 
THE WITNESS: What I was referring 

24 to is 

25 
COM!-1ISSIONER BRADSHA~~: Does that mean 
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it would go to the local exchange customers? 

THE WITNESS: No. Let me clarify 

that, Judge. The -- what I was referri~g to 

in my testimony is, under C&P's intrastate 

access service tariff, there is a non-recurring 

charge to change feature groups. In other 

words, to go from Feature Group A to B, 

or A to D, there is a charge. There is no 

charge though to change from Feature Group B 

or C to D in the same office, so that an 

OCC who converted from Feature Group A to 

Feature Group B would pay a non-recurring 

charge, but then would not pay when he 

converted from B to D. So he's going to 

pay that charge one~ anyway. The question 

is whether he pays it converting to B or 

converting to D. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: It just 

doesn't cost the phone company any more 

money to do that? 

THE WITNESS: From B to D? 

COMMISSIONER BRADSijAW: Yeah. 

THE WITNESS: No, because the 

Feature Group B form of interconnection is a 
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trunk-side form of interconnection, trunk-side 

signaling protocols and signaling interfaces are 

all set up in B, and they•re analogous to 

D. What Mr. Magee was referring to earlier 

is that under the equal access signaling 

addressing, the Automatic Number Identification 

of the calling number will be sent to the 

carrier first, followed by the called number. 

It's done just the opposite today. And one 

of the reasons is so the carrier can scan 

and be sure, for whatever purposes, that's 

his customer, and it speeds up processing 

because as soon as the customer goes off 

hook, that information is immediately sent 

to the carrier~ once he dials the carrier 

access code, the machine says this call is 

going to Sprint, and it sends the calling 

number before the customer ever finishes 

dialing. So it saves the switching systems 

time, makes them more efficient. 

And Mr. Magee was pointing out 

that if they. want the B at this time, they 

would have ANI first, called number second, 

and they would have to change to ANI first --
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I'm sorry -- they would have, under Feature 

Group B, called number first, ANI second, 

and under D, as in David, the other way around, 

that he would have to recognize that change 

in the switching system. And I agreed with 

him. And I said so would AT&T Communications, 

ours will change, too. But that change for 

C&P comes with the equal access generic. 

That's when they make the change. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But it's the 

same problem for AT&T as it would be for any 

other? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, we have to change 

our software at the same time. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes. 

BY MR. MAGEE: (Continuing) 

Q Mr. Schell, in your answer a moment 

ago to Judge Bradshaw, you mentioned about there not being 

a charge for conversion between B Direct to Feature Group· 

D when it was in the same office. 

A 

Q 

Urn-hum. 

What about B Direct where you have a 

situation where Feature Group D is being implemented in 

another office; there would be a charge under -- charge 
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2 in Virginia for that? 

3 A Well, if you took a Feature Group B 

4 Direct connection, those offices will all become equal 

5 access under C&P's schedule. There are none of them 

8 that·won't be. 

7 Q No, I don't think we're 

8 A Maybe I'm not saying it clearly. 

9 Q Let me try it again. 

10 A Okay. 

11 Q All right. If I ordered Feature 

12 Group B Direct and I get a trunk such as ·we've described, 

13 when that end office, Feature Group -- excuse me -- when 

14 the end office to which I have the trunk converts to 

15 equal access, if it's the same office, I don't have a 

16 problem? 
0 • .. 
• 17 • A Correct. 
0 ... 

• 18 0 
Q But if it isn't, then, in other words, 

0 .. 
0 

i 19 • 
what I'm getting at is reconfiguration in terms of the 

.. 
• • 0 20 .. c 

A Well, I guess what I was thinking 
• 
J 
u 21 Q 

in my testimony, Mr. Magee, was there's two ways you 
c 
It • Ill .. 

22 could approach it. You know, I would sit down with 

23 C&P and say, look, I'm interested in this, and I'd like 

24 to get to the end offices that are going to become 

26 Feature Group D end offices, and I'll take Feature Group 
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2 B now, and I'll pay my charge now, and I'll begin my 

3 transition. That's one approach •. Another approach is 

4 to say that I would like to use the tandem form of 

5 interconnection to reach these end offices when they 

8 become equal access, so that I would like to have Feature 

7 Group B Tandem in your designated equal access tandems, 

8 and then as equal access becomes available, each end 

9 office that homes on that tandem, I can use it. And what 

10 I'm saying is there wouldn't be a charge then either 

11 because you would have your interconnection in an equal 

12 access tandem. The only time you would pay is if you 

13 have a Feature Group A interconnection today in 

14 say, a community dial office here in Richmond, and 

15 you convert in that same dial office to-Feature Group D, 

18 then you pay the A to D. But~ you know, if you work it 

17 the other way, and say I want to go to these offices 

18 that are going to be designated Feature Group D, and I'm 

19 going to access them through the tandem, I think that by 

~ working with C&P you can avoid any ad~itional conversion 

21 charge, you know, a second non-recurring charge .. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You know, 

I'm having a hard time ·here with this enq~neerinq 

talk, bttt it so·UIX3s to me like you can get the 

good models, so to speak, for the same price 
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2 that you can a lesser product. Is that a--

3 THE WITtmss: That true under the 

4 tariff, yes. 

5 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: If that's 

6 true, then why, just tell me why wouldn't 

7 they all opt for. the .. good one, or the best, if 

8 it's the same price? 

9 THE \iiTNESS: tvell, I think, from 

10 what I have heard in other jurisdictions, 

11 they, in fact, as Mr. Magee referred to 

12 the Schell Plan, I think they, in fact, 

13 will begin to transition their networks to 

14 Feature Group B Tandem to position themselves 

15 for equal access. 

16 COMMISSIO;NER SHANNON: Well, I 

17 would say it takes some engineering on the 

18 part of the OCCs to accept this. This is the 

19 difference. A.pparently they· were. geared up 

20 
or engineered up for Feature Group A, and it 

21 would be some cost to convert? 

22 THE WITNESS: That's correct? 

23 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Is that right? 

24 THE WITNESS: They will incur that 

25 cost to convert either to B or D. 
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COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: That is my 

point. Why wouldn't they go on and convert 

to D, which is the better, if I hear your 

testimony correct? 

THE WITNESS: You mean why would 

they not wait until D came along? 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAti: What I'm 

saying is, if they have an option now, why 

wouldn't they go for D? 

THE WITNESS: Oh, they always 

would. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: They always 

would. 

THE WITNESS: Sure. 

COMMISSIO~R BRADSHAW: Well, that's 

what I was having a problem with. It sounded 

like some of them were opting for B from 

the testimony. 

THE WITNESS: My testimony basically 

states that for an OCC that's going to use 

Feature Group D ultimately, they want to use 

equal access, it is very log~cal and prudent 

from an engineering standpoint for them to 

begin to transition their network through 
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Feature -- from A to Feature Group B, to 

position themselves to slide into equal 

access. And they can then get all the 

advantages of the Feature Group B form of 

interconnection even before equal access 

is available. Then it comes along and 

eliminates the dialing disparity, and then 

everything is equal. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: On the occ· 

side, would there be a large amount of 

engineering, engineering expense, costs 

to convert from Feature Group B to Feature 

Group D? 

THE WITNESS: They, as Mr. Magee 

mentioned earlier, ~hey would have software 

changes mainly in the signaling format, 

where the called number is first. 

COMMISSIONER s·HANNON: Automatic 

Number Identification? 

THE WITNESS: The called number 

would be first under equal access. 

COl~ISSIONER BRADSHAW: Mr. Magee, 

do you understand? 

MR. MAGEE: I do, Judge Bradshaw. 
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2 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: My non-

3 knowledge of engineering, can you ask him a 

4 question to clarify it more? 

6 MR. MAGEE: I think we can do· a 

6 couple of things that will hopefully clear 

7 this up a little bit. 

8 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Okay. 

9 BY MR. ~mGEE: (Continuing) 

10 Q Let me direct you to my questions 

11 in connection with the plan that you described on Page 14. 

12 On Page 14, towards the top, when you're talking about 

13 Feature Group B Direct, you say that,. "Because the trunks 

14 would be direct, the transmission quality would be 

16 fully equal to that afforded AT&T Communi.cations." 

16 My question is: Isn't that g?ing to be true only where 
p 

~ 
r 17 • 

you have Feature Group B Direct at both ends, the 
~ 

.. 18 .. originating end and the terminating end? 
~ .. 
f 19 I 

A Well, I was speaking of this by end her • 
i 
I 
r , 

20 i 
You know, each end. 

I 

21 Q Each end, origination and termination? 

22 A I guess -- I don't disagree with what 

23 you said, but it's not different than :J: said in my 

24 testimony. 

25 Q That's fine. I just wanted to make 

1.101. 
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~- sure I understood. 

3 A All right. 

4 Q Now, with Feature Group B Direct, 

5 such as we've been talking about, the trunk, the single 

6 trunk that comes down to the end office, there is only 

7 coverage on the particular end office, we've established, 

8 correct, for origination purposes? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q That end office also must be a 

11 stored program control switch end office: is that not 

12 correct? The 1 ES.S or lA ESS variety? 

13 A Or DMS-10 or SE or 2B or 20. 

14 Q DMS-10. 

15 A A stored program control switch, 

16 yes. 

17 Q With regard to this Feature Group B 

18 Tandem conversion plan that you have described also 

19 as the other portion. All right, the tandem is linked 

20 to s.ubtending Class 5 offices. In other words, it's a 

21 bunch of local end offices home on this particular 

22 tandem. 

23 A (Nodding in the affirmative.) 

24 Q And that tandem, in some instance·s, 

25 will becoine ·the equal access tandem, .such that 
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.Feature Group D will be available to subscribers at 

the lower Class 5 level; correct? 

A 

Q 

A 

Um-hum, yes. 

But not in all? 

But not in all. But again, as my 

testimony states, Mr. Magee, C&P plans to ultimately 

provide only -- to provide the tandem arrangement only 

through equal access tandems. I mean, that's what 

they've indicated to Judge Greene, that that is their 

intent. 

Q The Feature Group B Tandem arrangement, 

as opposed to Feature Group B Direct approach? 

A Now, what I'm saying is, if we were tog 

in today am buy Feature Group B Tandem in all of the 

LATAs to connect to all of C&P's end offices, some of 

those particular switches will become the equal access 

Feature Group D Tandem, some won't. At some point in 

time, C&P has indicated that it plans to take those 

that aren't upgraded to equal .access status, phase those 

out, and transfer those Feature Group B Tandem lines 

to an equal access tandem, so that it only has one 

network and not all these split networ~s and serving 

carriers. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Schell, 
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2 there is a question in my mind. When 

3 that ultimate day arrives that everybody 

4 has equal access, will Feature Group B still 

5 be available? 

8 THE WITNESS: At this point in time, 

7 to my knowledge, C&P has not indicated any 

8 termination date for either Feature Group A 

9 or Feature Group B. 

10 ·coMMISSIONER SHANNON: So they will 

11 remain available until such time as they 

12 become obsolete or phase out because of 

13 non-usage? 

14 THE WITNESS: Exactly. And the Fea tu=e 

15 Group C arrangement that AT&T has does phase 

18 out as equal access .becomes available. 
0 .. .. 
• 17 • 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Because I 
0 • 
.. 18 
0 

would think the OCCs wouldn't necessarily 
0 .. 
0 

-i 19 • 
all want equal access. They may want some 

tl • • 0 20 ,. 
c 

for competitive reasons, or they may want 
• 
0 
"' 21 a 

something that's a little less costly. 
c 
Cl • .. • 22 Would that be a logical assumption? I mean, 

23 Feature Group B -- well, I don't know, as 

24 far as the·i·r cost is concerned, I suppose it 

25 really wouldn't make any difference whether it 
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was Feature Group B or Feature Group D; 

would it? 

THE WITNESS: Well, Feature Group 

under equal access --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's what 

I'm assuming. 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, under equal 

access -- well, let me say this: There would 

be no difference once the premium phases out 

or the discount, however you want to state it, 

phases out. Unless C&P were to provide 

something else --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Something 

at a lower cost? 

THE WITNESS: Exactly. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: And the 

technology is there to do that, just keep it 

like it is, if they decide to give them 

an option as· to whether they want to take 

equal access completely or have some part 

of their service still under Feature 

Group B? 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I would think 

if the occs desire to retain some of the 
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2 interconnection arrangements they have today, and 

3 C&P saw a marketing opportunity there, they would 

4 certainly market to that opportunity. 

5 BY MR. MAGEE: (Continuing) 

6 Q Mr. Schell, let me just follow up 

7 on Judge Shannon's question on something you said earlier 

a this morning. In an end office that converts to Feature 

9 Group B under the National Exchange Carriers Association 

10 tariff, the occ uses ENFIA A line-side connection; what 

11 does the OCC pay? 

12 A The same as equal access, Feature 

13 ·Group D. 

14 Q So the rates will be the same for the 

15 
inferior access, versus the better for.m of access, Feature 

16 
Group D? 

17 
A In the Federal, that is correct • 

18 
Q Now, would you flip please to 

19 
Attachment A, Page 7. I wanted to follow up on something 

20 
that Judge Bradshaw mentioned earlier today. In your 

21 
last column there under Feature Group c, your last 

22 
line item, Intra-LATA Access, there's "No," for Feature 

23 
Group c for AT&T. I have several questi9ns for you. 

24 
First, does AT&T Communications of 

25 
Virginia currently use any form of Feature Group A access 
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2 in the State of Virginia excuse me, in the Commonwealth? 

3 A Only to the extent that it provides 

4 the open end of an FX arrangement. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

18 

17 

18 

19 

Q But that's as a provider, correct, 

not as a user, in the sense that you would order it 

from the access tariff? 

A 

Q 

Well 

All I want to know, Mr. Schell, is 

whether or not you order Feature Group A connections 

from C&P. 

A 

Q 

A 

what? 

Yes.· 

And use them in what way? 

As FX open ends. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Use them as 

THE WITNESS: For our FX service. 

FX service is provided through Feature Group 

A interconnection. 

20 BY MR. MAGEE: (Continuing) 

21 Q But does that FX usage such as you 

~ use it in the Commonwealth today correspond in any way 

~ to the way, say; OCCs are making their-toll services 

24 available? 

25 A Yes. 
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2 Q In what way? 

3 A The OCCs generally make their service 

4 available in specific cities through an FX arrangement. 

s For example, let's say that Sprint serves Northern 

6 Virg;nia from its switch in Cooksville, Maryland, and in 

7 all probability it buys an interstate FX circuit to the city 

a it wishes to serve. 

9 Q From --

10 A Cooksville, Maryland, to the open·end 

11 Northern Virginia. 

12 Q And I would get that circuit from you, 

13 would I not? From AT&T Communications? 

14 A You would. get the interstate FX 

15 from AT&T, but you would get the Feature Group A 

16 appearance from C&P. 

17 Q Okay. What about Feature Group B? 

18 Do you use Feature Group B Direct or Tandem in your 

19 intrastate toll in this state? 

20 
A To my knowledge, no. 

21 
Q Do you have any intent in the future 

22 
to order Feature Group A or Feature Group B Direct or 

23 
Tandem configurations in the State from C&P? 

24 
A It would depend on how they're 

25 
priced. 
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2 Q All right. Let me ask you another 

3 question: Assuming they were priced in a manner that you 

4 found acceptable, would you not use Feature Group A 

5 or Feature Group B Direct and Tandem in the event· that 

6 intraLATA competition is authorized in the Commonwealth 

7 to provide access to.your subscribers for that service, 

8 the same way that MCI or Sprint could? 

9 A We could. 

10 MR. MAGEE: I have nothing further. 

11 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you, 

12 Mr. Magee. 

13 Any redirect, Ms. McCarey? 

14 MS. McCAREY: Just one. 

15 

18 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MS • McCAREY: 

18 Q Since we have it sitting here on the 

19 table, and Mr. Schell has referenced what Mr. Moore· calls 

20 the machine, I'd just like to have Mr. Schell describe 

21 for the record what the tone generator is like. 

22 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

23 A All right. It's a.-- it's a --

24 s~ply a Touch-Tone pad with a transmitter and a couple 

a of watch batteries in it. Basically, to use the Touch-Tone 
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2 pad, you would pick up the rotary-dial handset, hold it 

3 in your hand, put the pad on top of it, hold it, and then 

4 you would simply touch-tone in as you would on a TOUCH-

5 TONE phone th~ number that you're calling. And that 

6 then allows a rotary-dial customer to reach an OCC 

7 through the Feature Group A form of interconnection. 

8 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Is that 

9 available from Radio Shack? 

10 THE WITNESS: Yes, that is the 

11 Radio Shack model, as a matter of fact. 

12 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: What does 

13 it cost? 

14 THE WITNESS: That was $25, but I 

16 
think you can find them even cheaper through 

16 
Bernstein~Applebee in the catalog. 

17 BY MS. McCAREY: (Continuing} 

18 Q Mr. Schell, if I were to describe the 

19 size of that, would it be fair to say about an inch 

20 and a half wide by maybe two and a half inches long? 

21 A It's about a cigarette package in 

22 size • 

23 Q And that fits over the telephone, 

24 the telephone receiver? 

25 A It fits over the telephone transmitter, 
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2 the mouthpiece that you speak into. 

3 COl~ISSIONER BRADSHAW: Do any of the 

4 aces lease those, to your knowledge? 

5 THE WITNESS: I don't know how they 

6 get them, but they sent me a letter offering 

7 to sell me one. 

8 (Laughter) 

9 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: What was 

10 their price? 

11 THE WITNESS: In my -- I didn't call 

12 and ask them, I must admit, but in Attachment A, 

13 .Page 5 of my testimony, they sent me a letter 

14 offering to,sell me their service, and said 

15 that if I did not have a TOUCH-TONE phone 

16 not to worry about it. It says that, "·Even ·if 

17 your phone has a rotary-dial, our· simple . and 

18 inexpensive conversion device will adapt it in 

19 seconds." 

20 
MR. MAGEE: Excuse me, Judge Shannon, 

21 
but I'm almost tempted to ask to make .that an 

22 
exhibit, but I won't • 

23 (Laughter) 

24 
MR. MAGEE: There is one item 

25 outstanding I had asked Mr. Schell at the break, 
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or at a time it was convenient to him 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes, you did. 

Did you have a chance to look at it? 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, Mr. Magee, 

it slipped my mind. I'm willing to ·take a 

moment right now •. I have the tariff in my 

briefcase, and I can 

COMMISSIONER BRADSa~W: Well, you can 

do it on our luncheon break. 

THE WITNESS: I will accept, subject 

to check, that it was not provided for in·that 

tariff. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Will you accept 

that, subject to check? 

MR. MAGEE: That's fine. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Moore? 

MR. MOORE: I want to just follow up. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MOORE: 

Q How many of those devices are in use 

in Virginia? 

A I would have no way of knowing, but 

Radio Shack stocks them in volume. I mean you can go to 
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any Radio Shack and buy them, and Radio Shack normallY. 

does not deal in things that don't move. 

(Laughter) 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Would that have 

any -- Mr. Schell, would that have any use 

other than to convert a rotary phone to a 

dial-type, I mean to a TOUCH-TONE-type 

operation? 

THE WITNESS: That would be, I think, 

its primary usage. Some people who have 

bought answering machines,that·can be·activated 

by sending a tone. I believe most of those 

devices come with their own little tone 

generator that's used to activate the recorder. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: So you would 

say the practically exclusive use of that 

would be for conversion of a rotary-type 

phone to a TOUCH-TONE? 

THE WITNESS: · That would be my 

opinion, yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Okay. 

BY MR. MOORE: (Continuing) 

Q Mr. Schell, don't you use those to 

access computers also, if you're on a rotary-dial phone 
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2 and you need to have access. Say you're down in the Northe 

3 Neck of Virginia, and you need to have your computer talk 

4 to the computer in Richmond, can't you use one of those, 

5 or something very similar to it, to make the initial 

6 access, once you get the line in Richmond? 

7 A Oh, yes, it would be analogous to the 

8 way it would be used by the OCCs' patron. 

9 Q You don't know how many are used 

10 for that as opposea to used for MCI or Sprint or anybody 

11 el~e, do you? 

12 A No, sir, I don't. 

13 Q Okay,. and if. I had one of those, 

14 that will fit in your pocket; won't it? 

15 A Yes, sir. 

18 Q You'd probably have to keep it in 

17 your pocket because if you're upstairs and you want 

18 to use the phone, you'd have to have it upstairs, 

19 if it's going to be as convenient as AT&T; isn't that 

20 right? 

21 
A Well, I think most people simply leave 

22 them by the phone • 

23 
Q What, do they buy two or three of them? 

24 A Well, I --

25 Q So now a conversion is up not to 29, 
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but maybe up to $100, if you've got three telephones? 

A Well, I think if you have -- I think 

that each customer has one of these, in my opinion. 

Q 

A 

But you don't have any idea, do you? 

I don't know. 

MR. MOORE: I didn't think so. 

Thank you. That's all I have. 

COMl4ISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Let me just ask 

you a question. If you do use that to access 

for computers, then can you just simply push 

you~ receiver or instrument in the modem 

and continue, once you've made the contact? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, you could. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you 

very much, Mr. Schell. You may stand down, 

and your testimony will be received as 

marked. 

* * * * * * * * 
WITNESS STOOD ASIDE 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Call your next 
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2 witness, because we've still got eight minutes, . 
3 and we want to use every minute we've got. 

4 MR. MORRISSEY: At this time, we 

5 call Mr. Wilcox to the stand. 

6 

7 

8 DOUGLAS S. WILCOX, a witness called by 

9 and on behalf of the.Petitioner,having been first duly 

10 sworn, testifies as follows, viz: 

11 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

12 · BY MR. MORRISSEY: 

13 Q Mr. Wilcox, would you please give your 

14 name and business address for the record. 

15 A My name is Douglas s. Wilcox. My 

,6 business address is 11300 Rockville Pike, Rockville, 

17 Maryland. 

18 Q And p~eviously filed with the 

19 Commission and served on all parties is a document 

20 
.consisting of 20 pages of testimony and Attachments 

21 
DSW-1 through 9, with the heading, Testimony of Douglas s. 

22 
Wilcox, with the date of July 27, 1984. I would ask that 

23 
this be marked for identification. 

24 
C9Ml~ISSIONER SHANNON: It will be 

25 
marked -- his 20 pages of narrative and nine 
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pages of attachments will be marked as 

Exhibit DSW-4. 
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Q. WHAT IS YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS? 

A. My name is Douglas s. Wilcox and my business address is 

11300 Rockville Pike, Rockville, Maryland. 

Q. BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY? 

A. My present position is Area Manager, State Pricing 

Implementation, for the Mid-Atlantic area of AT&T 

Communications, Inc. 

Q. WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND? 

A. I received a Bachelor of Science degree in Management from 

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute in 1965 and was awarded a 

Master of Business Administration from the University of 

Minnesota in 1969. 

Q. WHAT IS YOUR EXPERIENCE IN THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY? 

A. I began my career with Northwestern Bell in 1965 in the 

Traffic Department. After assignments supervising dial 

facility assignment operations and long distance operator 

offices, I became a District Traffic Manager in 1969. I 

transferred to the Commercial Department in 1971 as District 

Manager. In 1976, I became Division Manager - Opera~1ons 

with responsibility for sales, collections, and installation 

and maintenance of service for business and residence 

accounts. I transferred to corporate headquarters in 1981 

as Division Staff Manager - Residence Marketing. In this 

position, I was responsible for developing long distance 
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rate plans. Later that year I assumed responsibility for 

the pricing of exchange services and developed economic 

analyses of the revenues and costs of providing exc~ange 

service. These studies were used to develop rates for local 

exchange services and to plan for the modernization of 

exchange switching. In November, 1982, I joined AT&T in my 

present position. 

Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY? 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to explain why this 

Commission should allow AT&T Communications to price its 

services competitively within the Commonwealth of Virginia 

and why the Company should be subject only to the flexible 

regulation inherent in the rules for interexchange carriers 

adopted by the Commission on June 29, 1984. 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE BRIEFLY THE STRUCTURE OF THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY. 

A. The current industry structure is vastly different from the 

past structure, in which the existing regulatory rules, 

policies and principles were formulated. For almost 100 

years, AT&T and its operating companies and the independent 

telephone companies provided local and long distance 

services as monopolies. Today, as a result of technological 

advances and sweeping changes in public policy at the 

federal level, both within the Federal Communications 

Commission and the courts, such monopolies have been 
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fundamentally altered. One obvious example of these changes 

in telecommunications policy lies in the terminal equipment 

market, which has been transformed from a regulated monopoly 

into a highly competitive unregulated market. The 

development of competition for long distance (interexchange) 

services is accelerating. Other Common Carriers (OCCs) have 

established strong market positions, resellers have grown 

steadily in number and levels of business; and specialty 

carriers, such as Domestic Satellite Carriers and Value 

Added Network carriers, have become viable and expanding 

businesses. The structural changes in the Bell System 

required by the Modification of Final Judgment (MFJ) , 

whereby AT&T no longer has ownership of the Bell local 

exchange companies, and the equal access requirements 

establish~d by the MFJ are additional significant 

manifestations of profound change in the telecommunications 

industry. 

Q. PLEASE GIVE A BRIEF OVERVIEW OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
MARKET AS IT EXISTS TODAY. 

A. The telecommunications market today requires satisfac:tion of 

fast-changing and expanding customer needs. Customers 

require increasingly sophisticated communications options 

and improved productivity (price-performance) from their 

communications services. The most obvious indicator of the 

business opportunities in th-is high~growth industry is the 

emergence of multiple supplie·rs, many of which have 
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prospered by providing alternative services with a wide 

variety of price levels and capabilities. Technological 

advances such as computer switching and microwave and 

satellite transmission, as well as the introduction of 

resale, hav~ permitted many new entrants to sell services to 

both residence and business customers in selectively 

targeted segments of the market. 

Some business customers who were not satisfied by available 

options have become self-suppliers. Residential customers 

have many choices as well. Television and Virginia's major 

newspapers frequently display a variety of advertisements of 

the carriers which are competing for residential toll users' 

business. 

Q. WILL YOU BE MORE SPECIFIC AS TO THE EMERGENCE OF MULTIPLE 
SUPPLIERS IN THE INTEREXCBANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
MMKETPLACE? 

A. Yes. The following statistics demonstrate that rapidly 

expanding competition exists nationwide in the industry: 

• 

• 

• 

Two-thirds of the u.s. population resides in 
areas now served by one or more OCCs such as 
MCI, GTE-SPRINT, USTS and Western Union. 

aces and .resellers have signed up as many as 
19% of residence customers with monthly bills 
of $25 or more and 34% of residence customers 
with monthly bills of $100 or more. 

Forty-six percent of business customers with 
monthly bills of $50 or more and 56% of 
business customers with monthly bills of $150 
or more use a competitor's long distance 
service. 
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• There were over 3.3 million subscribers to 
occs and resellers as of December 31, 1983, a 
five-fold increase over 1981. 

• MCI alone served about 1.7 million customers 
as of March 31, 1984, up from about 730,000 in 
1982, and about 280,000 in 1981. 

• As of March 31, 1983, MCI served more than 270 
metropolitan areas and 7000 communities in 
more than 80% of the nation's telephone area 
codes, a gain of 50 metropolitan areas in its 
1983 fiscal year alone. 

• MCI revenue increased by 236 percent, from 
$506.4 million to $1.7 billion from the fiscal 
years ending March 31, 1982 and March 31, 
1984, respectively. 

• MCI's return on common equity for fiscal years 
1982 and 1983 was 42.7% and 33.9%, 
respectively. 

• MCI's annual capital expenditures for network 
expansion increased from $271.5 million in 
1982 to $900 million for the year ending March 
31, 1984. 

• Sprint earned $64 million in 1982, compared to 
$22 million in 1981 and a loss of $15 million 
in 1980. 

• At least 8 Value Added Network Carriers and 6 
Domestic Satellite Carriers are competing for 
interexchange business. 

• In June 1982, when the FCC ended its 
requirement for interstate resellers to apply 
for permission to provide service, over 300 
applications had already been filed. 

• Over 1,500 organizations own private microwave 
facilities in the u. s., covering over 300,000 
route miles. 

Q. IS THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS MARKET IN VIRGINIA EXPERIENCING 
SIMILAR CHANGE AND EXPANSION? 

A. Yes. Many suppliers have established a presence in Virginia 

to meet the demand of rapidly changing and expanding 
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customer needs. These satellite and facilities based 

carriers, resellers, and private telecommunications networks 

provide a full array of voice and data services dispersed 

across the Commonwealth. A list of competitors and the 

services they provide is shown on Attachment DSW 1. 

Some large business and institutional customers in the 

Commonwealth have become self-suppliers. For example, the 

Virginia state government has announced plans to develop .its 

own network to serve the state's communications needs. The 

development of telecommunications enhanced real estate 

projects in Virginia is another prime example of 

self-supply. Tenants are attracted to office space in which 

the telecommunications facilities are already available, 

thus alleviating the need to deal with several different 

vendors for their communications systems. 

Q. WHAT SERVICES DOES AT&T COMMUNICATIONS OF VIRGINIA PROVIDE? 

A. AT&T Communications provides interexchange communications 

services which include long distance, WATS/800, and channel 

services. Each of these services is subject to competition 

from other carriers that have applied for certification by 

this Commission as well as from private microwave systems. 

AT&T communications provides no local exchange services or 

any other type of monopoly service in Virginia. 
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Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE AT&T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE. 

A. AT&T Long Distance Service is a service offering applicable 

to calls placed over the AT&T Communications switched 

network to points beyond the local calling area. Customers 

use this service not only for voice but for data and 

graphics communications as well. Prices for each long 

distance call are based on the distance between the 

originating and terminating points of the call and on the 

duration of the call. Each customer receives detailed 

itemized billing information such as telephone number, 

locality, the day and time the call was placed and the 

duration of the call •. AT&T long distance service also 

includes operator assistance, which is used for special 

billing arrangements (calling card, third number billing, 

collect), directory assistance, person-to-person, and 

operator handled conference service. 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE AT&T WATS. 

A. AT&T WATS is a service designed to meet the 

telecommunications needs of customers who originate a 

relatively large volume of calls to many exchanges 

throughout Virginia. The service is provided in conjunction 

with a Local Exchange Carrier's (LEC's) intraLATA WATS. It 

provides for the completion of calls on an access line 

provided by the LEC. The tapered usage charges in AT&T 

Communications' tariff apply only to interLATA usage. 
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Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE AT&T 800 SERVICE. 

A. AT&T 800 Service provides "toll free" service to the 

calling party at the expense of the called party. Customers 

use this service to provide toll-free calling for their 

patrons who call from anywhere in Virginia to the customers' 

specific locations. The service is provided in conjunction 

with a Local Exchange Carrier's (LEC's) intraLATA 800 

Service. It provides for the completion of calls on an 

access line provided by the LEC. The tapered usage charges 

in AT&T Communications' tariff apply only to interLATA 

usage. 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE CHANNEL SERVICES. 

A. Channel Services are services provided over dedicated paths 

between two or more points for the continuous and exclusive 

use of a particular customer. In general, these services 
s 

consist of three basic parts -- local channels, transmission 

and/or signaling equipment and interoffice channels. Some 

of the Channel Services AT&T Communications will provide are 

Series 1000 (Teletype Service), Series 2000 and Series 3000 

(Voice Grade and/or Data Services). 

Q. CAN YOU PROVIDE DATA WHICH ILLUSTRATE THE EXTENT OF 
COMPETITION IN VIRGINIA? 

A. Yes. The following data demonstrate that rapidly expanding 

competition exists in Virginia: 
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• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

MCI, GTE-Sprint, Western , and United States 
Transmission Systems (USTS) re currently active in the 
Commonwealth serving at ·least 48 cities. A list of 
known cities served by competitors as of March, 1984 is 
shown in Attachment DSW 2. 

At least 18 resellers are active in Virginia • 

Three of the nation's eight Value Added Network 
Carriers and six Domestic Satellite Carriers provide 
service to customers in Virginia. 

Over 57 organizations have been authorized to construct 
private microwave systems in Virginia with 307 
telecommunications paths. They are listed in 
Attachment DSW 3. 

Three telecommunications enhanced real estate projects 
are either completed or under development. 

Q. INTEREXCBANGE COMPETITION HAS BEEN WELL DOCUMENTED IN THE 
INTERSTATE ARENA; IS COMPETITION LIMITED TO INTERSTATE 
SERVICES IN VIRGINIA? 

A. Definitely not. While the explosive growth of competition 

in the industry is most evident in the interstate market, 

the level of competitive activity for intrastate services is 

growing steadily. Although OCCs have only recently applied 

for certification to provide intrastate services in 

Virginia, evidence suggests that these carriers have been 

providing intrastate services for their customers. 

Some OCCs have admitted that they do not block intrastate 

calls. MCI has stated, for example, that intrastate usage in 

the state of Ohio is higher than 30%. MCI's attorney in 

this proceeding has admitted that MCI provided intrastate 

service in Virginia prior to its request for certification. 
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Q. WHAT IS AT&T COMMUNICATIONS' NATIONWIDE MARKET SHARE? 

A. AT&T Communications' nationwide market share based upon 1983 

domestic toll revenues on a post-divestiture basis is 57.3 

percent (See Attachment DSW 4). There has been a continual 

eroding of AT&T Communications• market share since intercity 

telecommunications markets were opened to competition. The 

diminution of market share is most telling in the areas AT&T 

Communications' competitors have chosen to serve. 

Q. DOES AT&T COMMUNICATIONS' MARKET SHARE ENABLE IT TO PRECLUDE 
COMPETITIVE ENTRY? 

A. No. It ·is apparent based upon the market penetration that 

other common carriers and resellers have made in their 

targeted markets that AT&T Communications does not possess 

the power to preclude entry or expansion and thus maintain 

market share in these areas. The results of a 1983 

nationwide residence and business survey clearly demonstrate 

the successful market penetration achieved by AT&T 

Communications' competitors in their targeted markets. The 

studies indicate a 19% penetration level for residence 

customers who make $25 or more per month in long distance 

calls and a 34% penetration level for residence customers 

who make $100 or more of calls each month. Forty-six 

percent of business customers who place $50 or more of 

interstate calls per month subscribe to services from our 

competitors, and 56% of business customers with monthly 

bills of $150 or more use a competitor's long distance 
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service. These high usage customers genera~e a substantial 

portion of total long distance revenues. Business customers 

with monthly bills of $50 or more represent less than 14% of 

all busines.s customers but account for 90% of all buuiness 

long distance revenues. Residence customers spending $25 or 

more per month represent only 10% of all households but 

account for 51% of the residence long distance revenues. 

The Commission should also take into account that any 

analysis of AT&T Communications' market share is skewed by 

the fact that AT&T Communications is the sole provider in 

certain areas where the OCCs have not chosen to compete. As 

a regulated entity, AT&T has been compelled to charge prices 

in some cases which are below its costs. In those 

situations, any firm is likely to nave an overwhelming 

market share. Such market share does not equate to market 

power, but rather demonstrates that the market is so 

unattractive at the allowed price that the only firm that 

will serve it in the long run is either one forbidden by 

regulatory fiat from leaving the market or one induced to 

remain in the market by being permitted to charge prices 

substantially higher than costs in other markets. In these 

circumstances, the large market share demonstrates the lack, 

rather than the possession, of market power. 

Q. IS REVENUE THE ONLY APPROP~IATE MEASURE OF MARKET SHARE? 
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A. No. Revenue is only one basis for measuring market share. 

Once the relevant market has been defined, a variety of 

means can be employed to compute market share. Any 

reliable measure, however, should ·recognize the available 

transmission capacity of competing carriers. Available 

capacity best reflects a firms's ability to serve AT&T 

Communications• customers or any other carrier's customers 

in the event these carriers were to raise their prices 

above competitive levels. This dynamic indicator of market 

share is more reflective of the competitive marketplace 

than traditional static measures. It can act as an 

effective deterrent against any uneconomic price increase. 

Q. WHAT IS AT&T'S SHARE OF INTERSTATE ~ARKET CAPACITY? 

A. AT&T's share of domestic interstate capacity as of the end 

of 1984 will be only 45 percent. See Attachment DSW 5. 

Q. PARTIES TO OTHER PROCEEDINGS HAVE STATED THAT AT&T HAS AN 
ADVANTAGE OVER ITS COMPETITORS BECAUSE OF BRAND LOYALTY AND 
BEING SO WELL KNOWN. DO YOU HAVE ANY FACTS ON THIS 
SUBJECT? 

A. Yes. AT&T Communications clearly recognizes that corporate 

image is an important factor in a successful marketing 

program. We commissioned a study late last year to 

determine the extent to which consumers recognized AT&T and 

AT&T Communications as long distance companies. The study 

showed that only 7% of those canvassed in third quarter 

1983 named AT&T as a long distance company, while 44% named 

MCI. 



The study continued in ensuing quarters as we began our 

advertising campaign to cause people to recognize that AT&T 

and AT&T Communications were providing long distance· 

services. Results of the studies are shown in Attachment 

DSW 6. These results show that our advertising has had 

effect. We are now on a par with MCI as far as consumer 

recognition is concerned. This is very important because 

many customers will be choosing a preferred long distance 

carrier in the near future as equal access becomes 

available. If consumers do not recognize AT&T as a long 

distance carrier, we will not be successful in our efforts 

to attract customers during the presubscription process. It 

is obvious that we will need to continue to try to educate 

the cons~mi~g ~ublic that AT&T and AT&T Communications 

provide long distance services. In addition, the studies 

make it obvious that we do not enjoy any competitive 

advantage due to brand loyalty. 

Q. DOES AT&T COMMUNICATIONS HAVE ANY INDICATION OF THE OCCS' 
PENETRATION OF THE VIRGINIA INTRASTATE MARKET? 

A. Yes. A recent 1984 study was commissioned to determine the 

extent to which consumers recognized AT&T Communications 

and its competitors as interstate and/or intrastate 

telecommunications carriers in the Commonwealth of 

Virginia. Additionally, the study measured the market 

penetration achieved by our competitors in the intrastate 

arena. The results of·the residence and business survey 
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clearly demonstrate the high level of competitive activity 

in the intrastate marketplace. These results are 

particularly noteworthy since AT&T Communications was 

ostensibly-the only carrier permitted to operate in the 

interexchange market in Virginia. 

The study revealed that both residence and business 

customers use their OCC services to make intrastate calls. 

According to the study, large companies tend to make both 

interstate and intrastate calls, but small companies make 

predominantly intrastate calls over their OCC services. 

The majority of the business and residence respondents 

perceive AT&T Communications, MCI, and GTE~Sprint to be 

interstate and intrastate carriers. See Attachment DSW 7 

for carrier awareness levels. 

Twenty-eight percent of business customers in Virginia 

subscribe to a non-AT&T interexchange service. Of those, 

nearly 80 percent (23% of all business customers in the 

Commonwealth) use the non-AT&T service to place intrastate 

long distance calls. Fifty percent of business customers 

who make $5000 worth of calls per month or more subscribe 

to services from our competitors, and 40% of business 

customers who make between $1,000 and $5,000 worth of 

interexchange calls monthly use a competitor's long 

distance service. Of even gr~ater significance, in areas 

-14-
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where non-AT&T carriers offer interexchange service, SO% of 

All business customers use a non-AT&T interexchange 

carrier. 

Eleven percent of residence customers in Virginia subscribe 

to a non-AT&T interexchange service. Of those, over 80% 

(9% of all residential customers in the Commonwealth) use 

the non-AT&T service to make intrastate calls. In areas 
~ 

where non-AT&T carriers offer interexchange service, 35% of 

All residential customers use a non-AT&T carrier. 

Statewide, the study indicates a 17% market penetration 

level for non-AT&T carriers among .residence customers who 

make $25 or more per month in long distance calls. The 

results of the studies are shown in Attachment DSW 8. 

Q. ARE THE SERVICES PROVIDED BY AT&T COMMUNICATIONS' 
COMPETITORS OF COMPARABLE QUALITY? 

A. 'Yes. It is incumbent upon our competitors to provide 

quality service because customers expect a certain standard 

of quality. Our competitors are apparently providing 

service that satisfies that standard. Their advertisements 

are replete with assurances of quality service equal to 

that of AT&T. Their networks are touted as being more 

modern and efficient than AT&T's. One carrier refers to 

itself as a low-cost, high-quality long distance 

alternative. One frequently run ad indicates that 396 of· 

the Fortune 500 use its s~rvice. A television ad invites 

-15-
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the listener to detect a difference in quality. Examples of 

competitors' ads are shown in Attachment DSW 9. 

A great number of consumers have responded to these ads by 

subscribing to the services of OCCs and resellers. Large, 

sophisticated business customers and residence customers 

with discriminating taste are apparently satisfied with the 

quality of telecommunications services they receive from 

competing carriers. I would imagine if customer 

dissatisfaction were widespread, many would hasten to 

switch carriers. This clearly has not happened. 

Moreover, AT&T's competitors seem to have complete 

confidence that they can compete on the basis of equality 

with AT&T under current market conditions. For example, in 

his •Letter to Stockholders" at the front of MCI's 1984 

Annual Report, Chairman William G. McGowan wrote 

Today is a unique time in telecommunications. 
Divestiture has changed our world. It is a 
time of confusion, but also great opportunity. 
The telecommunications market today is one in 
which no one has an inherent advantage. In 
this new era, MCI will prosper. Our services 
are leveraging off one another, and our 
communications network is providing the means 
for them all. (Annual Report p. 4, emphasis 
supplied) • 



An added assurance of continued quality is the fact that 

many facilities-based carriers and most resellers lease 

facilities from AT&T. Furthermore, our competitors .are 

assured equal access to local facilities under the Ml?J. 

Equal access capability in Virginia is scheduled to be 90.6% 

complete by September of 1986. 

Q. IS CONTINUED REGULATORY OVERSIGHT OF AT&T'S PRICES 
NECESSARY? 

A. No. AT&T Communications has chosen to serve customers in 

all geographic locations in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

The Company could not, for example, charge prices 

substantially above costs in some rural areas merely 

because the present level of competition is not as great in 

those .areas. Large price increases would result in serious 

customer irritation and concomitant loss of goodwill, and 

would also encourage immediate competitive entry. These 

factors would limit revenue gains bo~ in terms of amount. 

and duration. Furthermore, even if AT&T Communications 

were to engage in this type of pricing behavior, it is 

doubtful that enough revenues would flow from this sparse 

customer base to make cross-subsidization viable. Finally, 

it should be recognized that any actual cost differentials 

in serving rural customers are now greatly overshadowed by 

the huge subsidy levels built into access charges. This 

fact mitigates against any need to deaverage prices 

geographically. 



In short, AT&T's corporate policy is never to abandon rural 

customers. While there are economic realities and cost 

imperatives involved in serving rural areas which must be 

faced in the future, it is AT&T's corporate policy to 

maintain its current statewide rate uniformity by service 

category. 

Q. IS RATE BASE/RATE OF RETURN REGULATION APPROPRIATE IN A 
DEREGULATED ENVIRONMENT? 

A. No. As the transition to fully competitive interexchange 

markets takes place, standard regulatory procedures which 

are based on establishing a f~xed rate of return become 

increasingly inappropriate. AT&T Communications of Virginia 

has neither a large·rate base nor a stable source of 

recurring monthly revenues. Both are characteristics of the 

traditional regulated company in which _fixed costs are high. 

Because AT&T Communications' rate base is small, changes to 

the rate base occur in large incremental steps when pld 

facilities are replaced or additional capacity is added. 

This is in marked contrast to the relatively steady growth 

of the predivestiture regulated companies. Earnings 

volatility is another reason why rate base, rate of return 

regulation should be eliminated. A competitive marketplace 

will cause carriers to earn the rate of return which their 

competitive performance merits. 

Q. IS AT&T COMMUNICATIONS CAPABLE OF CUTTING PRICES AND 
DRIVING COMPETITION OUT OF THE VIRGINIA MARKET? 

1136 
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A. Clearly not. Any attempt to price under cost would result 

in serious financial losses to AT&T Communications which 

would be impossible to recoup later. Many of our 

competitors are backed by large, financially sound firms 

capable of quickly entering market areas they are not 

presently serving. As a matter of fact, parties to this 

proceeding have stated their intention of being ubiquitous 

originating carriers. 

Q. IF THIS COMMISSION WERE TO ALLOW AT&T COMMUNICATIONS TO 
PRICE ITS SERVICES COMPETITIVELY, WOULD IT STILL HAVE AN 
EFFECTrvE MEASURE OF CONTROL OVER THESE PRICES? 

A. Yes. The Commission has made it clear that it will 

maintain regulatory oversight over all interexchange 

carriers and should it find that market forces are not 

causing carriers to behave competitively, it will 

immediately reimpose traditional regulatory constraints. 

The threat of this reimposition of traditional regulation 

will, by itself, be a major incentive for carriers to 

operate in a responsible manner. Fqrthermore, the 

Commission will continue to have a large measure of control 

over AT&T's prices because it controls the major share of 

its costs. Access charges comprise the vast majority of 

AT&T Communications' incremental costs (greater than 90%) 

and approximately seven_ty-five percent of its total 

operating expenses. Because we believe some of these 

charges are unreasonable and unlaw·ful, we have filed a 

formal complaint with this Commission opposing both the 

1137 
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level and structure of access charges. The access charges 

approved by the Commission will, to a great extent, 

determine the prices we must charge our customers. 

Q. WILL DEREGULATION OF AT&T COMMUNICATIONS' INTRASTATE PRICES 
BE IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC? 

A. Yes. Not only will AT&T Communications be able quickly to 

bring pricing and technological innovations to all 

interexchange services users in Virginia, it will be able 

to do so without the burden of costly regulatory 

proceedings. These are costs our customers will not have 

to bear in our prices. Also, the general public will 

benefit because the costs of the sec will not have to be 

greatly increased. In New Jersey, for example, which has a 

state law requiring full regulation of interexchange 

carriers, the commission has announced plans to add 36 

people to the telecommunications staff. Taxpayers in 

·virginia should not have to bear a similar burden under 

flexible regulation. 

Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY? 

A. Yes, it does. 

1138 
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KIDIB VBIIDORS OPIBA~IRG IR VIRGIRIA 

SPBCIALIIBD Q)IIII)R CARRIBRS 

1. MCI 
2. GTE-Sprint 
3. USTS 
4. Western Union 

BBSBI·'·BRS 

1. Allnet 
2. Lexitel 
3. Satelco 
4. us Tel 
s. Tele-sav 
6. Budgetcall 
7. call Saver 
·a. Central Wholesale 
9. Nationwide 

18. NCBE 
11. Telecom Systems 
12. Americall 
13. Commonwealth 
14. SoutbernTel 
15. TDX Systems 
16. Isacomm 
17. TELTEC 
18. Telemarketing 

DOIISA~S 

1. SBS 

VAliS (VALOB ADDBD &BiWOBS) 

1. '.l'ymshare 
2. GTE Telenet 
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VIRGINIA 

Prtvate Microwave Systems 

Owner Name 

American Telephone & Telegraph Co. 
Atlantic Research Corporation 
Cable Satellite Public Affairs Network 
George Mason University Foundation, Inc. 
GTE Telenet Communications Corporation 
Mary Washington Hospital 
Mitre Corporation 
Omps, H H 
University of Virginia 
Virginia Tractor Coo Inc. 
Washington Post Company, The 
Westvaco Development Corporation 
Pyramid Video, Inc. 
Commonwealth Gas Pipeline Corporation 
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line 
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line 
Crider and Shockey, Inc. 
H C G Cablevision Inc. 
Appalachian Power Company 
Appalachian Power Company 
Columbia Gas System Service Corporation 
Delmarva Power & Light Co. of MD 
Kingsport Power Co. 
Northern Virginia Electric Cooperative 
Potomac Edison Company 
Potomac Electric Power Co. 
Rappahannock Electric Cooperative 
Shenandoah Gas Company 
Virginia Electric & Power Co. 
Virginia Electric & Power Co. 
Virginia Electric & Power Co. 
Virginia Electric & Power Co. 
Washington Gas Light Company 
Washington Gas Light Company 
Newport News Shipbuilding & Dry Dock Co. 
Virginian Pilot and the Ledger Star 
Norfolk and Western Railway Co. 
Richmond Fredericksburg & Potomac 
Richmond Fredericksburg & Potomac 
Richmond Fredericksburg & Potomac 
Seaboard Coast Line Railroad Co. 
Southern Railway Company 
Chesapeake, City of 
Chesterfield, County of 
Hampshire, County of 
Smyth County Emergency Ser·vi.ces · 
Viking Freight System 

As of 12/1/83 
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I Of 
Paths 

1 
2 
1 
1 
1 
1 
2 
1 
1 
2 
3 
1 
1 
2 
4 
5 
1 
1 

24 
1 
8 
2 
1 
2 
2 
3 
3 
1 

26 
16 
10 

2 
8 
1 
1 
1 

15 
2 
3 
3 
1 

21 
4 
7 
5 
1 
6 
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"Physical 
Route Miles 

9.3 
22.9 

2.1 
1.0 
1.0 

16.2 
2.0 

19.3 
2.3 

32.5 
18.4 
1.0 
4.2 

24.1 
64.9 

227.7 
17.3 
9.3 

469o7 
13.4 

207.1 
51.5 
2.9 

11.6 
23.1 
29.1 
80.2 
33.5 

404.9 
118.5 
128.7 
10.8 

138.4 
2.9 
1.0 
6.8 

337.1 
2.6 

39.1 
6R.9 
27.9 

328.3 
30.5 
54.3 
20.5 
4.9 

42.1 



VIRGINIA 

Private Microwave Systems 

OWNER NAME 

Virginia, Commonwealth of 
Virginia, Commonwealth of 
Virginia, Commonwealth of 
Virginia, Commonwealth of 
Virginia, Commonwealth of 
Augusta County Emergency Association 
Hampshire, County of 
Piedmont Emergency Medical Services 
Rappahannock-Rapidan Emergency Medical 
Western Transportation Co. 

As of 12/1/83 
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PATHS 

2 
63 
13 

3 
6 
1 
1 
1 
1 
5 

307 

(Cont'd) 

PHYSICAL 
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ROUTE MILES 

6.2 
1280.7 

302.8 
26.5 

219.6 
14.1 
22.5 
11.5 
34.8 
8R.3 

5173. 
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1t83 DOMESTIC IBTEREXCBAHGB REVENUES 

A!''T 

IRDEPBHDENTS 

BOCa 

OCCs 

PRIVATE MICROWAVES 

(M'l'S 1 WATS PRIVATE LIRE) 

IBVEHPES 
($ BILLIONS) 

26.133 

8.291 

6.611 

3.823 

.726 

$45.582 
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YEAR- END 1984 DOMESTIC INTEREXCHANGE CAPACITY 
(~1111ons of circuit miles) 

TERRESTRIAL 

MCI 

GTE/SPRINT 

USTS 

Subtotal 

SATELLITE 

PRIVATE MICROWAVE 

BOC ·TOLL 

INDEPENDENT TOLL 

TOTAL COMPETITORS' TOLL 

AT&T -
INTERSTATE 

INTRASTATE 

Subtotal 

AT&T CAPACITY SHARE.CALCULATION: 

265M 

lOOM 

14M 

379M 

BllM 

176M -
987'1 

YEAR-END 1984 

379"1 

57 0M 

130M 

87M 

24M 

1190M 

AT&T-C In-Service Circuit Miles 

DSW-5 

(ATIT-c In service circuit Ai1es)+(Compet1tors' Eng1neer1ng circuit Miles) 

987 • 451 
987+1190 
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MCI 

J..t. Sprint 
..... AT&T ~ 
CD Bell System 

Bell Operating 
Company 

AT&T Communications 

• 

AWARENESS LEVELS OF LONG DISTANCE COMPANIES 

1983 1984 

3rd 4th 1st 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Al!ril 

Base • 3827 Base •29oo Base • 4821 Base =- l98U 

441 431 401 411 

291 321 361 371 

71 221 411 421 

271 221 201 -161 

191 181 171 151 

< 11 ~11 <11 (.11 

c 
fn 
~ 
I 

0\ 



SERVICE AT IT 
Base a 338 

Interstate 31 

Intrastate 31 

~ 
..... Both 941 
Cl1 
0 

. . 

AWARENESS OF CARRIER PROVIDING 
INTER VS. INTRASTATE SERVICE 

JULY 1984 TOPL INE 
RESIDENCE MARKET 

CARRIER 
8tlL SVSTEM lOCAL BElL tlft·tXLL 

47 104 18 

41 151 

41 21 281 

921 831 721 

tlti SPRINT ALL NET OTRER 
289 175 6 114 

2S 21 211 

181 251 171 

801 73 831 1M 



Interstate Carrter Only 
Intrastate Carrter Only 
Both Inter and 

Intrastate Carrfer 

. . 

July 1984 
Awareness of Carrfer Provfdfng Intra versus Interstate Servfce 

Business Market 

A TIT r«:l GTE SPRINT ITT TMC 
(base = 226) (base = ztiS) (Base = z1b) (Base = 22) (Base = 2b) 

71 161 181 271 151 
( 11 11 31 51 01 

931 831 791 681 851 

Yfrgfnfa 

Bell Local 
S!stem 

(Base = 47) 
Be 11 Co !Jan.! 
(Base = 9) 

61 11 

41 191 

891 801 



BUSINESS 

RESIDENCE 

BUSINESS 

RESIDENCE 

VIRGINIA CUSTOMER PENETRATION MATRIX 

TOTAL STATE 

INTRASTATE INTER STATE 

231 

91 81 

IN AREAS. WHERE 

ALTERNATIVE CARRIERS AVAILABLE 

INTRASTATE INTERSTATE 

50% 53% 

351 29% 

1.152 
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Total Inter and/or Intra 
Use Intra and Interstate 
Use Only Intrastate 
Use Only Interstate 

Do Not Use Competitor 

. . 

"I "I 

July 1984 
Residence Market 

TOTAL LIGHT 
Base = 667 Base = 218 

111 61 
61 31 
31 21 
21 11 

891 941 

Vfrgfnta 

fEDIUM HEAVY 
Base = 154 Base = 247 

111 171 
71 91 

31 41 
11 4S 

891 841 



Total Inter and/or Intra 

Intra Ortly 
Inter Only 
Both Inter and Intra 
Do NOT use Compett tor 

Total 
Market 

(Base = 485) 

281 

5 

5 

18 
72 

July 1984 
Non-ATIT Subscrt2tton 

Business Market 

Prtma2J 
(base =5) , 

211 

6 

5 
10 
80 

Ytrgtnta 

Select M!Jor 
(Base :1 129) (Base = 14) 

401 501 

5 0 
5 0 

30 50 
59 50 
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··cut their long distance c• 
.· · . · - with MCI.. · .-: 

. . . 

. Start cutting yours right 1 
. . -

. 396 of the FORTUNE500, including 9 
of the top 10 oil companies and 4 of the 5 
major automakers, plus IS of the 16largest · 
computer companies, 8 of the 10 largest com­
mercial banks, the U.S .. Senate, hundreds of 
thousands of small businesses, and millions 
ofpeQPleathome,useMCI. _ · . 

They all save over AT&Ton high--qual, 
ity long distance. Includ~g a full raf!ge of 
special seiVices such as MCI's own WATS : 
lines. ·. . · 

To find out how you can save on every 
interstate logg distance Call, phqne or send in 
the coupon. Do it now. What you·Jeam could 
mean aCiding a lot Ie~s to AT &T's profits. 
And a lot more to your oWn. 
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r---~------------~-. I MCI Telecommunications Corp 
I P.O.l;k»t ISO& BaJa Cyq_\\ryd, PA 
I · I want to save on long distance \vithout g 
I Please rush me more information [J For Bus: I . -. 

J Name--~------=-
1 · 1. Tatle _________ _ 

I Comp8ny. _______ _ 

-:_.Ad~-------~-­
.• City/State/Zip-·------T 
I· . ... ·. 
I .. 
I # 

I . . 

I : 

MCI 
: _:_. · ·we sound_ ~~tter to bus 
: 215 668--2300 800. 
L---~---~-------~~~ 
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So do 9 of the top 10 oil companies, 
6 of Wall Street's top brokerage firms, 
15 of the 16largest computer com­
panies, the U.S. Senate, hundreds 
cf thousands of small businesses, 
and millions of people at home. 

Which isn't surprising. MC1s 
long distance network is more 
modem and eHicient than AT&Ts. 
So with MCI you can call any other 
phone in any other state from 
coast to coast. And save mol')ey on· 
interstate calls. Plus MCI offers a 

full range of serviCes customized to 
suit any business. Such-as MCI's 
own WATS lines. 

For more information about 
what we can do for your business, 
contact MCI. What you find out · 
could'mean adding a lot more to 
your profits. Send in the coupon 
or call no~. 1.---· ----

MCI 
We sound better to business. 

1.15fi 
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~-----~-

I MCI. P.O. Box 1508. Bala C 

I I want t~ ~·~c c-·n bno·.-!:s:l: 
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I Cc,:-:-:r~a:.;·-----
1 

T~le~·hcn 
A~i:ir~ ..... -.. ____ _ 

J Ca:y S:ol:E' 
1 In rn~! &!trc."t:o C 

·~-2~ ~8~~0--



~ .... 
Cl1 
~ 

I 

. . 
... ,, . . -

, . . ·· . 
-· . can .. ;--- .. '. ···: ., ... ~: .• . 

. Fotthe --• • p 

· there's a 'lot of folk these days about low · · • · 
: cost lo~ distance rofes: But Y.QU haVen't talked tow· . 
· est costs until you've talked With us. No other maj'Or ~-
·tong distance service con match our charges. Not · · 

· MC[ Not SPRINt Certainly not AT&t ,· . 
I I • • o 

~ · .Owned ~y IBM, · : 
l£TNAand COMSAI 

We're SBS SKYliNE• Long Distance, o ser­
vice of Sa1e11Ue Business Svsfems; the communtca­
lions company owned bV IbM, A:TNA and COMSAt 

· . OUr service wos built fo·sofisfy the needs 

............... 

~-~At238~5460 . 
DA---ceSeivi~ 

first mtnute, rather ltlan ~rounding• ,up to the next 
whole mfnufe as most other seNfces do. This . 
.~~~="~-~o~5~1~~~on~~~ ... · .. 

• There Is no local meSsage unit chotge·tO accer ~-
our network. .. • · . . . · : · . ~ 

• OUr rates, since they're not based on distance, ore 
· the easiest to undefSiand. SKYLINE con save Y9U • 
money everyll!f18 ~call, everywhere~ call. · . : 

SKYUHE ADVANTAGE OVER COMPETITIOR 
(Comparison of 41yplcol mon1hly phone' bills••) , 

AT&T MCI SPRINT . • SKYLINE 
I. s 150.00 $125.13 $126.30. s 94.20 

. expert can show~ how SKYLINE con· save up to 
half on your long distance bills. 

. Call238-5480 todaf. TIMt iow cost, lllgll · 
qualltr tong distance semce lnlllt for ~rlcct'l 
biggest businesses Is also available for you. But 
burry. You're wasting mooey on'''" long dis· 
tance call until you make your call to us. . 

For mldantlalsenlce calll-IG0-235-2001. 
-vaucan ca11 ~-..,"" conaauous •ellalis. ~ ,..,,_. 
• nla. bd ortgtnarmn af SKYliH£ COlTs Is limBed 1o eiChanges • cunenny serve. . . . 

~---~-------~--~--~-----------• ... ""lnttmtld Ill lmlll ""'Dtltlnelflf.,....... . 
· I 0 Please have a ltPI1SIIIfaltvl c:anract1n1. (Wt tiM tanl-fyplphaneS ) 
. I · 0 Please send men tub malton. . 

. I' 0 Tell me~ NQh-¥Dfume SBSSIMINESIIWM$. · · · 
' 1 . I 0 tea me~ S8S SKVliHtSIIJoll.f._ for lncomiftiJcali. ' · . 2. s 250.00 .$208.55 $203.75 $157.00 
. . 1 o Tell me about resldenlaiSIMtl. ,,..,.2~5-200'-> 

' Haml: . 

3. s 500.00 $417.10 $407.50 $314.00 
4. $1000.00 $834.20 •. $815.00 $828.00 of some of America's blgg_est corporations for a low · 

t9sl, htah quoliiV long distance alternative. 
lhciJ!ks fo th8 co~ttv we built lnlo the ser-

•·Based upon. a c:omporlsoit of charges ror cans of 2·9 minutes dtntlon from • · I .. 
Phtlodclphlo 1o a sompllngol20clfies between SAM and SPM ~- • :• . I 'Tlne:---------

. vice, we're able to offer SKYLINE to all businesses, 
~ f11(dter ~ size,. no matter hdw big or how small! 

· , · ~-- • The quollly of SKVUNE Is o direct reflectkm 
of !he high standards of the three owner-partners. 

With SKVLINE,Ihere ore no mesto~M tM1II c'*"". Mel and SPRINT~ bt' , I . • 

="F~=::,~=r-c.z== / · ·: Companr~_ ........ __ .... 
on Ia with lhe and In~~~ ol2/ll~. Tares fnc!'Jdld~ -~ . . . . 1 .. • • • • . · .. 

• , ~c . • I CompanrPhanl:~~-""'!"---

,.._.ffCTIVJ.TNE",i ·· ·:: ·,! ~;,:~' ·. ··. 
\.CIJ1.11\ ' .&..J. • ; ·' . I .. I Malltt: SIS Smlll . Lowest Cost. . ·. 

: ~ .- ~-. -.-A-nd_S __ Bs!--SKVt~I-FiE-1.~-~-Df-s-tonce-:-. -rotes-..... o-re-: .· At. 23 .. 8~5· 460 ~::. :. · ·! . . . E!:i::::,.. 
i , ~ . : Moll IIIII ..,_trcaRI 
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·· - . designed to ossure·jou the beSt possible economies 
. ·on every call. . . 

• There is no monthly subscription rate, only a low 

I 
· $15 monthly usoQe requirement. · 

. · . • SKYliNE bills in SIX-second Increments after the 

BuS~;Inform8tioii, 5iirz 
H you're Interested ·In SKYLINE rot YOur busl- •· · 

· ness, call us foday. A trained telecommunlcoffons · · · 
•' . 

. . '. ·. ·------- 'Ut1 .gcn 
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CaU SKYLINE· At352-4770 For The 
~-~~-~~~-~a.yi~FQ'fY~-~usin~·---

Ally small or medium sized business today 
nwst consider the cost saving opportunities oHered 
by the new low cosllong distance seNices. In find-

•· ing the right seNice for your company, you've gotlo 
consider both quality and cost. SBS SKYLINE511 Long 
Distance offers the lowest cost of any major long 
dislanca S8IVice with ~ soc~ifice in quality. · 

Owned By IBM, 
lEfNA and COMSAI 

SBS SKYUNE is o seNice ol Satellite Busi­
ness Systems, the coovnunicolions company 
owned by IBM, lfTNA and COMSAT. The commit­
menl of these three ~nologioolleoders is on 
assurance ol quo!ily savice on all fronts. 

Lowest Q>St. 
. . 

In on independent survey conducted in 
December 1983, ABC's "Good Morning, America. · 
found SBS SKYUNE to be 17% less expensive lhan 
MCI, 12% less expensive than SPRINT, 19% less . 
expensive than liT The role chart dramalicoll~ 
underscores how much more you could be 
~~her S81Vioos ~sus~SKYUNE 

And rates ore only o part of the savings. With SBS 
SKYUNE: · 
• There is no monthly subscription role, only a low 

• SKYLINE bills in six-second increments after lhe 
first minute, rather than ·rounding· up to the next 
whole minute as most other seNaces do. This. 
can mean up tp 25% in savings on on overage 
business call. 

• There ore no message unit or pay telephone 
charges to access seNice. 

• Our rates, since lh8y're not based on.dislance, are 
easy to understand. . 

• There is o 2% discounl for prompt payment of · · 
invoices. 

• SKYUNE con save you up to 50% over AT& t ond 
up to 20% over the olher major IQng distance 
companies, ·everylime you call, everywhere you call. 

SKYLINE ADVANTAGE OVER COMPETITION 
(Companson ol4 typical monlhly phone bills·) • 

AT&T· MCI SPRINT SKYLINE 
1. s 160.00 $132.63' $133.92 $ 98.55 

·2. s 250.00 $221.05 $216.40 $164.25 
3. s 500.00 $442.10 $432.80 $328.50 
4. $10@.00 __ S884._2_0 • _SQ.65.6Q___1_~7Jt0 

1 Bosod upon o compudson ol chclfgos lor arll5 ,,. 2 ·9 mmuktS duroleon fa01n 
WoShmfllon 10 0 sompCiflA ol20 Clt18S betWeen 8AM and bPM weekdays. 
Wdh SKvtiN(, thmo 010 no mossogo umt chlHgos. MCI ond SPRINt may be 
even hiflher because ollocol mossooo und choroes. Chock wdh your local 
lelciJhOne c:onlfXJilV. Comparison lo olhof r.oniols' charges boscd on Dilts 
on file Wllh lhO FCC and in efroct as ol Sl2b/84. 1oxes nol ~luded. 

Call SKYLINE Now . . 
At352-4770 ' 

. • For high quality, low tostlong distance call . 
SKYUNE today. A lrai~ teteconvnunieolions expert 

can show you how SKYLINE can save your busi­
ness more on out-of-state long distance than any 
other major service~t: 
· Call352-4770 today. The low cost, hiP.h 

· quality long dislance service built for Americas 
biggest businesses Is also available for you. But 
hu"Y· You're wasling money on every long dis· 
tance call unlil you make your canto us. 

. For residential service calll·IOG-235-2001. 
: 

1 You con CGII anywhere in lho cont1guous 48 statos. Puorlo Rteo and lh8 
U.S. Vugcn lslorids, bul ong«noiiOO ol SKYUNE c:oUs IS lamdt.'CJ lo 
axdlongos wo cwrenlly servo. 

r-----------------------~-----, fe tiff lftltlllltd iD SKYUNl lang Dtstcmce fof lftf laulinhL . 1 
1 1 PlfJO!i8 navoo rcprcscnluhvr.contod rm (Wo hove lonO·I".. • • 
I I Please send mo more mfofmnhon 
a·atell mu obOul hcfsh·IIOWI1lll SUS SKvtiN[~ial WAlS · . 
t.l Tell me about Sl)S SKYLlNl:iN Jo(Hroo lot mcom1ng ca 
II ~~rcsidenbolserviee. (8-800-23b·2001) 

Nonle:- . . -----. 

Tilie:-------·-··"·-····-. 

CocnponvNorna: .. ___ ,... . .. -~.---~-----

CompanyPhOne: . ··-------(AIIuC.~) 

CofnpanyAddreu: __ , __ ........ -- __ _ 
Mail To: SBS SKYLINE , 

3959 Pender Drl¥1 
Suile1DD 
falrraa, VIrginia 22031 
Man this coupon or cau our k 
•• (J03) 352·4710. 

. ~ .. $15 monthly usage requirement. 
__ ---_.. . -- ---. . ·-·-· --··- .,-:::--.--.:.:.:.:.=.=-··--·-; • zr· -- .. ... -- ' -- ... · ... . . ......-· 
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1. LEC ACCESS LINES 

2. ACCESS LINES WITH 
TOLL-FREE AVAILABILITY 
TO OCC'S 

3. ACCESS LINES WITH 
TOLL-FREE AVAILABILITY 
TO RESELLERS ONLY 

4. ACCESS LINES WITH 
TOLL-FREE ACCESS TO AN 
AT&T COMMUNICATIONS 
COMPETITOR 
(LINE 2 + LINE 3) 

s. PER CENT 
(LINE 4 ..;. LIN~ 1) 

SUMMARY 

C&P 

1,793,111 

1,579,826 

38,199 

1,618,025 

90 

1.159 

NON-C&P 

581,582 

157,641 

29,717 

187,358 

32 

DSW-2~ 
Page ~f 3 

TOTAL 

2,374,693 

1,737,467 

67,916 

1,805,383 

76 



DSW-2A 
Page 2 of 3 

VIRGINIA EXCHANGES SERVED BY CCC'S 

AND NUMBER OF ACCESS LINES 

C&P 

Arlington/Alexandria 
Fairfax/Vienna 
Falls Church/McLean 
Braddock 
Engleside 
Richmond 
Ashland 
Bethia 
Chester 
Manakin 
Rockville 
Sandston 
Varina 
Mechanicsville 
Midlothian 
Roanoke 
Bent Mountain 
Montvale 
Salem 
Norfolk/Virginia Beach 
Portsmouth 
Newport News 
Hampton 
Peninsula 
Poquoson 
Lynchburg 
Concord 
Petersburg 
Hopewell 
Dinwiddie 
Leesburg 
Catoctin 
Middleburg 
Mount Gilead 
Herndon 
Fredericksburg 
Hartwood 
Spotsylvania 
Suffolk 
Whaleyville 
Temperanceville 
Chincoteague 
Belle Haven 
Parksley 
Danville 
Warrenton 
Toano 
Williamsburg 

Total 

235,145 
87,015 

151,192 
12,655 
13,066 

234,706 
6,914 
1,496 
9,748 
1,906 

940 
8,748 
2,327 

10,158 
9,009 

83,072 
575 
965 

13,407 
244,083 

58,028 
40,317 
52,916 
32,209 

3,799 
49,844 
1,196 

37,726 
13,193 

2,936 
7,485 
2,128 
1,705 
2,886 

40,636 
21,086 

2,596 
2,090 

11,913 
1,107 
2,834 
2,121 
3.,971 
1,934 

30,275 
7;"502 
2,659 

15,607 

1,579,826 

1160 

NON-C&P 

Charlottesville 
Crozet 
Scottsville 
Arcola 
Dulles 
Princess Anne 
Great Bridge 
Hickory 
Manassas 
Haymarket 
Nokesville 
Independent Hill 
Dale City 
Triangle 
Occoquan 
Chancellor 
Stafford 
Troutville 
Bachelors Hall 
Whitmell 
Chuckatuck 
Holland 
Lorton 
Lorton Metro 
Bristol 

·Total 

41,454 
2,176 
1,678 
1,009 

782 
3,786 
6,289 
2,379 

25,016 
3,805 

889 
2,413 

10,885 
5,096 

15,090 
5,495 
5,153 
3,294 
1,776 
1,635 

884 
708 

2,793 
669 

12,487 

157,641 



C&P 

Christiansburg 
Blacksburg 
Radford 
Shawsville 

Total 

VIRGINIA EXCHANGES 
SERVED ONLY BY RESELLERS 

AND NUMBER OF ACCESS LINES 

. DSW-2A 
Page 3 of 3 

NON-C&P 

8,165 
18,326 
10,036 

1,672 

38,199 

1161 

Abingdon 
Glade Spring 
Meadowview 
Damascus 
Konnarock 
Fincastle 
Eagle Rock 
Troutville 
Woodstock 
Strasburg 
Toms Brook 
Edinburg 
Basye 
Mount Jackson 
New Market 

Total 

7,515 
1,207 
1,651 
1,274 

415 
966 
637 

3,294 
3,291 
2,518 

952 
1,888 
1, 0"32 
1,530 
1,547 

29,717 
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4 BY MR. MORRISSEY: (continuing) 

5 Q Mr. Wilcox, was the document just 

6 marked for identification as DSW-4 prepared by you or 

7 under your supervision? 

8 A Yes, it was. 

9 Q And do you have any corrections 

10 to this document? 

11 A No, I do not. 

12 Q And do you adopt this document as your 

13 testimony in this proceeding? 

14 A· Yes, I do. 

15 MR. MORRISSEY: At this time, 

16 Judge .Shannon, I would like to move DSW-4 

17 into evidence. 

18 CO~ISSIO~ER SHANNON: It will be 

19 rece.ived, subject to cross-examination. 

20 BY MR. MORRISSEY: (Continuing} 

21 Q Mr. Wilcox, would you give a brief 

22 summary of your testimony, please • 

23 A Yes. My testimony explains why 

24 AT&T Communications should be allowed to competitively 

25 price the services that it offers within the Commonwealth 

1.162 
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2 of Virginia. AT&T Communications provides no monopoly 

3 services. All the types of services we offer, with the 

4 exception of long-distance operator services,are offered 

6 by our competitors in Virginia. I hasten to add that we 

6 do not have a monopoly on serving rotary-dial customers, 

7 as Dr. Cornell incorrectly asserted. aces can provide 

8 service to rotary-dial services customers by ordering 

9 Feature Group B Direct access service, as Mr. Schell 

10 has explained, or by their customers utilizing the 

11 inexpensive tone signaling device. 

12 Our competitors, as those present 

13 r· 
today have· testified, are well financed and managed. 

"- 14 They have succeeded in attracting a significant share 

16 of the markets they have chosen to serve. For example, 

16 our competitors have signed up 50 percent of all business 

17 customers in the areas they serve in Virginia, and 35 

18 percent of the residence customers in those areas. In 

19 addition, 80 percent ·of these residence and business 

20 customers indicate they use the service for both 

21 intra and interstate calling. These statistics show 

22 that our competitors are providing quality services 

23 that Virginia customers are willing to.buy. 

24 Our competitors presently serve the 

26 vast majo~ity of customers in the Commonwealth for 
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2 originating services, and all customers on a terminating 

3 basis. There are currently four OCCs: MCI, GTE-Sprint, 

4 USTS and Western Union, that ~ffer services in the 

5 Commonwealth. There are also 18 resellers, of which we 

6 are aware, that are currently providing service to 

7 Virginia customers. Also, one Domestic Satellite Carrier, 

8 SBS, and two Value Added Networks, Ty.mshare and GTE 

9 Telenet, offer service to Virginia customers. These 

10 competitors serve over 90 percent of all the main stations 

11 in C&P-served territory in the free-calling areas_ 

12 including the free-calling areas. They also serve 

13· customers in the major independent company-served areas, 

14 such as Manassas and Charlottesville, as well as at least 

15 29 other independent company exchanges, such as Abingdon, 

16 Fincastle, Arcola, Toms Brook and Great Bridge. 

17 Because resellers do not require 

18 certification from either state or federal regulatory 

19 agencies, it is difficult to keep track of all the 

20 locations they serve. In general, they have demonstrated 

21 
in the p~st the ability to quickly enter any geographic 

22 
market they wish, and generally they have been successful 

23 in those markets. 

24 
AT&T Communications is proud to serve 

25 all communities in the Commonwealth. We believe that this 

1.164 
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ubiquity is a strength, and we firmly intend to maintain 

it. Our rates are geogr~phically uniform today, and 

there are no present market or cost reasons for 

changing those rates. 

Finally, my testim9ny points out 

that even if you, the Commission, does not require us 

to file tariff prices for your approval, you still 

retain a tremendous amount of control over our prices. 

That is because access charges, which are regulated, 

comprise about 75 percent of our total expenses, and an 

even higher percentage of our.incremental costs used for 

pricing. Th~s Commission sets the major share of our 

costs and the competition in the marketplace will drive 

our prices, as well as those of our competitors, toward 

those costs. 

That completes my summary. 

MR. MORRISSEY: Mr. Wilcox is 

available for cross-examination. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, it's 

now, I think, time to recess until 2:00 o'clock 

for lunch. 

MR. GILLESPIE: Yo~r Honor? 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes. 

MR. GILLESPIE: I think there may be 
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2 some confusion about the numbering of the 

3 exhibits. I have·that the exhibit Mr. Moore 

4 excuse me 

6 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: We numbered 

8 that as 3. We numbered that 3. 

7 MR. GILLESPIE: 3. I'm sorry. 

8 COI..miSSIONER SHANNON: We numbered 

9 that 3, and we didn't accept it, because the 

10 writer of the letter wasn't here, and of 

11 course, Dr. Alessio's testimony is 1, and 

12 Mr. Schell's is 2, the letter was 3, and 

13 this exhibi:t WqS 4.. All right? 

.. 
14 MR. GILLESPIE: Thank you • 

16 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: We'll stand 

16 in recess. 
: .. 
• 17 • 0 ... 

.. 18 
D 

NOTE: The Commission recessed at 
g .. 
g 

i 19 • 
12:30 p.m. for lunch, to reconvene at 

.. • • 0 20 ,. 
c 

2:00 o'clock p.m., this same date. 
• 
0 ... 21 0 
c 
0 • • .. 

22 

23 

24 

l_ 25 
\ 
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2 THE BAILIFF: The Commission 

3 resumes its session. 

4 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Gillespie, 

5 I think we ' re ready for you to examine 

6 Mr. Wilcox. 

7 MR. GILLESPIE: Did Mr. Wilcox 

8 make it back? 

9 MR. MORRISSEY: He's in the 

10 elevator and is on his way now. 

11 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I hope it's 

12 not stuck. 

13 MR. GILLE·SPIE: I have no questions 

14 of Mr. Wilcox. 

15 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You have 

16 no questions for h~? 

17 MR. GILLESPIE: I have none. 

18 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Does 

19 Mr. Gambardella have any? we'll wait for 

20 Mr. Wilcox and let Mr. Gambardella go. 

21 All right, Mr. Gambardella. 

22 MR. GAMBARDELLA: Thank you, Your Honor • 

23 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. GAMBARDELLA: 

25 Q Mr. Wilcox, you graduated from colleqe 
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2 in 1965; is that right? 

3 A The first time, yes. 

4 Q The first time. And went right to 

5 work for Northwestern Bell? 

6 
A I did. 

7 Q And then, continuing to work for the 

8 Bell System, you took a Master's Degree somewhere along 

9 the way; 'is that correct? 

10 A I did. 

11 
Q And you~ve worked for the Bell System 

12 
and now its corporate successors for your entire career; 

13 
is that correct? 

14 
A Yes, it is. 

15 
Q So I take it you know considerably 

16 
more about the Bell System and AT&T Communications now 

17 
th~n you know about the occ systems and the details 

18 
and internal information of their operations; is that 

19 
right? 

A Yes, that would be true. 
20 

21 
Q It's true, isn't it, that AT&T 

22 
Communications of Virginia provides interexchange service 

23 
throughout the Commonwealth of Virginia? 

A Yes. 
24 

Q And it's also true, isn't it, that at 
25 
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2 least temporarily, AT&T will be the only interexchange 

3 carrier serving some of those customers in Virginia1 

4 isn't that righ~? 

5 A That's true today, yes. 

6 Q And that will be true for some ttme 

7 in the future; won't it? 

8 A Well, some time, yes. 

9 Q All right. And on Page 4 of your 

10 testimony, you say that in the United States, approximately 

11 
"two-thirds of the u.s. population resides in areas now 

12 served by one or more of the OCCs"; is that r~gh't:? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q I take it the other third is the 

15 
opposite; that there is no occ in that area? 

16 
A That's true, yes. 

17 
Q So if that national experien<:e applied 

18 to Virginia, then fully one-third of the market in 

19 
Virginia would not be served by an OCC; is ~at right? 

• E 
E 

~ 20 c 

A If the same proportion held true, 
• 

21 
that would be correct. 

22 
Q All right, sir. Now, I understand 

23' 
that AT&T Communications doesn't know what its share 

24 
of the Virginia market is intrastate; is that r:Lght? 

25 
A well, what do you mean by share of the 

\ 

1.:169 



133 

\..,. 

I 

0 
;: 

• • 
~ 

! 
0 

.. 
i 
w 
z 
z 
~ 
~ • 
0 
u 
0 
~ 

" z ... 
&. 

-... 

\ ... 

Wilcox - Cross 248 

2 market? You're not talklng about· locations served now~ . you' r 

3 talking about volumes? 

4 Q I'm talking about locations served, 

5 customers served. 

6 A ah, well, we do have some data that 

7 shows that what the aces have been able to do in 

a the areas that they do serve. I don't have statistics 

9 on number of customers of resellers because they don't 

10 have any requirement to report that, and they don't 

11 report it. 

12 Q So you don't know, you've made no 

13 study, I take it·, of the areas where you would have 

14 customers but no one else would be servedJ is that 

15 correct? 

16 A well, I have some data on the exchanges 

17 that both aces and resellers serve in Virginia, so by 

18 process of elimination, you could get those. But I 

19 don't know about 

20 Q Have you made that study? 

21 
A Yes, I have. 

22 Q When did you make that study? 

23 
A Friday, Saturday, Sunday and this 

24 
morning. 

25 
Q I see. You didn't have the study when 
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2 you filed the petition in this case? 

3 

4 

A 

Q 

No, I did not. 

All right, sir. And that's why you 

s didn't produce it in response to discovery requests: 

6 is that correct? 

7 A That's correct. 

a Q Are you aware that our discovery 

9 request -- well, strike that. 

10 It's fair to say, isn't it, that AT&T's 

11 market share in the country is large? 

12 A It's 57.3 percent. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Is it la~ge? 

It's la~ger than -- I guess. 

Q I believe on Page ll of your testimony, 

you characterize it as overwh~1mi~g; don't you? About the 

middle of the page, last word in the line. 

A No, that isn't that does not apply 

to AT&T's market share nationwide, that applies to those 

situations where we've been compelled to .charge prices 

below cost. 

Q And in those areas, your market share 

is overwhelming? 

A Generally, it's a hundred percent. 

That's true in Virginia as well. 
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2 Q All right. Is that is that generally 

3 where you also have no competitors? 

4 A No, that's generally, for example, 

5 in Virginia, our private line services, in general, are 

6 under cost, and in this proceeding, MCI, for example, 

7 has not even chosen to file private line tariffs. I 

8 don't blame them. 

9 Q so you're making a differentiation 

10 in ·service by service? 

11 A Yes, certainly. 

12 Q Okay. Some services you're forced 

13 to charge below cost by regulation and other services 

14 you're forced to charge above costJ is that correct? 

15 A That's historically true, yes. 

16 Q The fmplication in your testimony 

17 this morning and in the petition is that AT&T will provide 

18 no monopoly services in Virqinia. I shouldn't ~ply from 

19 that that you meant you wouldn't have any areas where 

20 
you're the sole provider of the service? 

21 A No, I suspect strongly we are the 

22 
sole provider in so~ localities • 

23 
Q And the basis of that statement, isn't 

24 
it, is··tttat the MFJ and. the Plan of Reorganization r~quired 

25 
AT&T to divest itself of local exchange service1 is that 
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2 correct? 

3 A That's correct. 

4 Q That's the sole basis of that 

5 statement? 

6 A Well, it's certainly not the sole 

7 basis for it. We're an interexchange carrier. Resellers, 

a I would classify as interexchanqe carriers, and they've 

9 shown a remarkable ability to pop up even in small 

1o exchanges. So that in fact one of the greatest trends 

11 going on today in telecommunications is the establishment 

12 by independent companies of their own resale subsidiaries 

13 to serve their communities:thei~ exchanges. That's also 

14 true in Virginia. So the fact that we might be the only 

15 
carrier in town today certainly doesn't imply that there 

16 
may not be one or more additional carriers tomorrow. 

17 Q All right., sir. The petition also 

18 states that AT&T owns no bottleneck facilitiesJ is that 

19 correct? 

20 
A That's correct, yes. 

21 
Q Am I correct that that statement 

22 
means that you divested local exchanges? 

23 
A Yes, that's true. 

24 
Q All right. And have you made any 

25 
study to determine whether the facilities that AT&T 
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2 remains owner of can be used to provide intraLATA service? 

3 A Well, yes, we have, in a couple of 

4 different ways. First of all, we have done some studies 

5 of where it would be appropriate for our firm to locate 

6 our Points of Presence, and when you locate additional 

7 Points of Presence, generally you would take into 

8 account the installation of facilities to connect them 

9 with your existing Points of Presence, so that you would, 

10 in essence, be transporting calls intraLATA. You may not 

11 be completing them in that regard, but you are, at least, 

12 transporting them part of the way into the LATA or 

13 further into the LATA. 

14 Secondly, we've looked at the 

15 possibility of utilizing FX service to provide sort of 

16 intraLATA WATS from another LATA, if you will. Now, 

17 that doesn't exactlY. use our facilities as we would 

18 rent under the access tariffs facilities from C&P or 

19 the other Local Exchange Carriers to do that. So we've 

20 
looked at least in those two cases of expanding our 

21 
presence in the LATA. 

22 
Q Have you made any study to determine 

23 
whether the facilities AT&T owns now can be used as 

24 
bottleneck facilities? 

25 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: So the record 
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will be clea~, .define what you mean by 

bottleneck facilities. 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Are you asking me, 

Your Honor? 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes. 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Your Honor, I'd 

ask the witness to define bottleneck. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: ~ war1t to 

make sure you're all on the same. frequency 

here. 

How do you define bottlenec~ 

facilities, Mr. Wilcox? 

THE WITNESS: I would define 

bottleneck facilities as facilities which 

have the capability of being provided by 

monopoly service and not being readily 

replica ted by competitive firms • Local 

exchange networks are clearly a bottleneck 

facility. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Bypass 

wouldn't have any influence, then, would 

it? 

. TH~ WITNESS: It does, Your Honor, 

but bypass is not a network facility, as such, 
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2 usually, it's usually a direct facility to a' 

3 particular geographic point, like a building 

4 or a plantJ whereas the construction of a 

5 local area network to your house and my 

6 
house and so on, to many locations, · 

7 bringing them into one switching location 

8 defines the bottleneck. 

9 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: In that 

10 context then, go ahead, Mr. Gambardella. 

11 BY MR. GAMBARDELLA: (Continuing) 

12 Q Have you made any studies to determine 

13 whether the facilities AT&T owns currently could be used 

14 as bottleneck facilities? 

15 A Yes, we've looked at our facility 

16 plans and I don't know of any way that we could utilize 

17 those as bottleneck facilities. You know, many carriers 

18 today we are not among them in Virginia -- but many 

19 carriers today do have a shortage of circuits. Some of 

20 
the OCCs are turning away business in certain parts of 

21 
the region, and so ·to a. certain extent they would be 

22 
ill-advised to utilize their facilities for private line 

23 
services, for example-, which generate less revenue per 

24 
line than for switch services. So in one sense, I guess 

25 
you could say that there may be a bottleneck in that the 
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2 pipe isn't big eno~qh to hold everybody, but it's not a 

3 bottleneck in the classic sense of that term, as we're 

4 using it. 

5 Q All right, sir, would you classify 

6 that as a study you've made? 

7 A Well, we certain~y looked· at .our 

8 network -- maybe you could define study for me, and I 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

could answer your question. 

Q Well, I'm thinking about a formalized 

study that could have been produced in discovery, for 

example. 

A Well, I don't know. If you had 

asked us for our facility map, we probably would have 

made that available to you under protective ~greement, 

or maybe without it. I'm not sure. 

Q When did you take a look at the 

facility map to decide all of this? 

A Well, I've looked at the Points of 

Presence in Virginia within the last week, within the 

last month, within the last two months on a reqt1lar 

basis. 

Q Did you generate any business records 

as you did that? 

A J'ust the maps themselves. We need to 
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2 look at those to develop cost studies as well. 

3 Q And you did some of that before 

4 July 23rd, 1984; is that correct? 

5 A We certainly looked at it. I know 

6 I've certainly looked at our facility mapswell before 

7 that, but I don't consider our facilities to have any 

8 bottleneck nature to them. 

9 Q Mr. Schell said this morning that 

10 AT&T purchases some Feature Group A service from C&P; 

11 is that correct? 

12 A From C&P of Virginia, yes, we do. 

13 Q And to the extent that that servic~ 

14 would permit some sort of intraLATA service, intraLATA 

15 call completion 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q -- does that pose the same block-or-

18 pay problem as the occs now face? 

19 A No, it really doesn't in the case of 

20 
Feature Group A used for FX, which is what we use it 

21 
for. And when I say we buy it, we really purchase it 

22 
under two different tariffs. we purchase it under the 

23 
Federal tariff for interstate FX, and ~e purchase it 

24 
under their State tarif£ for intrastate FX, and the two 

25 
tariffs are markedly different. In either case though, 
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2 the use of Feature Group A to terminate a call from the 

3 open end of that line to another point within the LATA 

4 is recorded by C&P, but it is billed as access, not as 

5 long distance. so, in other words, the message billing 

6 indicator is_ ·put ·into their billing system so that 

7 a call from point A to point B within the LATA, point A 

8 being the open end of the FX and point B being another 

9 point within the same LATA is billed under local transport 

10 rates, not under their toll schedule. So they're already 

11 being compensated in their access ¢barge tariffs as they 

12 have written them for those calls. 

13 Q All righ.t, ~ir ~- Are you fatniliar 

14 with something called the Block-of-Time Optional. Calling 

15 
Plan? 

16 
A Yes, I am. 

17 Q And am I correct that AT&T filed that 

18 
at the FCC and the Common Carrier Bureau of the FCC 

19 
approved itJ is that correct? 

20 
A I think that's essentially right, 

21 
yes. I'm not sure of all of the parameters of-what 

22 
they can and can • t approve, but I think what you said 

23 
is essentially correct, yes. 

24 
Q · All right, sir. And then the Justice 

25 
Department objected to it and asked for a review of itr 
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2 is that correct? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q It's true, isn't it, that one of the 

5 things the Justice Department said about it was that it was 

6 below cost, and they thought it might be anti-competitive; 

7 isn't that correct? 

8 A I believe they said they thought it was 

9 below cost, yes. 

10 Q And they also said they thought it 

11 might be anti-competitive under certain circumstances? 

12 A I don't know if they used the term 

13 or not. 

14 Q Let me show yo~ a copy of the document 

15 that was provided in response to our discovery. This 

16 
document is entitled, it. w.as filed "In the Matter of AT&T 

17 Communications, Inc., Revisions of Tariffs FCC No. 263 

18 and FCC No. 1," and the Docket Number is Transmittal 

19 No. 79. It's entitled "Application to the.··Department of 

20 
Jus:tice, For Review." And I'd like you just to read 

21 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: What's the 

22 
date? 

23 
MR. GAMBARDELLA: The date, Your 

24 
Honor, is.July 6th, 1984, stamped in at the 

25 
FCC. 
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2 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you. 

3 BY MR. GAMBARDELLA: (Continuing) 

4 Q And I'd like you to just read a 

5 sentence. I'.d like you to just read a sentence beginning 

6 five lines from the bottom of the text there, "Moreover ••• 

7 A "Moreover, if the existing access 

a charges do reflect costs appropriately or have been 

9 otherwise designed to meet public interest concerns, 

10 AT&T's pricing below those costs may be considered 

11 blatantly anti-competitive or otherwise contrary to the 

12 goals underlying the access charge structure." 

13 Q Thank you. Do you understand generally 

14 what they're talking about? 

16 A Yes, I do. 

16 Q And it would be fair to conclude --

17 and I'm not asking you to agree with this -- it would be 

18 fair to conclude from that the Justice Department thinks 

19 that plan is anti-competitive? 

20 
A No, I think it's fair to conclude 

21 
from their statement that they don't understand how 

22 access charges work • 

23 Q I see. 

24 
(L.aughter) 

25 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Is that a 
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2 ruling or is that 

3 MR. GAMBARDELLA: No, Your Honor, 

4 that's the Justice Department --

5 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: That's .just 

6 an inquiry for them to look at this. 

7 MR. GAMBARDELLA: Just the Justice 

8 Department's position. I just wanted that in 

9 for the proof.that the statement was made, 

10 Your Honor. 

11 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Okay. 

12 BY MR. GAMBARDELLA: (Continuing) 

13 Q You said this morning, and I believe 

14 well, let me ask you first: Page 13 of your t~stimony, 

15 you discuss briefly some advertising results that you 

16 had, and you state that, "We are now on a par with MCI 

17 
as far as consumer recognition is concerned"7 is that 

18 right? 

19 A Yes. 

20 
Q I take it that there you're talking 

21 
only about business for which you'll have to compete 

22 
with MCI; is that right? 

23 
A Well, no, actually not. We take a 

24 
study every month of. 2,000 business customers which are 

25 
which do not include the, .-:what .you· might think of as the 
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2 Fortune 500 firms, the national account, status customers 

3 are not included in the sample • And we use a. ~combination 

4 of Dun & Bradstreet data and census data to establish 

5 a random sample of those fir.ms thro~ghout the nation, 

6 so that there may be some businesses included in there 

7 that are not in .a· ~rket area. served by competitors. 

8 Q All right, what I want to get at 

9 is this: You're on a par with MCI as far as customers 

10 you have to advertise to attractJ is that correct? 

11 
Is that what your statement means? 

12 A What my statement is is that when we 

13 
ask these customers, and the customers are screened, 

14 
so that we're talking to the person in the firm responsible 

16 
for purchasing telecommunications services, when we ask 

16 
them, like two questions: One is, you know, ca11 you 

17 
name one long-distance company, and then are there 

18 
any others is another question. We tally the n1.nnber of 

19 
times they say AT&T or AT&T Communications, and the 

20 
number of times they say MCI, Sprint and so on, and 

. 21 
what I'm saying is that the percentage ·of folks who, 

22 
without aid, mention our name is equal to that, to the 

23 
number of those who mention MCI. 

24 
Q All right, so you feel you're equal 

25 
with MCI in terms of name recognition now1 is that correct? 
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2 A Yes. 

3 Q Okay. It's true, isn't it, that you 

4 won't have to have name recognition to obtain some 

5 customers; isn't that right? There are customers under 

6 equal access who don't designate another carrier and 

7 AT&T will get that business; isn't that right? 

8 A They will get that business in 

9 Virginia. 

10 Q All right, .sir. And so, in that 

11 sense, you don't need to be on par with MCI for those 

12 customers? 

13 A That's true. 

14 Q You serve all customers in Virginia 

15 
now? 

16 
A Yes, we do. 

17 
Q Do you think there's any kind of 

18 
inertia on the part of customers not to cha~ge? 

19 
A Yeah, especially for those that don't 

20 
make many calls, there certainly is. 

21 
Q And AT&T is going to get all those 

customers? 
22 

A Unfortunately, we are, yes. 
23 

Q You don't want customers? 
24 

A ~11, I, you know, it's a truism in this 
25 

l.184 
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2 industry that high volume equals high profit, and the 

3 reverse is also true. 

4 Q You stated, I believe, this morning 

5 orally, and I think you stated in your testimony, that 

6 AT&T has no plans to de-average rates in Virginia7 is 

7 that right? 

8 A we have no plans to de-average rates 

9 geographically in Virginia. 

10 Q All right, sir. Does that mean that 

11 . AT&T will charge the same rate for the same serv·ice 

12 in a1·1 parts of the State? 

13 A Well, let's be sure yeah, ·we could 

14 quibble about some private line things, but I think 

15 you're really getting at WATS and toll rates, and the 

16 
answer to that question is yes, with regard to those 

cr.· . .... 
• 17 • 

services • 
~ 

.. 18 0 

Q All right, sir. And that will apply 
0 ... 
o• 

"!! 19 .. to services that exist today and new services as well? 
.... 
a: 
a:: :: 20 c 

A Yes. 
• 
0 
" 21 a, 

Q Okay. If your petition is granted 
c 
Ill 
1: 
lol 
~ 

22 
in this case, as you've requested it, there wouldn't be 

23 
any requirement on the company to refrain from de-averaging 

24 
its rates7 would there? 

25 
A Not to_my knowledge, no. 

\ ' . 
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2 Q So, what we have is a unilateral 

3 commitment of the company which could be changed 

4 unilaterally~ is that correct? 

5 A Yes, certainly. And the fact is, 

6 however, there just simply isn't any reason to go to 

7 geographic de-averaging on the part of our firm; unlike 

8 that of some of our competitors. 

9 Q And I believe you said that on Page 18 

10 of your testimony, or 17 and 18, over onto 18, and what 

11 you say is that; ·."While· ~ere· ·are--economic realiti;es 

12 and cost imperatives involved in serving rural areas 

13 which must be faced in the future, it is AT&T's policy 

14 to maintain its current statewide rate unifor.mity by 

16 service category." 

16 
A Yes. 

17 
Q What are those economic realities 

18 and cost imperatives we're going to face in the future? 

19 A Well, as the amount of subsidy is 

20 
phased down. ~n the accese charges, the amount of 

21 
differential between serving a remote exchange and one 

22 
relatively near a carrier's Point of Presence becomes 

23 
proportionately greater. Today our access charges 

24 
on a minute-of-use basis intrastate may r~ge anywhere 

25 
from 16 to 20 cent$ a minute. The variability of serving 
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2 a small remote exchange to serving the large exchange 

3 in which your Point of Presence is located is on the 

4 magnitude of a couple of cents. So it isn't worth 

5 the marketing effort and explanatory work that would 

e have to be done with our sales folks, answering inquiries, 

7 trying to pubiish sensible advertising, it isn't worth 

a all those costs and effort to try to get at something 

9 that represents something less than ten percent of your 

10 total access bill. And that's on additional minutes, 

11 by the way. ·on initial·. minutes, : we're looking at 

12 probably a 30 to 32-cent access charge for the first 

13 minute, which includes billing and collection charges • 

.... 
14 There just isn't any sense today, as far as I'm 

15 concerned, to de-average for a couple of cents. 

16 Q All right, sir. How long is that 

17 going to continue? 

18 A Well, I'm certainly not in control 

19 of how that subsidy is phased down. Our position has 

20 
been that it should take place over a three ·to.five-year 

21 
time frame. So as you get down to-- let's say you 

22 
eliminate all subsidies from access charges and switch 

23 
to access, the local exchange companies are reimbursed 

24 
for their costs, plus ra~e of return. If you did that, 

25 
then you might have the situation where serving a remote 
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2 exchange might represent a cost increase of some 33 percent, 

3 compared to serving a close and larger exchange. However, 

4 your total cost would have gone down 60 to 70 percent, 

5 so that what would happen is that the rates in rural 

6 areas would come down either more slowly or less than 

7 they would come down in the major metropolitan areas 

8 of the State. 

9 Q so, is the Company prepared today 

10 to commit to this policy for three to five years; is that 

11 
what you're sayi~g? 

12 
A I'm committed to the policy that 

13 
we're goi~g to follow our costs. 

14 
Q All right, sir. And your costs 

15 
might change tomorrow, and the_ Commission wouldn't 

16 
know that, you'd change- the·:tariff and you wouldn't =file 

17 
them here, and would be de-averagedJ is that right? 

18 
A Well, I think the people in Toms 

19 
Brook would be delighted to know that their rates 

20 
went down SO percent. They might not be delighted to 

21 
know they went down 58 percent in Roanoke, but I think 

22 
they'd like to have their rates cut 50 percent, and 

23 
that~s about what would happen if access cha~ges were 

set at cost without subsidy to non-traffic-sensitive 
24 

25 
cha~ges. 
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2 Q Let's assume access charges stayed 

3 where they are. 

4 A All right. 

5 Q What's going to happen to those people 

6 in Toms Brook? 

7 A They're probably going to pay the 

8 same rates···they' re paying now, as least from us. 

9 Q For how long? 

10 A Forever. 

11 Q A more correct answer to that really is 

12 you don't know,if the cost changed;you:miqht ·change it 

13 tomorrow, you might change it·neve-r;. isn.'t that.a fair 

14 statement? 

15 A No, that's an inaccurate statement. 

16 If our cost changes, our prices have to change, there 

17 isn't any question about that. If our costs go down, 

18 our prices go down. And they will go down relative 

19 to the drop in the cost in those areas, if the 

20 
differential becomes great enough to warrant de-averaging. 

21 
There are a lot of marketing disadvantages to de-averaging. 

22 
Q All right, sir. Is it always true 

23 
that in the competitive market, that when your costs go 

24 
up or down, your price. ch~ges? 

25 
A It's not always true. ~ome businesses 
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2 go out of business when their costs go up and their 

3 prices cannot. 

4 Q All right, sir. And when their 

5 costs go down, sometimes they make a lot of money~ 

6 don't they? 

7 A Yeah, but that's not the way 

s competition is supposed to work. 

9 Q I see. So can we characterize this 

10 unilateral commitment we've got from the Company as 

11 indefinite? 

12 A Well, it's indefinite in the sense 

13 that you don't understand what it means or in duration? 

14 Q In duration. 

15 A Yes, I think it's indefinite in 

16 duration. I don't know of any way that we can ignore 

17 costs in our pricing. 

18 Q So that means it could change tomorrow, 

19 but you don't think it will, or it may never change? 

20 
A I don't think it will change tomorrowo 

21 
We have filed a complaint with this Commission on access 

22 
charges, and if, as a result of that, our costs go down, 

23 
we'd love to lower our rates. 

24 Q If your costs went up --

25 
A If our costs go up, we're going to 
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2 have to raise our rates, if we ca~ in those services. 

3 MR. GAMBARDELLA: That's all I have, 

4 Your Honor. 

5 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you, 

6 Mr. Gambardella. 

7 Mr. Marmon? 

8 

9 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

10 BY MR. MARMON: 

11 Q Good afternoon, Mr. Wilcox. I'm 

12 William Marmon with MCI. 

13 Mr. Wilcox, do you have an academic 

14 degree in economics? 

15 A No, I don't. 

16 
Q And have you authored or published 

17 papers on economic theory or economic effects of 

18 regulation or deregulation? 

19 A No, I have not. 

20 
Q Do you hold yourself out as an 

21 
economist? 

22 
A Certainly not. 

23 
MR. ~ON: With all due.respect, 

24 
Your Honors, we would move to strike the 

25 
parts of Mr. Wilcox's testimony which deal 
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purely with questions of economic theory. 

Alternatively, we would move that his 

testimony be accepted with the qualification 

that they are his views with r~sp~ct to his· 

company's position and: aspirations, .. but 

not as the expert opinion of an ·economist. 

And the parts of the testimony I'm referring 

to start on Page 10, the first four and a 

half lines after the question: "Does AT&T 

Communications' market share enable it to 

preclude competitive entry?" That first 

sentence there. Page 12, the answer at the 

top of the page, the entire answer. And 

Page 17, the answer to the question starting 

at the top quarter of the page. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You say the 

top of Page 17, the top quarter? 

MR. MARMON: Yes, Page 17, starting 

after the question, "Is continued regulatory 

oversight of AT&T's prices necessary?" And 

the rest of that page, and continuing over 

to the top of· Page 18, and, in fact, 

continuing through the answer to the next 

question on Page· 18. And the answer to the 
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question that starts on Page 18 at the bottom, 

and is answered at the top of Page 18, the 

first nine lines. And then on Page 20, 

the answer that follows the question, 

"Will deregulation of AT&T Communications' 

intrastate prices be in the best interest 

of the general public?" 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: What's the 

basis of your objection? 

MR. MARMON: That this testimony 

is purely economic theory. For example, on 

Page 10, where the question is, "Does AT&T 

Communications' market sha~e enable it to 

preclude competitive entry·~ " the answer is, 

"No. It is apparent based upon the market 

penetration that other common carriers and 

resellers have made in their targeted 

markets that AT&T Communications does not 

possess the power," etcetera, that.this is a 

judgment that requires, and is taken for 

expert opinion, judqment that Mr. Wilcox's 

background. does not qualify him to make. 

CO~ISSIONER SHANNON~ In other 

words, you're sayi~g that he's not an 
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economist? 

MR. MARMON: That's r~ght. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Morrissey? 

MR. MORRISSEY: Judge Shannon, if 

that is the sole basis, then I believe it 

should be ignored. We have never claimed 

that Mr. Wilcox is an economist. We had 

Dr. Alessio that did give the economic 

tenants under which Mr. Wilcox based his 

views. Mr. Wilcox is a manager of our 

business, and like all businesses, they 

don't have economists running the business. 

Economists give general principles and the 

business managers take those economic 

principles into the real practical world 

and apply them, and that is exactly what 

Mr. Wilcox is doing, and that is the scope 

of his testimony. He has taken the economic 

principles developed by Dr. Alessi~ of which 

he ·is . aware as just a businessman and is 

applying them to show what the actual 

practical application of those-economic 

principles ·are· in Virginia, and I believe 

they should ·be taken with that consideration. 
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2 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, the 

3 ComDdssion is of the unanimous opinion that, 

4 of course, Mr. Wilcox is the manaqer and he 

5 relies upon information from many sources, 

6 
and while your objection certainly would qo 

7 to the weight that we may qive it, it doesn't 

8 go to its admissibility. And so we will let 

9 it stand as is, and we will consider i·t, 

10 the weight that will be given to it, when 

11 
we make our final determination in this 

12 proceeding. 

13 
MR. MARMON: 'l'hank you. 

,. .. 

14 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

15 Q Now, Mr. Wilcox, in answer to a 

16 question of Mr. Gambardella, I think you stated that 

! 
17 there are customers in Virginia for whom AT&T is the 

18 sole provider at this time and in the foreseeable future1 

19 is that correct? 

20 
A I didn't say in the foreseeable 

21 
future. What I said was that we are, I think we are 

22 
the only provider in some localities. I can't know that 

23 
for sure because I don't know where all of the resellers 

24 
may be. They spring up quickly. But I would_ guess 

25 
from the data I do have that we are the only supplier in 
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2 some localities in Virginia to~ay. 

3 Q And on Paqe 11 of your testimony, 

4 you state that in some areas, I think you're referri~g 

5 to country, AT&T has been compelled to charge prices 

6 which are below its costs. Now, would this apply to 

7 Virginia as ·well? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Certainly. 

Q AT&T Communications of Virginia is the 

wholly owned subsidiary of AT&T Communications, the 

successor to AT&T Long Lines; is that correct? 

A No, AT&T Long Lines is·still AT&T 

Long Lines. 

Q Could you explain the corporate 

structure into which AT&T Communications of Virginia 

fits? 

A AT&T Communications of Virginia, Inc. 

is a wholly owned subsidiary of AT&T, and AT&T Communications, 

Inc. is the manaqement arm that manages both the Long. Lines 

Division and the intrastate companies, such as AT&T 

Communications of Virginia, Inc. 

Q Does AT&T of Virginia have a tariff 

setting department, or is this done on a more global 

basis? 

A We have -- well, when you say tariff, 
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2 the folks 

3 Q Who sets let me rephrase the 

4 question. 

5 Who sets-- who makes up·the tariffs 

6 for AT&T of Virginia? 

7 A My group does. 

8 

9 

10 

11 report? 

12 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Your group is what? 

State Prici~g Implementation. 

And to.what·oorporate entity does that 

AT&T Communications, Inc. To be more 

13 precise, the group that I supervise does cost analysis 

14 work and write· tariffs and establish proposed prices to 

1& commissions in the States of New Jersey, Pennsylvania, 

16 Vi~ginia, Maryland and West Virginia. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

COMMI~SIONER SHANNON: Is Long Lines 

still a separate entity? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, it is, sir. It's 

an operating, but ··it's not a .l:"egal .entity. 

21 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

22 Q Do you -- do you have to get permission 

23 from any higher au~ority to set rates in the states that 

24 you supervise? 

25 A · Not authority per se, no. I do review 
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2 pricing proposals with some of our headquarters folks, 

3 but the main responsibility for proposed prices is mine. 

4 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, to whom 

5 do you report? 

6 THE WITNESS: I report ·to a man· 

7 named Carl Stuehrk .• 

8 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Carl what? 

9 THE WITNESS: Stuehrk, S-t-u-e-h-r-k. 

10 And he works in Basking Ridge, New Jersey, 

11 and he has --

12 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: What's his 

13 
title? 

14 
THE WITNESS: He's Director of State 

15 
Pricing Implementation. 

16 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: And who does 

17 
he report to? 

18 
THE WITNESS: He reports to Larry 

19 
Garfinkel, and I don't know what his title 

20 
is. It just changed. They had a reorganization 

21 
up there. And Larry Garfinkel reports to 

Sam Wilcox, who is the Executive Vice-President 
22 

23 
for Marketing for AT&T Communications. 

24 
BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

25 
Q What is your business standing --

1.198 
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2 business understanding, Mr. Wilcox, of the term rate 

3 de-averaging? 

4 A well, if we're talking about geographic 

5 rate de-averaging, it would be charging more for the same 

6 service one place than another. 

7 Q Are there other forms of de-averaging? 

8 A Sure, volume discount plans are de-

9 averaging. 

10 Q Now, in your opening statement, you 

11 said, I think, that there is no current business reason 

12 to geographically de-average in Virginia at this time; 

13 ~s that correct? 

14 A Yes • 

15 
Q Would that statement apply to other 

16 forms of de-averaging? 

17 
A No. We de-average our rates today. 

18 
WATS is de-averaged toll on the basis·o;.volume. 

19 
Q Block-of-Time is a.de-averaged service? 

20 
A Certainly, de-averaged by customer 

volume. 
21 

22 
Q Is there any relationship between 

23 
b~ discount de-averaging and geographic de-averaging? 

24 
A Yes, ·there is, and the link is that 

25 
there are more large users.in la~ge metropolitan areas 
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2 than there are in small rural areas, just because there 

3 are more people there. So that bulk discounts tend to be 

4 sold more in metropolitan areas than they are in rural 

5 areas, and in total volume, not necessarily in proportion 

6 to the number of customers there, but just in total. 

7 Q Now, you have in your opening statement, 

8 and also on Page 18 of your testimony, indicated.it is. 

9 AT&T of Virginia's current policy to maintain statewide 

10 
uniformity by service category. 

11 
A. Yes. 

12 
Q Is this a policy that AT&T had on a 

13 
national basis before January l, 1984? 

14 A I don't know of any geographic 

15 
de-averaging of rates prior to that time. 

16 
Q Has this policy been stated by anyone 

17 
other than yourself at AT&T since January l, 1984? 

18 
A I don't know that I've ever seen it 

19 
in writing. 

Q Bas anyone else stated this policy 
20 

21 
with respect to Virginia other. than yourself? 

A Not to my knowledge. 
22 

Q And you say this policy has not been 
23 

reduced to writing, ·other than in your testimony in this 
24 

25 
proceeding? 
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2 A Well, I'm the one responsible for 

3 proposing prices here. 

4 Q And so when Mr. Morrissey a week ago, 

5 Friday stood up and told the Commission that AT&T would 

6 bring a pledge from the highest levels of AT&T that 

7 its rates in Virginia would not be de-averaged, ·this is 

8 what we're talking about, your testimony? 

9 A I'm it. 

10 (Laughter) 

11 You said, I think, in answer to a 

12 question by Mr. Gambardella thatyour policy is based on 

13 your··current·:view·;of wliat .. Y.O~ CQsts·:_are, ·your··policy· is 

14 not. ·to ~de-average? 

15 
A Yes, certainly. 

16 Q But if your costs change, that policy 
:. 
~ 
r 17 If 

could change? 
~ 

. 18 • 
A Could very well change. 

~ 
:. 

... 19 r 
Q would you have any objection to this 

• r 
r , 

20 c 
Co~ssion requiring AT&T, as a condition of being 

• 
; 
~ 

21 a 

deregulated, not to de-average its prices for some period 
or 
I 
r . 
~ of time? 

22 

23 
A Well, I would object to that if they 

24 
didn't order you to do it. 

25 
Q would you object to it if they ordered 

"--
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2 us to do it and you to do it? 

3 A Well, if the Commission decides that's 

4 the way the interexchange market is going to be in 

5 Virginia, they have a perfect right to do that. I would 

6 not advise them to do that. 

7 Q Would you argue against it? 

8 A I would argue against it on the 

9 basis I don't think that • s in the best interest of 

10 consumers in Virginia. 

11 Q Why not? 

12 A Well, because any time.-• .. if· the access 

13 charges filed by the local exchange carriers accurately 

14 . reflect their costs, then to ignore those costs is to 

15 invite interexchange carriers -- and I'm taking the 

16 broad definition of that, including resellers and other 

17 types to make investments to avoid those costs. And 

18 that may require, for example, that may incent those 

19 businesses to make investments which are not in the 

20 
best interest of the consumer as a whole, and any time 

21 
you get away from the actual cost of providing a service 

22 
in your pricing, you're inviting some sort of arbitrage, 

23 
and that often works to the betterment of the owners of the 

24 
arbitraging firm rather than the benefit:of the· 

25 
consumers. 
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2 Q Well, isn't it true then, .Mr~ Wilcox, 

3 that this so-called pledge not to de-aver~ge, there is no 

4 such thing, but is merely a statement ·of your current 

5 policy which is no more enduring than the next price 

6 change; would that be a correct statement? 

7 A Well, I wouldn't characterize it as a 

8 pledge. It is a statement of our policy today~ we do 

9 not geographically de-average. MCI does, for example. 

10 Q Now, you stated earlier in our 

11 
colloquy here that there are some areas of Virgj~ia 

12 
that AT&T is the sole provider? 

13 A What I said was, I believe that would be 

14 
true. I do not know for sure, but I believe that to be 

16 
true. 

16 
Q Okay. And you've also said that you 

17 
really don't know how many that might be? 

18 
A That's correct, too. 

19 
Q But you did submit as an exhibit 

20 
to your testimony a list of cities served by competitors, 

21 
that's DSW-2, Pages 1 and 2? 

22 
A Yes, that was the best information 

we had at the time. 
23 

Q That's the best information that you 
24 

25 
have with respect to where AT&T has competition? 
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2 A Well, actually, I have had a 

3 co~versation with a couple of people in the last few 

4 days, and I know of some additional exchanges served by 

5 resellers that I did not know about at the time this 

6 testimony was prepared. There are additional independent 

7 company exchanges of which I'm aware that have resellers 

a serving them. 

9 Q Would you like to --

10 A In addition to this list. 

11 Q Would you like ~o augment your list, 

12 now? 

13 A If you'd like .• 

14 Q Excuse me, these are only resellers? 

15 No other exchanges facilities-based occs that would be --

16 A There are some additional towns 

17 served by OCCs as well. 

18 Q I think that would be the most 

19 relevant, if we coul~ limit your additions to that. 

20 
A All riqht. It's my understanding 

21 
that Bristol, Virginia is also served by an ace out of 

22 
Bristol, Tennessee, I believe it is. And that is not 

23 
on this list. 

24 Q Which OCC? 

25 
A I'm not sure. And I do have Manassas 
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2 on there. 

3 There's an exch~ge out of 

4 Charlottesville which is served by Sprint by the name 

5 of Crozet, c-r-o-z-e-t, and also scottsville, which have 

a toll-free access to Charlottesville. So they would be 

7 additions to this list. 

8 Also, okay, out of Lynchburg, there's 

9 an exchange by the name of Concord. ~ynchburg is served 

10 by western Union. That would be an addition to this list. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Concord? 

A Concord. There's an independent 

company exchange that has EAS to Leesburg, which is 

served by MCI, and that exchange is Arcola. That would 

be an addition to the .list. 

Q 

A 

Also --

Bow do you spell that? 

A-r-c-o-1-a. 

Also with EAS to Leesburg is Catoctin, 

C-a-t-o-c-t-i-n and Middleburg and Mount Gilead. 

Q Those are all MCI? 

A Yes. Well, MCI serves Leesburg, and 

those four exchanges all have EAS.to Leesburg. western 

Union also serves Leesburg. 

Fredericksburg is served by MCI and the 
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2 independent exchanges of Chancellor and Stafford have . . 
3 EAS to Fredericksburg. So they would be additions to 

4 the list, as would the Bell exchanges of Spotsylvania 

5 and Hartwood. Temperanceville is served by Western 

6 
Union and is an addition to this list~ as would the 

7 exchanges of Chincoteague and Parksley, which have EAS 

8 to Temperanceville. 

9 Danville is also served by Western 

10 
Union, and that would be an addition to this list. 

11 
Suffolk is an exchange served by 

12 
Western Union and the Bell exchange of Whaleyville and 

13 
the independent excha~ges of Chucka~uck and Holland would 

14 
be additions to this list. 

15 
Q Chuckatuck and Pollock? 

16 
A Holland, H-o-1-1-a-n-d. 

In addition to Danville, there are 
17 

18 
two independent excha~ges, Bachelors Ball and Whitmill 

19 
Whitmell -- I'm sorry, which are exchanges that have 

EAS to Danville, so they would be additions to this list. 
20 

Roanoke is served by Sprint and MCI 
21 

and Western Union, and the independent exchange of 
22 

Troutville has EAS to Roanoke, and would be an addition 
23 

to this list, as would the Bell exchanges of Bent Mountain, 
24 

Montvale and Salem.· 
25 
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2 The list does contain Petersburg as 

3 an exchange. I'm not sure if that includes Hopewell 

4 and Dinwiddie or not. If it does, if those are in fact 

5 separate exchanges, they should be added to this list. 

a Petersburg is served by MCI. 

7 Those would be the additions served 

a by one or more occs. There are others served by resellers 

9 that would be additions to the list. 

10 Q Okay, thank you. On Page 9 of your 

11 testimony, you state, top of the paqe, "MCI, GTE-Sprint, 

12 Western Union, and USTS are currently active in the 

13 Cormnonweal th serving at least 48 cities." 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q Did you mean to include those plus 

16 resellers? 

17 A Let me check. 

18 
I suspect we counted the list, which 

19 includes resellers. I'd have to recount with the 

20 
additional list we just gave you. 

21 Q Right, but on the original list 

22 
which has 48 cities, would you accept that that does 

23 
include places that are served only by resellers? 

24 
A Yes~ the original, yes. 

25 
Q And would you -- could we just let the 
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2 record show that -- I can -- I've got these marked. Would 

3 you like to read them? I'd like in the record the 

4 cities that are served only ~ resellers. Would you 

s accept my examination of the list, or would you like 

6 to make it yourself? 

7 A Well, yeah, the list is actually 

8 incorrect, because -- and the number 48 may very well 

9 be right. For example, Ashland, which is shown on the 

10 list as···only. being. served by· Allnet, is actually .also.;_served 

11 by any number of OCCs, because.it has EAS to Richmond, 

12 as does Bethia -- Bethia -- Bethia -- I should have 

13 
stayed where I was, as also does Chester, as also does 

14 Manakin, as also does 

15 
Q I think you've got Manakin on the 

16 
list. 

17 
A Well, Manakin is ~llnet·only, but, 

18 
it is actually served by OCCs as well, because it's in 

19 
the free-calling area of Richmond, so there should be 

X's under all the OCCs in those columns wherever 
20 

21 
they are in Richmond. So Sprint, MCI, Western Union, 

22 
USTS, all serve Richmond, so they all serve Ashland, 

23 
Bethia, Chester, Manakin, .Mechanicsville, Midlothian, 

24 
Rockville, Sandst~n and Varina. 

25 
Q All·riqht. What about Chesapeake? 
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2 A Chesapeake is not served by an occ. 

3 Q What about Chester? 

4 A Chester is -- Chester is part of the 

5 Richmond free-calling area. 

6 
Q Now, what is DullesJ is Dulles a 

7 city? 

8 A Yes, it's a town, and that is part 

9 of the Washington metropolitan area, and it has EAS to 

10 any number of cities, for example, Arlington, Alexandria,. 

11 
Fairfax, Vienna, Falls Church, McLean, etc. So that's 

12 
served by all of the aces. 

13 
Also, Engleside, Herndon, Lorton, 

14 
and Lorton Metro are served by the OCCs • 

16 
MR. MARMON: Well, this exhibit has 

16 
proven to be of.fairly ephemeral value. I would 

17 
like, though, for what it's worth, which is not 

18 
going to be much at this point, to introduce, 

19 
I guess it would be osw-s, which is an 

20 
adaptation, an effort by MCI to get a 

handle on the list that we were given to 
21 

try to quantify the territory in which 
22 

AT&T does, in fact, have competition. 
23 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: This might 
24 

be a good time to take a short recess and let 
25 
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Mr. Wilcox look over this thing, and come 

back after the reces~ and I think we can 

tell whether he accepts it or doesn't 

accept it. 

All right, let's take a ten-minute 

recess. 

(Recess) 

THE BAILIFF: The Commission resumes 

its session. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

Mr. Mar.mon, please continue • 

MR. MARMON: All right. As we were 

breaking, I was offering as osw-4 ,(sic), an· exhibit 

which is an adaptation of DSW-2, which was 

submitted with Mr. Wilcox's testimony 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: They are 

attachments as we refer to them. 

MR. MARMON: All right -~ which was 

submitted as an adaptation of the attachment, 

and it was an attempt to quantify the 

information that AT&T presented with respect 
,· 

to cover~ge of its competitors, and these 

··1210 
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figures that we have noted by each of the 

cities and counties,where some of the 

counties and towns'come from, :the 

289 

1982 edition of the Report of the Secretary 

of the Commonwealth, based on 1980 census 

figures, and for the record, the areas 

where AT&T said that it had competition 

with facility~based resellers -- with 

facility-based OCCs and resellers, the 

figures came to about two million out of a 

total Virginia population of five and a 

quarter million. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Now, have you 

looked this over, Mr. Wilcox? 

it? 

THE WITNESS; .. Yes,. I have. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Do you accept 

THE ~TNESS: No, it's clearly wrong. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, he 

says it's clearly wro~g. 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Let me ask 

Mr. Mar.mon a question, just for my edification. 

For instance, I see the city -- as you know 

in Virginia, cities are not part of a ·. 

1211.. 
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county, they are independent cities of first 

or second class, as found in the Report of the 

Secretary of the Commonwealth. So I see. for 

instance, the City of Richmond, and I'm 

certain that the population there is correct 

with the census, but within the Richmond 

metropolitan area, the calling area for where 

we live, you have Chesterfield.and Henrico County 9 

which I would imagine are a half million_people, 

probably. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: And Hanover. 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: And Hanover, which 

is a half million people, and I think this is 

the problem we have, I think the exhibit for 

the cities is probably correct, but it does 

not take into account that the counties --

MR. MARMON: I recognize that, 

Your Honor. We were dealing with 'Chis Fri-day 

night with-_.-wh·at-we had.· we· thought it would be 

at least a start at a quantification. We 

don't ~ontend it's the last wordJ obviously, 

it's not, because of the corrections and 

additions that we hear of today, but it was 

the best that we had. 

1212 
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CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Could we have. 

the figure substituted for total population 

of the State of Virginia, total city 

population of the State of Virginia? 

MR. MARMON: Do we have the total? 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: The total 

population of all the cities in Virginia, 

so we would have a f~qure of a million nine 

hundred thousand out of X number of citizens 

who live·in a city. 

MR. MARMON: We could certainly try 

to get that.from this book. I'm not sure 

that we can derive that figure. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Of course, 

for the reason that_Judge Harwood said, 

there's a certain amount of speculation 

you're goi~g to put in these figures, because 

we know in the Richmond metropolitan area, 

there's 600-700,000 people. 

MR. MARMON: And we recognize that, 

and we submit this only as 1 as the best 

e.ffort that we could make with the information 

that we had witq respect to, to the areas. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well 1 maybe it 

1213 
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would be better, since Mr. Wilcox says he 

doesn't agree with it, maybe it would be 

better to put it in through your witness. 

MR. MARMON: Well, it's -- he doesn't 

agree with it on what grounds? 

THE WITNESS: It's wro~g. 

(Laughter) 

MR. MARMON: Well, it's not wrong 

under the -- it's not inaccurately describing 

what I had done. 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, what you did 

was wrong, that's right. 

In other words, it doesn't in any 

way portray the relative appearance of OCCs 

as opposed to AT&T in Virginia. Now, you know, 

I do have some data-- as I mentioned, we've 

been working over the weekend, and I apologize 

for the, frankly, the crumminess of this 

osw-2. We've done the best we can. It's 

tough to get this information. I can tell you 

every exchange in Bell's territory that has 

service from an OCC or an independent, or --

I'm sorry, _or ~ reseller, and I can tell you 

that those· exchanges comprise 93 percent of the 

i.2.1t\ 
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2 access lines that C&P serves. And I think 

3 that's a relative measure of presence as 

4 opposed to some population numbers, which 

5 may or may not apply to the exchange. 

6 
COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Let me make 

7 a suggestion: We've got to come back tomorrow, 

8 it looks like. MCI has this exhibitJ could you 

9 prepare one by tomorrow afternoon showing 

10 yoursj and we will just look at both? 

11 THE WI 'l'NES S: Sure • 

12 
COMMISSIOUER BRADSHAW: And weigh 

13 the evidence. 

~-. 

14 
COM:f-!ISSIONER SHANNON: I think that's 

15 
a good suggestion. We don't want anything 

16 
in this record based on conjecture or 

17 
speculation. We want it as accurate as 

18 
we can make it, and tnat's what you want, too, 

19 
Mr. Marmon,·· I'm ·sure. 

20 
MR. MARMON: It certainly is o 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I think if he 
21 

22 
can, over the night it's goi~g to put him 

23 
to a little work -- if he can come back 

24 
tomorrow·and supply this information as he's 

25 
indicated, I think that would be better. 

121S 
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CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Let me ask one 

further thing: As I understood your testimony, 

you had failed to list the exchanges that 

have EAS to some of the metropolitan areas, 

whether it be the cities or not, and not 

included those either? 

THE W~TNESS: Yes, in some cases, 

we had neglec;:ted to ·do that;. Your.-Honor. 

That' s correct. 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: It's my under-

standing from your testimony that what 

you're saying, anyone who has EAS to an 

area which an OCC has a presence has access 

now to an OCC? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, they do. In all 

cases, I think your EAS arrangements are 

two-way·in Virginia, so that is true. 

MR. MARMON: Could we since we're 

going to get this redone, could we get it 

broken down between, and separate it OCCs 

versus resellers? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Okay, all right, 

go ahead. ~hat's good. Thank you. Please procee • 

121G 
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COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Before we 

.get to the next question, let me ask a question 

for the record here. Would you give us your 

definition of a reseller, and since.· they're not 

regulated by anyone, how easy it is to get 

in the business? What's the procedure? 

THE WITNESS: Well, a reseller 

generally is categorized as an intere;,cchange 

carrier that has no interexchange facilities 

of their own. They typically buy a smart 

PBX, perhaps a Dimension 2000, and they 

utilize that in conjunction with w.ATS or 

FX service to provide calling at a discount 

from MTS rates to customers that call into 

their switch, utili~e some sort of accounting 

code, identification code, and then they 

complete the call on their FX lines or 

WATS lines, which they buy from one or 

another facility-based carrier. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Well, let's 

get back to the point that Mr. Gambardella 

was raising earlier, when we made the 

rules we were talking about Buffalo Gap. 

Suppose ~AT&T .is the only person to enter into 

1217 
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Buffalo Gap. rf the citizens of·Buffalo Gap 

wanted to get together and start their own 

little cooperative, they would just have 

to buy a .PBX and some time from youJ is that 

right, and then sell it at a discount to its 

members? 

THE ~TNESS: That's essentially 

right, yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, they 

could go through MCI if they wanted? 

THE WJ:TNESS: Or they could do it 

through MCI or Western Union. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Just forget 

Buffalo Gap. I'm not sure where it is 

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Buffalo Gap is 

just outside of Staunton. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Augusta 

County, I guess. But it would -- I think 

we're overlooking the intelligence of the· 

people here in these proceedings. They're 

smart enough to figure these ways outJ 

aren't they? 

· THE WITNESS: Oh, yes. In fact, 

there are any number of resellers in the 

1218 
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2 independent company territory that you may 

3 at first blush think are not, you know, 

4 would not support a resale operation, but 

5 they do, and you have to remember that you 

6 do have, in Virginia, a fair amount of 

7 EAS which creates bigger markets to 

8 enter, and there's also the possibility 

9 which some of the independent companies 

10 have told us they want to do, or !·should 

11 say some of the resellers told us they 

12 wanted to do, which is to connect various 

13 areas through FX arrangements, which are 

14 relatively inexpensive compared to MTS rates. 

15 
So that you can create a network that you 

16 
can efficiently sell if you have, if you have 

.. . .. 
• 17 .. the market to do it. And typically, what 
a-.. 
.. 18 
CIO 

that involves is one, or a fair number of 
CIO .. 
~ 

... 19 .: 
businesses that have significant amounts 

IIi 
z 
z e 20 c 

of interstate or intrastate calling. And 
• 
0 
" 21 D 

when you have that situation, it's probably 
c 
II • Ill .. 

22 
a good idea for an independent company to 

23 
start looking at their own resale subsidiary 

24 
to get there first, if you will. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Just a 
25 

1219 
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2 time-sharing proposition? 

3 THE WITNESS: That's exactly what 

4 it is. 

5 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Go ahead, . 

6 Mr~ Marmon. 

7 MR. MARMON: Okay. 

8 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

9 Q On Page 6 of your testimony, 

10 Mr. Wilcox, at the bottom, you say AT&T Communications 

11 provides no type of monopoly service in Virginia"l 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Now, you've already modified that 

14 in your discussion with Mr. Gambardella with respect 

15 to operator servicer have:you.not? 

16 A No, I said in my opening statement, 

17 the summary, that we provide no service currently in 

18 Virginia that our competitors do not offer with the 

19 exception of long-distance operator services. We 

20 
certainly have no monopoly on that service, and, in 

21 
fact, MCi has announced that they intend to get into 

22 
that business. Nothing prevents any carrier from hiring 

23 
its own operators and providing that service. It's 

24 
certainly not a monopoly service. 

25 
Q .it' s ·a monopoly service today? 
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2 A It is not a monopoly service today, 

3 because we have no way to bar entry into that market. 

4 Q It's not being provided by anyone 

5 else but AT&T today? 

6 A That is a true statement. 

7 Q Is it also true that today no other 

a carrier is providing dial l premium service in Virginia? 

9 A would you please define dial l 

10 premium service to me? 

11 Q A long distance call without extra 

12 digits, ten digits. 

13 A Well, I'm not sure that that's true. 

14 It would not be true in the case, for example, of an 

15 OCC that has their own, as MCJ: does, their own WATS 

16 service, which is accessed by a direct connection • 

17 Those calls certainly would not be placed through a 

18 seven-digit telephone number, and a PJ:N number, and all 

19 that stuff. It's a direct connectionJ they dial right 

20 
through. And I think you have. some customers like that 

21 in Virginia. I don't know. 

22 
Q You don't know of any customers? 

23 A Well, I don't know. I think you do. 

24 
Q You ·do. Who else in the State provides 

25 
800 in··wATS servioe·bes·ides AT&T? 

1.221. 
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.SBS. 

Is it comparable to the 800 in WATS 

4 service that AT&T provides? 

5 A They say it is. 

6 

7 

8 

Q 

A 

0 

What's your opinion? 

Yes.· 

Are there areas in the State of 

9 Virginia that AT&T would like·to cease serving at this 

10 point? 

11 

12 

A 

0 

No. 

But there are areas of Virginia 

13 that you serve at below co·st? 

14 

15 

A There are services we provide below 

cost. I don't know that.there is any geographic area 

16 in toto, taking all of our services into account, 

17 that is below cost. It's possible. 

18 Q Do you provide any MTS in the normal 

19 long-distance service at below cost in Virginia? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

yes. 

of that? 

A 

0 

A 

Q 

Some of our rates are below cost, 

And could you give us an example 

Short-haul, night-weekend rates. 

In· any~articular geographic locality? 

1.222 
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All of them. 

All of them. Now, when you cite 

4 the market penetration of aces on Page 10 of your 

5 testimony, 19 percent penetration level for residence 

6 customers who make $25 or more, et cetera --

7 A Yes. 

8 Q You don't know, those studies don't 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

show how much those customers actually used the aces 

as opposed to AT&TI do they? 

_ te$timony? 

A I think they may. I don't recall. 

Q 

A 

Q 

You haven't cited that in your 

No, I didn'to 

So it's possible that a customer 

that an OCC can s~qn up a customer and not earn a 

single nickel off that customer, is it not? 

A That's certainly possible, yes, 

if the customer didn't make any calls with them, they 

wouldn't make any money off them. 

Q When you sign up with an ace, you 

don't forfeit your right to call over AT&T? 

A No, that's true, or with another occ 

or a reseller, for· that matter. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, even 

1223 
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once. you have equal access, you'll still 

be able to access the occ of your choice by 

dialing the additional diqits1 is that right? 

THE WiTNESS: That's correct, yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That will 

always be there? 

THE WITNESS: Yes • In fact, the 

1/0XXX applies to resellers as well as OCCs. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: When would. 

it be ~o your customers' advantage to have 

more than one lonq-~is~ance carrier? 

THE WITNESS: Well, it would be 

to their advantage to use. AT&T if they wanted 

to place a call through an operator. 

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Other than 

that. 

THE WITNESS: Other than that, it 

would not be to their economic advantage, 

necessarily. I think both MCI and Sprint 

are now geographically ubiquitous on the 

terminatinq side, but some are not. So that 

if you -- "if they don't offer the cities or 

the iocation.s you want, you may want to use 

1224 



L89 

1 Wilcox - Cross 303 

2 more than one, especially now that at least 

3 MCI and Sprint have done away with their, 

4 ·their minimum monthly charge arrangements, 

5 so that for geographic reasons, you might 

6 want to use more than one. 

7 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

8 Q Are there any quality reasons why 

9 you might want to have more than one? 

10 A Well, you know 1 the OCCs, MCI in 

11 particular, is touting its quality -- I think Mr. Schell, 

12 I've heard Mr. Schell discuss quality more times than I 

13 care to remember now -- and I don' t think quali ·ty in 

14 terms, in the sense of transmission, echo, and those 

15 kinds of things, is a major problem for OCCs today. 

18 And I don't think it's a problem for resellers. I 

17 certainly don't think it's a problem for us. I don't 

18 think the quality of what it sounds like is necessarily 

19 a problem. You do have the, you know, the difference 

20 in the digits dialedJ that's for sure. If you call that 

I 21 quality, that is a difference. But I don't think the 
t· 
I 
t 
I 

22 quality of transmission is a factor in the u~age of one 

23 OCC versus another, to my knowledge. 

24 . COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Well, do .you 

25 think the quality of service 1 would that --

1225 
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2 would· ··phot:le· repair: be a major ·factor . 

3 in people 

4 THE WITNESS: Well, I have had --

5 frankly, Your ~onor, I have had people tell 

6 
me they like AT&T's private-line services 

7 even though they may be more expensive for 

8 that reason, that they can get service when 

9 they need it, and so on. But I've never 

10 heard -- I've not heard a s~q~ificant number 

11 
of people tell me personally that they got 

12 
rid of Sprint or MCI, or any of the other 

13 
OCCs or resellers because they couldn't 

... ~. 
14 

hear the person at the other end of the 

15 
call. 

16 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

17 Q Just one more question. You say on 

18 Page 19 of your testimony that if the Commission grants 

; 
1: 19 your petition,_it will continue to have a large measure 

20 
of control over AT&T's prices because it controls the 

21 
major share of its costs7 you mean access charges there? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q Now, isn't it true that if your 

24 
petition is grante~, that AT&T can charge as much over 

25 
access charges or as much below access charges as it 

1226 
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2 wants to? 

3 A Well, we'd certainly be constrained 

4 by the-market on the up side. In other words, we can't 

5 go out and raise prices SO percent and expect to keep 

6 business, and on the down side, we'd be restricted by 

1 the amount of money we have. We could do it un·t:.il it 

8 ran out. 

9 Q In your ~lock-of-Time of~eri~g that 

10 Mr. Gambardella was asking you about, isn't it true 

11 that if a customer subscribed to that and used the 

12 full amount of time that he would -:- you ·would: actually 

13 be offering it to that customer below the access cost? 

14 A I do not have, that is to say, 

15 AT&T Communications of Virginia has not proposed a 

16 Block-of-Time Plan in Virginia. Now, if you're talking 

17 about the Federal plan, the answer to your question is 

18 clearly no, that that plan is offered, and if utilized 

19 by the customer, would make money for AT&T Communications. 

20 
It would not be a loser. It is clearly above cost • 

21 
The reason for that is that the charges for carrier 

22 
common line that are imposed in the Federal access 

23 
charges are, in essence, a fixed cost. Although they 

24 
come at you on th~ basis of minutes of use, the total 

25 
amount to be raised by those charges in the Federal arena 

1227 
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2 are fixed, so that if the volume estimates which establish 

3 that rate were wrong, and volumes grow, that rate will be 

4 reduced, and the FCC has clearly said that in its Order. 

5 So that the, the major share of access charges in the 

6 Federal arena are, in effect, capped. Those charges 

7 are the MTS-associated rate of the carrier common line 

8 charge. There is no way that increased volumes can 

9 increase that cost. There~ore, that plan is, if 

10 successful, will be a profitable plan. If people take 

11 it and use it, it will provide additional profits to 

12 AT&T Communications. 

13 Q Isn •·t it true that the FCC concluded, 

14 even while approving it, that you were offering it at 

15 below cost? 

16 A Certainly not. That is not true • 

17 They did not conclude that. 

18 Q You're sure? 

19 A Absolutely sure. 

20 
Q I'd like to read you from Paragraph 7 

21 of the FCC Opinion 

22 
MR. MORRISSEY: Excuse me, is that 

23 the FCC Opinion? 

24 
MR. MARMON: Yes, it is. This is 

25 
Memorandum Opinion and Order released 

:1228 
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2 June 6th, 1984, in the Matter of AT&T 

3 Communications, Inc., Revisions to Tax·iffs, 

4 FCC No. 236. 

5 MR. MORRISSEY: Is it the Order 

6 of the FCC or the Common Carrier Bureau? 

7 MR. MARMON: It's by the Chief of 

8 the Common Carrier Bureau. 

9 MR. MORRISSEY: Thank you. 

10 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's the 

11 Staff Opinion. 

12 MR. MARMON: That's right. 

13 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

14 Q "We have not accepted "AT&T'·s attempt 

15 to justify current losses on these gro~ds. Until 

16 such time as the access charge tariffs are revised, 

17 AT&T's Block-of-Time Plan would appear ~o remain 

18 unprofitable." 

19 Do you disagree that the FCC, that 

20 the Common Carrier Bureau said that? 

21 A Well, I don't know the surrounding 

22 statements in that recommendation by the Bureau. I do 

23 know that they recommended that the plan be approved. 

24 Q That's true. 

25 A And I do know that the FCC, which was 

1229 
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2 your question, has never made a decision one way or the 

3 other. 

4 Q And you've already testified with 

5 Mr. Gambardella that the ·Justice Department thinks that 

6 the Block-of-Time provision is below cost? 

7 A Yes, I think the DOJ has asked for 

8 review of that filing because they don't understand how 

9 access charges work, and they think it may be below 

10 cost. 

11 MR. MARMON: I have no further 

12 questions. 

13 COMMISSIONER SHlL~NON: All riqht. 

14 Mr. Maqee or Ms. Dupont? 

15 MS. DUPONT: Yes. 

16 

17 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

18 BY MS • DUPONT: 

19 0 Good afternoon, Mr. Wilcox. 

20 
A Good afternoon. 

21 Q Mr. Wilcox, you gave us quite a list 

22 
of additional cities which you claim are accessible via 

23 
the use of OCCs' services, and those cities, or the 

24 
accessibility of those .cities, by and large, is based on 

25 the use of EASJ is that correct? 
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exchanges. 

Q 

309 

Yes, I did not give cities, I gave 

Okay, thank you. Extended Area 

Service allows customers to access OCC services via 

the Feature Group A interconnection; is that correct? 

A 

Q 

Yes,-that's eorrect. 

This is the same for.m of interconnection 

which requires customers to dial additional digits to 

receive· a second dial tone, which lacks answer supervision 

and Automatic Number Identification; is that correct? 

A 

Q 

telephones? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

That is correct, yes. 

Also, inaccessible via rota%y-dial 

That's not correct. 

Well, absent a tone generator? 

T}lat's -correct. 

·This Extended Area SerVice would not 

be useful for an OCC which was utilizing the Feature 

Group B Direct form of interconnection which Mr. Schell 

discussed; is that correct? 

A 

Q 

A 

950 number. 

Yes, it would. 

How do you figure that, Mr. Wilcox? 

well, it's a toll-free call to the 
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2 Q Now, we're talking about Feature Group 

3 B Direct, a direct connection to an end office now, not 

4 a tandem connection. 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Am I correct? 

7 A Well -- no, I still think that that 

a is correct. 

9 I'm. going to have to pass; I don't 

10 know for sure. You'll have to ask Mr. Schell. 

11 Q Mr. Wilcox, how many times have you 

12 appeared with Mr. Schell in these various proceedings 

13 and heard him discuss Feature Group B Direct? 

14 A Well, that's really two questions. 

15 How many times have I appeared? Well, maybe a dozen. 

16 How often do I listen? Not much any more. 

17 (La~ghter) 

18 Q So you can't tell us whether Feature 

.. 19 Group B Direct would allow a customer to utilize EAS 

20 
to access OCC service? 

21 
A You're right, I can·· t. 

22 
MS. DUPONT: Your Honors, I wonder 

23 
if, since Mr. Wilcox is unable to respond 

24 
to this question, since Mr. Schell is still 

25 
in the room, after we conclude cross-
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2 examination of Mr. Wilcox, since this appears 

3 to be additional evidence which has been 

4 presented, this accessibility via EAS, 

5 could I perhaps have an opportunity to put 

6 that question to Mr. Schell? 

7 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes, I think 

8 so. Mr. Schell is still here. 

9 · MS. DUPONT: Thank you. 

10 BY MS. DUPONT: (Continuing) 

11 Q Mr. Wilcox, you've also discussed the 

12 proliferation of resellers in the interexchanqe tele-

13 communications market1 is that correct? 

14 A well, proliferation is your word. 

15 There are getting to be more and more. 

16 Q Thank you. Could you tell me whose 

17 
service would;have to be resold by a reseller seeking to 

18 provide ubiquitous service, either originating or 

19 terminating? Would that not, in fact, be AT&T's 

20 
service? 

21 
A I think that a res·eller who establishes 

22 
their business, or has the ability to provide service 

23 
to customers in exchanges· served by OCCs can provide 

24 
terminating ubiquity ·through the WATS-like services 

25 
of OCCs. 

.. 
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2 Q Well, Mr. Wilcox, I'm speaking of 

3 ubiquitous termination and origination service. That 

4 would, no doubt, require the use of AT&T's WATS 

5 service; am I not correct? 

6 A Well, let's be precise. If a reseller 

7 is going to provide service to customers in an exchange 

8 which does not have originating service from anyone 

9 except AT&T, obviously, they can't resell services that 

10 are not offered, so they would have to be reselling 

11 AT&T's services out of that exchange. 

12 Q All r~ght. So a reseller would be 

13 limited to purchasi~g --

14 A With the exception that if they -- if 

15 
they let's say that you have a reseller with a switch 

16 
in Richmond, and they wanted to provide service to 

17 
Bowling Green, an independent exchange .. where OCCs do 

18 
not offer service. They could, if our tariffs were 

19 
revised a bit, buy an FX to Bowling Green and provide 

20 
terminating ubiquity to Bowling Green customers through 

21 
resold ace WATS-like services from Richmond. so it is 

22 
possible that resellers can provide both originating 

23 
and terminating ubiquity and still subscribe to the 

24 
WATS-like services of an ace. They would have to 

25 
purchase at least some services from AT&T, for example, 

1234 
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2 an FX line. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7. 

8 

Q R~ght. So one might say that in 

areas where no other facilities-basedcarrier serves, 

a reseller would need to purchase at least some service 

from AT&T? 

A 

Q 

Yes, that's true. 

All right. I have just a brief series 

9 of questions on the de-averaging line. Mr. Wilcox, I think 

10 

1.1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

you stated that it's corporate policy of AT&T at this time 

not to de-average rates on a geographic basis7 is that 

correct? 

A 

Q 

A 

is in writing. 

Q 

Yes. 

You said there's nothing in writing? 

Well, I didn't say that. My testimony 

Other than your testimony? 

A I have never seen anything in writing 

telling me you have to not geographically de-average 

in any particular place. I know that to fulfill my 

business responsibilities as a manager for AT&T 

Communications, that is a judgment that has to be made, 

that needs t~ be made on a state-by-state basis. It has 

to be -- it has to take into account the costs that our 

company incurs in providing service, and I state, 
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2 categorically, in Virginia, that the situation is today 

3 that geographic de-averaging would be a terrible marketing 

4 mistake for our firm, and we're not going to make it. 

5 And it won't become even a·sensible thing to do until 

6 the vast majority of MTS subsidies are removed from the 

7 access charge, access charges that we pay. 

8 Q Hopefully in three to five years, 

9 according to AT&T's recommendations' is that correct? 

10 A I think that would be a reasonable 

11 time frame, yes. 

12 MS. DUPONT: Thank you. Those are 

13 all the questions I have of Mr. Wilcox. 

14 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

15 
Any further redirect? 

16 MR. MORRISSEY: Just one question. 

17 
COMMISSION~R SHANNON: All right • 

18 

19 
REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 
BY MR. MORRISSEY: 

21 
Q In discussing the de-averaging question 

22 
wi·th·.the v.arious attorneys that cross~exam~ned,-.they-pointed to 

23 
your testimony which talked about economic rea~ities 

24 
and cost imperatives.which have to be dealt with in dealing 

25 
with the rural areas. Are those economic realities going 
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2 to have to be dealt with by this Commission whether AT&T 

3 is regulated or not? 

4 A Yes, they certainly are. Those 

5 economic realities apply to all carriers, and if some 

6 attempt is made to subsidize the interex~hange rates 

7 of rural, supposedly more expensive exchanges, we're 

8 going to have the same kinds of problems that we have 

9 today where we built subsidies into toll rates and 

10 shifted them to local exchange rates. You know, it 

1.1 if you look at competitive markets, there are things 

12 
that are cheaper in smaller towns, and I grew up in 

13 one, and there are things that are ~or~ expensive. 

14 And it has to do with the problems of transporting goods 

15 
and services to those towns or from those towns. 

16 
Telephone service may be more expensive overall in 

17 
some rural communities as we go forward. That is an 

18 
economic reality that has to be faced. The question is: 

19 
How do you transition to it so that you do the least 

20 
damage to universal service and to the affordability 

21 
of service? But it's certainly a problem, as you all 

well know. 
22 

23 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: As your access 

24 
charges. come down, as you say, they're above 

25 
cost no~, ~s they come down, then that's going 

123? 
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to .. have ·to be picked up larqely by the 

local exchanqe carriers' customers; isn't 

that right? 

THE ~TNESS: Yes, I think that's 

true, Your Honor. It may not be necessar·ily 

in dial tone line rates. The concept of 

life line service, I think, is a viable 

one, at least for some period of time, and 

it's important to remember, too, that you're 

not talking about rural areas, small exchanges 

paying more for long distance service. You're 

talking about them paying less. But just 

perhaps not as much less as the big towns 

pay. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: They would be 

paying more for local service and less for 

long distance service, if you. got the 

reverse situation that you had when you 

had the separations under the old Oza~k 

Plan, because that was loaded· heavily in 

favor of the local service carriersJ isn't 

that right? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor, it 

certainly is. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's what the 

Justice Department, and the FCC, and everybody 

upset and changed. 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

And not the least of which are the competitors 

present today will change that. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Anythinq 

further? 

MR. MORRISSEY: Nothinq further. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All riqht, 

you m~y stand down, Mr. Wilcox. Now you will 

be back, I quess, tomorrow, to have this 

additional information? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I will. 

COMMISSIONER SSANNON: And I suppose 

Mr. Marmon will have some questions on that; 

is that correct? 

MR. MARMON: We may. We will be 

seeing it, I guess, tomorrow morning for the 

first time. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: We certainly 

want to give you the opportunity to, if you 

have some questions on it. 

MR. MARMON: Thank you. 
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All riqht. 

Thank you. You may stand down then. 

* * * * * * * * 
WITNESS STOOD ASIDE 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I believe that 

you wanted, Ms. Dupont, to ask Mr. Schell a 

question or two? 

MS. DUPONT: Yes, just a brief 

question or two. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Schell, 

you may return. J~u' re still under oath, 

Mr. Schell, and if you'd just be seated and 

answer Ms. Dupont's questions. 

JOHN D. SCHELL, recalled as a witness 

by and on behalf of the Petitioner, having been previously 

duly sworn, testifies further as follows, viz: 

FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. DUPONT: 

Q Hello, Mr. Schell. 

' A Hello ~gain. 

Q You were here when I asked the question, 
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2 and I'll ask it again for the record: Isn't it true that 

3 via an EAS arrangement, a subscriber could not access 

4 the services of an OCC which was employing Feature 

5 Group B Direct trunking to an end office? 

6 A Correct. 

7 MS. DUPONT: Thank you. 

8 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's all? 

9 MS. DUPONT: That's it. 

10 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Thank you 

11 very much, Mr. Schell. 

12 

13 * * * * * * * * 

14 WITNESS STOOD ASIDE 

15 

16 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Do you have 

17 anythi~g further, Mr. Morrissey? 

18 
MRo MORRISSEY: No, sir. 

19 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's your 

20 
case? 

21 
MR. MORRISSEY: Yes, sir. 

22 
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

23 
Mr. Moore .and Mr. Marmon, we're re.ady to hear 

24 
your witness. 

MR. MARMON: We would call Dr. Nina W. 
25 
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2 Cornell. 

3 

4 NINA w. CORNELL, a witness called by 

5 and on behalf of the protestant, MCI, having been first 

6 duly sworn, testifies as follows, viz: 

7 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

8 BY MR. MARMON: 

9 Q Please state your name and business 

10 address·. 

11 A My .name is Nina w. Cornell. My 

12 business address is 1211 Connecticut Avenue, N.W., 

13 Suite 708, Washington, D.C. 20036. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q And who is your employer, and what 

position do you hold? 

A I'm an economist in private practice with 

the firm of Cornell, Pelcovits & Brenner Economists, 

Inc., of which I am President. 

Q And would you briefly describe your 

educational experience and professional backqround? 

A I have a Master's Degree and a Ph.D. 

in Economics from the University of Illinois. Before 

entering private practic~ in ~981, I was Chief of the 

Office of Plans and Policy at the Federal Communications 

Commission for three years, and as Chief of the Office 
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2 of Plans and Policy, I served as chief economist for the 

3 Commission. 

4 Prior to being with the FCC, I was a 

5 Senior Staff Economist for ~egulatory transportation, 

6 environmental and health and safety issues for the 

7 Council of Economic Advisors from about 1977 to 1978. 

8 I also did commupications work for them. 

9 Prior to being with the Council of 

10 Economic Advisors, I was employed for almost a_ year 

11 as an economist with the Council on Wage and Price 

12 Stability. 

13 Before joining the Federal Government, 

14 I spent four years at the Brookings Institution doing a 

15 
variety of natural resource regulatory communications 

16 economics. 
~· .. ... 
• 17 • 

MR. MARMON: All right. I would like 
0 ... 

.. 18 a 
~o introduce as NWC-l -- NWC-5, is it? 

2 
0 

;; 19 & 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: The ·.:next 
... 
z 
z 
0 20 ~ 
c 

one will be s. 
• 
ci 
1.1 

21 a 

MR. MARMON: Which .. is a curriculum · 
c 
~ 
z· .. • · vitae of Dr. Cornell • 

22 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That will be 
23 

so marked and r·ecei ved as Exhibit NWC-5 • 
24 

25 
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2 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

3 Q I have handed you, Dr. Cornell, what 

4 has been marked NWC-5; is that a curriculum vitae that you 

5 prepared? 

6 A Yes, it is. 

7 MR. MARMON: I would move that that 

8 be admitted in lieu of any further discussion 

9 of Dr. Cornell's qualifications. 

10 COMMIS.SIONER BRADSHAW: That's 

11 accepted. 

12 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's 

13 accepted. 

14 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) 

16 Q Dr. Cornell, what is the purpose of 

16 your testimony here today? 
I) 

:: 
I 17 .. A The purpose of my testimony is to 
~ 

.. 18 
~ 

address what issues this Commission should examine before 
~ 
I) 

.. 19 i 
it.grants AT&T Communications of Virginia's petition to be 

..; 
z 
z 

: 20 
deregulated in the provision of intrastate inter-city 

• 
c:i 

"" 21 1:1 

services. Critical to this examination is an analysis 
c 

" z 
Ill 
r. 

.22 of whether market forces can replace regulation as a 

23 means of protecting consumers. 

24 
Q And why, Dr. Cornell, did states 

25 
originally adopt traditional common·carrier regulation? 

• . ' 
\ l244 
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The decision in the past by states 

such as Virginia to impose traditional common carrier 

regulation on telephone companies was based upon the 

assumption that telephone companies were monopolies 

with substantial market power, including the ability 

to raise prices substantially above cost and summon 

all markets without fear new companies would -enter 

the market and take customers -awa~ from the monopoly 

company. In other words, because competitive alternatives 

did not exist, consumers were thought to be at the mercy 

of the monopoly companies, and regulation was assumed 

to be necessary to protect those customers. In particular, 

legislators =eared that-telephone companies might use 

their market power to set prices substantially above 

cost of service, engage in unfair price discrimination 

against certain customers, and later against potential 

competitors, or provide poor quality or no service to 

certain customers in an arbitrary and capricious fashion. 

To guard against such possible abuses, 

traditional telephone regulation came to include regulation 

of the companies' rate of return, specific rates, and 

other tariff conditions, as well as control over entry, 

expansion of service, construction of new facilities, 

discontinuance of service, and actual quality of service. 
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Q Now, should this Commission be concerned 

about these very same problems and possible abuses in the 

Virginia interLATA market today? 

A Yes, this Commission should be 

concerned about whether AT&T Communications of Virginia 

has market power and will have market power for some 

period into the.future. 

Q If this Commission grants AT&T 

Co~unications of Virginia's petition, would this be a 

streamlining of regulation or dereq.ul·ation, in your 

opinion? 

A It would be deregulation, in my 

opinion, because it would release AT&T Communications 

of Virginia from having to get any approval for any 

p~ice changes. Indeed, it would release AT&T Communications 

of Virginia from any responsibility even to notify this 

Commission of price changes. 

Q Would the threat of reregulation, 

assuming that the Commission granted the petition now, 

be an effective tool to constrain AT&T Communications of 

Virginia's behavior, in your opinion? 

A No. First, ~~is Commission would not 

be collecting regularly the kinds of information it would 

need to know quick'ly or easily that abuses were occurring. 
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2 Second, rerequlation is a heavy weapon. It's not somethinq 

3 that you unveil, except in the most dire circumstances. 

4 Indeed, rerequlation is largely an unknown ·act~on, because 

5 it has not been used in any degree to date. 

6 
COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Would the 

7 threat from other carriers, the fact that 

8 
they can move anywhere in the State, be a 

9 tool against it? I mean, if they raised 

10 the price in Buffalo Gap to a point that you 

11 
can go out there and make money -~ 

12 
THE WITNESS: Well, the answer is, 

13 
in the short run, it's not, because no, 

14 it isn't easy to go into Buffalo Gap and 

15 
some of these places where the other carriers 

16 
are. You've heard about the ease of resale. 

17 
Of course, resale you can only do it if the 

18 
carrier whose tariffs you're reselli~g keeps 

19 
the same sort of structured tariff differen-. 

tiation between MTS and WATS, or WATS and 
. 20 

21 
private line, depending on what you're going 

22 
to use. That's very easy to get rid of 

23 
if you deregulate it. If you•·re a .fac'ilities-

24 
based carrier, and you're talking about going 

25 
into an. area where you haven't already got 

.. 
"1247 



~12 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 
D 

: 
• 17 • 
~ 

.. 18 I) 

~ ... 

'"' 19 R 
... • z 
e 20 c • 
ci 
"' 21 : 
" z 
101 .. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Cornell - Di~ect 326 

construction plans underway and thinqs are 

well down the pike, you're talkinq two-

three years potentially before somebody could 

get facilities in there. On a facilities-

based basis, which is the real competition 

that AT&T faces --

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I wasn't 

thinking necessarily of facilities-based, maybe 

on a leased line or.something, until the 

traffic warranted facilities. 

THE WITNESS: Well, there again, 

if there isn't somebody whose already built 

facilities other than AT&T into Buffalo Gap, 

you've got to have somebody build them, 

because remember, I just said, resale is 

very vulnerable to whatever the carrier 

that you're reselling, in that case AT&Tt 

does with its underpinning tariffs. And 

if you're talking about facilities and 

AT&T owns· the only facilities into Buffalo 

Gap, it's going to take somebody two or 

three years to qet into Buffalo Gap, and in 

the meantime, those poor folks in Buffalo Gap, 

they're e~posed. 
... 
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2 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuinq) 

3 Q Dr. Cornell, were you in the courtroom 

4 when Dr. Alessio was testifying, I think it was last 

5 Friday? 

6 

7 

A 

Q 

Yes, I was. 

Do you remember his saying that the 

8 desire of AT&T Communications to be customer-friendly 

9 would constrain AT&T Communications' use of its market 

10 power? 

11 A I do remember that. 

12 Q And do you aqree with his conclusion 

13 about the impact of the desire to be customer-friendly? 

14 A I'm afraid not. As far as I can see, 

15 a monopoly carrier has basically two incentives to be 

1s customer-friendly. If it's regulated, it wants to 

17 avoid the wrath of the regulatory body if.it'S not 

18 customer-friendly and the customer complains to the 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

regulators. Or if it's really subject to competition, 

it wants to be customer-friendly to prevent inroads 

by the competitors. If the carrier has market power 

and he applies it, there are carriers that can't make 

that kind of inroads, therefore it doesn't have to, 

if it's neither regu~ated nor facing competition. 

Q !f 'AT&T Communications of Virginia does 



~14 

Cornell ~ Direct 328 

2 have today, and will continue to have market power, how 

3 might it use that market power to abuse customers if 

4 its rates were totally deregulated? 

5 A Well, the simple way it could abuse 

6 its market power would simply be to set its rates 

7 well above cost, knowing that it will retain a significant 

8 share of the market, based on the rotary-dial exclusion 

9 and the digit dialing disparity today, and to keep on 

10 doing that, knowing it·would have default traffic even out of 

11 equal access, which is in the near future. Obviously, 

12 though, with equal access, the ability to do this begins 

13 to be eroded, at least in those exchanges where there 

14 is equal access. Over the longer term, obviously, the 

15. way it could exploit its market power is by geographically 

16 
de-averaging its rates. There's been a lot of discussion 

0 

: 
• 17 • 

of that. Under such a scheme, AT&T Communications could 
~ 

.. 18 0 

charge more for calls originating on those routes that 
0 .. 
0 

19 
occs, due to the access handicaps and the time that it 

20 
takes to construct networks, find most difficult to serve. 

21 
such de-averaging could take a number of forms. It could 

22 
be·over naming geographic origination points where customers 

23 
would b~ required to pay more, or they could do it by 

24 
only applying it to some services, such as w.ATS and private 

25 
line, but not MTS, a~d that, as I noteO, would make resale 
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2 much more difficult to help the customers in those 

3 

4 

exchanges. They could also do it in kind of a I 

hesitate to use the word covert but in a not as 

5 overt fashion. By studying existing traffic patterns, 

6 AT&T Communications of Virginia could fashion discount 

7 bulk· offerings that are unlikely to offer benefits 

s to any customers in the exchanges-not reached by 

9 competitors. As was noted earlier, the majority of 

10 people who use large volumes are in more urban settings. 

11 Q Why should this Commission be concerned 

12 i"f AT&T Communications de-averages WATS or private-line 

13 rates? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Well, aqain; it goes back to the 

issue about resale.· .To the extent that people are 

r~lying on resale as a means o~ curbing AT&T's market 

power, and therefore hoping not ·to·have to ·worry .about the 

problem of competition or not competition, if AT&T 

de-averages its WATS or private-line rates such that 

there isn • t any abil.i ty to take those services, add 

the cost of switching and the cost of billing, and the 

other factors that go into offering a resale service, 

MTS-like service, means that the customers for MTS 

would face absolutely· no competition, either wholesale 

or retail. 
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2 Q Bow should this Commission take into 

3 account the three statutory factors: the number of 

4 companies. providing service, the geographic availability 

5 of service from other companies, and the quality of 

6 service available from other companies, in deciding 

7 whether to grant deregulation of AT&T? 

8 A This Commission should.examine the 

g three factors to determine whether AT&T Communications 

10 of Virginia has market power now, and whether it will 

11 have such power in the future. In doing so, this 

12 Commdssion should be concerned in particular with whether 

13 there is now or will be soon interLATA service by 

14 alternative carriers in exchan9es served by independent 

15 telephone companies in rural areas and in areas where 

16 exchange service is provided solely on a rotary-dial 

17 basis. Due to the inequality of interconnection, and 

18 the relative newness of the OCCs, these areas are 

19 less likely today to have alternative services available. 

20 
This Commdssion should also consider 

21 
carefully the service quality difference as perceived 

by consumers between dial 1 service, that's 1 plus the 

23 
area code, plus the number you're calling, and a service 

24 
that requires a minim~ of 22 digits, all but seven of 

25 
which must be enter~d .. using tone pulses. For virtually 
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2 all exchange customers, only one interLATA carrier can 

3 offer dial l service today. Approximately 30 percent 

4 of Virginia consumers will still have only one dial l 

5 carrier on September 1, 1986, if the current plans 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

hold. Moreover, as of today, little is known about 

whether there are any plans to make choices among 

dial l carriers possible for the customer groups 

mentioned above. To do so would require designing and 

implementing equal access to smaller or older switches, 

both those owned by C&P that are not now necessarily 

covered by the MFJ, and those owned by independents 

that do not now face any requirements to provide 

equal access. 

Q In.his testimony on Friday, Dr. Alessio 

noted that the kinds of disparities in service that you were 

just talkinq·about, the·quality dial 1 service and the 

22 diqit service, that these kinds of disparities are 

actually the fruit of ·a competitive process, and are to be 

encourage~ and such a process is to be applauded. Do 

you agree with that analysis? 

A well, I a~ree in part. He was correct 

that competitive markets produce quality differences, 

but they do so with·~~~h firm free to try to compete 

at whichever quaii t~· .·le'vel it wants. In the car market, 
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2 for example, some firms bui;d only luxury cars, some only 

3 low-budget cars, and some offer a full line. The 

4 telephone market is not like this today. Only one 

5 firm, AT&T, can offer Cadillacs. There are no Lincolns, 

6 no Rolls Royces, or even Mercedes. Moreover, for most 

7 users today, a Cadillac is the only service available, 

8 and for some time -- and for some, this will remain true 

9 for a very long time to come. 

10 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

11 let's stop. It's now 4:00 o'clock, and we 

12 have an insurance case tomorrow morning 

13 at 10:00, and we have this lady on the 

14 stand now. Is she the last witness, the 

15 only witness you have? 

16 MR. MARMON: Yes, sir, Your Honor, 

17 she is. 

18 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yours are 

19 going to submit their testimony, I believe? 

20 MS. DUPONT: Yes , Your Honor, and 

21 I wonder if I I don't know if this is an 

22 appropriate time to bring this up, but in 

23 light of tPe. fact that we it appears we 

24 will go Qver until tomorrow, I wonder if we 

25 might defer by·a couple of days the filing 
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of that testimony since Mr. Magee and I will 

need to confer with our witnesses. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Could you 

get that in by Friday? 

MS. ·DUPONT: We certainly could. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: We will -­

what's Friday's date? It's the 3rd, I believe. 

If you could get it filed by then, that would 

be fine. 

MS. DUPONT: Thank you so much. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let me get a 

line of how much cross -- how much more 

direct? I'm not trying to rush you, but 

I'm just trying to --

MR. MARMON: I think we have about 

a half hour, 45 minutes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right. 

Bow much cross would you have? Would you 

have any, Mr. Gillespie? 

MR. GILLESPIE: Perhaps 15 minutes. 

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Fifteen minutes. 

Mr. Gambardella? 

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Just a few minutes. 

-COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Then Mr. Morrisse ? 
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2 MR. MORRISSEY: Yes, sir, assuming 

3 that Dr. Cornell will give similar type 

4 testimony as I've heard, I would· guess it's 

5 going to be about 10 or 15 minutes. 

6 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, we 

7 should, if we start this case tomorrow at 

8 1:00 o'clock, we should be able to finish 

9 it by 4:00 then, I would think. 

10 Is that a fair assumption? 

11 MR. MORRISSEY: Yes, sir. 

12 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right, 

13 then, we will stand in recess, and you may 

14 stand down temporarily, Dr. Cornell. We 

15 will stand in recess in this case until 

16 1:00 o'clock tomorrow. 
0 : 
• 17 • 0 . 
. 18 0 

NOTE: The hearing was recessed at 
~ 
0 

~ 19 z 
4:01p.m., July 30, 1984, to be continued to 

~ 
z z 
e ~ c 

1:00 o'clock p.m., July 31, 1984. 
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